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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR

: For the year ended 31 December
HE+-HA=1+—HLEE

2019 2018 Change
—E2—hE “Z2-N\EF EH)
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 (%)
AREBTT ARET T (%)
Revenue Wz 8,602,321 6,735,931 27.7%
Gross profit el 2,954,114 2,387,720 23.7%
Profit before income tax FRFTISTR AT AT 2,640,985 2,213,472 19.3%
Profit for the year FrimH] 1,551,660 1,296,428 19.7%
Profit attributable to owners KABHEB A 1,034,931 990,747 4.5%
of the Company FEAE @7
Total assets BEEME 62,609,340 35,146,306 78.1%
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 11,094,295 5,678,863 95.4%
Total bank and other borrowings RIT R EMERARLR 16,782,693 11,059,681 51.7%
Earnings per share for profit ENNCIE7ZS DN
attributable to owners FEAERF 89
of the Company SREF
- Basic and diluted (expressed in —EARR#EE (Uek 29.14 27.90 4.4%
RMB cents per share) AREBAET)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AFEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Yeuk Hung

Mr. HUANG Ruoging
Mr. TANG Chengyong

Mr. Wang Weifeng (appointed on 15 April 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David GBS, BBS, JP

Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuen SBS, BBS
Mr. YIP Tai Him

Mr. CHOW Kwong Fai, Edward JP (resigned on 26 November 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Hing Chau

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. HUANG Ruoging
Mr. CHAN Hing Chau

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. YIP Tai Him (Chairman)
Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David GBS, BBS, JP
Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuen SBS, BBS

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. YIP Tai Him (Chairman)
Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuen SBS, BBS
Mr. HUANG Ruoqing

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. HUANG Ruoqing (Chairman)
Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David GBS, BBS, JP
Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuen SBS, BBS

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

LEGAL ADVISORS
Sidley Austin

39th Floor, Two International Finance Centre

Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARAEH

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Redco Building

Tower 5, Qiaochengfang Phase |
No0.4080 Qiaoxiang Road

Nan Shan District, Shenzhen
People’ s Republic of China

PRINCIPLE PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 2001-2, Enterprise Square 3
39 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay
Kowloon, Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street
P.0O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman, KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’ s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Minsheng Bank

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
The Bank of East Asia Limited
Hang Seng Bank

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: ir@redco.cn

Fax: (852) 2758 8392

STOCK CODE

1622

WEBSITE

www.redco.cn
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Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street
P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman, KY1-1108
Cayman Islands
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2019 ANNUAL REPORT — KEY EVENTS OF THE YEAR
2019 FEHRS —FEKXEFL

®

31 JAN

The Group acquired a premium

land parcel in Shijiazhuang, PY

Hebei Province, further 5 MAR

intensifying our region layout in The Group entered into a

Bohai. strategic cooperation with
E-house to form a strong

1AH31H .

. N alliance that empowers each

REBEBEIILEAREHEEM other

9 FERMEIRBREMmE
3A5H
FEERGECEERERBES

> saRi e ° ABERHAE o

27 MAR

The Group signed a Syndicate
Credit Loan Agreement in an
amount of US$175 million,
achieving a high quality turnover
for the Company.

3A27H

REBMAES] 175 BETREE
BE™MWE > BHRBEBREEE
WEEE -

27 FEB

The Group lifted the value of the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area by gaining a
premium residential land in
Gaoming District, Foshan. ®

2H27H
FEBMBERRNEREBES
# o FEGLTSHREEEEER
ih o

IEMEEMAIRAT 20195 E®RSE 5
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2019 ANNUAL REPORT — KEY EVENTS OF THE YEAR
2019 FEHRE —FEKREFL

10 MAY

The Group acquired two premium residential
land parcel in Xianghu Riverside, Nanchang,
expanding the layout development in the
region.

5H10H
FEERINENREETRNE IMREEEEM
12 0 ERIEMURCEE -

20 MAY

The Group acquired a premium residential
land parcel in Luojiang District, Quanzhou
which further develops in the Western Taiwan
Straits Economic Zone.

5820H
A EE RN R TBEE IR * I
WS P AR AT o

23 MAY

The Group was awarded three prizes of
“2019 Top 10 China’ s Listed Real Estate
Enterprises (2019 REIE#ZE /A5 TOP10),
demonstrating the high recognition of the
company by market and industry research
institutions.

5H23H
AEBEN0I9FFEEME EHAT TOP101=
BAR  EEMERTENREEHATINEE

228 o

16 JUL

The Group successfully acquired a high-
quality land parcel in Tianxin District,
Changsha City, marking its first foray into
Changsha.

7TH16H
FEERINERR)DTROEEBEMIRE > BEE
BERW -

30 JUL

The Group successfully acquired 125 mu
high-quality residential land parcel in New
Station District, Hefei.

TH30H
AEEMINERSEHIEE 125 BB ETH
3 o
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2019 ANNUAL REPORT — KEY EVENTS OF THE YEAR
2019 FEHRSE —FEEKRHL

AUG

Shenzhen UG Property Management Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of the Group, was awarded “2019
Property Management Service Enterprises

in the PRC’ (2019 B %£ARFBEH B E)

with its strong comprehensive strength and
reputation in the industry. Its management
projects, namely Nanchang Redco - Riverside
International was honored the “2019 National
Property Management Excellent Demonstration
Community’ (2019 =B X ERESF~EH/)E).

8H
AEBETEEXRRYERERYNGEENINE
FOME ° HEN019TEYERBES LX) HE

BEEMENS - BAIERIREN0192EMEE

EBEHBTHBNE] -

1AUG

The Group successfully acquired a high-quality
land parcel in Boluo Longxi, Huizhou City,
further intensifying our layout in Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.

88 1H
AEEREREN T EREEEEME  RLE
BEKEEMHE o

7AUG

The Group was awarded double honors of
“China Real Estate Fashion Awards - 2019 China
Annual Investment Value Real Estate Enterprise
TOP30” (FREIMIEE M AT - 2019 FEFEREB
EMERZETOP30) with our outstanding market
performance, and top 100 in “China Housing
Enterprise Comprehensive Strength TOP200” (H
BlfE (4R & B TOP200) list.

8ATH

FEBEBEEENTHRFES PEMAERR K
82 - 2019 FEFEREBEMERETOP30) > X
FERHITREERGREE I TOP200 5 8BAT 100 #18

AUG

27 AUG

The Group successfully acquired two high-
quality land parcel in the Dongjiang Science
and Technology Park area of Huizhou and the
Ganzhou Economic Development Zone. The
regional strategic layout was further expanded
and deepened, providing favorable support for
the Group to accumulate sufficient and high-
quality land reserves.

8H27H

2 £ B R T BN BT AH B & 15 WU s 88 N 48 B8
EmREEMRE S BRBRGEEE-TERRF
6’ REERRTE - BENIMREFEREENX

B o
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2019 ANNUAL REPORT — KEY EVENTS OF THE YEAR

2019 FEHRE —FEASL

14 OCT

The Group successfully acquired 250 mu high-
quality commercial and residential land parcel in
Main City Center of Jinan District, Jinan, further
cultivating the region in Bohai.

10A14H
REE R ERAERE A0 250 B EEE
iR RIIREEE o

28 OCT

Huigao Company(E=A&]), a subsidiary of the
Group, has signed a cooperation framework
agreement with the Makati City Government

of the Philippines and IRC Properties Inc.

of the Philippines in Hong Kong. The three
parties will cooperate in the development

of the Makati public railway transportation
system construction project and related service
construction in order to improve local rail
transportation and enhance the quality of urban
life.

10H28H
FEETBABESARRIERE E RS MEM
JE2E IRC Properties Inc. REBEESTEIERW
o ZARMERSM ALK ERNARERIER
KIERRBRERRETEERE > NSEMHE
i@~ AT EERE o

OCT

310CT

The Group held the Redco Group New Oriental
Green Building 1.0 Product Release Conference
in Shenzhen. It proposed a "Double-Hundred
Plan" for Redco Green Building, released a New
Oriental Green Building 1.0 product system, and
established a Green Building Research Center
with Shenzhen University, and also released a
white paper about “Redco Group New Oriental
Green Building”.

10A31H
FAERRRNARNSEENRSEEZEIOER
% RUHSREERE G5 BiHHR
FHEEREE1OERBR > WERIIKSRIBERE
FEfzE O EREMA(OSHRDINRERZE)R
RE o
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2019 ANNUAL REPORT — KEY EVENTS OF THE YEAR

22 NOV

The overseas Sydney project Prime Mansion
which was jointly developed by the Group's
companies has fulfilled the delivery
conditions. As the first overseas cooperative
development project, the Group aimed to
build ingenious and high-standard service
houses to provide more refined and better
residential products for local residents.

11R22H

FEEBE TN AT S IFFAEREINEREE Prime
ANEBEERMEY  FRBIINEIFRENEEER
B’ AEBRUECEER®  URBHEELT
R’ AEMERREHERE  EXFHNEEE

o}
an °

3DEC

The Group announced the company issued
US$ 250,000,000 senior notes through its
subsidiaries as guarantors. The capital
structure has been further optimize and lay
a solid foundation for accelerating business
development.

12A3H
FEBEMATUEMBABSERA * BTN
T25BETBARRE - E—FPBIEEREHE
AINEREB R RIT TIREIRVEEE

2019 FEHRE —FEASL

12 DEC

As at 12 December, a Real Estate Summit
Forum of 2019 "High Building and
Construction” organized by Gelonghui(#&
[%[&) was grandly held in Shenzhen, the
central of the Greater Bay Area and the font
before the economic Reform. The Group
was awarded "2019 China Listed Housing
Enterprise Growth Potential Award".

12812H

128120 BREEEHN2019TEERME
WESIEHBEAEEEM « AEBRRAIHE
FYIPEELRIT o REBHEN2019PE EHREE
HRREIE

17 DEC

The Group acquired high-quality land parcel
in Shiwan Town, Boluo County, Huizhou
City, further improving the strategic layout
of the Bay Area, and demonstrating its
determination and courage to deeply
cultivate the Bay Area.

12A17H
AERIIERMNHEER O EREE M
E—PTEBENEIKGE  ERARHIEEIR
DERBRT] o

24 DEC

The Major shareholders of the Group, Mr.
Wong Yeuk Hung and Mr. Huang Ruoqing,

as the founder and donor of Redco Charity
Organisation(NBE&EZEEE) held a
charitable donation event in Xinhlongzhuang
Village, Hebei Province which aimed to
improve the rural medical condition through
philanthropic act by helping the construction
in local village.

12A24H
FERTERREEMAERBETREFRE
EARBEANNSEEES SIS EEH]
NEMADREN ° SEBBESEE B
MR RERTBERFMST o
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
EERMEIRH

gt gLl ]

=F

1. CENTER MANSION, FOSHAN

Center Mansion is located in the Gaoming District of Foshan, a city
bound to be the hinterland of the internationally renowned Greater
Bay Area. The site of this project situates right at the Xijiang New
City area which has huge development potential, the well-developed
Hecheng Subdistrict is just nearby and provides all amenities of
city life. Center Mansion itself is to be equipped with 3067.8 m?
of commercial facilities that will be built into a little town square
surrounded by shopping malls, childhood education institutions,
training centers, children playhouse, etc., offering superb living
facilities for its residents.

The total area of the project is 17427.96 m?, and the total construction
area is 74128.82 m?. The project adopted an enclosed design, with
buildings lower in the south and higher to the north. Its 4 high-rise
residential towers have only two units per storey, block 1&2 are 25
storeys high, block 3&4 are 33 storeys high, all facing south and with
plenty of windows and double balcony in each unit for the purpose
of getting best natural ventilation. The spacious distance between
each tower plus the vast atrium create a higher level of privacy and
comfort.

The project is positioned as a hi-tech residence with Oriental flavor,
its Chinese style facade blending modern lifestyle with the essence of
traditional architecture. Through its Asian-themed landscape garden,
Center Mansion embodies the concept of creating a residence
of “fragrance, comfort, intelligence and style” and it is highly
compatible with the surrounding traditional Chinese architecture
in the community. This project is a breakthrough of regional
homogenization pattern, its emphasis on resident s comfort stands
out in the neighborhood.

¥

1+ #lUhE - BRFA

BLUAE - BERMFEBUEBEREANER
festh ISBRE ° BN & ﬁé’f%/aﬂﬁﬁ
PR & ° AR ERITEE T S

& MBI EEE o THE 5%@6%3067.8
mMEERE > RITER—ENEES K
RAGSIALEEEE - RS - Hall1
B RFRES  TEREERERE -

IEEMEiﬁEF 17427.96 i ° HBREEE
74128.82 m - BEBEEBE SR’ MR
IEEiE - 4ARESBETMHE > Hh1/21%
2258 3/4AB S338 24P &
BEHALRE - AIEERE  2ERAA
e ARt mibEE 0 WA B EEIER
FE A A R RE 5% 51 15 AR B 18 31 AV FA B RE P
T BEEELRERFRESEEE
Mo

BEEMRARRAE  FAMPARE
SN ERAE IR EE AR E R
R K FLZZ Bl o @EA%?EEJHH%ET%
MBS B8 BIARIFES

ERkateRREENPAEIR - EE‘?@F‘H
WreRERRELCRE BENEEER
FBEFEE  TEREANE—SHNEE

i ©
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2. CLOUD TERRACE, HEFEI

Cloud Terrace is jointly developed by the hundred-billion-worth real
estate company Zhongliang and Redco. Located at the intersection of
Fuyang North Road and Dengmei Road, it sits at the core of northern
urban center of the city and is the focus of Shuangfeng Economic
Development Zone. With downtown Hefei in close proximity, the area
around Cloud Terrace is becoming an outlet for business crowded
out of the CDB, bringing in capital, talents, information and other
resources. The arrival of commercial establishments has resulted in
the upgrades of transportation, education, and medical services in
this part of the city.

The project covers an area of approximately 48,000 m?, with a total
construction area of approximately 128,000 m?. The landscape
design focused on a unique elevated walkway which zigzags through
a evergreen garden and leads to six themed leisure platforms.
Such a special design set the ground for an uncommon residential
experience.

As a benchmark project in the north side new district of Hefei City,
Cloud Terrace won praises from consumers and the real estate
industry, it was bestowed with honors including “most Attractive Real

Estate for buyers in 2019 “, “the most keenly expected real estate in
Anhui province 2019 “and “ the most anticipated real estate 2020”.

™

MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERE
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERR

3. REDCO VISIONARY, JINAN

Located at the core of Jinan s urban renewal pilot projects, Redco
Visionary with its nearly 2 million m?total floor area is set to define
the future development of down town Jiyang. The project comprises
of about 1.4 million m? of high quality residence, 300,000 m? of
commercial area, schools and community facilities such as cultural
activity center, medical care and artificial intelligence services.

Floor area of the residential units ranges from 80 m? to 140 m?
meeting the needs of different buyers. Its design emphasizes all-
round well-being, elongated floor plan allows for windows on both
the northern and southern sides of a unit. The facade design is based
on local elements and adopts a new Asian style to create a stylish,
artistic and healthy home environment.

In 2019, Redco Visionary was the best selling real estate of Jiyang in
terms of both sold floor area and sales amount. It integrates living,
education, culture, entertainment, and shopping in a single entity.
With its concept of “fully functional, high quality and multi-purpose”,
Redco Visionary will play an important role in transforming down
town Jiyang into an all-round living space.

3+ BEEAE - RKE

ErRIE s RRWMIBE U A ERTERSE
OB ER L2008 75 R & 52
B’ EREBIWEMAK - HEAHR
BNI40BEnmEREE N30 HEFER
B 2R B BE - ATBESFHE
RE—EE2 -

BEEHEREAL-140mM A ERE > 7]
EEmETABEENBERER S PER
StHE PIIFHERRR  RA—FER
X5t RAEILIEE HIEER - B
YHEKFILENALITE > SRAHMNE
1% ISR ~ B - BENERIRIE

019FEEENB - RRWEERSES
BIHERR HETREE— - ZEEE
£E BB~ B~ 1R BYR—8
PUramE s smE -~ BEa R  NEHE
B EETEEGIHEERE S EEN
#B o
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4. SPRING VILLA, JINAN

Spring Villa is located on the north bank of the Yellow River, closely
approximated to Jinan, the capital of Shandong Province. The project
has a unique natural resource of double hot spring in the premise,
its buildings adopted a new Asian architectural style which made
symmetrical use of traditional artistic conception and modern design,
resulted in an ingeniously built mansion.

As a model of high-quality residence, the project has a plot ratio of
only 1.66, creating a low-density high-end living space. Great efforts
were made to give Spring Villa comprehensive community service,
it is the first in the area to introduce centralized heating to supply
residents with warm air in winter. The service of Yearning Health
Living Room and UG Property Management are also brought in to
provide health and community service for all ages.

With its outstanding brand power and products, the project has
been widely praised by the market with excellent sales received. The
construction engineering process was recognized by professional
organizations and won the Dezhou City Quality Structure Cup award.

™

MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FEEMERR

4~ BEmEAE - ERIT
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERR

5. THE PHOENIX, NANCHANG

The Phoenix is located at the intersection of Fenghe North Avenue
and Zhujiang Road on Fenghuangzhou (Island of Phoenix) which
is part of the CBD of Nanchang known as Honggutan. This place is
the new urban area designated by the Nanchang Municipal Party
Committee and Municipal Government for riverside development in
order to expand the city. Modernized transportation around it will
control the economic lifeline of the whole province.

The project covers a total area of 56,000 m? and a total construction
area of 240,000 m?. Across the road is the 3A-grade Jiangxi Provincial
People s Hospital which is the largest in Honggutan, while 300 meters
away are the Provincial Library, Provincial Museum and Provincial
Science and Technology Museum. The Phoenix is aimed at becoming
a multi-function commercial complex integrating shopping malls,
entertainment, catering, commercial offices, fitness and leisure
facilities.

Lak

B
[}
[}
'R
]
L]

5-mENE - BEHRX

MENE - BEMRRBUNRESLIF:
CBD BLEMF 0@ EMIEKERIKTTEEAL
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R REBRI —LImFE W H RS
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6. RIVERSIDE GLORY, NANCHANG

As the fifth Redco project around Xianghu Lake, Riverside Glory is
the culmination of the Group s intense exploitation in the Jiangxi
Province for 13 years, coming after 17 masterpieces of Redco such as
Crown International, Bluelake County and Royal City.

Located in the up and coming area of Xianghu lakeside, the project
takes up the bridgehead vantage point of Jiulong Lake Cross-river
Bridge, close to Donglian Road and the riverside expressway.

The project covers a site area of approximately 95,000 m? and a
total floor area of approximately 260,000 m2 The units for sale have
three to four big rooms and windows on both north and south sides,
allowing fresh air from the lake to flow freely, offering a comfortable
and spacious environment for the residents.

The five-fold traditional courtyard setup emulates the grandiose of
old-time noble mansions, matched with top-of-the-line amenities to
provide intimate services for residents of all ages.

™

MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERE
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MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS
FERMERR

7. YONG LAKE INTERNATIONAL, NANCHANG

Located on the east side of Aixi Lake in the high-tech zone, YONG Lake
International is close to Aixi Lake Wetland Park, Nantang Lake Park
and Yuweizhou Park. These three parks accord excellent landscape
and scenery. Well-developed transportation networks include a
riverside highway connecting to Nanchang s three major traffic
rings. The area is also close to Yuweizhou Station (under planning) of
subway Line 4 for convenient commuting.

The project comprises housing, office buildings, commercial streets,
four-star hotels and mega supermarkets, integrating residential,
office space, catering, leisure, learning, training, creative and art
workshops in close vicinity. Expansive public space and Luojia
Children’ s Theme Park forms a multi-purpose community area which
is part of the feature of this unique 410,000 m? cultural and creative-
themed complex.

T~-Eahs -
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8. CLOUD METROPOLIS, NINGBO

With Yuyao high-speed railway North Station on its side, Cloud
Metropolis located on the main axis of northern Yuyao City, enjoying
the convenient traffic network of “two horizontal, two vertical
and one ring’ of highways. As an important part of Yuyao s newly
developed residential area, it neighbors two major commercial
districts which offer bustling city life day and night. Sitting on the
border of Cixi City and Yuyao city, Cloud Metropolis is set to leverage
on its geographical advantages and convenience of high-speed rail
transportation to become a much sought-after residence with huge
value potential.

Total planned building area of the project is about 550,000 m?. The
architecture adopts a modern style deriving inspiration from the
German Bauhaus aesthetics, opting a harmonious color scheme
which looks exquisite and elegant. Modern intelligent technology
systems such as face recognition are installed to boost security.
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9. LEISURE S MANSION, QUANZHOU

Standing on the side of the Citong Bridge, Leisuré s Mansion occupies
a section of the core area of south riverside business district, only
a bridge away from Quanzhou and the colorful downtown city life,
the adjacent Fengchi Road and airport connecting lines provide easy
access to every corner of the city.

With a planned construction area of about 8000 m?, the project is
surrounded by bustling malls of Puxi Wanda, Jinjiang Wanda and
Baijie Shangyue City, as well as four major parks and high-end
hotels. Leisur€ s Mansion demonstrates the high-end standard of
Redco Group, aiming at being the benchmark of luxury residents in

Quanzhou.
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10. RIVIERA ONE, TAIZHOU

Riviera One is located in the core of the Jiangyan District, an area
crucial to the municipal plan of integrating Jiangyan with the nearby
district of Hailing and forming a new city center. With a total floor
area of 650,000m?, Riviera One is the top quality residence of western
Jiangyan, adjacent to the city' s largest commercial complex which
has about 130,000 square meters of shopping area. The abundance
of trendy shops provides all the needs of enjoying a fashionable
life while the two surrounding main roads offer easy access for the
residents.

Riviera One boasts a 5,000 m? American style aesthetic landscape
area and a 150,000 m? community garden, providing ample leisure
space and sports facilities for residents of all age groups. The project
consists of three product lines, namely the mount view high-rise
apartments, garden houses and the roomy villas, all built with low
density, high level of greening and spacious surroundings, setting a
new criterion of high-quality residence for Jiangyan.
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11. SUNSHINE COAST, TIANJIN

Sunshine Coast is located at the centre of Sino-Singapore Tianjin
Ecocity on the eastern coast of Tianjin. With a fantastic sea view and
increasingly integral supporting facilities, it is being developed into
an ideal residence completed with education institutes, medical

service and leisure amenities.

The phased construction has been going on for ten years, offering
villas, mansions and high-rise apartments with floor area ranging
from 221-1067m? The villas overlook the sea and are built with
harmonious designs and attention to details, abiding by the quality
concept of “quality architecture lays the foundation of quality life”.
The whole project is committed to celebrating the beauty of life with
nice and diverse surroundings.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

KE
President / #8#

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to present the business review and prospect of the year
ended 31 December 2019 of Redco Properties Group Limited (the
“Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).

RESULTS

In 2019, the Group recorded property contract sales amount of
RMB27,412.0 million, representing a corresponding increase of 24.7%);
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company was RMB1,034.9
million, an increase of 4.5% over the corresponding period last year.
Basic earnings per share was RMB29.14 cents, and the Board of
Directors proposed a final dividend of RMB3 cents per share. During
the reporting period, the Group’ s gross profit was RMB2,954.1 million,
representing an increase of 23.7% year-on-year; the gross profit
margin was 34.3%; net profit was RMB1,551.7 million, representing an
increase of 19.7% year-on-year, and the net profit margin was 18.0%.
The Group has adopted prudent financial strategies to maintain a
reasonable capital structure and gearing ratio. During the reporting
period, the Group has cash-in-hand of RMB1,506.0 million, while net
debt-to-equity ratio dropped significantly to 17.9% compared to last
year.
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2019 REVIEW

In 2019, under the central government s clear goal of “Stabilizing
Land Prices, Housing Prices, and Expectations’, market regulation has
become normal, and the real estate market has developed steadily.
National investment in real estate development reached RMB13,219.4
billion, an increase of 9.9% and 0.4 percentage points swifter than
last year. High-quality housing companies seized the window as well
as the urban structural opportunities, and win over the market by
positioning towards mainstream demand, high cost performance and
innovative products, and achieve continuous growth in sales result.

Think deep and gain far benefits, plan and decide following moves.
In 2019, the Group focused on enhancing its strategic execution
to go ahead while facing opportunities and challenges. The Group
focuses on its products, achieve continuous innovation, research
and development of a new oriental health building product system
to provide customers with safe and healthy products and services.
The Group maintained efficient operation and steady progress to
achieve continuous improvement of organization efficiency, and
generated considerable returns on investment for our shareholders.
We advocate the corporate culture of encouraging high-achievers
to establish high-quality development platforms for our employees.
The Group also actively participate in public welfare, support the
development of education and science and education, and fulfill our
corporate social responsibilities.

In 2019, the Group's real estate business achieved high-quality
development, and continued to deepen our establishment in high-
value and high-growth regioins such as the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, the Yangtze River Delta, and the Bohai
Sea Ring Area. Our land reserve increased to 14.56 million square
meters, representing a year-on-year increase of 45.7%, while value
of goods reached RMB121.89 billion. Meanwhile, the Group actively
explored overseas business development. The Sydney prime
mansion project was successfully delivered, and we have signed a
cooperation framework agreement with the Makati City Government
of the Philippines and the IRC Group to enter into the Philippine
market. With excellent sales performance, the Group has successfully
maintain on the list of Top 100 National Housing Corporations.

Meanwhile, the Group maintains a steady financial position and
satisfactory financing ability. Our net gearing ratio decreases to 17.9%
from 47.9% by the end of 2018. Our cash in hand is amounted to RMB
15.06 billion, which ensures the Group s risk bearing ability while
the overall national economy is under the impact of the epidemic. It
also provides a strong guarantee for post-epidemic investment and
development.
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While optimizing our land reserve and financial structure to enhance
internal resources, the Group expands its property extension
business as the second point of growth. The input in diversified
business is intensified to create and nurture the six sectors business
—“healthcare, commerce, technology, property, cultural tourism and
education”, which empowers one another and integrates innovation.
As a diversified and innovative product, New Oriental Green
Building deeply integrated the core services of its three industries
of “healthcare, property and technology’. It injected characteristic
attributes into “Redco Green Building” and continued to build the
core value chain of the Redco brand.

2020 OUTLOOK

Under the impact of COVID-19, the real estate industry is also affected
in certain extent. Nevertheless, as the epidemic is progressively
under control, the long-term improvement in Chinese economy
remains unchanged. In a market perspective, the epidemic was
under preliminary control by late February. As market started to
recover by March, the demand and supply rose significantly. By
implementing a full-scale resumption of production and work, the
real estate industry, as a pillar industry of national economy, is
committed to development with weighted emphasis. Meanwhile,
as the requirements for residential healthiness and service security
has increased, property enterprises are committed to provide green
services to gain room for development.

In the future, the Group will strive to implement overall strategy
in property development and operation and the dual-drivers of
diversified business. Property business will continue to focus on the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the Yangtze River
Delta, Bohai and high value and high growth core regions and cities
such as Wuhan and Nanchong. We will maintain a steady and prudent
financial strategy and expand in diversified financing channels. By
ensuring these financing channels are smooth and unhindered, our
financing costs would be lowered.
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The end of a harvest marks the next harvest. From focusing on real
estate development and development to implementing dual-driver
steady development; from providing premium residence to customers
to realizing a full life cycle health services to customers, Redco never
compromise in pursuing the improvement of quality. In the future, the
Group will continue to enhance its strategy implementation ability,
strengthen its operation ability, improving its organization efficiency
to maximize its input in green residence. We will carry out the double
hundred program by meeting 100% national building requirements in
100% of our new projects within three years. By enhancing customer
satisfaction, strengthening brand building and promoting the Group’s
reputation, we will build the core competiveness in the ever-changing
market environment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Our development is inseparable from the trust and support of all
shareholders, investors, partners, owners and the community. |
would like to express my gratitude and respect for the contributions
of the members of the Board, the management of the Company and
all staff members of Redco. Boundless is the ocean where we sail
with the wind. In the future, the Company will continue to strive for
development and creating maximum value in return for your support.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company currently consists of seven Directors, comprising four
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The powers and duties of our Board include determining our business
and investment plans, preparing our annual financial budgets and
final reports, formulating proposals for profit distributions as well
as exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred by
our Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”) and Articles
of Association of the Company (the “Articles of Association’). The
biographical details of the Directors are as follows:-

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Yeuk Hung (&%) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 56, has been
an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board since 9 March
2017. He was the founder of the Group in 1992. He was responsible
for strategic planning and overall management of the group’s
business from 1992 to 2014. He currently serves as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He currently serves as a member
of the committee of the Thirteenth National People' s Congress of
the Chinese People’ s Political Consultative Conference, as a Vice
Chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations, and
as a Vice Chairman of the China Association of Poverty Alleviation
& Development. He is a founder and donor of Redco Charity
Organisation. Mr. Wong is currently pursuing a Master degree of
Business Administration in the University of Science and Technology
of China.

Mr. Wong is the elder brother of Mr. Huang Ruoging and he is not
related to any of the other directors or senior management of the
Company. By virtue of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”), Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested in 1,387,258,000 shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) held by Global Universe International
Holdings Limited (“Global Universe’)as at 31 December 2019. For
further details, please refer to the section headed “Directors and
chief executive s interests and short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures” in the directors report.
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Mr. HUANG Ruoqing (E&E&ES%E) (“Mr. Huang’), aged 51, is our
executive Director and the president. Mr. Huang has been a Director
since 14 July 2008 and was re-designated as our executive Director
on 14 January 2014. Mr. Huang is the authorised representative of
the Company and the chairman of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”’) and a member of
the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”). Mr. Huang is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group, supervising the land
acquisitions and overseeing project planning and execution of the
Group. Mr. Huang is currently a director of Times International
Development Company Limited (“Times International’) and many
of our subsidiaries. Mr. Huang received a bachelor s degree in
architecture from Huagiao University (ZEfBAZ) in the PRC in July
1990. From August 1990 until he joined us in May 1994, Mr. Huang
worked as an architecture designer, assistant architect and project
manager successively in Quanzhou Construction Design Institute (&
MR EPT). Mr. Huang has over 30 years of experience in the
real estate industry in the PRC, and he has received various awards,
making him a new leader in the real estate industry in the PRC. Mr.
Huang was appointed as a visiting professor at Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics (I FARF4EKE ) in December 2015.

Mr. Huang, who is honoured as one of the “2019 Top 10 CEO of
China's Listed Real Estate Enterprises’ (2019 EhEEME EH AT+
AEh2 CEO) in 2019, is the younger brother of Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung
and he is not related to any of the director or senior management of
the Company. By virtue of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”), Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested in 947,018,000 shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) held by Times International as at 31
December 2019. For further details, please refer to the section headed
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures” in the directors report.
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Mr. TANG Chengyong (E&BS4%) (“Mr. Tang’), aged 56, is an
executive Director and our executive vice president. Mr. Tang has
been a Director since 18 October 2013 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on 14 January 2014. He is a president of Diversified
Holding Group of the Group, mainly responsible for the daily
management business of the Diversified Holding Group. Mr. Tang
has over 25 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.
Mr. Tang joined the Group as the general manager of Yantai Redco
Development Co., Ltd. in August 2001, where he was responsible for
the daily operation of this company. Mr. Tang was also successively
appointed as the general manager of Jiangxi Man Wo Property
Development Co., Ltd., Jiangxi Redco Property Development Co.,
Ltd., Redco Development (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd., Shandong Redco
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and vice president of Redco
(China) Real Estate Co., Ltd. from May 2006 to February 2012, where
he was responsible for daily operation of these companies and
overseeing various projects. He is also currently a director of many
our subsidiaries. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tang was employed
by Jiangsu Province Supply and Marketing Cooperative Real Estate
Development Company (JLERE HiHt EMZERME L E]), a company
primarily engaged in property development from March 1993 to
August 2001 and his last position was deputy general manager and
deputy director of department of economic development. Mr. Tang
received a bachelor s degree in engineering from Shenyang Institute
of Architectural Engineering (EFZEEIIZEZET) in the PRC in July
1986.

Mr. WANG Weifeng (E & # % %) (“Mr. Wang’), aged 45, is an
executive Director. Mr. Wang has been a Director since 15 April 2019.
He joined the Group as a president of the property holdings group in
March 2019, primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of
the property holdings group. Mr. Wang has substantive experience
in relation to property development. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wang was the deputy executive officer and executive officer
of Excellence Real Estate Group Limited* (2 # & # £ ) from
March 2012 to March 2019. From April 1997 to March 2012, he was
appointed to various roles in China Vanke Co., Ltd. (SZ.000002) (the
“Vanke Group”) including as the general manager of engineering
management department from February 2010 to March 2012. Mr.
Wang received his bachelor degree in engineering from the Northwest
College of Engineering” (FICEETIZ2Z T, now known as Chang An
University* (EZAK2)). He also obtained an executive master degree
in business administration (EMBA) from China Europe International
Business School.
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As at 31 December 2019 , Mr. Wang held 100,000 Shares, save for the
aforementioned, Mr. Wang does not have any interest in the shares or
underlying shares in or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). For
further details, please refer to the section headed “Directors and
chief executive's interests and short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures’ in the directors report.

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David GBS, BBS, JP (ZEk®EE1) (“Dr. Wong"),
aged 62, has been an independent non-executive Director since 14
January 2014. Dr. Wong is a member of each of the audit committee
of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and the Nomination
Committee. Dr. Wong received a doctorate degree in Economics from
the University of Chicago in 1987. Dr. Wong has extensive experience
in manufacturing, direct investment and international trade.

Dr. Wong is active in public service. He is a Hong Kong deputy of the
13th National People’'s Congress of the Peoplée s Republic of China
(F+=E2BEARMRFTAE). He is also the Chairman of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority. Dr. Wong was appointed a Justice
of Peace (JP) in 2010 and was awarded a Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS)
and Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2017 and 2012 for his valuable
contribution to the society.

Dr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of
Huayi Tencent Entertainment Company Limtied (Stock code: 419),
CSSC (Hong Kong) Shipping Company Limtied (Stock code : 3877),
Shenzhen Investment Limited (Stock code: 604), Sinopec Kantons
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 934) and Guangnan (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 1203). The shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Dr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of Yunfeng
Financial Group Limited (Stock Code: 376) during the period from
December 2012 to 3 November 2017 and Concord New Energy Group
Limited (Stock code: 182) during the period from December 2016 to
June 2018.
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Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuen (AZER%LE) (“Mr. Chau’), aged 72, has
been an independent non-executive Director since 14 January
2014. Mr. Chau is a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chau
received a bachelor s degree in Chinese language and literature from
Xiamen University (JEFIAZ2) in August 1968 in the PRC. Mr. Chau is
currently a Standing Committee Member of the Thirteenth National
Committee of the Chinese Peopl€ s Political Consultative Conference,
and the Eleventh honorary consultant of the Hong Kong Federation
of Fujian Association. Mr. Chau was also awarded the Silver Bauhinia
Star by the government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in July 2016.

Mr. Chau is currently an executive director and chairman of ELL
Enviornmental Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1395), and independent
non-executive director of Good Resources Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 109), Come Sure Group (Holdings) Limited (Stock code:
794) and independent non-executive director of Hang Pin Living
Technology Company Limited (Stock code: 1682). The shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chau
was a non-executive director and honorary chairman of China Ocean
Shipbuilding Industry Group Limited (Stock code: 651) during the
period form 23 June 2015 to 1 December 2019.

Mr. YIP Tai Him (EMH%E) (“Mr. Yip®), aged 49, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 14 January 2014. Mr. Yip is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee. Mr. Yip received a bachelor of arts (hons) degree in
accountancy from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong, now known as
the City University of Hong Kong in September 1993 in Hong Kong.
He has been a practising accountant in Hong Kong since 1999. Mr. Yip
was admitted as a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales in September 1996 and January
2006, respectively. He has approximately 25 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management. Mr. Yip is currently
an independent non-executive director of the following companies,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Yip is currently and independent non-executive independent
director of China Communication Telecom Service Company Limited
(stock code: 8206), GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (Stock code:
3800), The shares of which are listed on the Main Board/GEM board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yip was an independent non-executive
director of the following companies, the shares of which are listed on

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange:
Companies Duration

December 2008 to
April 2015

China Star Cultural Media Group Limited
(Stock Code: 8172)

Vinco Financial Group Limited

May 2008 to August 2016

New Wisdom Holding Co. Ltd
(Stock Code: 8213)

November 2016 to
February 2018

Sino Golf Holdings Ltd.
(Stock code: 361)

August 2015 to
November 2018

Bisu Technology Group International Ltd
(Stock Code: 1372)

August 2015 to
April 2019

BARERAHBEERBERAR (RHA
5% 1 8206) ~ RAGEAERERABRAF
(RI2R5E © 3800) FUBILIFRITESE * B
LERB RN IIERZPTI TR, BIER L
M o BAEEBEMEUT AT (ERMIIER
P ENRLET) BYBILIFAITES !

YN HARD
PEEERSEER —EENE+AZ=E
BIRAE _E—-FHFIMA

(B R5% & 8172)

HEERER “EZNEFERRE
BIREAT —E—XRENA
WRIERAERAT B RE+—AF
(B f5E - 8213) —ZE—N\EFE_H

|BBEEIERAT —E—HENBE
(RIp e © 361) —E-NE+—A8

LEERFEERE @ —Z—REN\AZE
BIRAE “E-hEFENA

(B3 & 1372)

30

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2019



™

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. WANG Shuyu (EBBIBZ L) (“Ms. Wang’), aged 47, joined the
Group in November 2016. She is the Vice Presidents of the property
holdings group of the Group where she is responsible for the
marketing management of the Group. Ms. Wang has over 24 years
of experience in real estate marketing and corporate operations
management. Prior to joining the Group, she worked as the Vice
President in charge of brand marketing in China Aoyuan Property
Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
3883) for the period from 2010 to 2015. Previously, she has held
various senior positions in China Overseas (stock code: 688), Wanda
Group and other different reputable real estate companies, and has
accumulated substantial experience in property development and
management. Ms. Wang was awarded a diploma in Laws by Hunan
University in China in 2004.

Ms. LIANG Wanchan (2#if#&+) (“Ms. Liang’), aged 42, is the Vice
President of the property holdings group of the Group where she is
responsible for financial, financing and internal control compliance of
the Group. She has over 20 years of experience in corporate finance and
internal auditing. Ms. Liang joined the Group as the chief financial officer
of Redco (China) Real Estate Co., Ltd. in November 2010 and she has been
responsible for the corporate finance and accounting of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, she had served as assistant director of finance and
investment management department of Hopson Development Holdings
Limited (B4RIBEEBRAF ), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 754), from September 2002 to October 2010, during which
she was responsible for financial management of the group. Ms. Liang
received a bachelors degree in economics from the Renmin University of
China in the PRC in July 2000.

Mr. JIN Rongshan (&7 & WU 5c &) (“Mr. Jin”), aged 47, joined the
Group in August 2018 and is the Vice President of the property
holdings group of the Group, where he is responsible for the Group’ s
engineering, purchasing and cost control. Mr. Jin has over 28 years of
experience in real estate operations and engineering management.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked for the Country Garden Group,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02007.HK)
from February 2012 to August 2018 as Regional Vice President in
Guizhou in charge of mega operations. He was previously in charge
of the engineering management in several well-known real estate
companies such as Agile (stock code: 03383.HK). Mr. Jin obtained
a Diploma in Engineering Management from Harbin Institute of
Technology (FREETZEKE) in 20009.
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Mr. CHEN Pengfei (BREEFRSE) (“Mr. Chen”), aged 39, joined the
Group in April 2016. He is the Assistant Presidents of the property
holdings group of the Group and the General Manager of the Cost
Management Center of the Group and the General Manager of
Guangfo Company where he is responsible for the Group’s cost
management and operation analysis. Mr. Chen has accumulated over
15 years of experience in cost management and tender procurement
management area. Prior to joining the Group, he served as the
General Manager of Cost Management Center of Shenzhen Yitian
Group™ (;F 3l T 2 FH %8 &) where he was responsible for the cost
management and tender procurement of the whole group, and has
accumulated extensive management experience in cost management
as well as tender procurement. Mr. Chen received a Bachelor' s degree
in Management from Sichuan University in 2003.

Mr. LI Huiyong (ZE#BE%&E) (“Mr. L"), aged 38, joined the Group
in August 2013 and is the vice president of the property holdings
group of the Group where he is responsible for the investment
development. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in real estate
investment development. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
Logan Property, a Shenzhen company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 03380.HK), from October 2009 to August 2013, acted
as the manager of investment development center and was in
charge of projects development in Chengdu, Chongging and other
southwestern regions as well as Zhuhai and Zhongshan. Mr. Li
obtained a bachelor s degree in engineering management from
Harbin University of Commerce (/5 8 & & 2 KX #) in 2007 and a
master s degree in real estate investment in technical economics and
management from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (&
IEEAEERER) in 2009.

Ms. PAN Yuxia (GBEER L) (“Ms. Pan”), aged 52, joined the Group
in 2006. She is the deputy general manager of the Redco Nanchang
Company* (1@ M & A 8). Ms. Pan has extensive experience in
business operation management and investment development. She
is currently responsible for the operation management affairs of the
hotel business section of the Group. She also assists in the Group’'s
land development expansion affairs. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Pan served as the department manager of nonferrous metal
department of Jiangxi Provincial Metals and Minerals Import and
Export Corporation from September 1989 to December 2005, where
she is responsible for import and export business of nonferrous
metals. Ms. Pan received a Bachelor s Degree in Economics from
Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics in PRC in 1989 and a
Master s Degree in Business Administration from Hebei University of
Technology in PRC in January 2007.
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Company Secretary

Mr. CHAN Hing Chau (Bf B B & &) (“Mr. Chan’), aged 40, has
been our company secretary since 28 October 2013. Mr. Chan is the
authorised representative of the Company and the general manager
of Hong Kong Office of the Group. Mr. Chan joined the Group as the
general manger of finance department of Redco Holdings (Hong
Kong) Co., Limited in March 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan
was with PricewaterhouseCoopers from December 2004 to March
2013, during which he was promoted to a manager of assurance
department. Mr. Chan obtained his bachelor s degree of arts in
accountancy and master degree of Corporate Governance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2004 and September
2018 in Hong Kong. He was also qualified as a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in July 2008.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERES

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Review Period’).

Maintaining high standards of business ethics and corporate
governance has always been one of the Group’s prime tasks. It
believes that conducting the Group's businesses in a transparent
and responsible manner and following good corporate governance
practices serve its long-term interests and those of its Shareholders.

(A)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Cod¢€”) as its own code to govern
its corporate governance practices. The Company has been
conducting its business according to the principles of the CG
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has
complied with the code provisions of the CG Code.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of
the Company with an aim to maintaining and improving a high
standard of corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Directors securities transactions. In response
to a specific enquiry made by the Company, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The Board currently consists of seven Directors, comprising
four executive Directors and three independent non- executive
Directors. As at the date hereof, the composition of the Board is
set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Ruoging (President)

Mr. Tang Chengyong

Mr. Wang Weifeng (appointed on 15 April 2019)
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Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David GBS, BBS, JP
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen SBS, BBS
Mr. Yip Tai Him

The biographical information of the Directors and the
relationships between the members of the Board are set out
and disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” of this annual report.

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for determining our business and
investment plans, preparing our annual financial budgets and
final reports, formulating proposals for profit distributions
as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by the Memorandum and Articles of Association.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

Directors must dedicate sufficient time and attention to the
Group' s affairs. Besides, the Company also requested all
Directors to disclose to the Company annually the number and
the nature of offices held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitments with an indication of the
time involved.

Attendance Records of the Directors

At the Board meetings, the Directors discussed and formulated
overall strategies for the Company, discussed and approved
the financial budgets, annual results, dividends and other
significant transactions of the Group. Issues relating to the daily
management and operations of the Group have been delegated
to the management of the Group.

Notices of Board meetings were given to all Directors at least
14 days prior to the meetings and all Directors are entitled to
include items which they think fit for discussion in the agenda of
the meetings.

Draft and final versions of the minutes of the Board and
the committees meetings were sent to the Directors and
the committees members for their comment and records
respectively in a timely manner.

™

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRS

BUIFRITEE

ER =M+ GBS » BBS AT 4+
BZIEJRSHE SBS ’ BBS
st

EFNEENESETME ZBERRIE
RAFRIEERSREEBEEI—
ENETIT I ER ©

=
SH

BMEE

EEZEATRERMOEBMKES
|~ RN FERBRFEENFE
%Ei %J DTEFU/F? /)ELD 3 L/(EZ'TT{%
AR ETE A A R AR B P AR T Y H A
71 BEREE - BREITESRS AR
R IEERGRAETAFHEEERE
ENHEERTEERRE -

Bt

SENAN DMK LUEIE
REBBER o FRILZIN ° KABTR
EREEEETTFRARATREHERN
NN B AR BT RAR RS R H At
BAREENHERME * UKRFTT R
BB o

ERNHFERLHE

REFEEERN  EF5mAHIER
ATIFIEEERE RIS ~ 595 S HER TR
BE  FEEE REMAFEREM
EXRG - AEERAEEEKREEM
HEEEERTAEREEE -

EFZgEZBENNGZRD 14X
RNTFEREE B2RESHEM
ANRERD /N ERHE LBCIF R
BYIEHE -
EXEREEGTERNERCHER
EREERAERFGTESTREERS
B FR R RRECER °

NEMEERERAR 2019 FERE

35



™

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRS

The individual attendance record of each director at
the meetings of the Board, the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and the general
meeting of the Company held during the Review Period is set
out below:
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REEZEEEHE #EE
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Annual
general
meeting
held on
21 June
2019
—ZT-hE
Audit Nomination Remuneration R"BZ=+—H
Board Committee Committee = Committee AR
Bxg BEZEE RLZEE HWEREE RREFERE
Number of Meetings 5 4 1 1 1
BEAH
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. WONG Yeuk Hung 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
=t s NEA NEA TEA
Mr. HUANG Ruoging 5/5 N/A 1/1 1/1 1/1
BHERE NiERA
Mr. TANG Chengyong 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
EAB L A iE A TiEmA
Mr. Wang Weifeng (Notel) 4/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Fasgied (st 1) NEA NEA ~EA
Independent Non-executive Director
BIERITES
Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David BBS, JP 5/5 4/4 1/1 N/A 1/1
BEREE T BBS KFHL TEA
Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuen 5/5 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1
BRERTE
Mr. YIP Tai Him 5/5 4/4 N/A 1/1 1/1
ERERTE i
Mr. CHOW Kwong Fai, Edward JP
(Note2) 3/5 3/4 N/A N/A 1/1
[B e BB S A AR (B EE2) NEA NERA
Note 1: Mr. Wang Weifeng was appointed as an executive Director on 15 MsEl: ERBEREEN_Z—NFHN
April 2019. The board meeting which he did not attend was held B+HEHEZETARNITES -
before his appointment. WABHEZEESEEZLP
HAHARIEIT o
Note 2: Mr. Chow Kwong Fai, Edward resigned on 26 November 2019. fst2: BABEEER ZZ2—NF

The board meetings and audit committee meeting which he did

not attend were held after his resignation.
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Apart from the regular Board meeting, Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung,
the Chairman of the Company, also held one meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without other executive
Directors present during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Independence of the independent non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019, in compliance with
the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed four independent non-executive Directors in
the Board, representing more than half of the Board, with two
of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. Based
on the foregoing, the Board considers that the balance between
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and
balances that safeguard the interests of Shareholders and the
Group as a whole.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers
that all independent non-executive Directors independent. The
Board believes that there is a strong independent element in the
Board to safeguard the interest of Shareholders.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
are clearly identified in all corporate communications of the
Company. A list of Directors is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange and will be updated, where
necessary.

Induction and Development

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
All Directors received an induction package covering the
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The
Company also plans to provide briefings and other training
to develop and refresh the Directors knowledge and skills.
The Company shall provide (a) the Directors the update on
the material changes to the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements; and (b) the employees of the Group
abreast of updates in the anti-bribery laws and regulations.
The Directors shall participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. Circulars and guidance
notes may be issued to Directors and senior management of
the Company where appropriate, to ensure awareness of best
corporate governance practices.
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The Company has put in place an on-going training and
professional development programme for Directors. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors received regular
briefings and updates on the Group's business, operations, risk
management and corporate governance matters. All Directors
provided the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the CG Code.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years with effect from 30 January 2017. Whereas, Mr. Wong
Yeuk Hung entered into a service contract with the Company
under which he agreed to act as executive Director for an initial
term of three years commencing from March 2017 and Mr.
Huang Ruoqing and Mr. Tang Cheng Yong entered into a service
contract with the Company under which they agreed to act as
executive Directors for three years commencing from January
2017. Mr. Wang Weifeng entered into a service contract with the
Company under which he agreed to act as an executive Director
for a term of three years commencing from 15 April 2019.

Code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment and that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Three Directors will retire, and being qualified, have offered to
be re-elected at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Friday, 19 June 2020 (the “Annual General
Meeting’).

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

a) to develop and review the Company s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

c) to review and monitor the Company s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to Directors, senior management and
employees of the Company; and

e)  toreview the Company s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board reviewed
the Company s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code, and the Company s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in 2019 corporate governance
report of the Company.

In compliance with the CG Code, the Company established three
committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Those committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference which are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 14 January
2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C3 of the CG Code.
As at the date hereof, the Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Tai
Him (being the chairman of the Audit Committee who has a
professional qualification in accountancy), Dr. Wong Yau Kar,
David GBS, BBS, JP and Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen SBS, BBS. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, to oversee the audit process, to
develop and review the policies of the Group and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board. In
particular, the Audit Committee is empowered under its terms of
reference to review any arrangement which may raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, four meetings of the
Audit Committee were held to review annual results and report
for the year ended 31 December 2018, interim financial results
and report for the six months ended 30 June 2019, revised
interim reports and announcement for the six months end
30 June 2019 appointment of external auditors, the internal
control of the Group and. The external auditors attended the
meetings. The attendance records of the Audit Committee
are set out in the section headed “Attendance Records of the
Directors”.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on 14
January 2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and paragraph B1 of the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Tai Him (being the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen and
one executive Diraector, Mr. Huang Ruoging. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee include (but without limitation):
(i) making recommendations to the Directors regarding the
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies;
(ii) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing
and approving the management s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’ s corporate goals and objectives; and (iv)
considering and approving the grant of share options to eligible
participants, if any, pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

There is one meeting of the Remuneration Committee held
during the year ended 31 December 2019 to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the existing remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management. The
attendance records of the Remuneration Committee are set out
in the section headed “Attendance Records of the Directors’.
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The remuneration of senior management of the Company was
within the following bands:
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KABSRERBNFINERENT :

: Number of individuals
AE

The emolument bands (in RMB) 2018 2019
HENEEE (AR “F-N\F —T-hEF
0-1,000,000 6 3
1,000,001-2,000,000 5 T
2,000,001-5,000,000 3 4
Nomination Committee ERELEY

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 14
January 2014 with written terms of reference. The Nomination
Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Yau Kar, David BBS, JP and Mr. Chau On Ta
Yuen and one executive Director, Mr. Huang Ruoqing (being the
chairman of the Nomination Committee). The primary function
of the Nomination Committee is to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of members of the Board.

There is one meeting of the Nomination Committee held during
the year ended 31 December 2019 to assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and review the re-
appointment of Directors at the annual general meeting held
on 29 March 2019. The attendance records of the Nomination
Committee are set out in the section headed “Attendance
Records of the Directors’.

Further, the board diversity policy (the “Policy’) was adopted
by the Company on 28 January 2014. The purpose of the Policy
is to set out the basic principles to be followed to ensure that
the Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. Selection of Board candidates shall be based on a
range of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’ s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience.
The Nomination Committee shall review the policy and the
measurable objectives at least annually, and as appropriate, to
ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board.
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Nomination Policy

When considering candidates for the nomination and
appointment as Directors, the Nomination Committee aims to:

ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company;
and

there will be continuity and appropriate leadership at
Board level.

The nomination and appointment process is carried out strictly
in accordance with the nomination committee’s terms of
reference, the articles of association of the Company and all
applicable rules and regulations.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following factors would be considered:

Character and integrity.

Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company s business and corporate strategy.

Diversity in all aspects with reference to the Diversity Policy
of the Board.

Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board.

Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Hong Kong Listing Rules and
whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.

Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and diversity.

Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.
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- Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.

Notwithstanding that the Board has delegated its responsibilities
and authority for selection and appointment of directors of
the Company to the Nomination Committee of the Company,
the ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of
directors of the Company rests with the entire Board.

Diversity Policy

The diversity policy of the Company aims to set out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Board
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diversity of
the Board to enhance the quality of the Board performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company considers increase diversity
at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and sustainable
development. In designing the Board s composition, the Board
will take into account a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All Board members appointments will be based on
the principles laid down in this Policy, and candidates will be
considered against the aforesaid objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates to be a Board member will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on payment
of dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the
Company and the Group and the conditions and factors as set
out in the dividend policy, dividends may be proposed and/
or declared by the Board during a financial year and any final
dividend for a financial year will be subject to Shareholders
approval.

The declaration of dividends by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, the
Articles of Association of the Company and any applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

In determining payment of dividends, the Company shall share
its profits with Shareholders while maintaining adequate
reserves for meeting its future growth, with a view to declaring
dividends higher than the industrial average level and achieving
a stable and better return for the Shareholders.

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of
the Group when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

financial results;
. cash flow situation;

business conditions and strategies;
. future operations and earnings;

capital requirements and expenditure plans;
. interests of shareholders;

any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

. any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

On 28 January 2014, the Board discussed the above measurable
objectives, including but not limited to skills, knowledge,
professional experience and cultural and educational
background, and agreed that these measurable objectives were
achieved for the diversity of the Board which contributed to
the corporate strategy and the business development of the
Company.
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(F)

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced and clear
assessment of the Group's performance and prospects. The
Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company s ability to continue as a going-concern
basis.

A statement by the auditor of the Company in respect of their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the independent auditor report from page
108 to page 119.

The remuneration paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
Company s auditor for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB7,249,000 in respect of the audit service and
RMB2,822,000 for non-audit services during the year under
review.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Company s risk management
and internal control systems and for reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve the business objectives of
the Group and to only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the 2019 reporting period, the Board supervised the
management s design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems, and reviewed
the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis; such
review covered all major control aspects of the Group, including
financial, operational and compliance controls.
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The Group's risk management and internal control systems
covered each operation department, to ensure that the Group
could effectively manage the key factors that might affect
the Group in achieving its strategic objectives, such factors
including events, accidents or behaviors with a material impact
on the Group’ s reputation, assets, capital, profit or liquidity.

The Company has established three layers structure for risk
management. In the risk governance structure, the first layer
consists of the business departments of project company
and responsible individuals, with the Group’ s business and
functional centers serving as the second layer and the internal
audit team as the final layer. The first layer bears risks and
responsible for the direct responsibility for risk management
and it identifies, measures and controls the risks in respective
business fields and operating activities. The second layer
formulates rules and standards as business guidance to
subsidiaries/business units, and supervises their execution
to ensure that risk management takes place for the Group,
with continuous control of relevant work. The third layer is
responsible for monitoring, with an emphasis on providing
independent monitoring over the effectiveness of the Group's
risk solutions and measures by combining the monitoring over
the risk management and internal control systems.
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In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Group shall
disclose to the public any insider information as soon as
possible after such information comes to the attention of the
Group, unless such information is within the scope under any
safe harbours provision in the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
The Group will ensure such information will be kept confidential
before it is fully announced to the public. If the Group considers
that the confidentiality required cannot be kept, or such
information may have leaked already, such information will
be disclosed to the public immediately. We also endeavour to
ensure that the information contained in the announcement
shall not be deceptive or misleading in all material aspects,
and there are no other material matters the omission of which
would make the information contained therein to be deceptive
or misleading, such that the insider information disclosed
can be made available to the public in an equal, timely and
effective manner. In addition, if there occurs any significant risk
events, the related information will be disclosed to appropriate
authorities and personnel, so that appropriate decisions and
measures can be made and implemented by the Group to deal
with such risk events. Meanwhile, in order to further develop
the risks management culture of the enterprise, as well as to
enhance the risk awareness of our staff, the Group has already
rolled out training programs to enhance the risk awareness of
our staff, so that we can assure to maintain the balance between
business expansion and risks management in our operation.

The Group's internal audit team plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The team
mainly monitors and reviews the matters relating to the internal
control and compliance of the Company, and provides regular
risk-oriented internal audits for its branches and subsidiaries.
The internal audits cover project obtainment, procurement
tendering, sales, financial reporting and information security
and so on. The internal audit team reports to the Board twice
a year. The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’ s risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee has received
a report of risk management and internal control prepared
by the internal audit team, and has considered that the risk
management and internal control systems remain adequate and
effective throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 with no
material issues to be brought to the Board' s attention.
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(1)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Mr. Chan Hing Chau as its company
secretary. Mr. Chan has confirmed that for the year under review,
he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training. The biographical details of Mr. Chan are set out on
page 33 of this annual report.

Mr. Chan is an employee of the Company. He is also the General
Manager of Redco Holdings (Hong Kong) Co., Limited which is
the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary’), to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition, including making proposals or moving a
resolution at the extraordinary general meeting.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at the extraordinary
general meeting must deposit a written requisition (the
“Requisition”) signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Room 2001-2, Enterprise Square
3, 39 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in
the Company, the reason(s) to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, the agenda proposed to be included and
the details of the business(es) proposed to be transacted
in the special general meeting, signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned.
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. The Company will check the Requisition and the identity
and the shareholding of each Eligible Shareholder will
be verified with the Company s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong. If the Requisition is found to be proper and
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting within 2 months
and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) at the extraordinary
general meeting after the deposit of the Requisition. On
the contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not
in order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not
call for an extraordinary general meeting and/or include
the proposal or the resolution proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder at the extraordinary general meeting.

. If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board
has not advised the Eligible Shareholder(s) of any outcome
to the contrary and fails to proceed to convene such
extraordinary general meeting, the Eligible Shareholder(s)
himself/herself/themselves may do so in accordance
with the Memorandum and Articles of Association,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned by the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward their written enquiries to the
Board. In this regard, Shareholders may send those enquiries or
requests as mentioned to the following:

Address: Room 2001-2, Enterprise Square 3
39 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2758 8392

Telephone: (852) 2331 2839

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, Shareholders who
wish to propose resolutions may follow Article 64 of the Articles
of Association for requisitioning an extraordinary general
meeting and including a resolution at such meeting. The
requirements and procedures are set out in the section headed
“Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting” in this report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The management of the Company believes that effective
and proper investor relations play a vital role in creating
Shareholders value, enhancing the corporate transparency as
well as establishing market confidence. As such, the Company
has adopted a stringent internal control system to ensure
true, accurate and complete disclosure of information. The
management of the Company has proactively taken and will
continue to take the following measures to ensure effective
Shareholders communication and transparency:

. the Chairman, President of the Company, the respective
chairmen of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, will make
themselves available at the annual general meetings to
meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries;

. regularly update the Company s news and developments
of the Company’ s website;

. arrange on-site visits to the Group’ s projects for potential
investors and research analysts.

Through the above measures, the Company endeavors to
communicate with the investment community and provide
them with the latest development of the Group and the PRC
real estate industry. The Company will disclose information
in compliance with the Listing Rules, and publish periodic
reports and announcements to the public in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of the
Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and informed
decisions.

There was no significant change in the Company s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2019. Should
there be such significant changes in the constitutional
documents, the Company shall upload the revised version onto
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in due
course.
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CONCEPT AND PRINCIPLE

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG’) Report (the “ESG
Report’) covers the ESG matters of Redco Properties Group Limited
(stock code: 01622) and together with its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The ESG Report is prepared in compliance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The Group' s beliefs

The Group believes that a successful enterprise should not maximise
profits at all costs, but should endeavour to balance stakeholder s
interests and social responsibility for maintaining an enterprise s
sustainable development. The Group strives to lower carbon
footprints and strictly complies with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. The Group aims to achieve such balance and fulfill social
responsibility along with its mission of “Signature architecture with
tremendous honour”.

Any effort starts at home. In 2018, the Group relocated its
headquarters to Redco Building located in Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, People s Republic of China. The new headquarters is
furnished with up-to- date energy efficient equipment including for
example LED lighting systems, thermostat controlled and energy
efficient air conditioning. While improving the Group’ s environmental
performance, the arrangements also improves the working
environment for its employees and save costs for the Group.

Overview

As a property developer focusing on mid-to-high-end residential
and commercial property development in the PRC, the Group is
committed to being a responsible social enterprise. The Group is
subject to various environmental laws and regulations set by the
PRC at the national, provincial and municipal levels. These include
regulations on pollution (including air, sound and water pollution)
and discharge of construction waste and sewage. Compliance
procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws, rules
and regulations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the operations of the Group. The Group has various measures
and policies in place, as discussed in further details in the following
sections of this Report. In addition, the Group also provides a fair and
safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides competitive
remuneration and benefits and career development opportunities
based on their merits and performance. Adequate and ongoing
trainings, development and resources are provided to the employees
of the Group so that they can keep abreast of the latest development
of the market and the industry and, at the same time, improve their
performance and job satisfaction. The Group keeps up to date with
the changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Group believes that its employees, customers, supplier and
business partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners.

The preparation of the ESG Report involved the participation of the
Group' s key stakeholders, including the management and relevant
staff who jointly assessed the importance of the relevant ESG matters
for the purposes of understanding the expectations and propositions
from various stakeholders of the Group and provided all relevant ESG
information.

Source of information

The figures and data in this Report were derived from the Group's
archived documents, records, and surveys in relation to the core
and significant projects of the Group’s operation and property
development business covering material matters and key
performance indicators in relation to environmental management,
social responsibility and governance. The Group s efforts devoted
to the implementations of the measures disclosed in this report
demonstrate its commitment and determination to become a socially
responsible corporate.

Feedback

If you have any feedback for the Report, please feel free to contact us
by email at ir@redco.cn.
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ABOUT THE GROUP

The Group is an integrated property developer focusing on mid-to-
high-end residential and commercial property development in the
PRC. The Group has been upholding the operating philosophy of
signature architecture with tremendous honour (fFiREiE . FHEE
#2) and has executed its multi-regional strategy through its sound
and pragmatic approach to business, the forward-looking plans for
strategic investment, quality products and operational efficiency.

1.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Construction work during the Group’ s property development
projects inevitably produce emissions, including exhaust,
sewage and construction wastes. The Group' s emissions include
mainly greenhouse gas (carbon dioxide and the equivalent),
nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides and particulates). The Group
also disposes waste materials during the construction process.
The Group believes that the increase of the efficiency and
effectiveness of its construction process would significantly
reduce the raw materials waste and use of energy.

The Group is committed to reducing carbon foot print and
energy consumption. It has implemented both internal and
external environmental protection policies to minimise the
impact of business activities on the environment, and support
environmental-protection initiatives, including:

Externally at building sites for property developments,
(i) diesel generators are not preferred, under the same
or similar conditions, power from electricity supplier is
preferred as it is expected that the electricity supplier's
power generation system is more efficient and is more
adapted to reducing carbon emissions than traditional
onsite diesel generators; (ii) idle machines are switched off
to reduce unnecessary fuel consumption and to reduce air
pollutants; (iii) prior to commencement of a construction
project, the Group would assess and predict the amount of
emissions to be generated, and formulate an optimal plan
to effectively manage emissions and production; (iv) during
the construction stage, emission and waste are monitored
to ensure that they do not exceed any statutory applicable
limits; and (v) in certain of the Group’ s projects, roof space
will be filled with greenery and/or solar panels.
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ii. Internally at the office, (i) staff members are constantly
reminded to turn off the air conditioning, lights of the office
area before leaving work every day and check, from time
to time, whether the lights and equipment in the common
areas are turned off when not in use; (ii) after completing
their tasks for the day, staff members are reminded to
turn off their computers and monitors; (iii) employees
are encouraged to use duplex printing to minimize paper
consumption; (iv) trays are placed next to photocopiers
for collecting single-sided paper for reusing purposes; (v)
envelopes are also reused for internal mails; and (vi) air
conditioning thermostat is set at 25 degree Celsius.

The Group will continue to review the environmental impact
of their operations, remain alert to the latest environmental
friendly machinery and make use of best practices, records
and monitors resources consumption data and implementing
better performance strategies as to enhance the contributions
to environmental sustainability through good environmental
practices.

The Group is subject to a number of laws and regulations in
China in relation to environmental protection, impact to the
environment, noise pollution and environmental protection for
development projects, including the Environmental Protection
Law of the People s Republic of China ((FFEARKMNEIEE
1R 3% )), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ({fh#E A RHFE K
JSEBRAEY), the Law of the People’ s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ({FFZE A A0
B AR5 RBAAL)), and the Law of People' s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Wastes ((FZE A\ RHEMEEIRSEEY)S RIRR G ED).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group in relation to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.
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BEREREMERTRY
TR EFEHBHVRERERE

Greenhouse gas and other air pollutants

The following table sets out the greenhouse gas and other air

pollutants emitted during the year: MZERSEY .
Emission Type Unit Amount
HEmUER B HE
Greenhouse gas (carbon dioxide equivalent) kg 103.64
BERSE (ZEEREZEY) Ny

Nitrogen oxide Kg 79,287.80
aaity /N

Sulphur oxide Kg 30,264.10
=kl Ny

Particulates kg 124,683.95
#IF Ny

By implementing the policies set out above, the Group only
slightly increase 6% of Greenhouse gas emission after we
acquised the property management Company which have more
greenhouse gas emission compare to property development,
compared to last year.

BIBER DHAYEER © BEAFALL
FERWEREREIINERYXRA
BESHYMEERATR  BREREHE
JEAZIE N 6% ©

Waste EE¥)

The following table sets out the waste produced during the year: TREIINFEELENEEY .
Waste type Unit Amount

ek bl =i HE

Hazardous waste kg 0

BEREY /NI

Non-hazardous waste Kg 863,270

mEREY) /NI

Waste includes building debris, asphalt, wood, earth and metal
scraps.

Waste is unavoidable due to the nature of the business of
the Group, the Group works closely with contractors and
construction workers to carry out various measures to reduce
waste, including the separation and recycling of construction
waste including steel, glass, paper waste and concrete blocks.
The Group will carefully analyse their construction plans
before work commencement to reduce the need for refits or
demolitions which creates substantial amount of industrial
waste.
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2. USE OF RESOURCES

In 2019, the Group continued to implement measures to reduce
energy usage and to conserve resources.

Energy consumption

The policies set out in the paragraph headed under section
headed “1. Environmental’ above are also targeted towards
energy and resources conservation internally at the Group's
headquarters and during the construction process. In addition,
in the construction and design of the Group’ s projects, the
Group pays attention to energy conservation by adopting
designs that utilises natural lighting and ventilation. LED
lightening are installed in most of the projects of the Group
during the year.

The following table sets out the energy consumption of the
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Group:

: Density (per unit by
Energy Unit Consumption gross area)
AEilR (U HEEE BE (B—EURULER)
Electricity kWh 9,804,739 0.67
B/ T ERE

The Group only slightly increase 6% of the electricity density as
compared to the previous year after acquisition the property
management company during the year.

Water consumption

Water is required for project constructions and in the everyday
use of office space.

In compliance with relevant environmental laws, all the
construction sites of the Group's projects are equipped with
sewage clarifiers, construction wastewater, rainwater and other
domestic sewage are drawn into the clarifiers for filtration.
Filtered water is then recycled for vehicle cleaning and dust
removal. Pipes are inspected and maintained regularly to ensure
no leakage. There was no issue with sourcing water that is fit for
construction.

Although the Group cannot have automated control of water
usage in the office premises, the Group constantly reminds its
staff on water conservation, including reducing unnecessary
wastage in the pantries and toilets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group utilised
643,567 cubic metres of water. The increase of water
consumption mainly due to the acquisition of property
management company.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group is a property developer. The Group recognises that
for each step of construction in the ordinary course of business,
the Group's activities will have an impact on the surrounding
environment and community. The nature of the Group’'s
business reuigres the use of raw materials including cement,
steel, ceramic tiles, glass panel and paint. Throughout the
construction process, the Group will use electricity or other form
of energy sources. Furthermore, the Group must also manage
the waste and by-product (including emissions and sewage)
arising from the construction process.

The Group does not consume packaging materials in its course
of business, disclosure for packaging materials does not apply.

While all of the abovementioned must be carried out in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in China,
the Group attempts to include environmental protection to
every process of its production chain to limit its impact on the
environment and natural resources. The Group, on one hand,
tries to keep up- to- date with its construction process by
utilising modern technology and construction which is believed
to increase efficiency as well as reducing carbon foot- print,
while on the other hand, the Group implements various policies
as described under the sections headed “1. ENVIRONMENTAL’
and “2. USE OF RESOURCES’ to minimise water usage, reduce
emissions and waste.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group recognises the importance of offering fair, impartial
and open opportunities for recruiting and also retaining talents.

The Group has implemented and adheres to its employment
guidelines to prevent employment discrimination on the
grounds of age, nationality, race, religion, sexual orientation,
gender, marital status, or political stance.

Recruitment personnel is provided with recruitment and
selection training courses to align recruitment process with the
Group’ s standards.
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Apart from lawful employment contract, the Group protects
employee benefits by practicing standard working hours. The
Group offers paid leaves, social insurance and provident fund as
basic protections. In addition, recognizing women’ s legal rights,
the Group ensures female employees are not only entitled to
applying maternity leave, breast-feeding leave and annual
gynecological examination, but also provided with the safety
and protection scheme for women workers. With respect to
gender diversity, as at 31 December 2019, the Group has a total
of 2,966 employees, comprising 58.2% of male employees and
41.8% of female employees.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group strives to enhance the Group s safety performance
and ensures that all employees are provided with a safe working
environment. The Group' s administration and management
center performs compliance assessment and black spot
monitoring while appointing an external technical advisory
body to provide professional advice to the Company on the
environment, health and safety (EHS) policies.

To ensure compliance with the relevant guidelines on
occupational health and safety, the Group s administration
and management center requires its subsidiaries to submit
feedback reports regularly, and analyzes and evaluates their
health and safety performances under the occupational safety
assessment mechanism of the Group. Meanwhile, the Group
performs targeted inspections to oversee implementation of the
regulations among its subsidiaries.

In addition to occupational health and safety, the Group
cares about the mental health wellbeing of its employees, it
encourages and supports employees to achieve work-family
balance. The Group holds various family activities annually and
provide health checking to each staff annually.

Staff meetings are thus held frequently to facilitate problem
solving and communication for staff at all levels.
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The Group has set up production safety committee and
special internal safety working groups to conduct regular
safety inspections for improving the Company s safe working
conditions. The Group protects employee wellness through
upgrades such as installing dust removal and noise reduction
equipment. In respect of safety training, the Group holds safety
management training programs every six months to improve
workplace safety awareness.

The Group also capitalizes on technology to cope with potential
hazards and guarantee occupational safety. For construction,
the Group adopts prefabrication residential construction
techniques and uses pre-assembled external walls instead of in-
site scaffolding and formwork to save manpower and time for
aerial work significantly, which reduce staff s exposure to risk of
work and enhance construction safety.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group aspires to reach higher by growing and training its
talents to accelerate business development.

New hires are provided with induction training since the first day
of work to internalize the corporate culture including executive,
administration and management and personnel management
practices.

Regular management meetings are also arranged by the
Company s management for new recruits to express their
views of working. The Group has launched various programs
for in-service employees monthly to raise management skills
and expertise via internal sharing, public lecture, and external
meeting. For example, the Company provides training courses
regarding the psychology of selling and sales team management
for its sales staff during the year to help them improve their
performance.
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The Group places strong emphasis on staff development.
The Group has established a Redco College which organizes
structured training programmes for all the staff to familiarise
with Redco’ s culture and the industry, and regular training are
also provided to update knowledge of its staff from time to time.

In 2019, the Company provided more than 10 training hours
per employee. Along with the development of the Group and
realizing training demands of staff, the Group continually
offers, reviews and improves training courses to keep team
performance abreast of the Group’ s business development.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group considers it utmost important to strictly abide
by the requirements of National Labour Law (B & & &) %),
prohibiting the recruitment of child labour and forced labour.
Such restrictions are incorporated into the Group’ s recruitment
manual in the election process, and includes for example
requirements to reach the legal age and to enter into labour
contract before work commences. Identification documents
of the applicants are required to make sure all potential hires
are legal, and to avoid any instances of child labour or forced
labour.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group's supply chain structure is simple and clear. It
conducts supplier visits and sourcing processes to select
suppliers. Eligible suppliers are registered in the Group's
database and categorized into two groups: the “Recognized
suppliers” or the “High performer suppliers’.

Through an internal shortlist mechanism, the “Recognized
suppliers” that displays excellent performance will be promoted
to become the “High performer suppliers” that can enjoy more
collaboration opportunities with the Group. Partnership with
unqualified suppliers will be terminated to ensure supplier
quality in the database.

The supplier selection and management are undertaken by
subsidiaries in the corresponding cities.
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The Company has engaged suppliers with an aim to also ensure
environmental protection. To improve operating practices
of the suppliers, they are required to reduce construction
waste, comply with energy conservation regulations, and
save electricity and gas. Suppliers are required to conform to
relevant environmental laws and regulations, including local
environmental management practices and dust pollution
management regulations for each project. Non-compliant
suppliers will be fined for breach of regulations.

The Company has its own supervisory unit, which holds regular
supplier meetings to ensure positive interaction and collect
opinions and complaints of the suppliers to ensure that the
Company can respond to any potential non- compliance in a
timely manner.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group constructs residential premises with an aim to create
a comfortable home and harmony in communities.

The Group strives to ensure property safety, in expectation
of improving residents’ quality of life through providing
preeminent houses and thereby contributing to the
community’s harmony. The Group strictly complies with
national laws including “Contract Law of the Peopl€ s Republic
of China” and “Construction Law of the People’'s Republic of
China”, and regulations on construction and acceptance such
as the “Regulations on the Quality Management of Construction
Projects” to prevent mistakes and defects.

For proper implementation of the relevant regulations,
the Company makes sure that the relevant construction
requirements are met by carrying out regular on-site inspection
with a third-party construction supervision institution. The
Group also conducts construction assessments in terms
of safety, construction quality and project management
performance on a quarterly basis to ensure compliance with
local safety standards.

In the marketing process, the Group complies with laws and
regulations such as the “Regulatory Measures on the Sale of
Commercial Houses” and “Provisions on the Release of Real
Estate Advertisements’ in order to provide customers with
true and accurate property information. Meanwhile, the Group
adhere to the “Notice on Issuing the Model Commercial Housing
Sales Contract” and other laws and regulations to provide
clients with standardized sales contracts and protect their
interests.
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10.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

“Knowing our client” is the Group's starting point to build a
graceful community. The Group has comprehensive complaint
handling procedures, “customer relationship management’
(CRM) system and the Group’s complaint and risk reporting
systems to facilitate customer feedback.

Upon receiving complaints, customer service officers and
property agents on site will handle the complaints through
the CRM system that visualizes sales processes. Through inter-
departmental collaboration and proactive communication,
the Group resolves complaints effectively to bring satisfactory
services to the Group' s customers. To gather a wider range of
resident feedbacks and accordingly improve service quality, the
Group has established three channels, which make these reviews
more easily communicated to the Company s management:

1. District customer service center - immediate complaint
directly handled by property managers; and

2. Online reporting form - soliciting customers feedback
around the clock and directly reporting to the back-end
system of the Company;

The Group will continue to upgrade its service management
system and improve the privacy protection policy to safeguard
the interests of its clients.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.
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Integrity is a key element that drives steady growth. To prevent
corruption, the Group establishes clear regulations and
procedures for corporate management and supervision while
ensuring employees comprehension of work duties. Also, the
Group sets up an inspection department and assign project
inspectors to implement ethical management for each project
and department.

The Group fully complies with national laws and regulations and
prohibits staff from bribing any person, namely civil servants,
government officials, or connected persons. Staff members
are also forbidden from embezzlement, theft, concealment, or
misapplication of the Company s assets. When becoming aware
of suspected corrupt conduct, the Group carries out internal
investigation and take disciplinary actions against the staff
concerned, including duty suspension and contract termination.
If the case involves violation of national laws, offender will be
taken to the concerned departments.

The Group’s suppliers have signed binding agreement on
integrity to ensure corruption-free operating practices of
suppliers and prevent bribery and conspiracy. The Group has
set up a report and reward system for supplier, employees and
other stakeholders for whistle blowing of malpractice. Reports
are handled by the risk management department and then
scrutinized by the internal audit department. The Group will
improve the anti-corruption system and step up supervision to
support its plan of sustainable development. During 2018, no
corruption cases were filed against any member of the Group.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Supporting education and building a more productive
community are the main focus of the Group’s community
investment strategy and the donations made by Redco Charity
Foundation, the charity fund established by the Group. In 2018,
the Group donated RMB4,521,000 to Tianjin Redco Charity
Organisation (X h & & & & £ ), Chinese Foundation
for Lifeline Express (RZE @R IREE £ &), Jinjiang Childian
Education Development Promotion Association (&L MEHRS
#R{2EE) and some other foundation.
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The Board hereby presents its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the property development business in the
People s Republic of China. During the year, there were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’ s principal activities.

The activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
13a to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Overview

In 2019, facing the new trend of real estate industry market, the
Group maintained its strategic determination, focused on products
and services and continuously enhanced its core competitiveness to
achieve sustained high-quality development.

In 2019, the contracted sales of the Company and its associated
entities were approximately RMB27,412.0 million, and the contracted
sales area was approximately 2.59 million sq.m., representing a year-
on-year increase of 24.7% and 4.0% respectively.

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Group recorded
a revenue of RMB6,735.9 million and RMB8,602.3 million respectively.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018 and 2019 was RMB990.7 million and RMB1,034.9
million respectively. The increase in revenue is mainly attributable to
the increase in gross floor area (“GFA”) delivered and the increase in
average sales price.

The Group has consistently adopted a prudent financial strategy
to maintain a reasonable capital structure and gearing level. As at
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Group’'s cash and
cash equivalents were RMB15,059.5 million and RMB7,865.0 million
respectively, and the net debt to equity ratio was 17.9% and 47.9%
respectively.
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Dual-drivers lead to a steady and rapid development of diversified
business

According to the Group’ s long-term development strategy, in order to
achieve the strategy goals of dual-driven by Property Holding Group
and Dynamic Investment Group with a synergetic development, the
Group created and nurtured diversified business of “healthcare,
commerce, technology, property, cultural tourism, education” and so
on.

In 2019, the six sectors of the Dynamic Investment Group empowered
one another and integrate innovation. As a diversified and innovative
product, New Oriental Green Building deeply integrated the
core services of its three industries of “healthcare, property and
technology”. It injected characteristic attributes into “Redco Green
Building” and continued to build the core value chain of the Group's
brand.

The overall development momentum of the Group’s diversified
sectors is strong. UG Property of the Redco has been comprehensively
upgraded around the concept of health, with service projects
doubled. The service quality has also improved significantly.
Meanwhile, the Group further developed differentiated cultural
tourism product lines with natural tourism, folk culture, and
ecological research as its main subject, which can boost its steady
and rapid development.

Prudent investment focusing on expanding excellent land reserve

Excellent land reserve is the core competitiveness of the enterprise
development. In 2019, the Group adhered to an aggressive expansion
strategy and a prudent investment strategy and newly acquired
30 parcels of land. We also adhered to the regional intensive
development strategy, combining our focus to expansion, especially
for the investment in cities with great development potential. We
have successfully acquired various high-quality projects. As at 31
December 2019, the Group’ s total land reserve was approximately
14.6 million sgq.m., constituting a solid foundation for future
development.
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Strengthen the layout overseas and actively explore the growth of
performance

The boom of Chinese overseas investment in real estate is in
the ascendant. In 2019, the Group’ s Sydney project Prime was
successfully delivered, which has accumulated valuable overseas
expansion experience for the Group. Meanwhile, the Group actively
responded to the national “One belt one Road” initiative, and worked
with the Makati City Government of Philippines to improve the local
rail transit environment and enhance the quality of urban life. It has
provided an excellent foundation and protection for the Group’ s local
development in the future.

Enhancing the core and create new products and high-end service
system

High-quality products and services are the prerequisites for
enterprises to achieve quality development. In 2019, the Group
focused on the capability of product research and development,
combined with peoples urgent pursuit of a healthy lifestyle, and
built a brand new product system, New Oriental Green Building.
We proposed the “Double-Hundred Plan” for Redco Green Building,
and released New Oriental Green Building 1.0 product system. The
implementation of this forward-looking strategy has introduced
extensive concern.

Meanwhile, the Group has launched Yearning Health Living Room (&
KB EE), where its brand of community-based comprehensive
healthcare service from three dimensions, which include healthy
space environment, healthy supporting facilities and healthy
community operations, built a healthy and livable community system.
In addition, we also created a full-aged living community by providing
glorious community activities for children, teenagers and the elderly
to improve the quality of life in the community and gain customer
satisfaction. In the future, the Group will continue to protect and
introduce healthy lifestyle for our customers by creating hard-core
products and high-end service systems.

ffEiEsh > RIBRRMBERIERES
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MBS BT -
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Fulfilling responsibility and demonstrating the role of enterprise in
anew era

The development of an enterprise is inseparable from social stability
and improvement. While developing rapidly, the Group bears in mind
its mission to shoulder its corporate responsibility and proactively
contribute to our society. The Group provides solid in-kind and
mechanism guarantee for the stable health development of our
staff. In addition, we actively cooperate with medical institutions
and supporters of corporate public welfare organizations to invest
in public welfare services. Aiming at poverty alleviation, we assist in
improving the medical conditions in poor areas, hence revitalizing
rural areas.

Enhanced reputation driven by our award-winning brand

The development of an enterprise requires strong internal and
external support. In 2019, our rapid growth is widely recognized
within and outside the industry, with our reputation significantly
enhanced by winning various awards. Our performance in the
rankings issued by various authoritative evaluation institution is
satisfactory, for example, we ranked 23 among “Billboard for Real
Estate Developers with Brand Value of China for 2019 (2019 FE&E#
EmBEESHERE) and was recognized as “Top 10 Wealth Creation
Ability among Real Estate Companies Listed in Hong Kong in 2019”.
Our President Mr. Huang Ruoging was honoured as one of the “2019
Top 10 CEO of China s Listed Real Estate Enterprises (2019 HEEith
E LM AT+ AECEO). Moreover, we were awarded the title of
“2019 Real Estate Enterprises Worth Paying Attention to in the Capital
Market (20191B1EEAMIZREAERNMAERZE)". Shenzhen UG Property
Management Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, was listed as one of
the “Top 100 Property Management Service Enterprises in the PRC’.
Other awards included “2019 Most Valuable Investment Award” by
China Finance (FEIR#E), “China Real Estate Fashion Award - 2019
Top 30 Investment Value Real Estate Enterprises’, ranked top 100 in
“Billboard for Top 200 Comprehensive Strength Real Estate Enterprise
of China for 2019 (2019 AR ER4REE /I TOP200#5 8 ), “Billboard for
Top 100 Brand Value of China Listed Companies for 2019 (2019 1
MR MR EER - #ETOP100) .
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BITHEE > REMBALEEREE
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROJECTS B ERERIEEIER

As at 31 December 2019, the Group s property portfolio comprised R _E-NE+ZBA=1+—8’F&EH
89 property development and investment projects with an ¥4 & B35 A1 5 A Az B 2 (8 3
aggregate GFA of 14,562,982.1 square metres under various stages TWENTEHEMEEE S REEH89
of development remaining unsold in various cities in the PRC and BEEMERERKLEER #EEEE
Australia. The following table sets forth a summary of our property 14,562,982.1 FF 75K o TR MNZ
development and investment projects as at 31 December 2019: Z-NE+ZA=1+—HNEMEMRZEK

REEE

Total GFA
under various
stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
BERARE
Total GFA®@ B EE P ER Y
Project Site area® Y e RS
EHH fhthmEmE Y mEe MEEmEmEC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(FEFHXK) (FFAK) (FAXK)
NANCHANG REGION
maEE
Spain Standard 466,665.3 861,274.2 3,193.5
T B BRI
Riverside International 37,346.0 163,999.9 1,960.9
BRI
Bluelake County 135,285.0 286,794.7 15,139.9
RHER
Riverlake International 68,373.0 168,752.5 9,152.3
B E R
Imperial Mansion 41,993.3 103,594.8 8,370.3
EHER
Imperial Metropolis 84,093.3 210,142.7 38,536.7
b=ilE ey
Bluelake International 47,151.0 113,323.0 5,696.7
T AP B R
The Garden of Spring 30,378.0 15,278.0 12,749.4
+E5E
Scenery Bay 51,919.0 177,985.0 177,985.0
Bl
Delight Scenery 62,455.0 123,856.6 58,941.3
REE
YONG Lake Scenic Center 132,505.0 412,507.2 412,507.2
R
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: Total GFA

under various

stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
BERAE
Total GFA®@ RSP EE Y
Project Site area” FISEE £ iR E
]| el =18 mE MEEEmAC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(E753K) (F75K) (F753K)
Life Sunshine Town 33,396.4 50,181.8 50,181.8
221 b Wi
The Phoenix - Phase | 16,295.3 78,177.8 41,732.9
BE#HR—H
The Phoenix - Phase Il 39,030.5 155,617.8 155,617.8
BEHRX_H
Eastern Imperial Garden 49,225.0 165,979.0 165,979.0
RAEE
Eastern Exquisite 23,209.0 58,023.0 58,023.0
RAKREER
Golden Mansion 92,314.0 240,346.0 240,346.0
SERTF
Royal City 225,296.0 642,093.3 642,093.3
EEm
Sunshine Capital 93,824.1 206,413.1 206,413.1
GRER
Eastern Harmony 31,422.0 97,757.0 97,757.0
RAME
Eastern Crystal 57,876.0 177,645.0 177,645.0
RAEE
One Riverside Glory 52,896.0 158,124.3 158,124.3
EEEI—H
Two Riverside Glory 42,301.0 100,623.2 100,623.2
BEEITH
Eastern Grand 66,667.0 214,244.0 214,244.0
RAEER
Fifth Avenue 107,814.9 642,971.9 642,971.9
EMNFERKE
Leisure’ s Mansion 49,335.6 135,797.5 135,797.5
BiRKT
Changsha Phoenix 18,002.1 99,011.4 99,011.4
RIVEEIHK
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Qo

Total GFA
under various
stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
BEHRAME
Total GFA®@ RSP EE Y
Project Site area” FISEE £ iR E
EHH el =18 =R MEEEmAC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(FHK) (FFHHK) (FHHK)
TIANJIN REGION
KE&EH
Sunshine Coast 481,394.0 1,445,893.2 1,013,858.9
GIBE
Land Lot Nos. Al and A2 69,336.2 55,469.0 55,469.0
Al B A2 St
Perfection Ocean 159,465.9 316,654.0 316,654.0
B8
Luminescence Ocean 68,827.0 130,921.7 130,921.7
aE
Eastern Aesthetics 105,115.2 310,991.2 310,991.2
IRERRE
ZHEJIANG & JIANGSU REGION
L&
Cloud Metropolis 132,701.0 411,708.1 411,708.1
E#g
Yuchau Mansion 86,778.3 266,775.6 266,775.6
BRI AT
Peaceful Sea 56,499.6 108,074.0 108,074.0
BiBHT
Riviera One 223,245.0 645,806.7 645,806.7
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EEgRE
o Total GFA
under various
stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
BERAE
Total GFA®@ RSP EE Y
Project Site area” FISEE £ iR E
EHH el =18 =R MEEEmAC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(E75K) S (CE753K)
JINAN REGION
EREEE
Bluelake County 68,066.0 256,658.6 4,834.9
RIHER
Royal Family 30,682.0 131,919.7 21,239.4
Ett=x
Imperial Mansion 44,966.0 125,742.3 15,471.2
EHER
Redco Visionary 90,616.9 283,008.7 165,774.0
HERKIE—HA
Redco Visionary Il 236,992.1 607,995.8 607,995.8
NERRKIH_HA
Spring Villa 268,113.0 596,669.4 596,669.4
BRI
Jiyang Il 166,967.4 389,510.0 389,510.0
ER A —HA
Grand Mansion 60,940.0 175,440.0 175,440.0
ERER
Leisure s Mansion 34,290.0 85,725.0 85,725.0

BIRRT
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: Total GFA

under various

stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
BERAE
Total GFA®@ RSP EE Y
Project Site area” FISEE £ iR E
]| el =18 =R MEEEmAC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(E753K) (F75K) (F753K)
YANTAI REGION
EaEE
Sunshine Coast - Phase | 51,693.7 93,512.7 10,495.3
GEFE—F—H
Sunshine Coast - Phase Il 21,371.0 34,388.3 3,068.2
GXEE—SETH
Sunshine Coast - Phase Ill 33,142.0 81,358.2 5,349.0
GBE—$F=H
Sunshine Coast - Phase IV 63,411.0 213,814.7 213,814.7
MEytiEE— FMEA
Cathay Palace 57,991.0 182,230.0 182,230.0
AT
HEFEI REGION
SiE&EE
Mix Kingdom Redco 395,596.4 823,818.0 69,635.8
15 -
Prince Royal Family 88,025.5 300,887.9 33,359.4
Ett=x
Royal International 43,873.0 114,894.0 36,783.1
EHE R
Bluelake City 76,058.8 229,941.8 167,075.5
T EE
Majestic Residence 67,931.0 198,138.0 198,138.0
KIRHF
Huaan Southern City 165,601.7 496,943.5 496,943.5
MERE
Scholar Residence 56,722.2 184,894.4 27,214.9
AR TTHY
Cloud Terrace 47,925.5 130,636.2 130,636.2
EHED
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: Total GFA

under various

stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
BERAE
Total GFA®@ RSP EE Y
Project Site area” FISEE £ iR E
EHH el =18 =R MEEEmAC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(FHK) (FFHHK) (FHHK)
Royal Universe 83,478.3 125,217.5 125,217.5
EWXT
Golden County 83,966.0 250,019.3 26,584.7
EEEE
Bauhinia Residence 56,185.5 140,610.5 140,610.5
EX
Virtuous City 363,736.9 880,110.0 689,910.0
®iE
WUHAN REGION
HEE
Redco Courtyard 100,411.0 112,217.4 94,429.1
73 e
Youthfulness 61,450.2 113,693.4 113,693.4
BESF
Golden Bridge Horizon 30,364.0 91,046.9 91,046.9
EEMRM
Intelligence City 31,696.3 118,039.0 118,039.0
BEWH
Redco Majestic Residence 53,392.4 198,071.9 86,251.8
HEXRIRF—HA
Redco Majestic Residence Il 42,512.8 148,794.8 148,794.8
NEXRIRF_4
Fortune East 46,666.9 71,815.0 71,815.0
InER R
Scenery Mansion 47,012.0 201,516.0 201,516.0
W7k ERF
Delight Dragon City 158,891.0 556,118.5 556,118.5
1R IERE,
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Qo

Total GFA
under various
stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
BERAE
Total GFA®@ RSP EE Y
Project Site area” FISEE £ iR E
]| el =18 =R MEEEmAC
(sg. m.) (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
(FHK) (FFHHK) (FHHK)
XI' AN REGION
ARE
Royal City - Phase | 69,466.8 205,541.0 9,700.6
fisE- E—H
Majestic Mansion 88,319.8 171,000.0 171,000.0
KIRERT
Royal Family 27,588.1 78,431.6 78,431.6
£t xR
Royal Redco 35,118.6 59,701.6 59,701.6
HeEl
SHENZHEN REGION
FNE
Royal International 33,035.3 138,833.9 11,438.5
HEEHTEE
GUANGDONG REGION
EREE
Royal Family 30,819.6 95,493.7 42,883.1
Ef xR
Bluelake Landmark 28,113.0 69,275.2 19,959.3
Hi=ES
Center Mansion 17,428.0 14,617.7 14,617.7
EEERT
Royal Mansion 13,611.1 36,217.4 36,217.4
BEA
Bluelake Mansion 12,543.8 41,452.0 41,452.0
M REE
Sky Palace 48,179.0 168,627.0 168,627.0
EHEER
Sky Terrace 27,820.0 85,791.7 85,791.7
ElEm
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ERERS
o Total GFA
under various
stages of
development
remaining
unsold®
BRAE
Total GFA®@ MR
Project Site area® FISFE £ iR E
HH el =S mREe MEEEmAC
(sgq. m.) (sgq. m.) (sq. m.)
(FFARK) (FEAK) (FEFHAK)
QUANZHOU REGION
SRINE
Bayview 18,306.0 53,034.1 4,439.1
Enjoy Peak 13,336.0 58,647.7 58,647.7
RIEE
Leisure s Mansion 40,279.0 151,406.0 151,406.0
=g
Dragon Bay 99,407.0 178,932.6 178,932.6
EE
Royal Central 15,376.0 48,596.1 48,596.1
BEHR
OVERSEAS REGION
BINEE
Prime 15,830.0 56,579.0 28,656.0
TOTAL 14,562,982.1
st
1. Information for “site area” is based on relevant land use rights B RS E A B E RS B AR LS

certificates, land grant contracts, tender documents, or other relevant
agreements (as the case may be).

2. “Total GFA” is based on surveying reports, construction works
commencement permits and/or construction works planning permits or
the relevant land grant contract and/or public tender, listing-for-sale or
auction confirmation letter.

3. “Total GFA under various stages of development remaining unsold”
include the GFA of the completed projects remaining unsold, GFA
of projects under development and the GFA of projects for future

development.

PR ~ LR AR ~ BRX A EE M
1ERIRE GRBERME) °

MaEEmA HENABRE - BRI
HELEFRIsE R, SR TI2 R B S el sa st
BTt EARE R AR - #ih2
HRRSIN BN E o

TENTRFEERENERE HEEER
BIBEHAREENERTEENERR
18~ FEHIEE R EmA L KR R
ERMEENEZERE -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 increased by 27.7%
to RMB8,602.3 million from RMB6,735.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Such increase was primarily attributable to
the increase in our GFA delivered for the residential property for
Delight Scenery in Nanchang, Prince Royal Family in Hefei and
Royal Family and Redco Visionary in Jinan, and was partially offset
by the decrease in the GFA delivered for Bluelake County and
Imperial Mansion in Jinan and Royal Family in Nanchang. Total GFA
delivered increased by 12.3% to 975,094 sq.m for the year ended 31
December 2019 from 868,680 sq. m for the year ended 31 December
2018. The increase in our total revenue was also contributed by the
increase in the recognised average selling price (the “ASP”) for the
properties delivered in the year ended 31 December 2019. The ASP
for properties delivered increased to RMB8,692 for the year ended
31 December 2019 from RMB7,390 for the year ended 31 December
2018, representing a 17.6% increase which was primarily due to the
increase in GFA delivered in Greater Bay Area which recognised a
relatively higher ASP.

A #5301 R
Wzt

BE_Z-NE+_HBA=+—HLFEW
WaRBEaE—Z2— N \F+A=+—H1t
FEMARKGT35.98 8B T N27.7%
EARMES6023BET’ WML E
ZHREERSE  EEEHERURE
FEEMEREISRFIWMEEYWENER
TEEEBELEN > BEWERBPRERE
MEFUREEEHEREXNERERE
Frg/DE ikl e ME_T—HhE+_H
—t+—HEFENERTEEEEmERE
EE-N\F+ZBE=+—HLFEH
868,680 F 75 3K 1 AN 12.3% = 975,094 F
FK o BB RIEMITHEREE-S
—NE+ZBE=+—HLEEEEXRTY
ENEMBFEEE(FHEEMR) BN
ﬁﬁ BPERTYENTHIEBHE
TE-N\FE+IBE=1t—HILEEEMA
Eﬂ%m%mis MITE6NEHE_ZT—A
F+-A=+—HIEFENARS692
7T FEHRAEEMNE R REEEE
> HEEBRFHEEEERSFK
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The following table set out a breakdown of the Group’ s revenue, GFA TR F|HEthE DRI D HIAE B
delivered and recognised ASP by geographical segments: EXNEEREBRRERITFIHHEE A

i

For the year ended 31 December
BE+ZR=1t—HLEE

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
TN “E-\F ZE-NE “Z-\F ZT-NE “Z-N\F
Revenue GFA Delivered Recognised ASP
Wizs ERMREER ERATIER
(RMB' 000) (sq.m.) (RMB per sg. m.)
(A\REFT) (E7RK) (NE®7/FHK)
Greater Western Taiwan Straits B
Economic Zone mEE 1,798,900 1634976 183,866 230,541 9,784 7,095
Central and Western Regions RELTE 2,983,860 602,983 387,722 91,604 7,696 6,582
Bohai Economic Rim RHELER
- Construction service* —BERE 256,490 34215 = - = -
- Properties sales -EHEHE 2,403,466 4,177,648 306,403 546,369 1,844 7,709
Greater Bay Area KEE 1,032,602 3,510 97,103 166 10,634 21,184
Others Htr
- Healthcare service - BERE 1,992 701 - - - -
- Property management services —MEEERY 80,885 - - - - -
- Trading of construction materials -~ BEREMH — 277946 - - - -
- Project management services - TREEERS 33,552 3,401 - - - -
- Rental income —HEWA 10,574 551 - — - -
Total st 8,602,321 6735931 975,094 868,680 8,692 7.390

*

Construction service represents the construction service provided by the * BRI R E B R R SR
Group in Jinan
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A summary of the segment results is set forth below:

Greater Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone: segment
revenue for the Greater Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone
increased significantly by 10.0% to RMB1,798.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 from RMB1,635.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Such increase was primarily
attributable to the increase in GFA delivered for Delight Scenery
in Nanchang.

Central and Western Regions: segment revenue for the Central
and Western Regions increased significantly by 394.8% to
RMB2,983.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from
RMB603.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. Such
increase was primarily attributable to the increase in the GFA
delivered for Royal International and Redco Courtyard in Wuhan.

Bohai Economic Rim: segment revenue for the Bohai Economic
Rim decreased by 36.8% to RMB2,660.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from RMB4,211.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Such decrease was primarily due to
the decrease in the GFA delivered in Bluelake County in Jinan
and Sunshine Coast in Tianjin and net-off by the increase in
the GFA delivered for Imperial Mansion and Redco Visionary in
Jinan.

Greater Bay Area: segment revenue for the Greater Bay Area
increased a 294 times to RMB1,032.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 compared to RMB3.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Such amount was mainly due
to the GFA delivered for Bluelake Landmark Royal Family in
Zhongshan.

Others: It mainly represents property management services
provided by our subsidiaries UG Property Management which
mainly for the property management services to our group
projects and project management services provided at our
headquarters in Shenzhen. The project management services
income mainly refers to the acquisition advisory service and
financing service to our joint venture project company.

A

DEREEMEHETIT ¢

ZBBRARLEE | PZEBRAR
KEeNDBRmAEE—T—N\
F+TAZ=T—HLEFEMNARE
1,635.0 BB T AMEIE NN10.0% E &
ECZ-NF+RB=1+—HLFE
PAREELTI98.9BE T ° Unak g AN
EREANFEERKENERERE
EFEIEINFTER ©

EF'ﬁf‘BiHJ@ E’\\EPﬁﬁBiHJEB’J’WBH&
mHRBE"F-N\F+-A=+—H

JJ:EE)EE’JAEM%ZGO&OE%TijmiE
MIMUSNEBRE_ZE—NFE+_A
=+ —HEFERNARK2983.98
Bt WaEMEZERREaRBIE
AHERKRREENENE SRR
EFRIEINFTER ©

REHEEER  REHEBEERA
DEWEHBEE T N\F+ A
=+—BLEFENARK42119
BETRL3I8NEHE-_Z—N
F+ZRA=+T—HLEFENARE
2,660.08 & 7T > WmA b TB2EM
FOERRHER R KRG BRI B
TEREEERL > WIRE AR EHE
FRADSRRFPIERTEREEE
DOFFEY

REE  BE_ZT-NAE+_-F
=+— EIthEFETE’HEEk &
UL w18 0294 1% 2 A R151,032.6
BET MB&E_Z—-/N\F+°2A
—t—HEFEMSAREISEE
7T AR EEBRREFEHESR
ERMNEZEES °

Hith : T2HEHAMNVNBELREEE
EXMERBEENFTERREZY)
FEERGRHNEETERB UK
FORYIBAEER R IR B EERBEL
P - IHEEERBBATEZR
BHEEEARRMHUERE IR KA
Bk o
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales increased by 29.9% to RMB5,648.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from RMB4,348.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Such increase was primarily due to the increase in
GFA delivered to 975,094 sq. m. for the year ended 31 December 2019
from 868,680 sq. m. for the year ended 31 December 2018; netted off
by the increase in average land acquisition cost per sq. m. delivered
amounted to RMB2,263 for the year ended 31 December 2019 from
RMB1,137 for the year ended 31 December 2018. Such increase in
average land acquisition cost per sq. m. delivered was primarily due
to the increase in the GFA delivered for Imperial Mansion in Jinan
with a relatively high land acquisition costs and decrease in the GFA
delivered for Sunshine Coast in Tianjin with a relatively lower land
acquisition cost.

Gross profit

Gross profit increased by 23.7% to RMB2,954.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from RMB2,387.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Our gross profit margin slightly decreased to
34.3% for the year ended 31 December 2019 from 35.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The decrease was primarily attributable
to the increase in average land acquisition cost during the year and
netting off by the increase in ASP from RMB7,390 in 2018 to RMB8,692
in 2019.

Other gains, net

Other gains, increased 79.2% to RMB445.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 from RMB248.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2018. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase of gain
on disposals of subsidiaries for RMB113.8 million and re-measurement
valuation gain for RMB286.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 and net off by the realised loss on the foreign exchange contracts
for RMB45.3 million and decrease of gain on disposal of assets and
liabilities held for sales from RMB304.3 million in 2018 to nil in 2019.
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Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by 144.5% to RMB448.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from RMB183.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. Selling and marketing
expenses mainly represent expenses incurred in the promotion of
our properties and the sales commission to the sales agents. Such
increase was mainly due to the increase in the marketing promotion
activities for the projects and the increase in the sales agency fee as
there was an increase in the contracted sales.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by 21.8% to RMB516.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from RMB424.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018. Such increase was primarily
due to the increase in salary expenses, legal and consultancy
expenses and office and travelling expenses because of the increase
in the number of projects located in different cities.

Fair value gain on investment properties

The fair value gain on investment properties represents the increase
in the value on the commercial portion of the culture park in Tianjin
and a portion of the Redco Building in Shenzhen which is held for
rental. The fair value gain decreased by 24.3% to RMB63.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 from RMB84.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Fair value gain on investment properties upon transfer from
properties under development for sales

The fair value gain on investment properties upon transfer from
properties under development for sales represents the valuation
gain for the commercial properties of Sunshine Coast in Tianjin
when it changed from the properties under development for sales to
investment properties.

Operating profit

As a result of the foregoing, operating profit increased by 21.2%
to RMB2,560.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from
RMB2,112.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Finance income

Finance income increased by 28.9% to RMB122.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from RMB95.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. Such increase was primarily attributable to the loan
to independent person and the increase in interest during the year.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by 72.1% to RMB20.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from RMB71.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease
in interest expense which is not eligible to be capitalised to projects
under development.

Share of (loss)/profit of investments accounted for using the equity
method, net

Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity
method, net reported a loss of RMB21.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 from profit of RMB77.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, which mainly due to the decrease of completion of
GFA delivery for the joint control entities in 2019.

Profit before income tax

As a result of the foregoing, profit before income tax for the year
ended 31 December 2019 increased 19.3% to RMB2,641.0 million from
RMB2,213.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense increased by 18.8% to RMB1,089.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 from RMB917.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Such increase was primarily the increase in
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) for RMB153.8 million as a result of
increased profit of the Group and increase in the PRC land appreciation
tax for RMB195.3 million due to the increase in the gross profit for the
GFA delivered, netted off by the decrease in deferred income tax for
the Group.
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Profit for the year ended 31 December 2019

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 increased by 19.7% to RMB1,551.7 million from RMB1,296.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The profit for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was mainly attributable to the profit in the
Greater Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone of RMB474.4 million,
Central and Western Regions of RMB299.7 million, Bohai Economic
Rim of RMB576.0 million, Greater Bay Area of RMB201.3 million and
the others segment for RMB0.3 million.

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 attributable to owners
of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company increased by 4.5% to RMB1,034.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from RMB990.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
increased to RMB516.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
as compared with RMB305.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 which was mainly due to the increase in the profit from property
development projects with other investor.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Position

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB11,094.3 million (31 December 2018: RMB5,678.9 million) and
restricted cash of RMB3,965.2 million (31 December 2018: RMB2,186.1
million) as at 31 December 2019. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’ s
cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Hong Kong dollar
(“HKS$”), RMB and United States dollar (“USS$”).
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Borrowings
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had borrowings of approximately N _E-NFFZA=+—H’ ~&EH

RMB16,782.7 million (31 December 2018: RMB11,059.7 million). MERN 2 ARIEL,102TEET(ZE
—N\F+ZB=+—H '@ AR¥11,059.7
BEIT) °
: 2019 2018
—2—h#E —E-N\E
RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AREFIT
Long-term bank borrowings RHAIRITERR 3,451,066 3,549,978
11% Senior Notes due 2020 TETETFRE % ELERE — 1,362,773
9.875% Senior Notes due 2021 TE T —FEFH79.875% B 1,243,720 —
Non-current borrowings JERNHERTERR 4,694,786 4,912,751
Short-term bank borrowings SHASRITIERR 3,152,063 592,540
6.375% Senior Notes due 2019 “E-NFEH6.3T5% B EE = 2,048,688
8% Private Notes due 2019 ZE-NFEHR 8% A E RE — 108,534
11% Senior Notes due 2020 TETEFEE 1% EAERE 2,150,741 —
13.5% Senior Notes due 2020 “EEFFH13.5% BAEE 1,746,112 —
11.5% Senior Notes due 2020 TETEFE11.5% BAER 1,733,549 —
8,782,465 2,749,762
Portion of term loan from bank ERRRTTERED
- due for repayment within one year —BR—FRNEER 3,173,759 3,246,900
- due for repayment within one year which —BR—FERNEERE
contain a repayment on demand clause (BEREREBERR 131,683 24,500
- due for repayment after one year which —JBAR—FBEER
contain a repayment on demand clause (BEREREBERR — 125,768
Current borrowings BPEAERR 12,087,907 6,146,930
Total borrowings 1BRAE%R 16,782,693 11,059,681
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The amounts based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements and the maturities of the Group s total borrowings
at the respective balance sheet dates (i.e. ignoring the effect of any
repayment on demand clause) are shown below:

2

FEERSEBEEANERBENEER
(BB s Fr & B E B B #) REm
HAMR (BN 2R EREERROTE)
E2 I

2019 2018
—Z—hE —E-)N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARHEFIT

Amounts of borrowings that are repayable: BN THIHAREENEREEE !
- Within 1 year — 15K 12,087,907 6,021,162
- Between 1 and 2 years —1E2% 2,558,545 4,553,060
- Between 2 and 5 years —2E55H 2,136,241 485,459
Total borrowings 1BRAE%R 16,782,693 11,059,681

The carrying amounts of the Group' s borrowings approximate their
fair values as the impact of discounting is not significant or the
borrowings carrying floating rate of interests.

OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Net debt to equity ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’ s net debt to equity ratio was
17.9% (31 December 2018: 47.9%). It is calculated as net debt divided
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowing less cash
and bank balance (including cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash). Total equity is as shown in the condensed consolidated
balance sheet.

Net current assets and current ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the Group s net current assets amounted to
approximately RMB11,858.3 million (31 December 2018: RMB9,618.9
million). The Group’s current ratio, which is calculated as current
assets divided by current liabilities, was approximately 1.25 times as
at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: 1.4 times).
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Cost of borrowings

The Group' s average cost of borrowings (calculated by dividing total
interest expenses incurred, including interest capitalised by average
borrowings during this period) increased to 9.33% for the year ended
31 December 2019 from 7.13% for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had the following contingent liabilities in respect of
financial guarantees on mortgage facilities as at the dates below:
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2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\EF
+ZBA=+—H +-A=+—H
RMPB’ 000 RMB 000
AREFTT AT
Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities for FiAEBYEETERN
certain purchasers of the Group’ s properties  1ZBREIRHAIVER 9,001,924 5,932,804

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of
the Group' s properties and provided guarantees to secure their
obligations of such purchasers for repayment. Such guarantees
will terminate upon the earlier of (i) the transfer of the real estate
ownership certificates to the purchasers which will generally occur
with the period ranging from six months to three years from the
completion of the guarantee registration; or (ii) the satisfaction of
mortgage loans by the purchasers of the properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default of mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is obliged to repay the
outstanding mortgage principal together with accrued interest and
penalties owned by the defaulting purchasers to the banks and
the Group is entitled to retain the legal title and to take over the
possession of the related properties. The Group s guarantees period
starts from the date of grant of mortgage. The Directors consider that
the carrying value of financial guarantees is immaterial.
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There are certain corporate guarantees provided by the Group's
subsidiaries for each other in respect of borrowings as at 31
December 2019. The Directors consider that the subsidiaries are
sufficiently financially resourced to fulfil their obligations.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 2,966
employees (31 December 2018: 978 employees). For the year ended
31 December 2019, the remuneration of the Group’ s employees
(including directors emoluments) amounted to approximately
RMB446.4 million. The remuneration of the Group' s employees
includes basic salaries, allowances, bonus and other employee
benefits. The Group’s remuneration policy for the Directors and
senior management members was based on their experience, level
of responsibility and general market conditions. Any discretionary
bonus and other merit payments are linked to the profit performance
of the Group and the individual performance of the Directors and
senior management members. Further, the Group adopted a share
option scheme on 14 January 2014. Further information of such share
option scheme is available in the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The Company provided on-the-job
training, induction courses together with other training programmes
for the employees at different positions to raise their professionalism
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had aggregate facilities of
approximately RMB18,843.5 million (31 December 2018: RMB9,770.3
million) for overdrafts, bank loans and senior notes. The unutilised
facilities as at 31 December 2019 amounted to RMB2,060.8 million (31
December 2018: RMB1,001.3 million).

These facilities were secured by bank deposits, certain properties
under development held for sale provided by the Group’s
subsidiaries, the Group’ s equity interests in certain subsidiaries and
corporate guarantee.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 27 March 2019, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “2019 Facility Agreement’, together with the 2017
Facility Agreement, the”’Facility Agreements’) with a group of
financial institutions as lenders, pursuant to which the lenders agreed
to make available to the Company a USS denominated transferrable
term loan facility in an aggregate amount of USS175 million, with a
term of 36 months from the date of the 2019 Facility Agreement and
an interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 5.1% per annum.

On 20 July 2017 (after trading hours), the Company (as borrower),
certain subsidiaries of the Company (as original guarantors), certain
financial institutions (as original mandated lead arrangers) and a
facility agent entered into a facility agreement (the “2017 Facility
Agreement’) in respect of a US$202,000,000 transferable term
loan facility with a term of 36 months from the date of the Facility
agreement and at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 4% per annum.
Subject to the terms of the Facility, the total commitment may
be increased to not more than US$220,000,000 as a result of the
accession of lender(s).

Under each of the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if:

i.  Mr. Huang Ruoging (“Mr. Huang’) and Mr. Wong Yuek Hung
(“Mr. Wong”) individually or collectively do not or cease to
hold (directly or indirectly) 51% or more of the beneficial
shareholding interest, carrying 51% or more of the voting rights,
in the issued share capital of the Company or do not or cease to
maintain management control over the Company; or

ii.  Mr. Huang is not or ceases to be the president and an executive
director of the board of directors of the Company.

On and at any time after the occurrence of an event of default
which is continuing, the facility agent may cancel all or part of the
commitments, or declare that all or part of the loans, together with
accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued or outstanding be
immediately due and payable.

As at 31 December 2019, US$144.9 million and USS$175 million
remained outstanding under the 2017 Facility Agreement and the
2019 Facility Agreement respectively.
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The Company will continue to make relevant disclosure in its
subsequent interim and annual reports of the Company pursuant to
Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules for as long as circumstances giving rise
to the obligation under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules continue to
exist.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company did
not have other disclosure obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed, no other significant investments held, nor were
there any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the year ended 31 December 2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Company will continue to purchase land located in the
strategically selected cities. It is expected that the Group s internal
resources and bank borrowings will be sufficient to meet the
necessary funding requirements. Save as disclosed in this report, the
Company did not have any plans of significant investments or capital
assets as at the date of this report.

IMPORTANT EVENT AFFECTING THE GROUP AFTER 31 DECEMBER
2019

(a) COVID-19 outbreak

In early 2020, after the COVID-19 outbreak, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued
to be implemented across the PRC. In light of the negative
impact brought upon by the COVID-19 outbreak, it may cause a
short-term impact on all sectors and the sales of the real estate
industry has also been affected by the short-term psychological
impact of the epidemic on the public. The Group will pay close
attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and
evaluate its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group.
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(b)

Acquisition of 35% interest in Makati City Subway, Inc.
(“MCsI)

On 18 February 2020, the Group entered into a share purchase
agreement (the “Share Purchase Agreement’) with Philippine
Infradev Holdings, Inc. (“Infradev’) and MCSI, independent third
parties, to acquire 35% interest in MCSI at a consideration of
US$102,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB712,698,000),
which owns parcels of land in Makati City, the Philippines
for the development of construction, normal operation
and maintenance of Makati Subway System as well as the
corresponding topside development (the “Project’).

On the same date of the entering of the Share Purchase
Agreement, the Group, MCSI and Aggregate Business Group
(ABG) Holings Inc., (“ABG”), the immediate holding company
of Infradev entered into a development agreement (the
“Development Agreement’), pursuant to which the Group
and ABG agreed, among other things, through Makati Redco
Transit Development Corporation (“MRTD”), a company to be
incorporated in the Philippines, to be jointly responsible for
the development and construction of topside development
corresponding to the Makati Subway System. Upon
incorporation, the Group and ABG will directly hold 51% and
49% of the equity interests in MRTD respectively. The initial
paid up capital of MTRD for the Group will be US$10,200,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB 71,269,800).

Save as disclosed, no other important event affecting the Group has

(b)
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OUTLOOK

2020 must be a remarkable year in history. The ever-changing
global situation and the sudden outbreak of the novel coronavirus
have made the whole circumstance more complicated. Under the
significant control by the government and the active participation of
the citizens, the epidemic has been controlled efficiently. Although
the national economy was greatly affected in the first quarter, the
overall situation remained stable and the fundamentals enjoyed good
momentum for a long-term remained unchanged. Being one of the
pillar industry national economy, real estate will play a vital role.

In this epidemic, the Group responded to the national call, on the
premise of ensuring the health of our clients and employees, to
participate in anti-epidemic actions actively. And it has achieved
positive results. Meanwhile, according to the requirements of the
central and local government policies, we have resumed our work
and production as required. It can reduce the negative effects of the
epidemic and also ensure stable development of the Company.

In recent years, the green building and green property service concept
advocated by the Group has raised awareness in the industry. And we
always prioritize the safety and the heath of clients. In the course of
this epidemic prevention, the Group has provided clients with solid
health and psychological protection and has been recognized by our
clients based on the consistent service theme.

In 2020, the Group will combine existing development strategies and
new situation changes. We would continue to provide clients with
quality products and services based on green building and diversified
service and provide partners with broader prospects for cooperation.
We also adhered the operation of property development and
diversified services as dual growth drivers to facilitate green, steady
development of the company and achieve high quality growth.
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With the epidemic has been controlled efficiently, based on the board
prospect of the domestic real estate market and the residents urgent
demand of green buildings and services, the Group believes that
2020 will be a year for the company to achieve great-leap-forward
development. The Group will continue to implement proactive and
prudent investment strategies, increase investment in core areas
such as the Greater Bay Area. At the meantime, we would focus on
further expansion of overseas markets, strengthen the combined
application of multiple land acquisition models and consolidate
the Group’s development foundation. We would also increase
investment in the real estate, health, commercial and cultural
tourism sectors to achieve diversified development. Implementing
proactive and prudent financial strategies to ensure the smooth
and efficient financing channels can further lay a solid foundation
for the company s business growth and sustainable development.
Strengthening the capability of product research and development,
a strong and high-quality product system and service system can be
built.

Meanwhile, to “breakthrough with stand-out direction rapidly’. From
focusing on the real estate development and operation to achieving
steady development of dual growth drivers and from providing high-
quality housing for clients to achieve humanized services of healthy
living, Redco has never stopped for pursuing the growth of quality.
With the overall development of the national economy and the great
revival of the nation and the joint efforts of all members of the group,
we also believe that a brighter future will be created.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group' s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
The followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties which are not
currently known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Risks pertaining to the property market in the PRC

The Group’s business and revenue growth is dependent on
favourable economic conditions in the PRC, particularly the
performance of the PRC residential property market in the cities in
which the Group develops its property development projects, and
therefore any potential decline in demand for properties, property
sales or property prices in the PRC, particularly in the cities where
the Group has operations, could have a material adverse effect on its
business, results of operations and financial condition.
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Operational Risks

The Group’ s operations are subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to the property related businesses. Shortages of materials,
equipment and skilled labour, labour disputes, default on the part
of its buyers, contractors and strategic business partners, natural
catastrophes, adverse weather conditions, inadequacies or failures
of internal processes or other external factors may have various
levels of negative impact on the results of the Group' s operations.
Additionally, accidents may happen despite systems and policies set
up for their prevention, which may lead to the Group’s financial loss,
litigation, or damage in reputation.

Further, property development is capital intensive in nature. The
Group has financed its property development projects primarily
through proceeds from sales of properties and bank borrowings. It
may also access the capital markets to raise further financing. Its
ability to obtain external financing in the future is subject to a variety
of uncertainties, including the condition of the international and
domestic financial markets and financing availability and general
economic conditions in the PRC. If the Group fails to secure adequate
financing or renew its existing loans prior to their expiry as a result
of these governmental actions and policy initiatives, there may be
a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations and
financial condition of the Group.

Foreign Exchange Risks

As at 31 December 2019, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk primarily with respect to certain of its bank borrowings and senior
notes which were denominated in HKS and USS. RMB experienced
certain fluctuation against HKS and USS$ during the year 2018 which
is the major reason for the exchange differences recognised by
the Group. The Group does not have a formal hedging policy and
have not entered into any foreign currency exchange contracts or
derivative transactions to hedge the foreign exchange risk.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible developer, the Group has endeavoured to comply
with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and adopted effective environmental measures to ensure that the
conducting of the Group’ s business meets the applicable local
standards and ethics in respect of environmental protection.
The Group puts great emphasis in environmental protection and
sustainable development. Through the establishment of an ever-
improving management system, enhancement on procedure
monitoring, energy conservation and environment protection were
strongly promoted, leading to the remarkable achievement of
environmental management.

Several measures have been implemented in order to mitigate
environmental pollution, including the environmental protection
as one of the key factor when we consider the major contractor in
the contract tendering; we implemented the electronic approval
system (“EAS’ system) to reduce the use of paper in our working
environment.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group. The Audit Committee is delegated
by the Board to monitor the Group' s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and such policies
are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and
relevant operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP S STAKEHOLDERS
Workplace Quality

The Group believes that the directors, senior management and
employees of the Group are instrumental to the success of the Group
and that their industry knowledge and understanding of the market
will enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market.
As such, the Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the Eligible
Participants (as defined below) who contributed to the success of the
Group' s operations.

The Group provides on the-job training and development
opportunities to enhance its employees career progression. Through
different trainings, staff s professional knowledge in corporate
operations, occupational and management skills are enhanced. The
Group also organised staff-friendly activities for employees, such as
annual dinner, to promote staff relationship.

The Group provides a safe, effective and congenial working
environment. Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are
implemented to ensure the working environment is healthy and
safe. The Group provided health and safety communications for
employees to present the relevant information and raise awareness
of occupational health and safety issues.

The Group values the health and well-being of its staff. In order to
provide employees with health coverage, its employees are entitled
to medical insurance benefits.

Relationships with the Group' s other stakeholders

The Group placed efforts in maintaining good relationships various
financial institutions and banks given that the Group's business is
capital intensive and require on-going funding for the development
and growth of the Group’ s business.

Further, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of
quality in the products to its customers in order to stay competitive.

During the year, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its financial institutions and/or customers.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 120.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB3
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 (year ended
31 December 2018: RMB3 cents) to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 26 June 2020.
The final dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholder at
annual general meeting to be held on 19 June 2020 (“AGM”) and will
be payable on or around 9 July 2020. The proposed final dividend
shall be declared in RMB and paid in HKS. The final dividend payable
in HKS will be converted from RMB at the average exchange rate of
HKS against RMB announced by the People’'s Bank of China on 19
June 2020.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for development and/or sale
are set out on page 318 to page 328 of this report.

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there is no new shares
issued by the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, stipulating that any
new shares shall be offered according to the respective shareholding
of the existing shareholders when new shares are issued.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB4.52 million (2017: RMB1.13 million).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 317 of this annual
report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s turnover
attributable to the Group's five largest customers was less than 5%.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, purchases from the Group’s
largest and the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
4.7% (2018: 11.1%) and 27.9% (2018: 23.1%) of total cost of sales of
the Group, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or any
of their close associates or any Shareholders of the Company, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the issued Shares)
has any interest in the above- mentioned suppliers and customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

On 10 January 2019, the Company issued Senior Notes due in 2020
with principal amount of US$250,000,000 at a coupon rate of 13.5%
per annum for the purposes of refinancing certain of its indebtedness.
Further details relating to the issue of the Senior Notes due 2020 are
disclosed in the report of the Company dated 11 January 2019.

On 23 April 2019, the Company issued Senior Notes due 2021 with
principal amount of US$180,000,000 at a coupon rate of 9.875% per
annum for the purposes of refinancing certain of its indebtedness.
Further details relating to the issue of the Senior Notes due 2021 are
disclosed in the report of the Company dated 24 April 2019.

On 3 December 2019, the Company issued Senior Notes due 2020 with
principal amount of US$250,000,000 at a coupon rate of 11.5% per
annum for the proposes of refinancing certain of its indebtednesses.
Further details relating to the issue of the Senior Notes due 2020 are
disclosed in the report of the Company date 4 December 2019.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company s
listed securities for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 14 January 2014, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board may, at its
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe for such number
of new shares of the Company (the “Shares’) to (a) full-time or
part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; (b) any directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
(c) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries (the “Eligible Participants’) as
described in the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Upon acceptance of the
option, the grantee shall pay HKS1 (or an equivalent amount in RMB)
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

During the Year, no share option was granted, exercised, expired or
lapsed and there is no outstanding share option under the Scheme.

(a) Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under
any other share option schemes of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 355,160,932 Shares, representing 10%
of the issued capital of the Company as at the date of this
report, respectively, excluding for this purpose Shares which
may have been issued upon the exercise of the options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (or any other share option schemes of our Company).
Subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the
approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time, the Board may: (i) renew this limit at any time
to 10% of the Shares in issue as of the date of the approval by
the Shareholders in general meeting; and/or (ii) grant options
beyond the 10% limit to Eligible Participants specifically
identified by the Board.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed
30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options shall
be granted under any schemes of the Company (including the
Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit being
exceeded. The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall be adjusted, in such manner as the
auditor of the Company or an approved independent financial
adviser shall certify to be appropriate, fair and reasonable in the
event of any alteration in the capital structure of the Company in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme whether
by way of consolidation, capitalisation issue, rights issue, sub-
division or reduction of the share capital of the Company but in
no event shall exceed the limit prescribed in this paragraph.

Maximum number of options to each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular by the Company
which shall comply with Rules 17.03(4) and 17.06 of the Listing
Rules containing the identity of the Eligible Participant, the
numbers of and terms of the options to be granted (and options
previously granted to such participant) the information as
required under Rule 17.02(2) (d) and the disclaimer required
under 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and (ii) the approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time with such
Eligible Participant and his associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) abstaining from voting.
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(c)

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of: (i)
the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities; (ii) the average of the official
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange' s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

The period within which the Shares must be exercised under
an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more
than 10 years after it has been granted.

Remaining life of Share Option Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from 14 January 2014.

(c)

(d)
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Yeuk Hung

Mr. HUANG Ruoging

Mr. TANG Chengyong

Mr. Wang Weifeng (appointed on 15 April 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David GBS, BBS, JP

Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuen SBS, BBS

Mr. YIP Tai Him

Mr. CHOW Kwong Fai, Edward JP (resigned on 26 November 2019)

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set forth in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles of this report.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, one-
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from their offices
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. As
such, Mr. Wong, Mr. Huang and Mr. Yip shall retire from office and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors independent.
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DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 9 March 2017.
Mr. Wang Weifeng entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 15 April 2019. Mr. Huang
Ruoqging, Mr. Tang Chengyong, Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, Mr. Chau On
Ta Yuen and Mr. Yip Tai Him entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from January 2017.
Such service contract can be terminated by either party thereto
serving at least three months notice prior to the expiry of the term
thereof. Each of the independent non-executive Directors signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years with
effect from 30 January 2017. Mr. Chow Kwong Fai resigned as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 26 November
2019.

None of the Directors (including any Director who may be proposed
for re-election at the Annual General Meeting) has entered into any
service agreement with the Company which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, Directors or other officers of the
Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company shall
be indemnified from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain in or about
the execution of his/her duties in his/her office, except such (if any) as
he/she shall incur or sustain through his/her own fraud or dishonesty.
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its Directors and officers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares, or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing Shares, were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The Group also participates in an employee
social security plan as required by the regulations in the PRC, under
which the Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of the
payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme. Save as disclosed
above, the Group has not operated any other retirement benefits
schemes for the Group’ s employees.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN COMPETITION
BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition dated 17 January 2014 (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”) was entered into between the Company and
the controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. Wong, Mr. Huang, Global
Universe and Times International, who have undertaken to the
Company (for itself and for the benefit of its subsidiaries) that it or
he would not, and would procure that its or his associates (except
any members of the Group) would not directly or indirectly, either
on its or his own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any
person, firm or company, among other things, carry on, participate
or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold shares or interests
(in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, principal, agent,
director, employee or otherwise) in any companies or businesses
that compete directly or indirectly with the property development
and property investment business engaged by the Group, unless
otherwise permitted according to the Deed of Non-Competition.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance by them
and their associates with the Deed of Non-Competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of
Non-Competition and assessed whether the controlling Shareholders
have abided by the non-competition undertaking. The independent
non-executive Directors confirmed that the controlling Shareholders
have not been in breach of the non-competition undertaking during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors or their respective associates
have any interests in any business that competed or is likely to
compete with the Group' s business (other than the Group’ s business)
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

BIAEFIETE

FEREEBEE-—BRFIMELREE
(TRfAEEE ) - AEETF2HE—IBDE
ERRENREMLERESE RILAE
H AR HEES TEN—E O mZIR NG
B o BR EXFRIREEE SN » REBREH
HHESRIUEMHEMBKRENEE

PERARRN B P E B

EABHEZERRREEEE - BEF
F-BFEABABRR) R -_FT—-—MNFE—
A+tHRIUTABRFEZE(FRER
B ERERRAOEAAD (REERERS
HIB AN ) &L BRREARS
RERTHESIN EERGAE » HilefER
HEBE AN (REBTAKLE QBRI
TEERNERETHUBRRARE[IA
T BRHAF (HPaR) KEN2H
EREAEBRENEERE R EME
REXBEERABERFINATHEBK
REPHEARD WS BHFTEZX
FEBHRM IEDR (ERBER T TamR

R -aBAEBEFA-RE -EFEE
HEMBNFAE) o
AT EWEI S ERRRAER S R H

BABTIBEFLBENFEREDSE o

BIJFATEREBRA B F 2B RTE
ERRREZECEBUEABFEGE - BUIF

HITESHD ZEREBREREE_ZT—A
F+_A=t—HLIEFETEERIHRS
FEE ©

MRERBEEN BMBEEEAHEZENH
BAREE_Z—NF+ZA=+—HIt
FERAREEES BT A EBAH
BEAER (REBEFUN) AHEE T
Al R o

102

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2019



DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interest in the Company:

Qo

Name of Director
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Nature of interest

Total number of Shares

Percentage of the
Company s issued
share capital

HEATIBET

EEHE HEmE BeAn 488k BT

Mr. Wong (Note 2) Interest in controlledcorporation 1,387,258,000(L)(Note 1) 39.06%

HAEUAE (H5E2) S AE R (B5E 1)

Mr. Huang (Note 3) Beneficiary of a family trust 947,018,000(L)(Note 1) 26.60%

=Esad (HEE3) KIEEEZmA (PI5E 1)

Mr. Wang Weifeng Beneficial owner 100,000 0.00%

FE#iE EmEA A

Notes: 5T

(1) The letters “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. (1) FHELIEZZALFENRMEE -

(2)  1,387,258,000 Shares are registered in the name of Global Universe (2)  1,387,258,000 f& f& 17 T5 LAIR F B PR 22 A%
International Holding Limited (“Global Universe”). As at 31 December BRAB(MRFERER)HNBEEZETL 1P
2019, Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung (“Mr. Wong’) beneficially owned 100% of the _E-NFTR=+—H’ ettt
issued share capital of Global Universe and was therefore deemed to be (TEhE ) EFHEEFEEN100%E
interested in the 1,387,258,000 Shares held by Global Universe by virtue BT MRS S R ERAIRR S
of the SFO. RIRFEEFA R 1,387,258,000 f% f% 15

R o
(3) 947,018,000 Shares are registered in the name of Times International (3) 947,018,000 8% B& 10 Th U BRF B R % B

Development Company Limited (“Times International’). The entire
share capital of Times International was held by Honour Family Holdings
Limited (“Honour Family’). Honour Family was held as to 100% by UBS
Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited. Mr. Huang is the settlor and a beneficiary of the
discretionary trust, he was deemed to be interested in the 947,018,000
Shares held by Times International.

BERAB(RAER)NEEERL
BRF U PR B9 2 B0 A% A< FH Honour Family
Holdings Limited (THonour Family)
#F B o Honour Family B UBS Trustees
(B.V.L.) Limited#F 5 1009% % # o H 7
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in this annual

PREXFIIREESN RZEBE—hEFE+A8
=t+—H’ BIBEEFRARFRSTEA
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KRB RIRE LT HITAEFTETHESFR
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report, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2019 was the HINE AR ~ ERABHERHBABIN
Company, its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a BE_Z-NFT_A=T—HLFER

party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

EUB—*JF‘%’J# SEEAZHE BEESFH
REBAT AT SHEREMEARERNRD
S fRsFmE D o

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS IN SECURITIES FERRNESNER
As at 31 December 2019, so far as the Directors were aware of, the RZE—-NE+-_BA=+—H" 2RI

following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) interests or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company, being interests of 5% or more, as recorded
in the register required to be kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

o

BESFRIAEFREISE 336 FAFENRR
TP MESFIAE  UFAL
(%%E’zzﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁkéﬁ%)ﬁﬁﬁﬂ
IR RAERRDIRED KX E BIES
5% B EREw) J0F

Percentage of
the Company's

Number of Long/Short issued
Name Nature of interest Shares position share capital
LA AE
2817
2B REtE iabi 4= e %E RRABSEE
Global Universe (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 1,387,258,000 Long Position 39.06%
RFER (1) BE#EBA S I=)
Times International (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 947,018,000 Long Position 26.66%
R CEIPR (FY5E 2) BomEB A SHo)
Honour Family (Note 2) Interest in controlled 947,018,000 Long Position 26.66%
corporation
Honour Family (Ffz£2) R LB T [SF=)
UBS Trustees (Note 2) Trustee 947,018,000 Long Position 26.66%
UBS Trustees (FfzE£2) ZEEA S I=)
Power Ray (Note 3) Beneficial Owner 311,609,322 Long Position 8.77%
Power Ray (FfizE3) Bm#EEA SHo)
Mr. NG Leung Ho (Note 3) Interest in controlled 311,609,322 Long Position 8.77%

RREFLE (HFE3)

corporation
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Notes:

(1)  As at the date of this report, the entire share capital of Global Universe
International Holdings Limited (“Global Universe”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI’) with limited liability,
was held by Mr. Wong Yeuk Hung (“Mr. Wong’). By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Wong was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Global
Universe.

(2)  The entire share capital of Times International Development Company
Limited (“Times International’) was held by Honour Family Holdings
Limited (“Honour Family’). Honour Family was held as to 100% by UBS
Trustees (B.V.I.) Limited (“UBS Trustees’). Mr. Huang is the settlor and a
beneficiary of the discretionary trust. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Times International.

(3) To the best knowledge of the Directors, the entire share capital of
Power Ray Investment Development Limited (“Power Ray’), a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability, was wholly owned by Mr.
NG Leung Ho. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. NG Leung Ho is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Power Ray.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person,
other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS MATERIAL INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY S BUSINESS

Save as the transactions set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director or an entity connected with the
Directors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or
at the end of the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There is no connected party transaction conducted during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had certain
related parties transactions under the applicable accounting
standards. There are no related parties transactions disclosed in
note 33 to the financial statements which constitutes a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction which should be
disclosed pursuant to Rules 14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2019. The Company confirmed
that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions as set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance between the
controlling shareholders of the Company or any of their subsidiaries
and the Group has been made during the year ended 31 December
2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM
to be held on Friday, 19 June 2020, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 16 June 2020 to
Friday, 19 June 2020, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer documents should
be lodged for registration with Company s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712- 1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 15 June 2020.
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(b) For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who qualify for the final dividend, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Thursday, 25 June 2020 to
Friday, 26 June 2020. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all
transfer documents should be lodged for registration with the
Company s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 24 June 2020.

RESERVES

Details of the changes in reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders was approximately HKS$3,564.9 million.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within the
Directors knowledge as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float as required by the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of
this report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
which has indicated its willingness to continue in office as the
Group s external auditor for 2020 for Shareholders approval at the
Annual General Meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If any shareholder of the Company is unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the Shares, it is advised to consult
an expert.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Yeuk Hung
Chairman

31 March, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT
B|IZBENES

i
pwc

To the Shareholders of Redco Properties Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Redco Properties Group
Limited (the “Company”’) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 120 to 316, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs’) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code’), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Classification of investments

Step acquisition of Top Glory Group

»

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT
B ZEETRS

ERIER

RPERESB GRS EMI(EESE
sHERDIEITET » RFIEXFERITAE
WEEBERRS 2 ES S tHU T
WRAENEEI B FIFE—T B -

HFIMEME  HPIFTESHIE/REETE
MBEEMSHMANESA T RIBHER -

B\
REEBGMAGEMI(EES S ENE
fesrR) (U TEEIseRI) > R\
EEE TEBRTTRITHEMEXER
Hffe

FREtEIR

FREST FRERERMNTEIE > 3
AHEAPHEHYBRRNVEBFR/EEN
FR EEFRHEEANMASBTERSHY
BREKRHATRFETERERN - HMAF
SHELEFERHEEBHNER -

HPIEB ST PR B RSB B T F IR A
Lk

- REDE
DRBIEHEEERE

NEMEERERAR 2019 FERE

109



-

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT
RV 2 LU

Qo

Key Audit Matter
RSB EIA

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RMESNFIEERAEESER

Classification of investments

Refer to Note 2.2, 14, 15 and 27 to the consolidated
financial statements

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group made investments with consideration of
approximately RMB591.7 million in subsidiaries and
approximately RMB199.1 million in associates and
joint ventures.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
investments and the fact that significant judgements
were made by management in determining the
appropriate classification of the investments that
involved complex terms and arrangements.

RESHE
FHREEHIBERANE 2.2~ 14~ 15K 27

BET-NF+_A=1T—HLFE ' SEERENH
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BIRAERENABORSAREIN.IBSET
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TE RARFEIRR R R VR BRI G B D R FH E 2 -

Our procedures in relation to the classification of
investments included:

We read the contracts and agreements in relation
to those investments made in the current year.
We assessed the terms and conditions of those
investments, including evaluation of whether
there is any indication or evidence of control,
joint control or significant influence found in the
detailed arrangements of these investments, to
determine whether appropriate classification had
been adopted by management in relation to those
investments based on the consideration of the
totality of facts surrounding the operations of the
investee companies and the terms of the contracts
and agreements.

We discussed with management and obtained
management assessment to understand their
critical judgement that they had applied in the
classification of investments.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FAEETEIE (8)

»
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BMESE A RIERARETEIE (18)

Classification of investments (Continued)

RESEE)

We also discussed with management to obtain an
understanding on the details of such investments,
including relevant activities of the investee
companies and how decisions about those
activities are made, how the Group and other
investors participate in the decisions, the rights
and power of the Group and other investors on the
investee companies.

We performed background search on other
investors of the investee companies to understand
the business scope of the investors and rationale of
the investment.

Based on the procedures performed, we noted that
management' s judgement applied in the classification
of investments was supported by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FAEETEIE (8)

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BMESE A RIERARETEIE (18)

Step acquisition of Top Glory Group

Refer to Notes 2.2, 2.3, 2.9, 7, 13 and 27.3 to the
consolidated financial statements

On 26 June 2019, the Group acquired the remaining
55% equity interest of Top Glory International
Holding Ltd (“Top Glory”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Top Glory Group”) at a
consideration of RMB198.0 million, which gives the
Group the control of Top Glory. Top Glory Group
was a 45% associate of the Group before the step
acquisition.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
Group requires to re-measure its previously held
equity interest at the acquisition-date fair value and
recognise the resulting gain or loss, if any, in profit or
loss.
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Our procedures in relation to the step acquisition of Top
Glory Group included:

We assessed the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent external valuer by
considering its qualification, relevant experience
and relationship with the Group.

We involved our internal valuation specialist in our
discussion with management and the independent
external valuer to understand and assess the
appropriateness of the methodologies used and
the assumptions and estimates applied in the (i)
re-measurement of previously held 45% equity
interest in Top Glory Group; (ii) the valuations of
identifiable intangible assets; and (iii) the business
value of Top Glory Group at the acquisition date.

We evaluated the reasonableness of the discount
rate by considering the weighted average cost of
capital and the risk profile of the investee.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FAEETEIE (8)
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BTSN RIERRETEIE (18)

Step acquisition of Top Glory Group (Continued)

Accounting for business combination requires the
Group to allocate the purchase price to the assets
acquired, liabilities assumed, and identified intangible
assets based on their estimated fair values at the date
of acquisition. The Group assessed the previously held
45% equity interest in Top Glory Group; the fair values
of the identifiable intangible assets; and the business
value of Top Glory Group at the acquisition date based
on an independent valuation report prepared by an
independent external valuer.

The Group recorded a corresponding re-measurement
gains of approximately RMB123.2 million. The
identified intangible assets of customer relationship,
trademark and goodwill recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as at the acquisition
date amounted to RMB30.1 million, RMB34.6 million
and RMB271.2 million, respectively.
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. We assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used including but not limited
to revenue growth rate, terminal growth rate,
attrition rate, contributory asset charge, royalty
rate and remaining useful life by comparing these
assumptions against relevant market data and
industry research.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FARETEIE (&)

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BTSN RIERARETEIE (8)

Step acquisition of Top Glory Group (Continued)

Management determined the fair value of customer
relationship and trademark using multi-period
excess earnings method and relief-from-royalty
method respectively, with the assistance of an
independent professional valuer which requires an
estimation of future results, a set of estimations and
a determination of key inputs, including the attrition
rate, contributory asset charge, royalty rate, remaining
useful life and discount rates.

In addition, the fair values of the 100% equity
interest and the previously held 45% equity interest
in Top Glory Group were determined by using the
discounted cash flow (“DCF’) approach and various
key assumptions and estimates including revenue
growth rate, discount rate and terminal growth rate.
The excess of consideration transferred and fair value
of previously held 45% equity interest over the fair
values of the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and
identified intangible assets is recorded as goodwill.
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. We tested the arithmetical accuracy on the
calculation of the fair values of identified net
assets, goodwill and intangible assets.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FARETEIE (&)

»
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BTSN RIERARETEIE (8)

Step acquisition of Top Glory Group (Continued)

We focused on this area because the re-measurement
gains and carrying values of the identifiable intangible
assets and goodwill are significant to the consolidated
financial statements and the valuation methodology
and key assumptions require the use of significant
judgements and estimates. These estimations are
also subject to uncertainties. Any changes to these
inputs may have significant impact on the fair value of
intangible assets recognised in the step acquisition.
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Based on the audit procedures performed, we consider
the methodology used in preparing the valuations
and the key assumptions were supportable in light of
available internal and other market evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’ s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor' s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor s report is Mr. Chow Shiu Hay, Antonio.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

BHETR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F— /1 F+_—H=+—HIFFE

Qo

Note 2019 2018
i —Z—hE —=2-N\EF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT AREBFT
Revenue Wz 5 8,602,321 6,735,931
Cost of sales THEM AR 6 (5,648,207) (4,348,211)
Gross profit EF 2,954,114 2,387,720
Other gains, net Hhm 358 7 445,194 248,469
Selling and marketing expenses HE RS iHEAS 6 (448,737) (183,499)
General and administrative expenses — M RATHE R 6 (516,701) (424,221)
Fair value gain on investment properties  &&E¥EANFER G 12 63,723 84,172
Fair value gain on investment properties  {tIFEHERIRISE T %
upon transfer from properties under BARBMENRTE
development for sales W 12 62,432 -
Operating profit REEF 2,560,025 2,112,641
Finance income FEEUA 9 122,486 95,025
Finance costs R AL A 9 (19,981) (71,662)
Finance income, net MBEUWAFEE 102,505 23,363
Share of (loss)/profit of investments FELIERE R E AR E
accounted for using the equity (518) aF 328
method, net 15 (21,545) 77,468
Profit before income tax PRFRISIRAEF 2,640,985 2,213,472
Income tax expense FrigfRM= 10 (1,089,325) (917,044)
Profit for the year FRiEF 1,551,660 1,296,428
Profit attributable to: THIAN L RELER -
Owners of the Company KRABMBEE 1,034,931 990,747
Non-controlling interests RS 516,729 305,681
1,551,660 1,296,428
Earnings per share for profit TRFIFMBERGERN
attributable to owners of the Mz SRR
Company for the year
- Basic and diluted (expressed in RMB —ERRE#E (USK
cents per share) AREBDERT) 31 29.14 27.90

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

L&t R RS BB M A — BRI EE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
aHZEBER

BE T NF+_H=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

: 2019 2018

—B—h#E “E-N\E
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Profit for the year FEAiEF 1,551,660 1,296,428
Other comprehensive loss Hith2EE#E
Item that may not be reclassified to AEAgGREMNDEEEmNIER
profit or loss
- Currency translation differences —EtsERERE (88,781) (218,452)
Total other comprehensive loss HthzmmHEesE 00000 ( 88,781) (218,452)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZENELEZE 1,462,879 1,077,976
Total comprehensive income THALREGZEKELLEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBIFFBEE 946,770 773,425
Non-controlling interests FEPERIM R 516,109 304,551
Total comprehensive income for the year FEREEINELEZE 1,462,879 1,077,976

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should it S 2 T U 2R B P B 5T — B
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SHEEREAER

As at 31 December 2019 2 —ZFE— N F+_H=+—H

Qo

Note 2019 2018
B —Z—hE —=2-N\EF
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARHEFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEREEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ BB R 11 259,152 221,300
Investment properties BB 12 1,025,004 803,899
Intangible assets mvVEE 13 332,252 —
Investments accounted for using A AR E
the equity method 15 654,872 700,294
Prepayments TE I 19 — 60,000
Deferred income tax assets FIEFRISIEE 16 834,614 459,833
3,105,894 2,245,326
Current assets MENEE
Completed properties held for sale FIEHENBETYE 17 3,037,052 2,133,818
Properties under development for sale FIEHENMEFYE 18 30,969,759 15,680,128
Contract assets BHEE 5 700,000 700,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEW I
and deposits Mk 19 2,595,926 3,371,544
Prepayments B FIB 19 1,858,769 1,053,610
Amounts due from joint ventures FEW & & 2 RIE 33 59,949 4,844
Amounts due from associates FEW =~ B FRIB 33 482,845 364,871
Amounts due from non- FEUS IR R R e TR IE
controlling interests 32 3,951,248 1,414,342
Income tax recoverable AU EIFR1SHR 788,393 312,821
Restricted cash ZIRHIRE 20 3,965,210 2,186,139
Cash and cash equivalents REMIREEEY 20 11,094,295 5,678,863
59,503,446 32,900,980
Total assets WEE 62,609,340 35,146,306
EQUITY Vi
Equity attributable to owners AT ERELER
of the Company
Share capital &N 21 139,632 139,632
Reserves 5 22 5,041,820 4,237,813
5,181,452 4,377,445
Non-controlling interests FEPES MR 2E 4,453,096 2,281,973
Total equity HERERS 9,634,548 6,665,418
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
SHEERER
RCE—NEF+_HF=+—H As at 31 December 2019

Qo

Note 2019 2018
Ff5E —Z—hE “E-N\E
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARBTT ARHEFIT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities JERENER
Borrowings B 23 4,694,786 4,912,751
Deferred income tax liabilities EEPTERARE 16 634,906 286,051
5329692 5198502
Current liabilities mENAaE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERIE 24 12,020,186 6,323,532
Borrowings B 23 12,087,907 6,146,930
Amounts due to non- FE(T IELER M TR TN IE
controlling interests 32 5,146,101 2,123,659
Amounts due to associates AR =NCTE | 33 485,280 66,000
Amounts due to joint ventures E{S & & EERIE 33 50,776 23,756
Contract liabilities =)=V 25 15,552,490 7,169,457
Income tax liabilities FRiSasE 2,302,360 1,428,752
47,645,100° = 23,282,086
Total liabilities = 52,974,792 28,480,888
Total equity and liabilities MR REE 62,609,340 35,146,306

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction E &0 E A & (5 R P BT B 5= — 1 BY
with the accompanying notes. o

The financial statements on pages 120 to 316 were approved forissue  FIHRE120E316BEMEHTHERED
by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2020 and were signed on its HESgR 2 2F=-A=+—HitE

behalf: P2 AU TESRREE .
E &Y WONG Yeuk Hung EHAS HUANG Ruoging
EZE Director B3 Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SHEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F— /1 F+_—H=+—HIFFE

Qo

Attributable to owners of the Company

NAFEE N
Non-
Share controlling Total
Note capital Reserves Total interests equity
izt B M s JRERIMER R
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AEEFT  ARBFR ARETR ARETT AR®T:
Balance at 1 January 2018 RIB-N\E
—B—BmEes 139,632 3,649,916 3,789,548 787,837 4,577,385
Comprehensive income 2HEKE
- Profit for the year —ERER — 990,747 990,747 305,681 1,296,428
Other comprehensive loss Hith2EESE
- Currency translation -BRERER
differences - (217,322) (217.322) (1,130) (218,452)
Total comprehensive income FREEWRER
for the year — 173,425 173,425 304,551 1,077,976
Transactions with owners BEEANRS
Change in ownership interests ~ {EEFIREEBER M1
in a subsidiary without —ZxNE AT REER
change of control ivp=) - 9,810 9,810 (28,350) (18,540)
Non-controlling interests arising ~ EEHB AT EER
from acquisitions Elzlle o
of subsidiaries - - - 285,493 285,493
Non-controlling interests arising D RUEEEN ISR
from step acquisitions - - - 238,914 238,914
Capital injection from non- S ERTE
controlling interests - - - 699,528 699,528
Dividends relating TR tERBEANRE
t0 2017 final — (106548 (106,548) — (106,548)
Dividends relating HIE—\FRHEMNEE
t0 2018 interim - (88,790) (88,790) - (88,790)
Total transactions with owners, EERRAEDEERA
recognised directly in equity MR F4%E - (185,528) (185,528) 1,195,585 1,010,057
Balance at 31 December 2018 ~ W=E—N\&E+-H=+-H
iFee 139,632 4237813 4,377,445 2,287,973 6,665,418
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
At mEER
B F T F+H=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

Attributable to owners of the Company

PYNGiE 2SN
Non-
Share controlling Total
Note capital Reserves Total interests equity
(i B ikt it JEERIMED EZEE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AEBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-h&E—B—BMEER 139,632 4,237,813 4,377,445 2,287,973 6,665,418
Comprehensive income 2EKE
~ Profit for the year — A — 1034931 1034931 516,729 1,551,660
Other comprehensive income  Hfti2E iz
- Currency translation -BRERES
differences . (88,161)  (88,161) (6200 (88,781)
Total comprehensive income  ERZEUNGEEE
for the year - 946,770 946,770 516,109 1,462,879
Transactions with owners BEEANRS
Change in ownership interests ~ ERFIRELENER THHEB
in subsidiaries without ARIPTE R EE)
change of control 274 — (36,215) (36,215) (785) (37,000)
Non-controlling interests WENBEASEE 271
arising from acquisitions BOFER I AR and &
of subsidiaries 212 - — - 1,565,755 1,565,755
Non-controlling interests ARUEES IR
arising from step
acquisitions 213 — — - 116,223 116,223
Capital injection from non- JFERINRRAE
controlling interests - - - 448,435 448,435
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 28 - - - (419,072) (419,072)
Dividends relating to 2018 final  E-E—N\FERPERNERE 34 - (106,548) (106,548) - (106,548)
Dividends paid to non- N E2led a0
controlling interests - - - (61,542) (61,542)
Total transactions with EERRARDEREA
owners, recognised gkt
directly in equity — (142,763)  (142,763) 1,649,014 1,506,251
Balance at 31 December 2019 HW-Z—-h&+-F=+-H
iFeT 139,632 5,041,820 5,181,452 4,453,096 9,634,548

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be it &S E R IE B BE M MY s — RS
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. & o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F— /1 F+_—H=+—HIFFE

Qo

Note 2019 2018
BisE —E-NE Z)N\F
RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETTT ARBFT
Cash flows from operating activities RS EERER
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations KER/ (M) RE 358 26 2,778,560 (1,624,343)
Income tax paid BEIER (818,465) (631,728)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEBIR/ (B R 38
operating activities 1,960,095 (2,256,071)
Cash flows from investing activities BREEERER
Additions of property, plant and equipment HEME - MEKRSRE (44,732) (22,798)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENZE  BERZEMSTIE
plant and equipment 26 4,841 647
Capitalised subsequent expenditure on —BRENENEERSERER
an investment property 12 (1,097) (204)
Cash acquired from acquisition and step WEE R DR EEINE A B P
acquisition of subsidiaries, B& HBRREA0
net of cash payment 27 242,696 (442,095)
Net cash inflows in respect of the MHENRBEASNRESRAEE
disposal of subsidiaries 28 99,270 —
Net cash inflows in respect of the disposal of HERFHEEERAEN
assets and liabilities held for sales BERNFEE - 369,731
Payments for investments in joint ventures LEREEREMNN 15 (10,000) (500)
Payments for investments in associates RERBERBNR 15 (179,100) (126,699)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—REE AT A 24,380 -
Advances to non-controlling interests SRR BN (2,781,444) (711,319)
Advances to associates [El=fN=IE (47,300) (79,763)
(Advances)/repayments of advances (AEELERN) R
to joint ventures HETERR (55,105) 48,258
Loans due from joint ventures EWEELENER - (4,436)
Loan due from an associate R — KIS RBINER - —
Loans due from third parties EWE=HNER 210,000 (207,620
Interest received from bank deposits RITHERERFE 65,234 34,945
Net cash used in investing activities RETHMARETE (2,472,357) (1,141,913)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
aHEAERER
BE T NF+_H=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

Qo

Note 2019 2018
BizE “E-hE “E-N\E
RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARBFT
Cash flows from financing activities REEHRER
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ZIRHBIRERL,/ (En) 57,545 (97,800)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREMERFIERIE 7,663,125 4,572,845
Repayment of bank and other borrowings 1ELfE1T7§ZE@1aTA (5,934,044) (3,037,142)
Issuance of 6.375% Senior Notes due 2019 BITZE—NFHHI6.375%
BEEE — 2,277,435
Issuance of 11% Senior Notes due 2020 BITZETDEIEI11%
BEEE - 1,310,388
Repayment of 7% Senior Notes due 2018 BEZ—-N\EIHT%ELEE - (1,799,231)
Payment for repurchase of 6.375% BRI ZE2—NFFH6.375%

Senior Notes due 2019 fE%T%E’Jﬁ"A’ — (6,748)
Issuance of 13.5% Senior Notes due 2020 BITZEZTZFIHI13.5%

BEE % 1,697,536 —
Issuance of 9.875% Senior Notes due 2021 BT —FEIH9.875%

faf‘ﬁ—r% 1,201,353 —
Issuance of 11.5% Senior Notes due 2020 BTS2 FEE1L5%

BAERHE 1,746,810 -
Additional issuance of 11% Senior %E%?"‘ﬁ_v “ZEHH11%

Notes due 2020 BERER 726,546 —
Repayment of 8% Private Notes due 2019 BEZZ-NEFIHWIMEEE (108,675) —
Repayment of 6.375% Senior Notes due 2019 BEZZ—NFHEH6.375%

BEZE (2,021,729) —
Proceeds from capital injection from REFEERIM R T EPTERIE

non-controlling interests 448,435 699,528
Payments for acquisition of ownership interests — TEIFHIEEZENER TIE

in subsidiaries without change in control RSB A BB RN (37,000) —
Advance from non-controlling interests PYSE (= le s 1,484,858 2,007,245
Advances from joint ventures KEEERERR 27,020 129,241
Advances from associates RBEEREEN 419,280 66,000
Interest paid BT E (1,289,256) (496,389)
Dividend paid BEUKRE (184,035) (149,908)
Net cash generated from financing activities MERBMERERE 5,897,769 5,475,464
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERREEEYIEMFE 5,385,507 2,077,480
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ EHINRERFEEEY 5,678,863 3,587,770
Currency translation differences EHEEREL 29,925 13,613
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year EXRNRERBELEEY 20 11,094,295 5,678,863
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in it EHIRES MEREEBENM s — R
conjunction with the accompanying not o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H IR R

GENERAL INFORMATION

Redco Properties Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 14 July 2008 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Cayman
Companies Law. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together with the Company, referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in property development,
property management services, property investment services
and healthcare services in the People s Republic of China (the
“PRC’). The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK’).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties which are carried at fair value.

—RER

NetEERBRAR (TEXABND M
TEEN\FLtE+HBEHREEER
BEHESABAEMRIIAERREER
BERE o A BIAEE M R ik
# Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

ERBD—RREZERRBDREM B
NE) (EEFTABDRBEAAER)) T
SEPEARKNE (THE) KEEY
FRE MEEERY MERER
BREERT - ZARNEBHMER
ZERBERAR (&R TR E
o

MR BEERN  REEHEBRET
MARE(TARE) 25 -

FEGHEREE

KM ER PR RE ST HMBREMN
RRNIESERIE - FIFERE
REF BRINFIEZBRFE—HERM
RAZFHR -

2.1 RUEE

FABEHYBREDRES
BEstAg((EREHMA
) RMBHEBYHREE]
(TEBMBREERN ) REE
NEMEBI(F622F) 2 K BER
TR - oM BRENUESE
PRAERE > LR ATEA
RN EVENENRHEED
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S HMATBIRRMEE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEHEBREEGE)
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RHEEE)
2.1.1 Going concern 211 FFEEERE
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total RZE—-—AE+ZA
borrowings of RMB16,782,693,000, amongst =+—HB XEEH

which, the current bank borrowings amounted to
RMB12,087,907,000. At the same date, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of RMB11,094,295,000.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group failed to comply with
a restrictive undertaking clause set out in the loan
agreements in connection with the interest coverage
ratio for certain bank borrowings approximately
RMB2,577,920,000 (the “Relevant Borrowings’). Such
non-compliance constituted an event of default under
the loan agreements of the Relevant Borrowings. In
addition, pursuant to the bank loan agreements of
certain of the Group’s bank borrowings, the lenders
have the rights to demand for immediate repayment
should there be any default events happened in
respect of other borrowings of the Group. On 25 and
26 November 2019, the Group successfully negotiated
with the relevant banks in relation to the Relevant
Borrowings and obtained written agreements to
revise the restrictive undertaking of interest coverage
ratio for the periods ended 30 June 2019 and 31
December 2019 and to waive their rights arising
from the non-compliance under the original clauses
of the loan agreements. In addition, based on the
communications with the banks related to the bank
borrowings with cross-default clauses and email
confirmations obtained, the directors considered
that the banks will not exercise their rights under
the relevant cross-default clauses given the Group
has successfully obtained waivers and revision of the
restrictive undertaking of the Relevant Borrowings as
mentioned above.

EMBESARE
16,782,693,0007t > H A
BIARIRITEMEZREA/AR
#12,087,907,000 7T °
BAH> xEEBEARE
11,094,295,000 st B3R &
RIZEEEY) -

A TE-NEARB=T
H’> KREBEXREETE
TR 5 B 80 B9 PR 1 1 K
S HEOARE
2,577,920,0007t B9 & F
IRITE (TR R & =)
HFEBEXER ° RiE
HRAERNERRE > B
RS IREERHENSE
i o th4h > IRIBAER 2
IRITERZETIRITER
ik WAREEEMER
BETMBOEH S BX
ANBREERIIENER - 1?
—E-NE+—BZ+H
BERZ+7<H ’» NEERK
ITHEIAEREIRTTRUABRAfE R
ETER  WESEERH
ELUESTHE_S—hE
ANEZTEEZE-NE
+ZB=+—HBLHEY
BB E X R G M A
5 MR ENHERE
BRTEAEHEEEESE
BIRER) o tESN » IRYRERIR
TREAR X ELERAE
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AIRTR A ZIREAARZ
XEBHMERITHREZ#
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NEEERINEISE R I
1EETHERARITERAIBR S
KGR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going concern (Continued)

In early 2020, after the rapid outbreak of Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak’”), a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the PRC. The
Group has comprehensively evaluated its impact on
sales activities and construction works in various
cities. The construction and sales progress of the
Group may be exposed to short-term volatility
because of the outbreak mentioned above. Under
the premise of protecting the health and safety of
customers and employees, the Group has gradually
resumed its operation since mid-February 2020 in
accordance with the local governments policies.
In light of the negative impact brought upon by the
COVID-19 outbreak, it may cause a short-term impact
on all sectors and the real estate industry has also
been affected by the short-term psychological impact
of the public on the epidemic. Such impact will
depends on the duration and development trend of
the epidemic situation.

In view of such circumstances, the directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources
of financing in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. The directors have reviewed the Group's
cash flow projections prepared by management,
which cover a period of twelve months from 31
December 2019. Certain plans and measures have
been taken to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to
improve its financial position which include, but not
limited to, the following:

2

TEEHEREE ()

2.1

RREE (]

2.1.1 JFAEACE R (1)

—E-NEHEERFES
ERR _ESEYRR
18 2% (TCOVID-19 18 2 )
%> — &I ITERM RIEH
EHBRTESH > T
BEET AEEEMHE
LA E RS R 2
BTN EEH 2T
fif o REAZERKLIHE
EETEERERIRES
FIREEKE - ERERE
HEBNERERZEZWAE]
BT AEFE_Z_F
E_RaRE REE
BT BB & RS
B o $Z X COVID-19 )% 3%
BRameE oI
BITEENEHREE m
EMETENSETAR
WG IENEHRNIEE &
FRE 2 - ERAS EBECR
REIENFEREREE
85 o

B LR 0 EEEET
HREEEERE B
BERFEKER B8
BE BAERZ RIMH
B ERBUREATAE
BHRR - EFCERHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going concern (Continued)

(i)

The Group has complied with restrictive
undertaking of interest coverage ratio of
the Relevant Borrowings of approximately
RMB2,426,049,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 under the revised terms of the
loan agreements.

The Group will closely monitor the process
of pre-sales and the construction of its
property development projects to ensure that
the relevant properties sold under pre-sale
arrangement are completed on schedule as
planned, the completion certificate from the
relevant government authority are successfully
obtained and delivered to the customers under
the expected timeframe, such that the Group is
able to generate sufficient earnings to comply
with the interest coverage ratio as specified in
the existing agreements of the Relevant Bank
Borrowings. Moreover, the Group will also
monitor its level of bank borrowings and interest
rate changes. The Group may adjust the pace of
the development of new property projects from
time to time to enhance the Group s cash flows
and reduce interest expenses.

The Group will continue to monitor its future
compliance with the covenant requirements.
In respect to the covenant requirements of the
Relevant Borrowings, the Group is required to
report to the banks semi-annually.

BB RRIEE

2 IFEFSHBEREE (8

2.1 RREEE)

2.1.1 JFAEACE R (1)

(i)

it
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going concern (Continued)

Should the Group anticipate that they are unable
to comply with the covenant requirements,
management of the Company will discuss and
negotiate with the respective banks and will
seek to further revise the terms and covenant
requirements or obtain a waiver of compliance
with the covenant requirements from the banks.
The Group will also consider to early repay the
Relevant Borrowings with its cash surplus.

In light of the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group
anticipates a decline in revenue and cash
collection in the first quarter of year 2020 when
compared with the corresponding period of last
year. However, a number of local governments in
China have introduced some favourable policies
to stimulate the local property markets. The
Group is closely monitoring the development of
COVID-19 and will continue to assess the impact
of the epidemic on the Group' s operations from
time to time and adjust its sales and marketing
strategy for its property sales to generate
sufficient cash from its operations.

2
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2.1

stBURELE (8)

RREE (]

2.1.1 FFEAEEE (18)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHIAFERRM T
2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEEHEGE)
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RHEEE)

2.1.1 Going concern (Continued)

(iii) The Group has undrawn bank facilities of
approximately RMB2,060,847,000 for the
settlement of capital expenditures of the existing
property development projects. In addition,
the Group will negotiate with banks to obtain
project loans to finance the construction cost of
new property development projects. Based on
the experience of the Group, the directors are
confident that they will be able to draw down
from such facilities and obtain new borrowings
from banks and other financial institutions, as
and when needed.

Notwithstanding the above, whether management is
able to achieve its plans and measures as described
above, which incorporate assumptions about future
events and conditions, and consequently be able
to generate adequate financing and operating cash
flows to continue as a going concern would depend
upon, among other things, the Group’ s operating
performance to generate adequate operating cash
flows and earnings from the sales and delivery of
property units in the expected timeframe, continuous
availability of existing bank facilities and the
availability of additional financing. The directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group’ s cash flow
projections which cover a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2019 and have
considered the possible changes in its operating
performance. They are of the opinion that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due
in the coming twelve months from 31 December
2019. Accordingly, the directors consider that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIHBERRMEE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IFEFSHBEREE (8
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RHEEE)
2.1.2 Accounting policies 2.1.2 BFHHE
(a) New standard, amendments to standards and (a) AEERM I

interpretations adopted by the Group

The following new standard, amendments to
standards and interpretations are mandatory
for the first time for the financial year beginning
1 January 2019 and currently relevant to the
Group:

A~ ERIBEFT &
EEd

LUFBOHT 2R ~ 2%
RIBYE ST A R e2 12
BRI NF—
R — B BB R R
FEE R R

W RERARER
B

Amendments to HKFRS 9

SRV EENE IREFTR

HKFRS 16

SRR EENE 1698

HK (IFRIC) Int-23

58 (BRHBEREREEZES)
—BEFHE 235

Amendments to HKAS 19

EEGENE 19FETER

Amendments to HKAS 28

SR G ERF 28BS A

Amendments to HKFRSs

SRV BREEIETAR

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
AEamERENTRIRIEA

Leases

HE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

PRSIRERIZAY A FEE 1

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
FHENEST ~ BRTAEE

Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures
KRERHERS RaERE

Annual Improvements 2015 - 2017 Cycle
SERVBREEN S —AFE_T—tFERFENE

AR EREST
R 2 ¥E 0 TR AN
EHER S EAME
S keEEHAER
GHPYFBHRERLE
EvN-7Z K

The Group has adopted these new standards,
amendments of standards and interpretations
and the adoption of these new standards,
amendments of standards and interpretations
do not have significant impacts on the Group’ s
consolidated financial statements.
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2.1.2 Accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRIEE

TEEHEREE ()

2.1 RREEE)
2.1.2 BE1EE (48)

New standards, amendments to standards and
annual improvements not yet adopted

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and annual improvement have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2019 and have not been

early adopted by the Group:

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
ZE - N\FHBREMSIELR
Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
EBGHENFE IR
ERAGENESFEIT R
Amendments to HKFRS 3
SRV BREENE IFETT X
HKFRS 17
EBUBREAERE 175
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

SRMBREENE 109
HABE GRS 28 B4

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

SERMFREENEIT
SRS ENE IR

BBMBREERE TIET A

Revised Conceptual Framework

for Financial Reporting
EST AT RS BSHER
Definition of Material

BARZER

Definition of a Business

EH TR

Insurance Contracts

R &R

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

RN EEHEBE AT
BELEBEEHERHE

Hedge Accounting

Bn Rt

(b)

o R B W 2 T
A~ ERIBEFT &
R EEE

DUR 2RI ~ 2281
MEST AR FEEN
EEEMERRRL
“BE-AFE—-A—
ARBNTEFEE
NEXM BARER
TR PR IESE
i AE Bl R ZE BIME ET
i
Effective
for accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RUTHASZ %
FEME AR AR

1 January 2020

—2=%5—A—H
1 January 2020

-t 5

1 January 2020

—E-=F—HF—H
1 January 2021
2 —%—HF—H
To be

determined

e

1 January 2020

i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Accounting policies (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards
and annual improvements not yet adopted
(Continued)

The directors of the Group are in the process of
assessing the financial impact of the adoption
of the above new standards, amendments to
standards and annual improvement. The Group
will adopt the new standards, amendments to
standards and annual improvement when they
become effective.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2
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2.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.

2.2.3 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification
depends on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor, rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement. The Group has only joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost
in the consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

2.2.4 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’ s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group' s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’ s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.10.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEEHEGE)
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 2.2 EHEREAKREDGEE(E)

(Continued)

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests 225 G m &

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHIAFERRM T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEEHEGE)
(CONTINUED)
2.3 Business combinations 2.3 EEaH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

equity interests issued by the Group;

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest' s proportionate share of the
acquired entity s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:
consideration transferred;

amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (Continued)

over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’ s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’ s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investe€ s net
assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5 Segment reporting

2.6

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM’). The CODM, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Directors that make strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency’). The Company s functional
currency is Hong Kong dollars (“HKS”), and the
consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the Company s and the Group’ s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, within “finance income”
and “finance costs”. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a net basis within “other
gains, net’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

. income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvement

HEYEEE B EHAS I AR (UBUEE A )
Furniture and office equipment 3to 5years

Y-S VNS 3ES5HF

Motor vehicles 3to5years

HE 3ESHF

Building 50 years

1BF 504

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’ s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’ s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These
are included in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields
and are not occupied by the Group. Investment property
is initially measured at cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently,
they are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are
presented in profit or loss.

2.9 Intangible assets
2.9.1 Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units (“CGUS”) that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the operating
segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)
2.9.2 Trademark and customer relationship

Trademark and customer relationship acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

2.9.3 Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited
useful life using the straight-line method over the
following periods:

Trademark 10 years
[ELE 105
Customer relationship 7.5 years
EFRRBMA 755

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEEHEGE)

(CONTINUED)

2.11 Properties under development for sale and completed Q11 HEHENBREPMERSE

properties for sale

Properties under development for sale and completed
properties held for sale are included in current assets at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Development cost
of property comprises construction costs, depreciation of
machinery and equipment, amortisation of land use rights,
borrowing costs on qualifying assets and professional fees
incurred during the development period. Upon completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held
for sale.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion, or by management
estimates based on prevailing marketing conditions.

Properties under development for sale are classified
as current assets unless the construction period of the
relevant property development project is expected to
complete beyond normal operating cycle.

2.12 Financial assets

(a)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
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SHMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model
in which the investment is held. For investments
in equity instruments, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in “other gains,
net’ together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are recognised in
“General and administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive
income: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
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BHIRERRIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)  Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income:
(Continued)

When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in “other
gains, net”. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in “other gains,
net” and impairment losses are recognised in
“General and administrative expenses’ in the
statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit of loss: Assets that do
not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value through profit of
loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit of loss is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within “other gains, net” in the
period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(@)

Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group' s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in “other
gains, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other receivables and deposits, the Group applies
a forward looking basis and the expected credit losses
associated and adopted three-stages approach to
assess the impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts
to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy
or the termination of a contract.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
properties sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
description of the Group’ s impairment policies is set out in
Note 3.1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.16 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.17 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.20 Senior notes

Senior notes issued by the Company that contain both
liability and early redemption option (which is not closely
related to the host contract) are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. At the date of issue,
both the liability and early redemption option components
are recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the senior
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The early redemption option is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior
notes are allocated to the liability and early redemption
option components in proportion to their relative fair
values. Transaction costs relating to the early redemption
option are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the debt component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the senior notes using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(CONTINUED)

TEEHEREE ()

2.21 Provisions 2.21 #4E&

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’ s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a)  Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of properties and
services performed in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown, net of discounts and after
eliminating sales with the Group companies. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’ s activities, as
described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Sales of properties and provision of services

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of
the asset is transferred to the customer. Depending
on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the asset may transfer
over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is
transferred over time if the Group’ s performance:

. provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

. creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

. do not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the assets and service transfer over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on the
Group' s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the contract
costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Sales of properties and provision of services (Continued)

For property development and sales contract for
which the control of the property is transferred at
a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the physical possession or the legal
title of the completed property and the Group has
present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for the
effect of a financing component if it is significant.

For provision of construction services, the Group's
performance creates or enhances an asset or work
in progress that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced, thus the Group satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue
over time, by reference to completion of the specific
transaction assessed on the basis of the actual costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

Sales of goods

Revenue are recognised when control of the
product has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customers, the customer has
accepted the products and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because why the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

2.25 Employee benefits
(a)  Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held in a separate trustee-
administered fund. Both the Group and the
employees are required to contribute 5% of the
employees relevant income up to a maximum of
HKS$1,500 per employee per month.

The Group also participates in an employee social
security plan (the “Plan”) as required by the
regulations in the PRC. The Group is required to make
welfare contributions to the Plan which is based
on certain percentage of the employees relevant
income.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

(b)  Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus plan is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

2

TEEHEREE ()

2.24 FIRIBA

NEBRABBESRMEERE
MERBERMNKET UG
B HEREERENTHE
ERIFRIN - SMEERETHE
EMmMs’ BERMNEXEZEEBAR
TR E ERAREFE EH0FRR
BEEER) -

2.25 EE4EF
(a) EBUHRTEEF
AEBDETBRIAS

AR E (MeEEst
g))) - RETSENEE
HEYNRSEANEEES
A - AEEKEEIA
B {E SRR A BT 5%
MO HRERAEASE
B 1,50087T °

AEBTMREPENERR
RESHEEEHERIES
8 (T5t81)) - XEERR
EERBBANETES
EE R ot 81 {F i #3871 (K o

AEBRN A HERERE
HMAMETE - BRMHR
Nt R b
RrHESY o TR HRCRE
IR 0PI HUR AR SR AR B
D REE °

(b) TEAL:1E/

RAEEBERESRHRE
MEBERITEAENHES
£ BEREERER R
stE > TEALSBIRYTRHEAAL
AR BERE o

TRERTEALStEIR B &R
REAAFN LRTE
RS BRI E

@it -

160

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2019



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHIAFERRM T
2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEEHEGE)
(CONTINUED)
2.26 Financial guarantee liabilities 2.26 HHBEREE

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to
banks, financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of
subsidiaries to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because all
guarantees are agreed on arm’'s length terms, and the
value of the premium agreed corresponds to the value
of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for the future
premiums is recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group’ s liabilities under such guarantees are measured
at the higher of the initial amount, less amortisation of fees
recognised, and the best estimate of the amount required
to settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined
based on experience of similar transactions and history of
past losses, supplemented by management s judgement.
The fee income earned is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any increase
in the liability relating to guarantees is reported in the
consolidated income statement within general and
administrative expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised
as part of the cost of the investment in the financial
statements of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.27 Leases

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant
portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not
transferred to the Group as lessee were classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based
on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as
a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financialrisk factors

The Group s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), liquidity risk
and credit risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’ s financial performance. Risk management is
carried out by management of each individual entity within
the Group.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of
the transactions settled in RMB. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets and liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity' s functional
currency. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk primarily with respect to HKS and United States
dollars (“USS).

The Group's assets and liabilities, and transactions
arising from its operations primarily do not expose it
to material foreign exchange risk. Other than certain
bank balances and bank borrowings, the Group’s
assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in
RMB. The Group generates RMB from sales in the PRC
to meet its liabilities denominated in RMB. The Group
does not hedge its exposure to the foreign currencies.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, certain of the
Group’ s cash and bank balances were denominated
in HKS and USS and Australian Dollar (“AUD”), details
of which have been disclosed in Note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
was exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily
with respect to the potential effects on profit
or loss included the impacts from translation in
intercompany balances which are not denominated in
functional currency of respective group companies.

RMB depreciation against HKS and USS during the
year is the major reason for the exchange differences
recognised by the Group. Further appreciation of HKS
and USS against RMB will affect the Group’ s financial
position and results of operations.

The following table shows that, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against HKS, with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year change, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of RMB denominated
amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries in group
entities which their functional currencies are HKS.
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RMB 000
ARBF T

Post-tax profit increase/(decrease)
RMB strengthened by 5%
RMB weakened by 5%
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42,495
(42,495)

77,344
(77,344)

The USS denominated borrowings (Note 24) is in the
Company which functional currency is HKS, since
HKS is pegged to USS, there is no significant foreign
exchange risk with respect to USS to the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Except for bank deposits with variable interest, the
Group has no other significant interest-bearing assets.

The Group s exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its borrowings from bank.
Bank borrowings of variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The senior notes at a
fixed rate expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The Group has not hedged its cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk. The interest rate and terms of
repayments of borrowings are disclosed in Note 23.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
to the senior notes resulted from the changes in
market interest rates. Moreover, given the stability of
the interest rate in the recent financial market, in the
opinion of the directors, the exposure of the senior
notes to fair value interest rate risk is considered to
be low. Therefore no sensitivity analysis is performed.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
to interest-bearing assets resulted from the changes
in interest rates, because the interest rates of bank
deposits are not expected to change significantly.

BB RRIEE

3 MBERERE)
3.1 MBEKEEER (&)

(i)

R RER L FEFIER

oo
KA

FRIRTT IR S RERI R 5t
Boh AEETEHMSE
RETBEE °

REBAZFREHE
R EERBHRITER
FRIRTT AR E R EE A
RRERFRERE o #%E
EM Rt BHBARERE
AEEBEATENER
B o AREE I EE P EIT
ERRATFENERERE
BRRBIR R R AR BRI
BEIHMIsE23 ©

EEER  hEH XS
U EHELEERESE
ERFTE oI BN
HEMBBINERNRBE
M EBERA BEERE
BY A FEHN KRR
Bt » WEEITEURE D
#r o

R TREFIRTT I RUATA
TEHEREKS * BE
BN XEs gt
BEEELEEATE -

NEMEERERAR 2019 FERE

165



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

3
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(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued) (i) HEHAERAFEFER
& (48)
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, if interest rates on RIE2E—NERZZE—N
borrowings at floating rates had been 100 basis points E+ZA=+—H" 14
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, FEEBHMNELER T
the post-tax profit and capitalised interest for the FHI001EERL > MATBEH
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 would have HEBRFAE  AEE
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(if)  Liquidity risk (iii) mENE T /A

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total
borrowings of RMB16,782,693,000, amongst
which, the current bank borrowings amounted to
RMB12,087,907,000. At the same date, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of RMB11,094,295,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MBRAKREREE)
3.1 HBEKRER (&)

(iii)  TRENE = E R (4E)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, the Group failed to comply with
a restrictive undertaking clause set out in the loan
agreements in connection with the interest coverage
ratio for certain bank borrowings approximately
RMB2,577,920,000 (the “Relevant Borrowings’). Such
non-compliance constituted an event of default under
the loan agreements of the Relevant Borrowings. In
addition, pursuant to the bank loan agreements of
certain of the Group s bank borrowings, the lenders
have the rights to demand for immediate repayment
should there be any default events happened in
respect of other borrowings of the Group. On 25 and
26 November 2019, the Group successfully negotiated
with the relevant banks in relation to the Relevant
Borrowings and obtained written agreements to
revise the restrictive undertaking of interest coverage
ratio for the periods ended 30 June 2019 and 31
December 2019 and to waive their rights arising
from the non-compliance under the original clauses
of the loan agreement. In addition, based on the
communications with the banks related to the bank
borrowings with cross-default clauses and email
confirmations obtained, the directors considered
that the banks will not exercise their rights under
the relevant cross-default clauses given the Group
has successfully obtained waivers and revision of the
restrictive undertaking of the Relevant Borrowings as
mentioned above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

In view of such circumstances, the directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources
of financing in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. The directors have reviewed the Group’s
cash flow projections prepared by management,
which cover a period of twelve months from 31
December 2019. Certain plans and measures have
been taken to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to
improve its financial position are summarised in Note
2.1.1 of these consolidated financial statements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet dates to the
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can
be required to pay.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the
bank's sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash
outflow based on the earliest period in which the
entity can be required to pay, that is if the lenders
were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis
for other bank borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 BMERKREEGE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBRKEZR (&)
(iii)  Liguidity risk (Continued) (iii)  FEEL R (%)
o Between Between
On Less than land 2and
demand 1year 2 years 5years Total
REX LR1IE 1E28 2E5E fzt
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AREFT ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR®
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE
+ZB=+-H
Term loans subject to repayment Bﬁﬁﬁuﬂ% BT
on demand clause ity 131,683 - - - 131,683
Bank borrowings and RITER &ﬂ SHES
interest payments - 6,940,658 1,505,629 2,180,303 10,626,590
Senior notes and BAZERNENT
interest payments - 6,063,628 1,294,894 - 1,358,522
Trade and other payables BAREMEMNTE
(excluding non-financial (FEEFERaR)
liabilities) - 10,532,426 - - 10,532,426
Amounts due to BRI R
non-controlling interests 5,146,101 - - - 5,146,101
Amounts due to associates EABEABTE 485,280 - - - 485,280
Amounts due to jointventures S ECENE 50,776 - - - 50,776
5,813,840 23,536,712 2,800,523 2,180,303 34,331,378
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MBRAKREREE)
3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBREKER (&)
(iii)  Liguidity risk (Continued) (iii)  TRENE = E R (4E)
o Between Between
On Less than land 2 and
demand 1year 2 years 5years Total
BEX bR1E 1828 1E55 st
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AEEFT  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\E
+ZB=+-H
Term loans subject to repayment ~ HEREREEER
on demand clause NEHER 150,268 - - - 150,268
Bank borrowings and FITRRBA S
interest payments - 4,405,798 3,221,994 526,503 8,154,295
Senior notes and BEEBERMEMT
interest payments — 2,266,017 1,517,228 — 3,183,245
Trade and other payables A REMENTE
(excluding non-financial (FEEFERAaR)
liabilities) - 5,508,775 — — 5,508,775
Amounts due to B R
non-controlling interests 2,123,659 - - - 2,123,659
Amounts due to jointventures  EIEECENE 23,756 - - - 23,756
Amounts due to associates FEfHEATIE 66,000 - - - 66,000
2,363,683 12,180,590 4,739,222 526,503 19,809,998
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the term loans with a
repayment on demand clause based on agreed
repayment schedules set out in the loan agreements.
The amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates.

Qo

BB RRIEE

3 HBEEBKREREE)
3.1 MBEKER(E)
(iii) FEE LA (4E)

TREIIMEREREE
B ERERIREER
R PR 17 E R ET B 1F
HEVEIEDHT - BRAEER
BEREGHONKFEIF
BATRR o

Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
DRR1E 1E2F 2FE58F “act
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETRT AR®ETT
31 December 2019 —E-NEF
+-A=+—H 136,802 — — 136,802
31 December 2018 —E-N\EF
+ZA=+—H 31,698 130,479 - 162,177

The amounts have not included financial guarantee
contracts:

. which the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee for loans
procured by the purchasers of the Group's
properties (Note 30). Such guarantees terminate
upon the earlier of (i) the transfer of the real
estate ownership certificate to the purchaser
which will generally occur within an average
period of six months to three years from the
completion of the guarantee registration; or
(ii) the satisfaction of mortgage loans by the
purchasers of the properties;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iij)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

(iv)

. which the Group makes for the loan facility of
a subsidiary of Power Out International Ltd.,
a joint venture of the Group (Note 30). Such
guarantees terminate upon the repayment of
cease of the facility.

The Group considers that it is more likely than
not that no amount will be payable under the
arrangement.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade and other receivables and
deposits, contract assets, amounts due from joint
ventures, associates and non-controlling interests
and loans due from joint ventures (included in
investments accounted for using the equity method).

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade receivables, other receivables,
contract assets, other financial assets at amortised
costs and amounts due from joint ventures,
associates and non-controlling interests represent the
Group’ s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales are made to customers with an appropriate
financial strength and appropriate percentage
of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables and contract assets to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a large number of counterparties and customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MBRAKREREE)
3.1 HBEKRER (&)

(iv) 155 & (4)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iv) ~ Credit risk (Continued)

For other receivables and deposits, management
makes periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables and deposits based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The directors
of the Company believe that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of other receivables and deposits.

All the bank deposits are placed with banks with
sound credit ratings to mitigate the risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks
in connection with the customers’ borrowing
of mortgage loans to finance their purchase of
properties for an amount up to 70% of the total
purchase price of the property. Detailed disclosure of
these guarantees is made in Note 30(a). If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage loan during
the guarantee period, the bank holding the guarantee
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
amount under the loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is
able to retain the customers deposit and resell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to
the bank. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is largely
mitigated.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iv) ~ Credit risk (Continued)

Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

internal credit rating
external credit rating

actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the borrower s ability to meet its obligations

actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of individual property owner or
the borrower

significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the individual property
owner or the same borrower

significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including
changes in the payment status of borrowers in
the Group and changes in the operating results
of the borrower.

Credit risk of cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash

To manage this risk arising from cash and
bank deposits, the Group only transacts with
reputable commercial banks which are all high-
credit-quality financial institutions. There has
been no recent history of default in relation to
these financial institutions. The expected credit
loss of cash and bank balances is close to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iv) ~ Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk of trade receivables and contract
assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for trade receivables
and contract assets. The Group considers the
credit risk characteristics and the days past
due to measure the expected credit losses. The
expected losses rate is minimal, given there is
no history of significant defaults from customers
and insignificant impact from forward-looking
estimates.

The Group monitors the outstanding debts from
its customers individually. Based on historical
repayment trend, there is no correlation
between the risk of default occurring and the
collection past-due status as long as there is
no significant change in the credit rating of the
customers. The Group's loss arising from risk of
default and time value of money is negligible.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iv) ~ Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk of other receivables and deposits

The Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its other receivables and deposits carried
at amortised cost and adopted three-stages
approach to assess the impairment.

As at 31 December 2019, the loss allowance
provision was RMB65,260,000 (2018: RMB50,260,000).

Credit risk of amounts due from joint ventures,
associates and non-controlling interests and
loans due from joint ventures

The Group assesses on a forward looking basic
the expected credit losses associated with its
amounts due from joint ventures, associates
and non-controlling interests and loans due
from joint ventures. Carried at amortised cost
and adopted three-stages approach to assess
the impairment. Those parties have a low risk
of default and a capacity to meet contractual
cash flows. The expected losses rate is minimal,
given there is no history of significant defaults
and insignificant impact from forward-looking
estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group' s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

BB RRIEE

MHRRERE (8)
3.2 BXEKRERE

FEREEEANERD AR
EAEEEEEZEE UAR
BR[Ol 3 K 23 H th A s AE R
ATREN mREFRENE

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. AR EE AR ©

The Group manages the capital structure and makes REEEEE RGBT RBRL
adjustment to it in light of changes in economic condition. EARRE EAFL AT o

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, AT RBEERERE > K&
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to B EARBIRNT TRENR

shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt or to obtain bank and
other borrowing.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. Gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and bank balance (including cash and cash equivalent
and restricted cash). Total capital is calculated as total
equity, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus
net debt. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2019 and 2018
were as follows:

o
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2019 2018

—Z—hEF —=2—N\EF

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

ARETT ARHEFIT

Total borrowings (Note 23) fERABEE (M95E23) 16,782,693 11,059,681
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERIREEEY

and restricted cash (Note 20) R ZBRGIR % (M5E20) (15,059,505) (7,865,002)

Net debt B P8 1,723,188 3,194,679

Total equity T ABER 9,634,548 6,665,418

Total capital HEER 11,357,736 9,860,097

Gearing ratio BEAMEE 15% 32%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by level of the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value. The different levels are defined
as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The fair values of the trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits, cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
amounts due from non-controlling interests, amounts
due from joint ventures, amounts due from associates,
trade and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
interests, amounts due to joint ventures and amounts due
to associates approximate their carrying amounts due to
their short term maturities.

See Note 12 for disclosures of the investment properties
that is measured at fair value.

All the resulting fair value estimates are included in level 3
of the fair value hierarchy.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

3

MHEEEEE ()

3.3

AT

TRIRBEER EZTAREE
NTENEBAESROTRA
TEFENEREE - BRF
RFEWMT

RIS EREERNE
BRRECRERE) (B
—#R) o

EREENERNER
(BMEH) iz ENaE
BITE) IERBAE(F
—ARARERIN) (B
R o

WIFRERTBR TS ER
FHNEENERENAA
EERATHEHAE)
(B=M) o

B 7 EURIE ~ EfthEURIR
kEE s RERREEEY
ZIRFIRE ~ BULIEZERIMERE
mARIE ~ B EERERIE
BUEHEATMRE  BHRHE
A RRIE ~ FE(S IR M1
mAE S BN EEREREAEN
RENBERBTRRNATE
HEHRIERS  RASHE
HAPREUE o

BB ATESFENREY X
WEE AEREMEL2 -

PRE AT EMGSHEREIMAR
TEERE=R -

FRE— ZR=HZEL
o

178

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2019



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Valuation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair
value with changes in the fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The fair value of
investment properties were determined by using valuation
technique and management updates their assessment
of the fair value of the investment properties, taking into
account the key valuation assumptions. Details of the
judgments and assumptions have been disclosed in Note
12.

4.2 Classification of investments

The Group made investments that involved complex terms
and arrangements during the year. Judgement is required
in determining the appropriate classification for these
investments including assessing the relevant activities of
the investee companies and its decisions making process
on those activities that involving the Group, if any and its
other investors, the rights and power of the Group and
other investors on the investee companies and the Group's
returns from the investments. Different conclusions around
these judgements may materially impact how these
investments presented and measured in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

BB RRIEE

R G sHE E B Il

st R FVERTH IR IR A B R H A A
= (BEEAERBR THRREFH
GIETRA) @A o

AEBERRAEL ZIRM 5T R R o
RIFEE * FULEENESHEEHRD
ZTREMBERGERBT - BEXRAR
EREN T AMBFENEERE
BIREEFRERAENGE KRR
SYEmU T o

4.1 KREVEMLE

FERZATEREREY X
AR HAFEZFHANRE
HIEmRESD - REWENR
FEXBEERIDEE  ME
EERBEIZAERKRENH
HREYEAFENTE A
R BT R (R BYBF 1B RS MY EE 12
R ©

42 KREHE

AEERFRELY REMRR
MR ZHHRE - IRERE
BEEGBEOBRBEFELFE
AR ERRE QR RBER
R kAERMWA) REMKR
BENZFEHRRRIBIE
FEERAMKREESRRE
NERREMN RED AR ETER
FRSHRELR - FHIEH
TRERRBREXEZSIRE
RAEBEHPBHRENET
KREEH o

NEMEERERAR 2019 FERE

179



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

4

CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.3

4.4

4.5

Provision for impairment of properties held for sale and
properties under development

The management makes provision for impairment of
properties held or under development for sale based on
the estimate of the recoverable amount of the properties.
Given the volatility of the property market in the PRC, the
actual recoverable amount may be higher or lower than
the estimate made as at the end of the reporting period.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect the
Group' s operating performance in future years.

Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in the PRC. Judgement
is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxation. There are transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain (for example,
certain expenses such as entertainment and advertising
expenses may not be finally deductible) during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred taxation assets and taxation in the
periods in which such estimate is changed.

Land appreciation tax

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including land cost, borrowing costs and all
property development expenditures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4  CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.5

4.6

4.7

Land appreciation tax (Continued)

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property
development business in the PRC are subject to land
appreciation taxes, which have been included in the
income tax expenses. However, the implementation of
these taxes varies amongst various PRC cities and the
Group has not finalised its land appreciation tax returns
with various tax authorities. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises
these liabilities based on management s best estimates.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax expenses and
provisions of land appreciation taxes in the period in which
such determination is made.

Step acquisition

In a business combination achieved in stages, the Group
requires to re-measure its previously held equity interest
in acquired entity at its acquisition-date fair value and
recognise the resulting gain or loss, if any, in profit or loss.
The excess of consideration transferred, amount of any
non-controlling interest and fair value of previously held
equity interest over the fair values of identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. The fair value of the
equity interest was determined by using the DCF approach
and various key assumptions and estimates including
revenue growth rate, discount rate and terminal growth
rate. These estimates and judgement are based on the
market condition and historical performance.

Impairment of intangible assets including goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates.

BB RRIEE

4 RREEESHEE RFIER (48)

4.5

4.6

4.7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors have been identified as the CODM.
Management determines the operating segments based on the
Group’ s internal reports, which are submitted to the Executive
Directors for performance assessment and resources allocation.

The Executive Directors consider the business from a
geographical perspective and assess the performance of
property development in five reportable operating segments,
namely Greater Western Taiwan Straits Economic Zone, Central
and Western Regions, Bohai Economic Rim, Greater Bay Area
and Others. The Group's construction and sea reclamation
services are considered together with the property development
segments and included in the relevant geographic operating
segment. “Others” segment represents provision of design
services to group companies, corporate support functions,
property management services (services provided to both
internal or external customers), trading of construction
materials, rental income and investment holdings business.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of segment results.
This measurement basis excludes the effects of depreciation,
share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity
method, net, finance income, finance costs and income tax
expense. Other information provided, except as noted below, to
the Executive Directors is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated financial statements.

Wzt K 3 ERE Y
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 W R 3 ERE ) (48)
: Greater
Western
Taiwan Central
Straits and Bohai
Economic Western ~ Economic Greater
Zone Regions Rim Bay Area Others Total
e BHER R
LEE  HEIME Ee AEE  HftlEE s
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZ-1nE
TZR=+-HLEE
Revenue from contracts RERHZ WG
- recognised at a point in time ~ R ERERRER 1,798,900 2,983,860 2,403,466 1,032,602 - 8,218,828
- recognised over time ~ - 33,949 - 256,348 - 121,675 412,41
- others —Eftr - - - - 10,573 10,573
Less: Inter-segment revenue B AR (32,315) - - - (7,237) (39,552)
Revenue (from external customers) Wi (SMPZR) 1800534 2,983,860 2,660,314 1,032,602 125011 8,602,321
Segment results nHzE 713,987 513,113 867,748 424,853 (471) 2,579,890
Depreciation i (2,928) (3,261) (1,809) (731) (11,136) (19,865)
Operating profits/{losses) meEr/ (68) 711,059 570,512 865,939 424,122 (11,607) 2,560,025
Share of (loss)/profit of investments FlERESEARNEE
accounted for using the (B18) /5RI58
equity method, net (31,699) (21,286) - (335) 31,775 (21,545)
Finance income BERA 44,567 29,443 11,767 1,214 35,495 122,486
Finance costs HERA (2,362) - - - (17,619) (19,981)
Income tax expense FrEiEs (247,148)  (218,998)  (301,753)  (223,702) (37,724)  (1,089,325)
Profitfor the year EREH AN 299671 515953 201,299 320 1,551,660
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+ZRA=+-H
Total segment assefs BouEE 15838618 20855984 15049653 1705719 8,080,099 62,430,073
Other unallocated corporate assets EfADRATEE 179,267
Total assets hgE 62,609,340
Investments accounting for HEDEARRRE
using the equity method 299,811 208,901 - 14,565 131,595 654,872
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Qo

Wt K 3 BRE L (48)

Greater
Western
Taiwan Central
Straits and Bohai
Economic Western  Economic Greater
Zone Regions Rim Bay Area Others Total
BRER 1RHlE
LEE  WAETHE TEE AEE  EMAEE @it
RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AEBTT  ARETR ARETR ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Additions to: HE.
Property, plant and equipment ERE NG 11,334 3,801 9,425 589 19,583 44,732
Investments accounted for A ARNRE
using the equity method - 184,200 - 14,900 - 199,100
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBEAR
- Property, plant and equipment N T - 21,131 6 - 3,462 24,599
- Intangible assets -BYEE - - - - 335,992 335,992
- Investments accounting -RESEARNRE
for using the equity method - - - - 474 474
Total segment liabiltes #nBaE (1,791,738) (14558,200) (12,083355)  (930,501) (12,610908) (52,974792)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5  ERDBER(E)
: Greater
Western
Taiwan Central
Straits and Bohai
Economic Western  Economic Greater
Zone  Regions Rim  BayArea Others Total
=l Vil BEE
KEE  TREME KEE AEE HMEER st
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AREFT AEB®TR ARETT AREFTR ARETT AREFR
Year ended 31 HE_F-\E
December 2018 +ZB=+-HLEE
Revenue from contracts REAHZYE
- recognised at a point —REE BT
intime 1,634.976 602,983 4,177,648 3,510 218387 6,697,504
- recognised over time S L 701 - 34,215 - 15,161 50,077
- others — £ - - - - 551 551
Less: Inter-segment revenue R il - - — - (12,201) (12,201)
Revenue (from external e (MR R)
customers) 1,635,677 602,983 4,211,863 3,510 281,898 6,735,931
Segment results NEEE 521,751 59,704 1,688,661 (38,562)  (108,582) 2,122,972
Depreciation & (2,877) (1,907) (1,712) (636) (3,199) (10,331)
Operating profits/(losses) R/ (58 518874 57797 1686949 (39,198) (111,781 2,112,641
Share of profit/(loss) of bR A RN
investments accounted REHN/ (B8)F8
for using the equity
method, net 78,064 (4.903) (5,483) — 9,790 17,468
Finance income REWA 32,783 33,965 16,747 1,186 10,344 95,025
Finance costs MEMA (3,936) - - - (67,726) (71,662)
Income tax (expense)/credit FEh (%) /% (208,317) 40,629 (730,546) 28,832 (47642)  (917,044)
Profit/{loss) for the year Epiatl/ (518) 417468 127488 967,667 (9,180) (207,015 1,296,428
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+ZRA=+-H
Total segment assets BAtEE 9710114 8,631,983 11979372 1281252 3,374,164 34,976,885
Other unallocated ExDEAFEE
corporate assets 169,421
Total assets haE 35,146,306
Investments accounting for BEREARNEE
using the equity method 347,123 201,20 - - 135,949 700,294
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B HMTBEIRRMEE
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 WEKRAEER (8)
o Greater
Western
Taiwan Central
Straits and Bohai
Economic Western  Economic Greater
Zone  Regions Rim  BayArea Others Total
=l Vil BEE
KEE  TREME KER AEE HMEER st
RMB' 000  RMB' 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
ARETR ARBTRT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Additions to: HE .
Property, plant WE - BEREE
and equipment 4977 4512 9,094 648 171,319 190,550
Investments accounted for RESEARNEE
using the equity method 33,357 33,342 - - 500 67,199
Prepayments for investment RER-ZHELTIN
in an associate A - 60,000 - - - 60,000
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB AT
- Property, plant and 0% REREE
equipment 1,170 3,125 — — — 4,895
Total segment liabilities WAMEE (6,164,843) (4601,789) (9,108,750) (847,195 (7,758,311 (28,480,888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 WK aEE R (48)
(@) The Group revenue consists of the following: (a) HEEWABEUTEIE:
2019 2018
—E-hEF “EB-N\EF
RMPB 000 RMB 000
ARBFT AREFIT
Sales of properties THEE 8,218,828 6,419,117
Construction services BERF 256,491 34,215
Property management services MEEIRARTS 80,885 —
Project management services BE BER 33,552 3,401
Trading of construction materials BEEREME — 277,946
Rental income FAE A 10,573 551
Healthcare service BEER 1,992 701
8,602,321 6,735,931
(b) Analysis of the Group revenue by geographical market is (b) FEBZWARMETIZSH

as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-hEF “E-N\F
RMPB’ 000 RMB 000
ARBFT AREFT
PRC FRE 8,602,321 6,460,872
Hong Kong H5E — 275,059
8,602,321 6,735,931
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Analysis of the Group revenue by geographical market is
as follows: (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no revenue from
transactions with a single external customer accounted for
over 10% of the Group s revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue
recognised in relation to the sales of properties to a
customer (the “Customer A’) accounted for 12.4% of the
Group' s revenue. Customer A is a group of companies
under common control by independent third party
individuals and not connected with the Group. These
individuals also had non-controlling interests in certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Both their interests and the
subsidiaries are not significant to the Group.

Customer A, which is also an investment partner of the
Group for a potential property development project in the
PRC, has balances with the Group as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 with further details in Notes 19(b) and 24(b).

5

Wt K 3 BRE L (48)
(b) "EEZWARMETIZS

WTF ¢ (48)

EFBE_Z-NAF+ZH
=+—HIEFERRE  #iEL
BHMEIREPETRSHEA
IEAREBUTART 10% A £ o

EBE_Z-N\NFt+ZH
= +—HILFEHE tE—
UER(ERANHEEWEM
R A G AEERBARN
124% - ERARHBBIUE =
FHEAEREZEG BEAERE
B —HRAE « ZFALRAE
EEETHBRARTHEAIFE
BIERD - RENEaRZE
MBARHAERMS LAE
* o

BEEANERAEEEHRE—IE
BEWMEEZRBENKER
P ERZE—NER_ZE
—N\F+_B=+—BhaEx&
BEBEERR E—FHEBERN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets by geographical area are as

BB RRIEE

5 WERIBERE

(c) BMBEERFHBSMIERSE
EEEIARBLEFRSHRE

follows: ERINWT :
: 2019 2018
—EhE T N\E
RMPB 000 RMB 000
ARBFT ARETFTT
PRC I 2,140,409 1,686,614
Hong Kong EE 30,141 354
2,170,550 1,686,968

Details of contract assets is as follows:

o

(c) BNEBEEFBUT:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)N\EF

RMB 000 RMB' 000

ARETT AEEFIT

Accrued contract revenue RETEHOW = 700,000 700,000

As of 31 December 2019, the contract assets of
RMB700,000,000 (2018: RMB700,000,000) are related to
sea reclamation service provided to the PRC government.
The sea reclamation service provided to the customer was
completed and the corresponding receivable balance is
not yet billed due to administrative procedures.

BHE_Z-NE+-B=1+—H" A
B 700,000,000 (Z & — )\ £ :
A R#700,000,00070) HEHNEE
ThEm AP EBTIRENIESRER
B o MR IRENEEIRF BT
HRETITBIER ° AREEWEIERS
BRIEAREEHAREE o
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AHMBEERRMIE

6 EXPENSES BY NATURE 6 BEES SR
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing STASHER A « $HE RS iHA U
expenses and general and administrative expenses are analysed —RRRITHRAXHNAZ RN T :
as follows:

o

2019 2018
—E-h&E “E-N\EF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREF T
Auditor s remuneration TZEREME &
- Audit services — IZE RS 7,249 4,564
- Non-audit services — IERZENARTE 2,822 779
Cost of properties sold BEEMERA 5,449,505 4,031,933
Cost of construction and sea BEREBIRB A
reclamation service 58,837 34,085
Cost of property management services FEith E B IRARFE AL A 71,094 —
Cost of project management services BB BIEARB A 8,973 334
Cost of healthcare service EERFIRAS 3,411 93
Cost of construction material sold HEBEMMI AR — 247,882
Depreciation of property, plant Y% ~ BB R s BT Es (M9sE11)
and equipment (Note 11) 18,998 9,930
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 13) & E#L (M 13) 3,740 —
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EEmEM X (Mi5E8) 375,562 242,452
Entertainment YRELEA S 33,197 29,896
Marketing and advertising costs EH R EE A 242,402 93,481
Operating lease payments KEMEM® 2,514 2,290
Office and travelling expenses WAERENMRBESZ 146,363 77,766
Business taxes and surcharges BER KNG 55,967 33,884
Land use and real estate taxes THIFERREER 14,609 1,024
Legal and professional fees FRAEEXER 66,609 85,781
Donation Hg 4,520 1,130
Impairment loss on other receivables HEWGRIE R B 1R
(Note 19 () (FH2E 19(f)) 15,000 18,345
Others Hith 32,273 40,282
Total cost of sales, selling and HEMA « tHE REiHR
marketing expenses and DU — e R AT E B S 48 %R
general and administrative expenses 6,613,645 4,955,931
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE
OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hthkssem
o 2019 2018
“B—hE —N\F
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AREBFT
Exchange losses PE R g8 (31,527) (126,423)
Gain on disposal of assets and HEFFHEEEKRBEN G
liabilities held for sales — 304,271
Gain on disposal of investment HER—KBMERBKRE
in an associate (Note 15 (b)(iv)) By (B E 15(b)(iv) 8,407 —
Gains on bargain purchase arising MBI B LSRR ERE
from acquisition of Weas (MF5E27.1 5%227.2)
subsidiaries (Note 27.1 and 27.2) 72,912 —
Commission ik 39,836 —
(Losses)/gains on disposal of property, HEVE « BEMRBEN
plant and equipment (Note 26(b)) (B518) Wz (T 26(b)) (5,400) 351
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28) H &M E A B AU (HizE28)
113,821 —
Realised (loss)/gain on foreign INEREEGHANBERIR
exchange forward contracts (E518) /e (45,284) 50,475
Re-measurement gains on interests FRAEDEARNEE#R S
in investments accounted for Bt EWE (M5 27.3)
using the equity method (Note 27.3) 286,634 14,999
Others Hith 5,795 4,796
445,194 248,469
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EERFMEZ
o 2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AREF T
Salaries and allowances e AR R 331,972 218,186
Sale commission and bonuses THE T RIEAL 49,717 30,826
Pension costs (Note a) BAREAA (Mt a) 32,621 24,655
Other staff welfare Hh8 T#EF 32,112 29,499
446,422 303,166
Less: Capitalised in properties B BER S A BRI
under development (70,860) (60,714)
375,562 242,452
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SHMBRRME

8

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Pension costs - Defined Contribution Plan

Employees in the Group’ s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme
administrated and operated by the local municipal
government. The Group s PRC subsidiaries contribute
funds which are calculated on certain percentage of the
average employee salary as agreed by local municipal
government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits
of the employees.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the MPF Scheme for all employees
in Hong Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are
based on minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees relevant aggregate income,
subject to a ceiling of HK$1,500 per month per head.

Details of the retirement scheme contributions, which have
been dealt with in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss are as follows:

Qo

8

BEEFR% (&)

(a)

BRERE — R EHRETE

FERENTENBELAREER
Z2EMEM T BFEERE M
BYSUE AR IREHEI - AEEE
By EDF A B B R ERIRIK
BA E s8R By AR IR
EMTHBFRENTIIEEH
EHREEEDLEEHE

AERTFRFERR T ST EIBIR
AR ERAEREBNERE
ER2HE-IERNKEEE - B1E
T ENERERSERESR
B A B AR ERS% B &KX
ERMBREL > EABAN
MR EBIR 1,500 87T °

EEHBE@mEPIFRENEA
stEIERBVEFIBNT ¢

2019 2018

—Z—-hEF —E-N\F

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

ARETT AREF T

Gross scheme contributions BT B HIRAERE 32,621 24,655
Less: capitalised in properties B RERCEAZRERYE

under development (6,797) (5,164)

25,824 19,491

192

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2019



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMFBIRRMEE
8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 8 (EEENMEXZ @)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) ABE=EFHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest BHE_Z-—NF+ZA=+—
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 ALEFE’ *EBLERSH
include four (2018: three) directors whose emoluments MALTEENE (CE—N\EF .
are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 36. The =R)ESE HiNe R
emoluments payable to the remaining one (2018: two) e FREMEGF—Z(Z
individuals during the year are as follows: T—)\F  WE) ALHEE!
T
2019 2018
—E-hE “E)N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Salaries and other short-term benefits  #r& & Ht5EEAEF 2,196 2,934
Retirement scheme contributions IRRETEIMHR 60 61
2,256 2,995
The emoluments fall within the following bands: BREAMENI THIHE
2019 2018
—Z—hEF AN
HK$1,000,001 to HKS2,000,000 1,000,001 BtE
(equivalent to RMB881,818 2,000,000 875 (FHER
to RMB1,763,633) AR 881,818 0F
AER#81,763,6337T) 1 2
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B HMTBEIRRMEE
FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 MEBEWARMKE
: 2019 2018
—E-hE “ZE-)N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Finance income from bank deposits RITIEARBE WA 52,213 32,512
Finance income from loans to AEE AR ERARERA
associates (Note 33(b)) (F$5E33(b)) 20,674 25,000
Finance income from loans to EIFEIES R R ERAIRRE A
non-controlling interests 30,119 32,883
Finance income from loans to AEE = ERRMERA
independent third parties 19,480 4,630
122,486 95,025
Finance costs on bank and HRIT R EMERIRE R A
other borrowings 1,366,012 719,022
Finance costs on loans from KEFETEHIE R ER
non-controlling interests RIE AL AR 44,429 20,938
Less: finance costs capitalised in B AERBEENERE
qualifying assets FAE AR (1,390,460) (681,580)
19,981 58,380
Finance charges on early redemption REBLEAZENMHER
of senior notes — 13,282
19,981 71,662
Weighted average interest rate on BB N T Y ER
capitalised borrowings (per annum) 9.33% 7.13%
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC are subject to
PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: 25%).

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

No provision has been made for Hong Kong profits tax as the
companies in Hong Kong did not generate any assessable profits
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including costs of land and development and construction
expenditures.

Qo

10

BB RRIEE

FRiSHR

BE_Z-NF+A=+—HLEF
B RPERIIREENNEASR
B25% MR BAN PR EAFR
(ZZE—\F 1 25%) °

BE_Z-NF+A=+—HLEF
B BBMNERLBREEBZEEE
BRI AIRIREK 16.5% 515 ©

BE_Z—/\F+_A=+—HLHF
B BRUREBNABWEEEE
RIERIET > AR EBFER
SHER o

PRI ERE T F TR ERR
(Bt &5 4 22 PR 1S RR IR B 25 R 30 Rt
Sz (B4R LM A DU B 3 Fe i SR )
52)) 8930% ZE 60% B R HEFR FEUL o

2019 2018
—E-NEF “EB-)N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARBTT ARHEFIT

Current income tax BNERFTSHR
Hong Kong profits tax HENEFR 6,428 -
PRC corporate income tax FRE PSR 901,458 747,694
PRC land appreciation tax FRET + I (ETR 577,218 381,902
Deferred income tax (Note 16) EIEFTEHR (MI5E 16) (377,387) (212,552)
Overstatement in prior years HEIBFFERE (18,392) —
1,089,325 917,044
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SHMBRRME

10

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

10 FRigHEX% (48)

The tax on the Group’ s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise by applying the statutory
tax rate in the PRC to profits of the group companies as follows:

Qo

QTR * ANEEERFTSIRADE R
FERIRIEA BN B E B QBT HEAE
B HRBLEER R MG ELEERH
LI

2019 2018
—E-NEF “EB-)N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT
Profit before income tax FRPFISIRATERT 2,640,985 2,213,472
Calculated at PRC corporate income BRI EMSRIRE 25% 5t E
tax rate of 25% 660,246 553,368
Effect of different tax rate in HMBERTEREZE
other countries (3,312) —
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose  AReJ#RBIL 83,409 65,471
Income not subject to taxation BIERRRUA (74,264) (41,855)
Unrecognised tax losses RIS IEEE 4,157 15,548
Previously unrecognised tax losses SRRSO I 1B IR A A
now recouped to reduce DURBIERTR TE R 2
current tax expense (38,865) —
Provision for land appreciation tax T HIBERR R 549,167 381,902
Tax effect on land appreciation tax THIBERNRBETEE (137,292) (95,476)
Tax effect of withholding tax on REE AR E AT 72K
the distributable profits FHENBENRNRETLE
of the Group’ s PRC subsidiaries 64,471 38,086
Overstatement in prior years HEBEFFER (18,392) —
Income tax expense FTiSiRFx 1,089,325 917,044
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Qo

11 % - BERsHE

Furniture
Leasehold and office Motor
improvement  equipment vehicles Buildings Total
Bk
TEMELEE HWARE HE 8F fzt
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AREFT  AREFR AREFR ARETR  ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2018 HEZZ-\E
+ZB=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FREZE 22,999 8,766 4724 — 36,489
Additions hE 10,019 7,107 5,673 167,751 190,550
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WA - 3,657 68 — 3,725
Step acquisitions of subsidiaries PREEREAE 583 75 512 - 1,170
Disposals HE (87) (32) (17 - (296)
Depreciation % (1,437) (3.917) (3,076) (1,901) (10,331)
Fxchange differences ERES - 2 (9) - (7)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 3,077 15,658 7,715 165,850 221,300
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZB=1+—-H
Cost TN 43215 31,863 22,708 167,751 265,537
Accumulated depreciation fRINE (11,138) (16,205) (14,993) (1,901) (44,237)
Net book amount RERE 32,077 15,658 7,715 165,850 221,300
Year ended 31 December 2019 HEZS-NE
+ZB=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 32,077 15,658 7,715 165,850 221,300
Additions FE 10,403 13,271 7,40 13,818 44,732
Acquisitions of subsidiaries BB AT
(Note 27.1 and 27.) (H12£271%21.2) 17,105 2,099 1,773 - 20,977
Step acquisitions of DREEREAT
subsidiaries (Note 27.3) (z273) 1,805 1,451 366 - 3,622
Disposals HE (8,629) (1,147) (465) - (10,241)
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 28) HERBRE (115528) (5) (295) (1,032) = (1,332)
Depreciation 78 (2,393) (5,482) (3,152) (8,838) (19,865)
Exchange differences BRES (3) (17) (21) - (41)
Closing net book amount FRERSE 50,360 25,538 12,424 170,830 259,152
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+ZA=+-H
Cost s 63,031 43,445 30,172 181,569 319,117
Accumulated depreciation RRNE (13,571) (17,907) (17,748) (10,739) (59,965)
Net book amount REFE 50,360 25,538 12,424 170,830 259,152
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SHMBRRME

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Depreciation charges were capitalised or expensed in the
following categories in the consolidated balance sheet and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss:

o

11

ME « BRERRE (&)

TEXHREHEERRRNGHE
mRPETIDEERCIHS AR
%

2019 2018
—E-h&E “E-N\EF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREF T
Properties under development for sale R BB 867 401
Cost of sales (Note 6) THEM A (Fi5E6) 421 —

General and administrative — R EATE RS (PI5E6)
expenses (Note 6) 18,577 9,930
19,865 10,331

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12 REYME
2019 2018
—E-NEF “EB-)N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREF T
At 1 January nw—A—H 803,899 434,669
Additions NE — 284,854
Transfer from properties BEREEHEN

under development for sale (Note a) FREE R (MfEEa) 156,285 —
Capitalised subsequent expenditure RERZBERELR 1,097 204
Fair value gain NFEWE 63,723 84,172
At 31 December R+ZHA=+—H 1,025,004 803,899
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Note:

(a)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has entered
into rental agreements with several independent third parties for
property under development for sale, indicating a change in the
intended use of the property under development for sale. As a
result, the property under development for sale was reclassified
as investment property carried at fair value. At the date of
transfer, the cost of properties under development for sale was
approximately RMB93,853,000 and there was fair value gain of
approximately RMB62,432,000.

(b) As at 31 December 2019, an investment property with fair value
of RMB540,837,000 (2018: RMB480,777,000) was pledged as
collaterals for the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
RMB137,400,000 (2018: RMB175,000,000) (Note 23).

Fair value measurement

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the fair values of the
investment properties were measured at level 3 of fair value
hierarchy using significant unobservable inputs.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

BB RRIEE

12 BREMEGE)

fIsE -
(a)

BE_Z—NE+-RA=+—HL
FErEEBRZZBUE=S
MERPHEMETIEE R
RPABRTEEVENRERRE
FREME - At » FEERYESH
DERRATEIERNEEYE -
R ERPFEYENR
A A N R ¥693,853,0007T * M
NFEW @A 2 A KE562,432,000

IT ©

RIZ-AF+"A=+—H’'2
FEA A R540,837,000 (Z =
—\F : AR¥480,777,000 75) A9
REVES TR FAEERR
TER AR 137,400,000 70 (=
ZT—)\F : AR¥175,000,0007T)
B G (FYEE23) ©

AF{E 2

NIE-NERZIE-N\E+ZAH
=+—8’ KEVENATETIZE
HEATABRERABFENATE
BIRE=RE o

FARE— T R=H BN EE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Valuation process of investment properties

The Group engages an external, independent and qualified
valuer, Jiangxi Hengfang Real Estate and Land Valuation
Consultancy Co., Ltd. ("IFEIES B ZE TG EBHBRAR) to
determine the fair values of the investment properties.

Discussions of valuation processes and results had been held
between management and the valuer in respect of the valuation

as at reporting date.

Information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable input (Level 3) is as follows:

Qo

12 REYE @)

BAFAE °

REVMENGERRF

AEBTERING - BUKESERM
BRI IREIET BithE T M EEEAA
RABE > UEEREMEN RS BH

B (L EMER RS HEREE
SmLERFRER -

BRERERTHRBABNQT

BB (BE=R)ERNT :

Fair value Valuation Range of Relationship of unobservable
Description (RMB’ 000) technique  Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
AT
i (AE#TT) ftERl  FUBEHAE FREEAENER BATERTRZEAENGG
Investment property under 504,837 Residual (1)  Market selling prices (I RMBT,281 persq.m. The higher the market selling prices and
development method (2]  Developer s margin {2) 35% lower the developer s margin, the higher the
fair value
BETRENE #HEE () TREE () BTARARBINLE e REEEA B
() EEEAAE (2 35% AIRTEES
Completed investment 50,167 Direct (1)  Market selling prices (1) RwB8190- The higher the market selling prices, the
properties Comparison 56,700 per sq.m. higher the fair value
BRARENE BRtERE () THER () BTARARBSINT HERHS BIATERS
ZENRH56,1007
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties PEZAEDNREYESE
o 2019 2018
—E-hE T )\&
RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARBFT AREBT T
Rental income from operating leases KERERSIA 10,573 551
Direct operating expenses from property  EEEESUA Y
that generated rental income BiELERY 1,462 210
Fair value gain recognised in other income FEMUA ARERHAFER G 63,723 84,172
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 12 BEMEGE)
Leasing arrangements HEZH
The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating REYXZRCEHERHREA LA > A
leases with rentals payable monthly. Minimum lease payments TEAXMN - HEXEMENRERE
receivable on leases of investment properties are as follows: WHEMRAT :
2019 2018
—E-hEF “E-N\EF
RMB 000 RMB 000
AR®EFT ARETFT
Within 1 year 1FR 15,825 10,573
Between 1 and 2 years 1225 18,958 13,465
Between 2 and 3 years 2E3F 20,183 14,183
Between 3 and 4 years 3E4F 21,423 15,074
Between 4 and 5 years 4FES5FE 15,836 16,158
Later than 5 years i 55 17,100 32,936
109,325 102,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Qo

13 \|EEE

Customer
relationship Trademark Goodwill Total
ZRRf& L [ st
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR®
As at 31 December 2018 NZE—N\E
+=ZB=+—H
Cost (D77 — — — —
Accumulated amortisation Rt — — — —
Net book amount REEE — — — —
Year ended 31 December 2019 BHEZZT—HIE
+ZBA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FHEREBE = = - —
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WeEsHt A B (52 27.3)

(Note 27.3) 30,138 34,626 271,228 335,992
Amortisation (Note 6) #H (M5E6) (2,009) (1,731) = (3,740)
Impairment BE — — — —
Closing net book amount FREMZE 28,129 32,895 271,228 332,252
As at 31 December 2019 NZE—hE

+=B=+—H
Cost A 30,138 34,626 271,228 335,992
Accumulated amortisation Rt (2,009) (1,731) - (3,740)
Net book amount REEE 28,129 32,895 271,228 332,252

The intangible assets were acquired as part of a business
combination of Top Glory Group (see Note 27.3 for details). The
customer relationship and trademark are recognised at their fair
value at the date of acquisition and are subsequently amortised
on a straight-line based on the timing of projected cash flows
of the assets over their estimated useful lives. Goodwill is not
amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired.

Amortisation charges were expensed in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

ERReEREEBGHIN -2
BRLEECTWBGEGBRREMT
27.3) - ERBGERBEREERIRE
HEIR AT ERE » HRIRBHETE
P REHANEERARSRENRE
REEREN - BEILEFLEY
ESFERETRENR > WHELEE
B R EE RFE P A L ERR(E
AIBERIFRBIRE -

HIHERAN S HEBEE RN —RKRITH
FIXAIsid ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill of RMB271,228,000 arose from the acquisition of Top
Glory Group (Note 27.3). The goodwill amount relates to the
value of expected future economic benefits of the provision of
property management business operated by Top Glory Group.
Management of the Group had conducted an impairment
assessment review of the cash generating unit (the “CGU”)
and determined that there is no impairment of the goodwill.
Recoverable amount of the CGU is determined as higher of fair
value less cost of disposal (“FVLCOD”) and value in use (“VIU")
of the underlying assets. The valuation is considered to be level
3 in the fair value hierarchy due to unobservable inputs used in
the valuation. The VIU was determined by applying discounted
cash flow model on post-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a 10-year
period, and a discount rate of 15.4%. The discount rate used
is post-tax and reflects specific risks related to the relevant
operation. The revenue growth CAGR (i.e. compound annual
growth rate over the 10-year projection period) used is 17.0%.
Cash flows beyond the 10-year period are extrapolated using
a weighted average growth rate of 3%. The volume of service
revenue in each period is the main driver for revenue and costs.
The growth in revenue and the relevant costs are estimated
based on past performance and management s expectations for
the market development.

The recoverable amount of Top Glory Group is estimated to
exceed the carrying amount by RMB9,119,000 as at 31 December
2019.

The recoverable amount of Top Glory Group would equal its
carrying amount if the key assumptions were to change as
follows:

Qo

13

BB RRIEE

B EE (B
R (E A

EE AR 271,228,000 753k B W fE
HMEEBE(WE273) - HEEEHR
HeERKENYEERETREDN
REHARREENZEEER - ~&E
EEECETREELBU(REE
EBU) BRE LR  LEERD
BEIERE - REEEBURAURE
TEREE AR TEBRHERE (TR
BERLERE)) BIEREEERERE
(TMEREE) TRSE - BNEERE
BARRRBAR > WEERRAL
TERBBNE =/ - EREEREE
EEMENMBRERBRIRERES
MERAFRRERERUMETE

PRABITIRERARNE © RIREMERRE
BEMVBERR - TAN@ERE
BFEERXBNIOFEAPANES
FIEZE) A17.0% © B 10 FHH
REREEAMNETIFERE3I%MHE
8 o KPERB W= E AW m RaAAE
WEZERS ] o Wil KRB
RIFBTRAEREEBHTHEREN
FAsHEHfESt ©

BSRZE—NF+"A=+—Q0#%
SEEFWEEERBEKRAEAR
#9,119,000 7T °

B EEZRREFNT > s EEN
PIR el ERAEE N HEARE(E

From To

B Y

CAGR BEFIRREE 17.0% 16.6%
Budgeted gross margin FEHEERNE 15.0% 13.6%
Long-term growth rate REFERX 3.0% 1.9%
Pre-tax discount rate PRI AIHTIRE 15.4% 15.8%

The directors and management have considered and assessed
reasonably possible changes for other key assumptions and
have not identified any instances that could cause the carrying
amount of Top Glory Group to exceed its recoverable amount.

EEKEEEEE R KRMEHEMEE
BN GE]EES) ° BEMFIE
AR SN EEREEBAEED
WEIEERRIER ©
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BHIRERRIEE

14 SUBSIDIARIES
(a)

are set out below:

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019

14 BAE

(a)

R-B-hE+ZA=+—

B’ TEMBEARNFER

ST :
: Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars of issued share BRMBAT  mAEE  miEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
A At EAER R BETRAREHREF A 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Redco Properties Holdings The British Virgin - Limited liability ~ Investment L ordinary shares of 1 US dollar 100% 100% -
Limited Islands (B} company holding and 1 ordinary share
of nil consideration, USS1
Nt ERRERAT ABRUEE  BREALNT  REER 1R1ERHERER
(EBRLHE) RIRERBNEER1 %R
Power Creation International BV Limited liability ~ Investment 100 ordinary shares of - 100% -
Development Limited company holding 1US dollar each, USS100
NEERERERAT ABRUEE  BREALNT  REER 100RER 1 ZnNEER 10057
Max Income Holdings Limited BV Limited liability ~ Investment L ordinary shares of - 100% -
company holding 1US dollar each, USS1
ERERERAT HERYEE  EREEAT  REER IRERIZTIERR X7
Maxprofit Globe Holdings Limited BV Limited liability ~ Investment 100 ordinary shares of - 100% -
company holding 1US dollar each, US$100
HEEERRAT iBRUEE  AREALE  REEZR 100RER 1 ZnRERR100%T
Power Spring International BVI Limited liability ~ Investment L ordinary shares of - 100% -
Investments Limited company holding 1US dollar each, USS1
NREFREERAT ZBEUEE  AREALA  REER IRERIETNERR 1 ER
Top Thrive Real Estates BV Limited liability ~ Investment 1 ordinary shares of - 100% -
Investments Limited company holding 1US dollar each, USS1
BEEEREARAT ZWEAEE  AREALE  REEZR IRERIZETHERR 1 ZT
Li Jia International BVI Limited liability ~ Investment Lordinary shares of - 100% -
Investments Limited company holding 1US dollar each, USS1
NEEREERRAT ZRRUEE  BREALT  REEZR IRERIZTHERR 1 ZT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 (a) RZEBE—NE+-HA=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

Qo

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars ofissued share  BRMBAT  mAEE  miEEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
A At EAER R BETRAREHREF A 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Top Creation Worldwide BVI Limited liability ~ Investment L ordinary shares of - 100% -
Investments Limited company holding 1US dollar each, USS1
BB RERRAT ZBREEE  BREALNT  REER IRERIZTIERR X7
Wei Li International BVI Limited liability ~ Investment 1 ordinary shares of - 100% -
Developments Limited company holding 1US dollar each, USS1
BNERERERAT iBRUEE  AREALA  REER IRER 1 ZTHERR 12T
Redco Education BVI Limited liability ~ Investment 1 ordinary shares of - 100% -
International Company Limited company holding 1US dollar each, USS1
NRHEERERAT ZBEUEE  AREALA  REER IRERIETNERR1ER
Shengye International BVI Limited liability ~ Investment Lordinary shares of - 100% -
Investments Company Limited company holding 1US dollar each, USS1
BEERBERRAT ZWRUEE  AREALNE  REEZR IRERIZETHERR 1 ZT
Weisheng International BV Limited liability ~ Investment L ordinary shares of - 100% -
Investments Company Limited company holding 1US dollar each, USS1
REEREERRAT ZRRUEE  BRERLT  REEZR IRERIZTNERR 1 ZT
Weiye International BVI Limited liability ~ Investment Lordinary shares of - 100% -
Investments Company Limited company holding 1US dollar each, USS1
EXERREBRAT ABRUEE  BRERLNT  REER IRERIZTNERR XN
Redco Education BVI Limited liability ~ Investment L ordinary shares of - 100% -
Holdings Limited company holding 1US dollar each, USS1
NEHEERERAT HERYEE  EREEAT  REER IRERIZTIERR X
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMEE
14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 (a) RZEBE—NE+-HA=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

Qo

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars ofissued share  BRMBAT  mAEE  miEEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
A At EAER R BETRAREHREF A 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Top Glory International BVI Limited liability ~ Investment 100 ordinary shares of - 100% -
Holdings Limited company holding 1US dollar each, US§100
#EERERERAT HERYEE  EREEAT  REER 100RER 1 ZnHERR 0057
Redco Holdings (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment 100,000 ordinary shares of - 100% -
Co. Limited company holding 1 HK dollar each, HK$100,000
NB&E(ER) ERAR &k EREEAT  KEER 100,000 &R 1 Ay
L& 100,000
Power Thrive International Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment 1 ordinary shares of - 100% -
Investment Limited company holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
NEERRERRAT &k EREEAT  KEER 1RER1ETNERRLER
Redco Investment (International)  Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment 10,000 ordinary shares of — 50% (Note (i) 50%
Company Limited company holding 1 HK dollar each, HK510,000
NERE ER) ERAR &k BRERAT  ZEER 10,000 &k 1 # Ay (B (i)
EER 10,000
Bloom Trend International Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment 1 ordinary shares of - 100% -
Industrial Limited company holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
REERELARAT &k BRERAT  ZEER IRER1IETNERRLER
Redco Industrial Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment Lordinary shares of - 100% -
Investment Limited company holding 1HK dollar each, HKSL
REERERRAT &k ERERAT  REEZR IRER1ETHERR AT
Hong Kong Royal Lofty Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment L ordinary shares of - 100% -
Investments Limited company holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
FRERRERRAT &% ERERAT  REEZR IRER1ETHERR AT
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(a)

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019
are set out below: (Continued)

Qo

14 MBATEE)
RW_E—hE+-HA=+—
B’ TEMEBATINFEHR
T ¢ (48)

(a)

BB RRIEE

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars ofissued share  BRMBAT  mAEE  miEEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
A At EAER R BETRAREHREF A 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Redco Properties Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment L ordinary shares of - 100% -
(Hong Kong) Company Limited company holding 1 HK dollar each, HKSL
NBEX(ER)ERAR & ERERAT  REER IRER1ETIERR T
Hong Kong Bingjiang Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment 150,000,000 ordinary - 100% -
Industrial Limited company holding shares of 1 HK
dollar each, HK$150,000,000
EERIEEARAT & ERERLT  REER 150,000,000 K58 1 B
ZE07 150,000,000 7
Hong Kong Wing Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment L ordinary shares of - 100% -
Power Developments Limited company holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EERNERBRAT & ERERLT  REER IRER1ETERR AT
Hong Kong Power Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment 1 ordinary shares of - 100% -
Profit Investments Limited company holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EENLREBRAT &k ERERAT  KEER IRER1ETNERRLER
Hong Kong Shengye Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment 1 ordinary shares of - 100% -
Investments Company Limited company holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EARERERRAT &k ERERAT  ZEER IRER1ETNERRLER
Hong Kong Weisheng Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment Lordinary shares of - 100% -
Properties Company Limited company holding 1HK dollar each, HKSL
ERREELARLT &k ERERAT  REEZR IRER1ETHERR AT
Hong Kong Weiye Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment L ordinary shares of - 100% -
Holdings Company Limited company holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
ERRELRARAT & ERERAT  REEZR IRER1ETHERR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMEE
14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 (a) RZEBE—NE+-HA=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

Qo

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars of issued share BRMBAT  mAEE  miEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
A At EAER R BETRAREHREF A 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Hong Kong Power Win Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment L ordinary shares of - 100% -
Properties Limited company holding 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
EEBEXRRAT &k ERERAT  REER 1RER1ETNERRLER
Redco (Tianjin) PRC Wholly owned ~ Property Registered HK$490,000,000 - 100% -
Real Estate Co,, Ltd. foreign development Paid up HK$490,000,000
enterprise in the PRC
B (REHEERAR el f\eEELE  ATERENE BE5490,000,000:87
EAR 4000000057
Tianjin Redco Hongye PRC Wholly owned ~ Investment Registered US$598,000,000 - 100% -
Investment Co,, Ltd. foreign holding Paid up US5288,000,000
enterprise
RENRLRERERRAT el f\eEELE  REER BE5598,000,000%7
B2 288,000,000%7
Tianjin Redco Jiye Co,, Ltd. PRC Wholly owned ~ Operationand  Registered RMBL 217,064,630 - 100% -
foreign management Paid up RMB 1,217,064,630
enterprise of cultural
tourism
projectin
the PRC
RENEEEERAT el EEERE  FREEER BETARKLT 0646307

BENIKEE  ERRARELLT0046307
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 (a) RZEBE—NE+-HA=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

Qo

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars of issued share BRMBAT  mAEE  miEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
AGESH At EAER R BETRAREHREF A 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Tianjin Redco Xingye Cultural ~ PRC Wholly owned ~ Cultural Registered RMB600,000,000 - 100% -
Dissemination Co., Ltd. foreign product Paid up RMB 593,793,509
enterprise design
consulting
in the PRC
RENRRENLERERAT  E fEEELE  ATERML BB ARE 600,000,000
EmiRsrias BEEARE593,1935097
Tianjin Redco Shengye PRC Sino-foreign Operation and Registered RMB100,000,000 - 10% 30%
Investment Co., Ltd. equity joint management Paid up RMB100,000,000
venture of cultural
tourism
projectin
the PRC
RENEEEARAT i IEERERE TTEEER BERARE100,0000007
EEVITEE BARARM100,000,0007
Tianjin Redco Dadao Real Estate  PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB30,000,000 - 18% 82%
Development Co., Ltd. company development Paid up RMB30,000,000 (Note xi)
in the PRC
RENBAEERERERAT  oE BREMAT  ARERENE BEEARE30,0000007 (FExi)
BEEARH30,000,0007
Changfeng Lianhua Real PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMBS0,750,000 - 80% 20%
Estate Co., Ltd. company development Paid up RMB50,750,000
in the PRC
REHEELARAT el BREMAT  AREREENE BETARES0,750,0007
BEEARE50,750,0007
Hefei Redco Hongye Property ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 - 100% -
Development Co,Ltd company development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
sRNEERNEREERAT  oE BRERAT  FREREME BETARE50,000,0007
BEIRARE50,0000007
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SmTF - (&)

Qo

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
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A At EAER R BETRAREHREF A 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Heifei Liqusan Property Co.,Ltd ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
company development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
ARNREXERAT el ERERAT  ATERENE BERARE100,0000007
BHRARE 100,000,000
Heifei Redco Weisheng PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB20,000,000 - 30% 0%
Property Development Co., Ltd company development Paid up RMB20,000,000 (Note xi)
in the PRC
aRNERENERIERAT  E BREMAT  ARERENE BEEARE20,0000007 (FExi)
BEEARE20,000,0007
Hefei Lisheng Property Co, Ltd ~ PRC Limited liability  Property Registered RMB14,286,000 - 100% -
company development Paid up Nil
in the PRC
AENRELERAT el ERERAE  ATERENE BETARE 14,286,000
B8RSR
Hefei Licheng Property Co., Ltd ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 - 0% 30%
company development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
AENEEXERAT el BRERAT  FREREME BETARE10,000,0007
BEIRARE10,0000007
Hefei Weili Property PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 - 100% -
Development Co,, Ltd company development Paid up nil
in the PRC
aBmEIMEREERAT el ERERAT  FRERENE BEARK10,0000007
B8RSR
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AGESH At EAER BENE BETREREREAAL 183 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Heferi Lihong Property Co., Ltd ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 - 60% 40%
company development Paid up nil
in the PRC
ARNEEEARAT i BREMAT  AREREENE BEEARE10,0000007
B4ESR
Hefei Lijia Property Co., Ltd PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMBL10,000,000 - 100% -
company development Paid up Nil
in the PRC
AENEEXARAT el BREMAT  AREREENE BEEARE10,0000007
BRRET
Hefei Panrui Real Estate Co,, Ltd.  PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMBS50,000,000 - 0% 30%
company development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
AREREXARAT el BREMAT  AREREENE BETARE50,000,0007
BEEARE50,000,0007
Hefei Zhiyue Real Estate Co,, Ltd.  PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 - 70% 30%
company development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
ARBHEXERAT e BRERAT  FREREME BETARE50,000,0007
BEIRARE50,0000007
Hefei Tongzhu Properties PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 - 60% 40%
Company Limited company development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
ARREESARAT e ERERAT  FRERENE BERARE100,0000007
BERARE100,0000007
Linquan Huaxin Real PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB20,000,000 —20% (Note (ii) 80%
Estate Development Co,, Ltd. company development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
ERRESRNERRERAT  oE ERERAT  REREME BEEARE20,0000007 (HEE (i)
BERARE20,000,0007
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SmTF - (&)

Qo

Ownership
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AGESH At EAER R BETREREREAAL 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Hefei Zhonghe Project PRC Limited liability ~ Investment Registered RMB20,000,000 - 100% -
Management Co., Ltd. company holding Paid up RMB20,000,000
ARRAEEERERAT il ERERAAT  KEER BEEARE20,0000007
BERARE20,000,0007
L' an Ruiyuan Real PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB500,000,000 — 0% (Note (iii) 80%
Estate Development Co,, Ltd. company development Paid up RMB500,000,000
in the PRC
NERRERERARAT i BREMAT  AREREENE BERARE500,0000007 (F3 i)
BAEARM500,000,0007
Hefei Maomin Real Estate Co., Ltd PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMBS50,000,000 - 85% 15%
company development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
AEREEEARAT el BREMAT  ARERENE BEEARE50,0000007
BEEARE50,000,0007
Hefei Lianggao Real Estate PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMBS50,000,000 - 51% 49%
Co,, Ltd. company development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
AEREEXARAT el BREMAT  AREREENE BETARE50,000,0007
BEEARE50,000,0007
Anhui Xinde Business PRC Limited liability ~ Investment Registered RMB5,000,000 - 100% -
Management Co., Ltd. company holding Paid up RMB5,000,000
RHUBEREERARAT el BREAAT  ZEER BERARES5,0000007
BARARES,0000007
Huaiyuan Yide City PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB420,000,000 —20% (Note (iv)) 80%
Development Co., Ltd. company development Paid up RMB420,000,000
in the PRC
FERENEREERAT e BRERAT  FREREME BEZARK420,000,0007 (Bt (w)
BEEARE420,0000007
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A At EAER R BETRAREHREF A 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Shenzhen Xingju Trading Co., Ltd. PRC Limited liability ~ Trading Registered RMBL,000,000 - 100% -
company inthe PRC Paid up RMB1,000,000
MERERERAT il EREEAT  ATEEFTER BERAREL0000007
BERAREL0000007
Shenzhen Jindian PRC Limited liability ~ Construction Registered RMB10,000,000 - 61% 39%
Design Consulting Co., Ltd. company design Paid up RMB500,000
consulting
in the PRC
AHSREERBRAT el BREAAR  ARERE BEEARE10,0000007
BER BEEARE500,0007
Shenzhen Chuangxin PRC Limited liability ~ Construction Registered RMBL,000,000 - 100% -
Construction Cost company cost Paid up RMBL1,000,000
Consulting Co., Ltd. consulting
in the PRC
MIEIEIREERIERAT  E ERERAT  HRERE BERAREL0000007
BENAED BERAREL,0000007
Shenzhen Redco Dadao PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 - 51% 49%
Real Estate Co. Ltd company development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
M NEAEEEERAT e EREEAT  ATERENE BEARK50,000,0007
BEEARE50,0000007
Shenzhen Redco Jiye PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Property Development Co,. Ltd. company development Paid up nil
in the PRC
MINEESHERRERAT  oE EREMAT  ATERENE BERARE100,0000007
ERRER
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Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars of issued share BRMBAT  mAEE  miEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
AGESH At EAER R BETRAREHREF A 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Shenzhen Redco Weili PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 - 100% -
Shiye Development Co,. Ltd company development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
MINERNELERERAT  WE BREMAT  AREREENE BEEARE10,0000007
BARARE10,0000007
Shenzhen Redco Hongye PRC Limited liability ~ Operation and Registered RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Xinxing Real Estate company management Paid up RMB100,000,000
Senvice Co., Ltd of cultural
tourism
project
in the PRC
M hEnEnEES e BEREERE  HHREEER BERARE100,0000007
REERAT BENIER BERARE100,0000007
Zhongshanshi Haoyu Real PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 - 0% 30%
Estate Development Co,, Ltd company development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
RUTEIRMEREERAT  HE ERERAT  REREME BERARE100,0000007
BAE AR 100,000,007
Zhongshan Jintian Real PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB3,333,400 - 0% 30%
Estate Industry Development company development Paid up RMB3,333,400
Co,, Ltd. inthe PRC
PUTEHRMERERRERLE & BREMAT  AREREENE BERARE33B4007
BERARE33334007
Shenzhen Redco Cultural PRC Wholly owned ~ Operation and Registered US$1,000,000 - 100% -
Tourism Industry foreign management Paid up Nil
Holding Co., Ltd. enterprise of cultural
tourism project
in the PRC
MINEXRERERERAT B IEEERE  FHREIZER BERAREL0000007
BEUKER B8RSR
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A At EAER R BETRAREHREF A 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Shenzhen Redco Healthcare PRC Wholly owned ~ Investment Registered USS1,000,000 - 100% -
&Nutrition Holding Co., Ltd. foreign holding Paid up Nil
enterprise
MINEREERERERAT  PE f\eEELE  REER BER 10000005
ERRER
Shenzhen Redco Kangan PRC Limited liability  Provision of Registered RMBS,000,000 - 100% -
Health Management Co., Ltd. company healthcare Paid up Nil
service in the
PRC
MINERZEREEERAT  PE ERERAT  ARERE BEGAR5,0000007
RERH B8RSR
Shenzhen Redco Zhangzhewu ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Provision of Registered RMB29,400,000 - 5% 5%
Health Investment company healthcare Paid up RMB18,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. senvice
in the PRC
MINBREERRRE el BRSEAT  ARERME BEEARE29,4000007
ERERAT REMH BERARE18,0000007
Shenzhen Huimeijia Decoration ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Construction Registered RMB5,000,000 - 100% -
Engineering Co., Ltd. company and design Paid up Nil
consulting
in the PRC
MIEXFEHTRERLE el ERERAT  ATERMEE BEGAR5,0000007
Rt ERRER
Foshan Gaoming Ligao Real Estate PRC Wholly owned  Property Registered HK$10,000,000 - 100% -
Development Co., Ltd foreign development Paid up HK$10,000,000
enterprise in the PRC
RBUTERENERE el feEELE  ATERENE B%3210,000,000:E7
BEERAT B 10,000,000E7
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Jiangxi Man Wo Property PRC Wholly owned  Property Registered HK$300,000,000 - 100% -
Development Co., Ltd. foreign development Paid up HKS$300,000,000
enterprise in the PRC
IBENRHAREERAE el f\eEELE  ATERENE BE52300,000,000:87
EAR 000000057
Jiangxi Redco Property PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Development Co., Ltd. company development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
IENRRHEREERAT el BREMAT  ARERENE EERARE 100,000,000
BERARE 100,000,000
Jiangxi Chong De Real PRC Wholly owned  Property Registered HK$200,000,000 - 100% -
Estate Development Co,, Ltd. foreign development Paid up HKS$200,000,000
enterprise in the PRC
IERERNEREARAT el fEEELE  ATERENE B%52200,000,000787
EHR 20000000057
Jiangxi Zhengli Property PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB200,000,000 - 51% 49%
Development Co,. Ltd. company development Paid up RMB200,000,000
in the PRC
IRYNEHEREBRAT e BRERAT  FREREME BERARE200,000,0007
BEEARE200,0000007
Jiangxi Lida Property PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB20,000,000 - 8% 2%
Development Co,, Ltd company development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
IRENERMEREBRAT el EREEAT  ATERENE BELARK20,0000007
BEEARR20,0000007
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14 MBATEE)
RW_E—hE+-HA=+—
B’ TEMEBATINFEHR
T ¢ (48)

(a)

BB RRIEE

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars of issued share BRMBAT  mAEE  miEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
AGESH At EAER BENE BETREREREAAL 183 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Jiangxi Yiju Property PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB80,000,000 - 51% 49%
Development Co,, Ltd company development Paid up RMB80,000,000
in the PRC
B ERHAREERAE i BREMAT  AREREENE BEEARES0,000,0007
BERARE80,000,0007
Jiangxi Haixiang Property PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMBL10,000,000 - 100% -
Development Co.Ltd company development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
IEEREHEREERAE el BREMAT  AREREENE BEEARE10,0000007
BEEARE 10,000,000
Jiangxi Lisheng Real Estate PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 - 0% 30%
Co, Ltd company development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
IENEEXARAT el BREMAT  AREREENE BETARE10,000,0007
BEEARE10,000,0007
Jiangxi Redco Shengye Property  PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 0% 30%
Development Co,. Ltd company development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
IENERNEREERAT BRERAT  FREREME BETARE10,000,0007
BEIRARE10,0000007
Jiangxi Redco Travel Cultural ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Investment Registered RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Real Estate Co,. Ltd company holding Paid up RMB100,000,000
IBNEKEXEERERAT  PE BRERAT  ZEER BEZ AR 100,000,007
BEEARE100,0000007
Jiangxi Lirun Property PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 - 80% 20%
Development Co,, Ltd company development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
IENBRHEREERAT e ERERAT  FRERENE BEEARE10,0000007
BERARE10,0000007
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AGESH At EAER R BETREREREAAL 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Jiangxi Redco Weisheng PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 - 100% -
Business Managing Co,, Ltd company development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
IENERECLERERAT  WE BREMAT  AREREENE BELARES0,000,0007
BERARE50,000,0007
Jiangxi Redco Guocheng Real  PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 —20% (Note (v)) 80%
Estate Development Co,, Ltd. company development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
IENEEANERRERAT  HE BREMAT  ARERENE EERARE 100,000,000 (Bt (v)
BARARM100,000,0007
Nanchang Redco Zhangzhewu  PRC Limited liability ~ Provision of Registered RMBL,000,000 - 5% 25%
Health Industry Co., Ltd. company healthcare Paid up RMBL1,000,000
service
in the PRC
BENEREBRRES ] BRERAT  FREREME BERAREL0000007
ERERAT BREAREL1,000,0007
Jiangx Chenggao Real PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 — 16% (Note (vi)) 84%
Estate Development Co,, Ltd. company development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
IESERHEREERAT e ERERAT  FREREME BERARE100,0000007 (B (vi)
BERARE100,0000007
Jiangxi Zili Real Estate PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 - 51% 49%
Development Co., Ltd. company development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
IRENRHAREERAT il ERERAT  REREME BERARE100,0000007
BAE AR 100,000,007

218 | REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2019



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 (a) RZEBE—NE+-HA=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

Qo

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars of issued share BRMBAT  mAEE  miEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
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Nanchang Gaoyuan Real Estate ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB20,000,000 - 51% 49%
Development Company Limited company development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
HERERHAREERLE i BREMAT  AREREENE BEEARE20,0000007
BERARE20,000,0007
Jiangxi Li Rui Real Estate PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 - 41% 59%
Development Company Limited company development Paid up RMB100,000,000 (Note xi)
in the PRC
IENREHEREERAE e BREMAT  ARERENE EERARE 100,000,000 (FEE i)
BARARM100,000,0007
Jiangxi Life Sunshine City PRC Limited liability  Property Registered RMB20,000,000 - 100% -
Investment Co., Ltd. company development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
IEEPRIIRERAERLE  HE BREMAT  AREREENE BETARE20,000,0007
BEEARH20,000,0007
Jiangxi Li Run Property PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Development Company Limited company development Paid up RMB30,000,000
in the PRC
IENERHEREERAT ] EREFAT  ATERENE BETARE30,000,0007
BEIRARE30,0000007
Nanchang Litou Real Estate PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB20,000,000 - 51% 49%
Development Co., Ltd. company development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
BENRBHAEREERLAT ] BREFAT  ATEREME BEEARE20,0000007
BEIARE20,0000007
Ganzhou Litou Real PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 - 49% 51%
Estate Development Co,, Ltd company development Paid up RMB50,000,000 (Note xi)
in the PRC
B NREHAREERLT il ERERAT  REREME BEEARE50,0000007 (FsExi)
BERARE50,000,0007
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Nanchang Guogao Real Estate ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB230,000,000 - 51% 49%
Co,, Ltd, company development Paid up RMB230,000,000
inthe PRC
HEERRHEERERLA e EREHAR  ARERERNE BERARE230,000,0007
EAEARM 230,000,007
Redco (China) Real Estate PRC Sino-foreign Property Registered HKS100,000,000 - 100% -
Co,, Ltd, equity joint development Paid up HK$100,000,000
venture inthe PRC
NE (RE)HEERAR i PHEERENE TTEREME BERARE 100,000,000
BAREARE100,000,0007
Longyan Redco Real PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB1,000,000 - 60% 40%
Estate Development Co,, Ltd. company development Paid up nil
inthe PRC
RETNBRUEREERAT  E BREMAR  ARERENE BEGARE 1,000,007
BRRER
Quanzhou Lixing Real PRC Sino-foreign Property Registered RMB30,000,000 - 33% 67%
Estate Development Co,, Ltd. equity joint development Paid up RMB30,000,000 (Note (vii)
venture inthe PRC
SNEERHEREERAT e MHSERELE HTERENE BERARS30,000,0007 (PrszE i)
BERARE30,000,0007
Quanzhou Litou Real Estate PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 - 59% 41%
Development Company Limited company development Paid up RMB10,000,000
inthe PRC
FNNREHEREERAT e ERERAR  ARERENE BERARRE10,000,0007
BERARE10,0000007
Quanzhou Kelongshan Tourism ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 - 55% 45%
Development Co., Ltd. company development Paid up RMB50,000,000
inthe PRC
RRERLKEERERAT e ERERAT  ARERENE BEEARK50,000,0007
BERARE50,000,0007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 (a) RZEBE—NE+-HA=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

Qo

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars of issued share BRMBAT  mAEE  miEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
AGESH MM EAER BENE BETREREREAAL 183 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Quanzhou Lisheng Real Estate ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 - 100% -
Development Co,, Ltd company development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
FNNEEHAEREERAE i BREMAT  AREREENE BEEARE10,0000007
BERARE10,000,0007
Xianyang Redco Property PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB20,000,000 - 0% 30%
Development Co., Ltd. company development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
HENBRHEREERAT el BREMAT  ARERENE BEEARE20,0000007
BEEARE20,000,0007
X[ an Redco Real Estate Co,, Ltd.  PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 - 100% -
company development Paid up nil
in the PRC
EENEEXARAT el BREMAT  AREREENE BETARE10,000,0007
BERET
Xianyang Baorong Industrial PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMBI98,000,000 - 5% 25%
Co,, Ltd, company development Paid up RMB98,000,000
in the PRC
HERAEXERAT ] BRERAT  FREREME BETARE98,000,0007
BEIEARE98,000,0007
Shangdong Redco Real Estate ~ PRC Sino-foreign Property Registered HK$100,000,000 - 100% -
Development Co., Ltd. equity joint development Paid up HK$100,000,000
venture in the PRC
URNBRNEREERAT e HSERELE TTERENE BE100,000,000E7
B4 100,000,000E7
Yantai Redco Development PRC Wholly owned  Property Registered US$101,000,000 - 100% -
Co., Ltd, foreign development Paid up US$101,000,000
enterprise in the PRC
EohsEEARAT il NEEERE  TRERRME BE101,000,000%7
B2 101,000,000 %7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMEE
14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 (a) RZEBE—NE+-HA=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

Qo

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars of issued share ERMIBAR  AFEE  AjHIHM
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
AGESH At EAER R BETRAREHREF A 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Shandong Redco Jianghao PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 - 80% 20%
Real Estate Co,, Ltd company development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
URNB AR ERRAT i BREMAT  AREREENE BERARE100,0000007
BARARM100,000,0007
Shandong Xin Guangyou PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB36,734,600 - 51% 49%
Properties Co,, Ltd. company development Paid up RMB36,734,600
in the PRC
URHEREXBRLE el BREMAT  ARERENE BEEARE36,134,6007
BEEARE36,1346007
Jinan Redco Weisheng PRC Sino-foreign Property Registered RMB100,000,000 - 80% 20%
Property Development Co.Ltd equity joint development Paid up RMB100,000,000
venture in the PRC
ERRRENEREERAT  E THEERERE TTEREYE EERARE 100,000,000
B AR100,000,0007
Jinan Redco Hongsheng PRC Limited liability  Property Registered RMB18,734,600 - 100% -
Property Development Co.Ltd company development Paid up nil
in the PRC
ERRRENEREERAT  E BRERAT  FREREME BETAREIS 1346007
B8RSR
Shandong Jiali Real Estate PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 - 80% 20%
Co,. Ltd company development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
URENEEARAT e ERERAT  FRERENE BEEARE50,000,0007
BEEARE50,0000007
Jinan Redco Yingli Property PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB50,000,000 - 80% 20%
Co., Ltd company development Paid up nil
in the PRC
URNERNEHERRAT il ERERAT  REREME BEEARE50,0000007
B8RSR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 (a) RZEBE—NE+-HA=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

Qo

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars of issued share BRMBAT  mAEE  miEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
AGESH MM EAER BENE BETREREREAAL 183 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Shangdong Redco Jinsheng PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Jiye Property company development Paid up nil
Development Co., Ltd in the PRC
URNEHEEER i BREMAT  AREREENE BERARE100,0000007
HEREBRLE B4ESR
Shandong Redco Kaili Real PRC Sino-foreign Property Registered US523,529,400 - 85% 15%
Estate Co,, Ltd. equity joint development Paid up US$23,529,400
venture in the PRC
WRABHNENERRAT e THEERERE TTERENE BB 2350940057
BRI 23,529400%7
Shandong Weisheng Real PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered USD33,990,000 - 100% -
Estate Development Co,, Ltd. company development Paid up USD33,990,000
in the PRC
URERENEREARAT el BREMAT  AREREENE BEF33,990,000% 7
BHIE33,990,000%7
Shandong Xinghong Real Estate  PRC Limited liability ~ Investment Registered USD36,172,100 - 85% 15%
Development Co,, Ltd company holding Paid up USD36,172,100
UREERNERLARAT el BREAAT  ZEER BEF36,172100%%
5L RIAALIEST
Jinan Dongfeng Real Estate PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB20,000,000 - 90% 10%
Co,, Ltd, company development Paid up RMB20,000,000
in the PRC
ERRAELERAT e EREFAT  ATERENE BETARE20,000,0007
BEIRARE20,0000007
Yantai Redco CP Homes Health ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Provision of Registered RMBL,000,000 - 5% 25%
Industry Investment CO., Ltd. company healthcare Paid up RMBL,000,000
service
in the PRC
BoheREBREES il BRERAT  HRERMEE BERAREL0000007
BREERAT %% BERAREL0000007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMEE
14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAE(8)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 (a) RZEBE—NE+-HA=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B TEMBATIREBE

SmTF - (&)

Qo

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars of issued share BRMBAT  mAEE  miEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
A At EAER R BETRAREHREF A 184 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Shandong Redco Tianrun Real ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 - 60% 40%
Estate Co,, Ltd. company development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
LENEXBREERAT el ERERAT  ATERENE BEEARE10,0000007
BARARE10,0000007
Yantai Redco Kangan Health PRC Limited liability  Provision of Registered RMB2,000,000 - 100% -
Management Company Limited company healthcare Paid up RMB2,000,000
service
in the PRC
BoNRRZEREEERAT  E ERERAE  ATERMRE BEGARS2,0000007
i BARAR 20000007
Jinan Guorong Property PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB10,000,000 - 53% 47%
Company Limited company development Paid up RMB10,000,000
in the PRC
ERERELERAT e BRERAT  FREREME BETARE10,000,0007
BEIRARE10,0000007
Hebei Aohang Real Estate PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB205,000,000 - 40% 60%
Development Co., Ltd. company development Paid up RMB205,000,000 (Note xi)
in the PRC
MEAREHEREERAT el EREEAT  ATERENE BERARE205,0000007 (Hzxi)
BERARE205,0000007
Taizhou Jiakai Real Estate PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 - 30% 0%
Development Co., Ltd. company development Paid up RMB100,000,000 (Note (viii))
in the PRC
PRI BHABEERAT el EREHAT  AREREME BERARE100,0000007 (JHg2E (i)
BAE AR 100,000,007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 14 MBAT (&)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 (a) MZE—NAE+ZBR=+—
are set out below: (Continued) B FEMBATIRFBE

ST @ (&)

Qo

Ownership
Ownership ~ Ownership interest held
Principal interest interest held by non-
activities directly held bythe  controlling
and place by parent (%)  Group (%) interests (%)
Place of Kind of of operation Particulars of issued share BRMBAT  mAEE  miEHE
Name of companies incorporation legalentity — IEEHR capital and debt securities FEMERE HANEEE EaNAN
AGESH At EAER R BETREREREAAL 183 (%) 5 (%) TAREAER (%)
Chongging Wulong Zhongming ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB100,000,000 - 51% 49%
Cultural Tourism Co,, Ltd. company development Paid up RMB100,000,000
in the PRC
EEMHRTENGREARLE  HE BREMAT  AREREENE BERARE100,0000007
BARARM100,000,0007
WWuhan Redco Property Co,, Ltd. ~ PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMBL10,000,000 - 100% -
company development Paid up nil
in the PRC
RENBEEARAT el BREMAT  ARERENE BEEARE10,0000007
BRRER
Hubei Rongyin Renbang PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMBS50,000,000 —25% (Note (ix)) 5%
Real Estate Co, Ltd. company development Paid up RMB50,000,000
in the PRC
MR CAEEERLE el BREMAT  AREREENE BETARE50,000,0007 (PiszE (ix)
BEEARE50,000,0007
WWuhan Fengriangdao Real Estate  PRC Limited liability ~ Property Registered RMB200,000,000 - 70% 30%
Development Co., Ltd. company development Paid up RMB200,000,000
in the PRC
RETBNSEHEREERAT BRERAT  FREREME BERARE200,000,0007
BEEARE200,0000007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019

are set out below: (Continued)

Note:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Although the Group owns not more than half of the equity
interest in Redco Investment (International) Co., Ltd.
(“Redco Investment’), it is able to control the financing
and operating decisions since the Group and the other
shareholder agreed that the directors of the Group have the
casting vote in the Board of Directors’ meeting for resolution
of operating and major decisions. The decision are made by
simple majority. It follows that the Group should consolidate
Redco Investment as a subsidiary in the Group’ s financial
statements.

As the 31% shareholder of Linquan Huaxin Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Linquan Huaxin”) has granted its
voting rights to the Group, the Group owns more than half
of the voting rights in Linquan Huaxin. The decisions are
made by simple majority. It follows that the Group should
consolidate Linquan Huaxin as a subsidiary in the Group's
financial statements.

As the 31% shareholder of Lu an Ruiyuan Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Lu an Ruiyuan’) has granted its
voting rights to the Group, the Group owns more than half
of the voting rights in LU an Ruiyuan. The decisions are
made by simple majority. It follows that the Group should
consolidate Lu an Ruiyuan as a subsidiary in the Group s
financial statements.

As the 31% shareholder of Huaiyuan Yide City Development
Co., Ltd. (“Huaiyuna Yid€”) has granted its voting rights to
the Group, the Group owns more than half of the voting
rights in Huaiyuna Yide. The decisions are made by simple
majority. It follows that the Group should consolidate
Huaiyuna Yide as a subsidiary in the Group's financial
statements.

14 MBATEE)
RW_E—hE+-HA=+—
B’ TEMEBATINFEHR
T ¢ (48)

(a)

PIEE
(i)
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(iv)
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RIS R AR B e AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019
are set out below: (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Although the Group owns not more than half of the equity
interest in Jiangxi Redco Guocheng Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi Redco Guocheng’), it is able to control
more than one half of the voting rights by virtue of the
fact that 2 out of 3 directors of Jiangxi Redco Guocheng
are elected by the Group and the board of Jiangxi Redco
Guocheng is able to direct the activities of Jiangxi Redco
Guocheng which significantly affect the returns. The
decisions are made by simple majority. It follows that the
Group should consolidate Jiangxi Redco Guocheng as a
subsidiary in the Group' s financial statements.

As the 80% shareholder of Jiangxi Chenggao Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd is Jiangxi Redco Guocheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, the Group
indirectly controls more than half of the voting rights of
the Jiangxi Guocheng Shareholders Association, and has
appointed more than half of the directors on the board
of directors. The decisions are made by simple majority.
It follows that the Group should consolidate Jiangxi
Redco Guocheng as a subsidiary in the Group s financial
statements.

As the 18% shareholder of Quanzhou Lixing Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Quanzhou Lixing’) has granted its
voting rights to the Group, the Group owns more than half
of the voting rights in Quanzhou Lixing. The decisions are
made by simple majority. It follows that the Group should
consolidate Quanzhou Lixing as a subsidiary in the Group’s
financial statements.

BB RRIEE

14 MBATEE)

(a)

g
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(v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

14 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019
are set out below: (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(viii) As the 21% shareholder of Taizhou Jiakai Real Estate

(ix)

(xi)

Development Co., Ltd. (“Taizhou Jiakai”) has granted its
voting rights to the Group, the Group owns more than half
of the voting rights in Taizhou Jiakai. The decisions are
made by simple majority. It follows that the Group should
consolidate Taizhou Jiakai as a subsidiary in the Group's
financial statements.

As the 26% shareholder of Hubei Rongxin Renbang Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Rongxin’) has granted its voting
rights to the Group, the Group owns more than half of the
voting rights in Hubei Rongxin. The decisions are made by
simple majority. It follows that the Group should consolidate
Hubei Rongxin as a subsidiary in the Group’s financial
statements.

The English names of PRC companies referred to above in
this note represent management s best efforts in translating
the Chinese names of those companies as no English names
have been registered or available.

These subsidiaries are indirectly held by partially owned
subsidiaries of the Group and thus the effective interests are
less than 50%.

14 MBATEE)
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15

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are

as follows:

Qo

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

T

15 HEmZARNKRE
REHEERBERNERNEER

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

ARETT ARET T

Associates B A ] 292,796 383,463
Joint ventures e 362,076 316,831
At 31 December BR+=ZB=+—H 654,872 700,294

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss are as follows:

Qo

REfRmRAREDITERAT !

2019 2018

—B-NEF “E-N\EF

RMB’ 000 RMB 000

ARETT AREFTT

Associates i l/N=] (54,054) 3,486
Joint ventures g 32,509 73,982
For the year ended 31 December HE+-_A=+—HILEE (21,545) 77,468

NEMEERERAR 2019 FERE

229



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

(CONTINUED)

(a)

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

Interests in associates REE QTR
o 2019 2018
—ZET-hE —E-N\F
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARET T
At beginning of the year FH1]) 383,463 318,193
Additions wE 189,100 66,699
Addition upon step acquisition DREEERAE (W5E27.3)

(Note 27.3) 303 —
Transfer to subsidiaries (Note 27.3) BENB AR (MEE27.3) (210,043) (4,915)
Disposal (Note b(iv)) HE (BIEEDb(iv) (15,973) —
Share of loss, net PE(hESIE) 348

- Gain on bargain purchase —HBREBEE (MEb(i)

(Note b(i)) — 28,588

_ Others —Hfth (54,054) (25,102)
At end of the year FR 292,796 383,463
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 15 DUREZEARRIIEE (8)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Nature of interests in associates (b) MEEATNEDYE

2

Principal
place of % of ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name of entity business indirectly held interest  relationship method
BREEH TECEHY W HEEAREZASL MELE SERE
2019 2018
—E-NE _B\F

Top Glory PRC - 45% Note 27.3 Equity
= FE Mgzt 27.3 %
Ganzhou Baoherun Co., Limited PRC 30% 30% Note i Equity

(BNENRBEERAT)

(“Ganzhou Baoherun”)
BNRNBEEXERAE (TBMNRME)) F Pigsti %
Xianyang Baorong Co., Limited PRC — 75% Note ii & Equity

(RBRRBEERAT) Note 27.3

(“Xianyang Baorong’)
RBRREXERAE (TRHRR) FE Bzt ii & %

Mi¥5E27.3

Lianyungang Hengrun Real Estate Co., Ltd PRC 40% 40% Note iii Equity

(EZRIBREXARAT)

(“Lianyungang Hengrun”)
ETBEREXERAR (TEZHER)) FE Pzt iii EwmE
Jiangxi Chang Da Rui Feng Technology PRC — 20% Note iv Equity

Development Co., Limited

(IRERRENRERBRAT)

(“Jiangxi Chang Da Rui Feng’)
IRERRSHRERERAR (DNIAEARS)) FE Bz iv %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 15 DUREZEARRIIEE (8)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Nature of interests in associates (Continued) (b) MEFEATIMRERE (B)

2

Principal
place of % of ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name of entity business indirectly held interest  relationship method
EERE TECEHY W HEEAREZASL MELE SERE
2019 2018
“B-hE ZE-N\F

Fencheng Xinfei Property PRC 40% 40% — Equity

Development Co., Ltd.

(BHMREMERZEERAR)

(“Fencheng Xinfel")
SRMREMEREERAD (TSHAIA) FE - %
Fengcheng Liding Property PRC 40% 40% — Equity

Development Co., Ltd

(BRTmHREEHERZERAR)

(“Fencheng Liding")
SRmHREMEREERAR TSHNR) FE - %
Fengcheng Hending Property PRC 40% 40% — Equity

Development Co., Ltd

(BEHEREHEREBRAT)

(“Fencheng Hending’)
ENTRREMERZERAR ((SHER]) HE - EmE
Tibet Yunxi Enterprise Management PRC 48% — Note v Equity

Partnership (Limited Partnership)

(EEEECEEEAREE

(BIRE%)) (“Tibet Yunx?)
FEEELXEESR X (BREY) (RRER) HE Pzt %
Funan Anhua Times Real Estate PRC 20% — Note vi Equity

Development Co., Ltd.

(ERZERAEHEREERAT)

(“Funan Anhua”)
ERRERARMEREERAR ((RERE)) FE FigzT vi EwmE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RRIEE

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 15 DUREZEARRIIEE (8)
(CONTINUED)

Nature of interests in associates (Continued) (b) MEFEATINERZMEE (48)

(b)

<

Principal
place of % of ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name of entity business indirectly held interest  relationship method
EERE TEQEME MRS EEZR DL MEEE SERE
2019 2018
“E-hE "T-N\E
Love Care Redco (Shanghai) PRC 20% — Note vii Equity
Senior Care Service Co., Ltd.
(BRENS (L) BERBEERRE)
(“Love Care Redco”)
ERENB (LB BERHERAR FE i &F vii %
(rgREN5))
Huizhou Gaozhao Real Estate PRC 49% — Note viii Equity
Development Co., Ltd
(BMmEtEHERERRAT)
(“Huizhou Gaozhao”)
ENmEtEHEREERAR FE B &F viii %
(MEMEIK)
Huizhou Lijia Real Estate Co., Ltd PRC 33% — Note ix Equity
(BMAEHMERRAR)
(“Huizhou Lijia")
EMNEMERRAR (TEMAE) FE Bif&E ix 5%
Wuhan Huacheng Quanyou PRC 20% — Note x Equity
Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(HREEFEREXERLT)
(“Wuhan Huacheng’)
HEEN2 R EEERAT (THEZE) i Bt x EwmE
Nanchang Junyu Meijia Property PRC 35% — Note xi Equity
Service Co., Ltd.
(FAEBEEZMERBERAT)
(“Nanchang Junyu Meijia”)
BEEEEFYERKERAS FE FisExi %

(MEBEXR)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Nature of interests in associates (Continued)

The associates held by the Group have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares. All of the associates
are private companies with no quoted market price
available for their shares.

Note:

(i)

Ganzhou Baoherun is a limited liability company
incorporated on 19 June 2014. The principal activities
are property development and management in the PRC.
Ganzhou Baoherun is accounted for as an associate
following the acquisition of 20% interest at a consideration
of RMB57,500,000 on 30 September 2017. The Group
acquired additional 10% equity interest of Ganzhou
Baoherun at a consideration of RMB5,357,000 and the
transaction was completed on 30 January 2018. The gain
on bargain purchase of RMB28,588,000 was mainly resulted
from the fact that the Group would bring in industry
expertise to this associate.

The property project of Ganzhou Baoherun consists of three
phases. The Group is entitled to 30% interest in phase 2 and
3 and an additional 21% voting rights of phase 2 and 3 of
Ganzhou Baoherun was granted to the Group by the 70%
shareholder of Ganzhou Baoherun. The decisions of phase
2 and 3 are made by simple majority. Meanwhile, the Group
has no interests in phase 1 only.

Under HKFRS 10, the Company is required to consolidate as
subsidiaries in its financial statements, companies which it
controls. The Company controls another company if it has
(i) power over the other company, (ii) exposure or rights
to variable returns from its involvement with the other
company and (iii) ability to use its power over the other
company to affect the amount of the Company s returns.
All three of these requirements must be met. The Company
has assessed whether to consolidate Ganzhou Baoherun
as a subsidiary in its financial statements in the light of the
provisions of HKFRS 10.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(b) Nature of interests in associates (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(Continued)

As of 31 Decmeber 2019 and 2018, even though the
Company holds 51% voting right of phase 2 and 3 of
Ganzhou Baoherun, the directors of the Company is of the
view, having considered the terms stated in the operating
agreement entered into with the other shareholder and the
way in which the board of the Company governs the affairs
of Ganzhou Baoherun legally, that the Company does not
have power over certain operating business of Ganzhou
Baoherun and is not exposed to or able to obtain variable
returns from that operating segment for the purposes of
HKFRS 10. It follows that the three requirements in HKFRS 10
for consolidation have not been met, the Company should
not consolidate Ganzhou Baoherun as a subsidiary in the
Company s financial statements and should account for
its interest in Ganzhou Baoherun as an associate as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

Xianyang Baorong is a limited liability company incorporated
on 5 September 2011. The principal activities are property
development and management in the PRC. Xianyang
Baorong is accounted for as an associate following
the acquisition of 75% interest at a consideration of
RMB188,783,000 by the Group on 1 September 2017 and the
Group obtained the significant influence on 31 December
2017.

The property project of Xianyang Baorong consists of two
phases. The Group is entitled to 75% interest in phase 2 and
none of the interest in phase 1.
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Nature of interests in associates (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

As of 31 December 2018 and up to the date of step
acquisition, even though the Company holds 75% of the
shareholding and voting right in phase 2, the directors of the
Company is of the view, having considered the terms stated
in the operating agreement entered into with the other
shareholder and the way in which the board of the Company
governs the affairs of Xianyang Baorong legally, that the
Company does not have power over certain operating
business of Xianyang Baorong and is not exposed to or able
to obtain variable returns from that operating segment
for the purposes of HKFRS 10. It follows that the three
requirements in HKFRS 10 for consolidation have not been
met, the Company should not consolidate Xianyang Baorong
as a subsidiary in the Company s financial statements and
should account for its interest in Xianyang Baorong as an
associated company as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, majority of properties for phase 1
project, which the Group has no interest in, were completed
and sold. The remaining operating business was dominated
by phase 2 project, in which the Group is entitled to 75%
interest. As of 31 December 2019, the Company has power
over the remaining operating business of Xianyang Baorong
and is exposed to variable returns from the operating
segment. As a result, the Company should consolidate
Xianyang Baorong as a subsidiary in the Company s financial
statements as at 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(b) Nature of interests in associates (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Lianyungang Hengrun is a limited liability company
incorporated on 15 May 2007. The principal activities
are property development and management in the PRC.
Lianyungang Hengrun is accounted for as an associate
following the acquisition of 40% interest at a consideration
of RMB33,340,000 by the Group and the Group obtained the
significant influence on 22 August 2018.

The property project of Lianyungang Hengrun consists of
three phases. The Group is entitled to 40% interest in phase
3 and none of the interests in phase 1 and phase 2.

On 2 December 2019, the Group agreed to sell 20% interest
of Jiangxi Chang Da Rui Feng, at a cash consideration
of RMB24,380,000, to independent third party and the
transaction was completed on 9 December 2019. Upon the
completion, Jiangxi Chang Da Rui Feng was derecognised
as an associate of the Group and the gain of disposal
of RMB8,407,000 is included in “Other gains, net’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss (Note 7).

Tibet Yunxi is a partnership incorporated on 24 April 2019.
The principal activity is investment holding. Tibet Yunxi is
accounted for as an associate following the capital injection
of RMB170,000,000 by the Group and appointment of 2 out
of 5 investment decision board of Tibet Yunxi and the Group
obtained the significant influence on 24 April 2019. The
Group is able to obtain 14.29% variable returns from the
interest in Tibet Yunxi.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Nature of interests in associates (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Funan Anhua is a limited liability company incorporated
on 18 October 2018. The principal activities are property
development and management in the PRC. Funan Anhua
is accounted for as an associate following the acquisition
of 20% interest at a consideration of RMB10,000,000 by the
Group and the Group obtained the significant influence on 1
January 2019.

Love Care Redco is a limited liability company incorporated
on 25 January 2019. The principal activity is provision of
healthcare service in the PRC. Love Care Redco is accounted
for as an associate following the capital injection of
RMB200,000 by the Group and the Group obtained the
significant influence on 25 January 2019.

Huizhou Gaozhao is a limited liability company incorporated
on 11 September 2019. The principal activities are property
development and management in the PRC. Huizhou Gaozhao
is accounted for as an associate following the capital
injection of RMB4,900,000 by the Group and the Group
obtained the significant influence on 11 September 2019.

Huizhou Lijia is a limited liability company incorporated
on 16 August 2019. The principal activities are property
development and management in the PRC. Huizhou Lijia
is accounted for as an associate following the subscription
of 33% interest by the Group and the Group obtained the

significant influence on 23 December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Nature of interests in associates (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(x)

(xi)

Wuhan Huacheng is a limited liability company incorporated
on 27 June 2006. The principal activities are property
development and management in the PRC. Wuhan Huacheng
is accounted for as an associate following the acquisition
of 20% interest at a consideration of RMB4,000,000 by the
Group and the Group obtained the significant influence on 1
July 2019.

Nanchang Junyu Meijia is a limited liability company
incorporated on 27 June 2006. The principal activity is
provision of property management service in the PRC.
Nanchang Junyu Meijia was an associate held by Top Glory
Group and accounted for as an associate of the Group
following the step acquisition of Top Glory Group on 26 June
2019.

Summarised financial information for the associates

Set out below are the summarised financial information

for Ganzhou Baoherun Co., Limited, Lianyungang Hengrun

and Tibet Yunxi which, in the opinion of the directors, are
material to the Group and other associates (“Others’).

The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented

in the financial statements of the associate and not the
Group' s share of those amounts. They have been amended

to reflect adjustments when using the equity method,

including fair value adjustments and modifications for
differences in accounting policies.
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHIRERRIEE

15
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

(c) Summarised financial information for the associates (b) MEFEATINERZMEE (48)
(Continued)
Summarised balance sheet BEAEXEE
: Ganzhou Baoherun  Lianyungang Hengrun
Co., Limited (Note (i)) (Note (i) Tibet Yunxi Others
BNBAIRESE
BIRATE (L () EEHEE () BEER Ht
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“F-hE Z5-0\& ZF-NE “EF-)\F ZB-NE “Z-\F ZE-hE “Z-N\EF
RMB 000  RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000  RMB 000
AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:
Cash and cash ReRR&SENR
equivalents and ZREIRE
restricted cash 317,035 135,935 15,175 103,580 518 — 332,004 3N,
Other current assets HEREEE Rk
(excluding cash) 2527852 1979495 1,150,071 1072259 280,417 ~ 4588558 1,877,960
Total current assets TEEELE 2,844887 2115430 1,165,246 1175839 280,935 — 4,880,562 2,200,732
Financial current LRRBAR(FTEEESR
liabilities (excluding FEfIZi18)
trade payables) - (134311 - - - — (165,375 (30,000)
Other current liabilities HEtReak (aEEs
(including trade i ShEAE)
payables) (2,429357) (1550,507)  (804,465)  (168676)  (3,389) ~ (4,318,848) (2,113,466)
Total current liabilities ~ EI&ESE (2429,357) (1693818 (804,465) (168676  (3,389) — (4,484,223) (2,143,466)
Non-current assets ERBEE 29,351 1,686 3,744 3,465 50,000 — 4,364 113,393
Financial liabilities SRERE (260,000)  (168393)  (150,000) (180,000} - — (320,000)  (50,000)
Other liabilities =Y (131,643) (75,000} - - - . — (140)
Total non-current FrRBaRaE
liabilities (391,643)  (243393)  (150,000) (180,000} - ~ (320,000  (57457)
Non-controlling RIS
interests - - - - - - - -
Net assets BEME 53238 179905 214525 230,628 321,546 80703 11320
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(CONTINUED)

(c)

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

Summarised financial information for the associates (c) EHEATMBENRMEE (@)
(Continued)
Summarised income statement Wk E
: Ganzhou Baoherun  Lianyungang Hengrun
Co., Limited (Note (i)) (Note (i) Tibet Yunxi Others (Note (i))
BNBAIRESE
BIRAR (M2 (i) ETAER (HEE () BFER Hith (iE (1)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“F-hE Z5-0\& ZF-NE “EF-)\F ZB-NE “Z-\F ZE-hE “Z-N\EF
RMB 000  RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000  RMB 000
AEETR ARETR ARETR AR%Tr AEETR ARETr AEBTR ARET:
Revenue W& - - - - - - 70,389 129,269
Depreciation iE (6,292) (4,316) (532) (610) - - (912) (5,530)
Operating loss meER (96,211)  (45,420) (303)  (218) (5515 (64,038  (43%)
Interest income FEWA 2,150 784 151 36 25 - 3,079 1,699
Interest expenses MERZ (18,837)  (25,116) - (4) - - (22,631) (5,018)
Tax credit )i 28,234 - - - - - 3450 (2,68))
Profit attributable to Flaelley ot yal
non-controlling
interests - - - - - 58 (366)
Total comprehensive PEGEES
loss (84,664)  (69,75)) (15) (2150  (5490) (80,073 (10,723)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 15 DUREZEARRIIEE (8)
(CONTINUED)

(c) Summarised financial information for the associates (c) HEATIMBFEREE (8)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information BRI EE p$ BE
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information B A B B B 7S B R B Y 3
of the associates presented to the carrying amount of the BETL iR AEE R B AT
Group s interests in associates. HEREERTY o

o

Ganzhou Baoherun  Lianyungang Hengrun

Co., Limited (Note (i)) (Note (i) Tibet Yunxi Others (Note (i)) Total
BENEREEE
BIRAE (M3 (i) EZRERE (N () BEER Hh (3 (i) sz

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Z5-NE ZZ-)\E ZB-hE “Z-\F ZZ-NE T \F ZE-NE “Z-\E ZB-hE “T-)\E
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Opening net assets R—-A—BHE

1 January NEEFE 269,696 339,448 73,878 - - — 170,257 123457 513,831 462,905
Initial recognition of NFEDEE

the investment - - - 76,028 310,436 - 57,798 68,848 368,234 144876
Capital injection & = - - - 22,600 - 800 - 23,400 -
Additions upon step PRUCERBARE

acquisition of HE

subsidiaries - - - - - - 866 - 866 -
Transfer to subsidiaries EEZHEANT - - - - - — (129,932) (11,325 (129,932)  (11,329)
Disposal of an associate HE-RHEAT - - - - - - 60,987 — 60,987 -
Loss for the year/period F/HRER (84,664)  (69,752) (152) (2,150)  (5,490) - (80,073)  (10,723) (170,379)  (82,625)
Closing net assets FREEFE 185,032 269,696 13,726 73,878 327,546 - 80,703 170,257 667,007 513,831
Interests in associates REEAENER 55,510 80,909 29,490 29551 169,215 — 19,641 117206 273,856 227,666
Implicit goodwill EanE - 281 3l - 16009 152866 18940 155797
Carrying value IREE 55,510 80,909 32,421 32,482 169,215 - 35,650 270,072 292,796 383,463
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Summarised financial information for the associates
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

As mentioned in Note 15(b)(i), Note 15(b)(ii) and Note
15(b)(iii), the Group does not have power over certain
operating business of Ganzhou Baoherun and Lianyungang
Herun (2018: Ganzhou Baoherun, Xianyang Baorong and
Lianyungang Herun) and is not exposed to or able to obtain
variable returns from those operating segments.

In addition, the Group has contingent liabilities relating to
liabilities relating to those operating businesses which they
have no control or power over when there is any defaults. As
of 31 December 2019 and 2018, there is no indicator of such
defaults and the outflow of resources of the Group is not
probable.

Hence, the summarised balance sheet as of 31 December
2019, shown above is the financial position of Ganzhou
Baoherun and Lianyungang Herun (2018: Ganzhou Baoherun,
Xianyang Baorong and Lianyungang Herun) as a whole while
the summarised income statement for the year ended 31
December 2019 of Ganzhou Baoherun and Lianyungang
Herun (2018: Ganzhou Baoherun, Xianyang Baorong and
Lianyungang Herun) only presented the results of phase 2
and phase 3, and phase 3, (2018: phase 2, phase 2 and phase
3) respectively.

No dividend has been paid or declared by associates to the
Group since the dates of investments and there are no other
contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in
associates.

There are no contingent liabilities or commitment relating to
the Group s interest in the associates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

(CONTINUED)

(d)

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

Interests in joint ventures (d) EEEE#D
: 2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AEEFIT
At beginning of the year F4 241,046 401,886
Addition wE 10,000 —

Addition upon step-acquisition DRUERRE (MI5E27.3)

(Note 27.3) 171 —
Capital injection to a joint ventures HasErEIFE — 500
Transfer to subsidiaries EERENEAT = (235,322)
Share of profit FE( & 32,509 73,982
Net asset attributable to the AEBERNELEEFE

Group' s interest 283,726 241,046
Unrealised gain from the BE—REERERZN

transaction with a joint venture FEIR T (22,380) (22,740)
At end of the year FR 261,346 218,306
Loans due from joint ventures (Note i)  FEWEE B 2EFIE (IEED) 100,730 98,525

362,076 316,831
Note: FIsE -
()  The loans due from joint ventures, Hui Gao Investments (a) MEHREELEESRKRELE

Development Limited and Power Out International Holding
Limited, are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed
repayment terms. The carrying amount approximates their

fair values and are denominated in HKS.

ARABRITRERERE
RRABZERHRE ~ EIE
WREBTEENREMY - IRE
EHEEAFERSE > LB
ToEHE ©
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15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(e)

Nature of interests in joint ventures

Qo

BB RRIEE

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

(e) MEEEEME=MNE

Principal
place of % of ownership Nature of the ~ Measurement
Name of entity business  indirectly held interest relationship method
EERE FEEBME  HEEEEEDEOL MiEtE SERE
2019 2018
—E-hE "BN\F
Redco Industry (Jiangxi) Co., Limited PRC 50% 50% Equity
(“Redco Industry’)
NRBE(IR)BRAS (TNHEEZ)) I EwmE
Power Out International Holding PRC 68% 68% Equity
Limited (“Power Out’)
TRBERERBRAR (TR]) ] %
Hui Gao Investments PRC 51% 51% Equity
Development Limited
BeskEERARRAT FE EmE
Shenzhen Redco Hongye Property PRC 50% 50% Equity
Development Co., Limited
(RN ErEERERRAT)
RMINEEEMEREBRAT FE EmE
Qingyuan Ligao Hongye Real Estate PRC 14% — Notei Equity
Development Co., Ltd.
(BRIEREMEREERAT)
(“Qingyuan Ligao Hongye")
BENEBEMERERRAR TFENEEE)) FE Mozt %
Jiangxi Province Guogao Property PRC 51% — Note ii Equity
Services Limited
(IREEENERTERA)
(“Jiangxi Guogad”)
IABERMEREERAR (HIARER)) ] HEEii EwmE
Nanchang Yingmei Property Co., Ltd. PRC 51% - Note i Equity
(FAEBREMERRRAT)
(“Nanchang Yingmel”)
HERENEERAA(MERE]) I HEEii EwmE
Shijiazhuang Lanting Property PRC 51% — Note iii Equity
Management Co., Ltd.
(BERHHENEERERRD)
(“Shijiazhuang Lanting’)
ERHHENEERERAR ((ARHEHE)) FE BEEiii %

NEMEERERAR 2019 FERE
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Nature of interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The Group has joint control over the above entities under
contractual agreements, and unanimous consent is
required from all parties for all relevant activities of the
entities.

The joint ventures held by the Group have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares. All of the joint
ventures are private companies with no quoted market
price available for their shares.

Note:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Qingyuan Ligao Hongye is a limited liability company
incorporated on 24 July 2019. The principal activities
are property development and management in the PRC.
Qingyuan Ligao Hongye is accounted for as an joint venture
following the capital injection of RMB10,000,000 by the
Group and the Group obtained the joint control on 11
November 2019, which the Group has committed to further
inject until 51% of shareholding is held.

Jiangxi Guogao and Nanchang Yingmei are a limited liability
companies incorporated on 1 August 2016 and 19 April 2017
respectively. The principal activity is provision of property
management service in the PRC. Jiangxi Guogao and
Nanchang Yingmei were joint ventures held by Top Glory
Group and accounted for as joint ventures of the Group
following the step acquisition of Top Glory Group on 26 June
2019.

Shijiazhuang Lanting is a limited liability company
incorporated on 26 August 2019. The principal activity
is provision of property management service in the PRC.
Shijiazhuang Lanting is accounted for as an joint venture
following the subscription of 51% interest by the Group and
the Group obtained the joint control on 11 November 2019.

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

(e)

REETENEEEE (B)

FEEBEENBES D
BEBHA TR TGS
WHA-BRBATETHE
BREVFTETERTET -

AEBRFEEEEEANR
FEVEEBER -FIEGEDR

FHBIARTE > Higfn I
HIHEHE

PyEE

(i) BEISEEAN_Z—HN
FEtB__+OHEFEMRIL
NERSERAT TEF
HATETEHREREEY
¥oMBEAEEBITEARK
10,000,000 % > BEAS
EXCIEAREREAR"
MEAEER _E—IE+—
B+—BBUSE & 26
MAEEEAKEERE—D
ABE BEFASINKRES
ko

(i) IAEEkEmERERDH
RIZ2-—RENB—HBKZ
Tt FEB+NHEMR
THWEREERT TBF
B AERERUYEEER
BellhEeRkEERE
AESERAFANGE DR
£ BER_Z—NERA
“HARESREERSER
BREMFARERTEREAN
R e

(i) ARHEMEASNR_Z—NF
NBZ+7]BFEMMRIIE
REMERF W TEEZHAE
PRI MY X EIERTS - BB
EREEDBEII0N R D
B ARHEMEEFARE
TEAR MAEER-Z
—NE+—B+—HESH
BRI o
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Summarised financial information for the joint ventures

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for Redco Industry and its subsidiaries and Power Out and
its subsidiaries which, in the opinion of the directors, are
material to the Group and other immaterial joint ventures
(“Others”). The information disclosed reflects the amounts
presented in the financial statements of the joint ventures
and not the Group s share of those amounts. They have
been amended to reflect adjustments when using the
equity method, including fair value adjustments and
modifications for differences in accounting policies.

BB RRIEE

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

(f)

BETEMBERBE

UTHEIERAOBERRENW
BAB LUK SRR E M B A E
MBENZEE EFR0E
BN AL REMBHER
BBNNGERZE(THAM) B
EZ -FIRBEENKBREED
EMBREREIINEEE MIF
AEEREZEER BRT
BEFER U RBREREDE
R PRERIEEEE » BIEAFEH
BRETBRERNIEN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 15 DUREZEARRIIEE (8)

(CONTINUED)

(f) Summarised financial information for the joint ventures (f) EECERFEREE (@)
(Continued)
Summarised balance sheet BEEERHEE
Redco Industry Power Out
and its subsidiaries and its subsidiaries Others
NEEERENBAR NRREMBEAT Hith
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE “Z-\E ZE-hE “E-)\F ZZ-hE T-)N\E
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETR AR%TT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Cash and REeRREEEY
cash equivalents 28,757 19,076 1,070 260 6,330 758
Other current assets AtREEE Rl
(excluding cash) 44159 12381 58375 29611 231,597 133639
Total current assets REEELEE 72,916 31,457 59,445 29,871 237,927 134397
Financial current B eIy
liabilities (excluding (FEEBAEMHE)
trade payables) - — - - - -
Other current liabilities Atrgas
(including trade (BHEE BRATE)
payables) (39,679) (18,722)  (259,192)  (160,858) (174,565)  (138,851)
Total current liabilities FBaALE (39,679)  (18722) (259,192) (160,858) (174,565) (138,851)
Non-current assets EREEE 499,502 514172 634,389 419,644 744 373
Financial liabilities Ea =GN
(excluding trade ERENTE)
payables) - —  (341,936)  (337,702) - -
Other liabilities HHEE (45,608) (45608  (48,898) - . -
Total non-current FnREaREE
liabilities (45,608)  (45,608) (390,834)  (337,702) _ -
Non-controlling interests ElFali - - (3) (3) - -
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (Bf)3E 487,131 481,299 43,805 (49,048) 64,106 (4,081)

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2019



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Summarised financial information for the joint ventures

(Continued)

BB RRIEE

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

() EBELEMBEEE (@)

Summarised income statement Was e
Redco Industry Power Out
and its subsidiaries and its subsidiaries Others
NEBERENEAT NEREREAR Hitr
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Z2-hE ZZ-)\& ZB-hE TN\ ZB-hE ZZ)\F
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFT ARBTR AREFRT AR®TR ARETT AR®TR
Revenue Wd 108,433 103,081 - — 11,472 577,570
Depreciation nE (20,649)  (17,249) - - (42) (127)
Operating profit/(loss) mEER/ (1) 5,292 7,558 (1,236) (4,331) (2,568) 164,306
Fair value gain on an REMEATEWE
investment property 1,050 17,251 = - = —
Interest income GISTION 42 118 2 57 15 121
Interest expenses FIERS - (31)  (20,009) (18,032 (7 -
Share of profit/(loss) EE—RAEERERN/
from a joint venture (58 162,994 (11,025) — -
Tax expenses MBS (552) (4313)  (48,898) - 412 (42,867)
Total comprehensive 2ENE/ (FB) 48
income/(losses) 5,832 20,583 92,853 (33,331) (2,148) 121,560
Unrecognised share KEDREMLER / (58)
of profit/(losses) - - 33,353 (22,665) (449) (1,689)
Cumulative unrecognised RErREDRILEE
share of losses - - - (33,353) (2,817) (2,368)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

15 [INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

(CONTINUED)

15 DEz=EARNRE (B)

(f) Summarised financial information for the joint ventures (f) EECERFEREE (@)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information BB BRI ER AR
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information of HETEVBENMENHER
the joint ventures presented to the carrying amount of the DERAERERGETEETD
Group' s interests in joint ventures. REIBEZY -
: Redco Industry Power Out
and its subsidiaries  and its subsidiaries Others Total
BEERENMBAR  HERENBAR Hitr st
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“Z-hE “F-)\F ZE-NE
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETFT ARETT ARETR

ZF\F ZF-E ZF0\F ZF-RE ZT0E
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AEBTT ARETR \EETT ARETR ARETR

Opening net assets R—B—BHF]

1 January BEFE 481,299 460,716  (49,048)  (15,717)  (4,081) 327613 428,170 772,612
Initial recognition of NFERRE

the investment - - - — 70,000 — 70,000 -
Capital injection TE - - - - - 1,000 - 1,000
Addition upon acquisition WEHBARRFE

of subsidiaries - - - - 335 - 335 -
Transfer to subsidiaries ~ EEZEHEAT - - - - —  (454,254) —  (454,254)
Profit for the year ERF 5832 20583 92,85  (33331)  (2,148) 121560 96,537 108812
Closing net EXEE/(Bf)3E

assets/ liabilities) 487,131 481299 43,805  (49,048) 64,106  (4081) 595042 428170
Interests in joint ventures  RAERENER 243,565 240,648 29,786 - 10,375 398 283,726 241,046
Unrealised profit from  E—RAEMEET

the transaction with RAENRER AR

ajoint venture (22,380)  (22,740) - - - - (22,380)  (22,740)
Amount due from Bl—x&EEENE

ajointventure - — 51,706 50,574 49,024 47951 100,730 98,525
Carrying value REE 221,185 217908 81,492 50,574 59,399 48,349 362,076 316,831

No dividend has been paid or declared by the joint
ventures to the Group since the dates of investments.

There are no contingent liabilities or commitment relating
to the Group’ s interest in the joint ventures.

A corporate guarantee provided by the Group to the
subsidiary of Power Out International Holding Limited for a
loan facility. Please see Note 30(c) for details.

BELEBEMIIKRERRALK
TWERAAEEZTHERRE

BETMALAERNGERE
Ay A RIBY A B [EERIE

KEEMPNDBEEKRZRERR
BN E AR REERRE
R EER - ¥ IFF 2 RN
30(c) ©
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 16

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same tax authority. The analysis of deferred tax assets,

BB RRIEE

IEIEFRISHE

BEEFTEMEEREBRERGATTE
BURER S BTN IR E EE SRV AT IR &
REMREN ° BIELEPISRAR—K
IR RREUR BT 77 P BARIR SN o MESERR

net, is as follows: TBEEFENDMOT ¢
2019 2018
—E—hE —E—N\%EF
RMB 000 RMB 000
AR¥ETIT AEREFIT
Deferred income tax assets FEIEFTSMEE
- to be recovered within 12 months — 5 1218 B P[0l 327,709 283,867
- to be recovered after more — BB 1218 B BT
than 12 months 506,905 175,966
834,614 459,833
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTSIR AR
- to be settled within 12 months —#BR 12MEEB RS (237,650) (71,868)
- to be settled after more —BRiBiE 12E B %S
than 12 months (397,256) (214,183)
(634,906) (286,051)
Deferred tax assets, net IEIEAR TR ES B B 199,708 173,782

The movements on the net deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) are as follows:

Qo

EIEFRSMEE /(B8R FENED
W

2019 2018

—T-hE —E-)N\F

RMB 000 RMB 000

ARETT ARETIT

At 1 January =R 173,782 (26,673)
Credited to the consolidated statement REftEmERPIER (EE10)

of profit or loss (Note 10) 377,387 212,552

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 27) B B AT (MisE27) (339,941) (12,097)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28) HEMRB LR (MIEE28) (11,520) —

At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 199,708 173,782

NEMEERERAR 2019 FERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

16 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 16

Deferred tax assets:

Qo

GAC)

Unrealised
profit ~ Taxlosses  Provisions Total
FEREH IR E st
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR®
At 1 January 2018 R N\F—A—H 5,760 53,663 179,508 238,931
(Charged)/credited to consolidated ~ R &#ERED
statement of profit of loss (30BR) /FTA (75) 60,180 158,628 218,733
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHT B AR — 2,169 — 2,169
At 31 December 2018 RIE—N\F
+ZA=+—H 5,685 116,012 338,136 459,833
At 1 January 2019 RZ2—NF—HF—H 5,685 116,012 338,136 459,833
Credited to consolidated statement ~ RAHBZERTEA
of profit of loss 70,190 21,809 290,509 382,508
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 27)  WEEHIB AR (MizE27) — 3,793 — 3,793
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28) HENBAR (P 28) — (11,520) = (11,520)
At 31 December 2019 RIZ2—NF
+=A=+—H 75,875 130,094 628,645 834,614

252

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2019



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
16 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 16 IRIEFRISH ()
Deferred tax liabilities: EEIRIFEE :
: Fair value Fair value
adjustmenton  gainonan
acquisition of  investment Interest ~ Withholding
subsidiaries property  capitalised tax Total
e

HEARR REME

ATERE ATEWE e (rill) R fazt

RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
AERFT  ARETR ARETR ARRTT  ARETR

At1 January 2018 RZZ-N\E—F-H 71,709 89,759 13,692 90,444 265,604
(Credited)/charged to consolidated  REHHEERT (IA) /%

statement of profit of loss (33,107) 21,043 (13,692) 31,937 6,181
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 27)  WEEHBAT (HzE27) 14,266 - - - 14,266
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZB=+-H 52,868 110,802 - 122,381 286,051
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—F—H 52,868 110,802 - 122,381 286,051
(Credited)/charged to consolidated  REHEERT (GIA) /M

statement of profit of loss (90,890) 31,539 - 64,472 5,121
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 27)  IEEMBAT) (Hz27) 343,734 - - - 343,734
At 31 December 2019 PIE-NE+ZR=+-H 305,712 142,341 - 186,853 634,906
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

16 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2019 and 2018, the unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

Qo

16

IEIEFRTSTR (48)

EEFTSMEET N A e R RIE
SRS SR A A mAVER TS
BINEEGERER c R_2—NER_
E-N\E+A=+—8 > KxHEIM
EEEIT

2019 2018
—EB-nE =\
RMB 000 RMB' 000

ARBFTE  ARETT

Expiry date in: fErm 2 ER
2019 “ZE2—NF
2020 —Z2IEF
2021 2%
2022 S
2023 =R
2024 “ZTNF

No expiry date b 4% v H 2R

= 38,730
1,949 24,100
2,954 27,527

11,550 35,789
16,087 62,194
16,630 —
15,345 15,345
64,515 203,685

During the year, tax losses amounting to RMB340,000 (2018:
RMB3,206,000) expired.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, deferred tax on withholding tax is imposed on
declared dividends in respect of profits earned by the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008.

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately RMB45,087,000
(2018: RMB45,087,000) as at 31 December 2019 have not been
provided for in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the Group’ s certain PRC subsidiaries as the Group controls the
dividend policy of these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable
that these temporary differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

FAREBEARE340,0007T
(ZZ—N\F : AR 3,206,0007T)
BEm o

RIFAB R P Bl 1 X PRSI AR A Bo&
B AEENTENBEARE %
TN\EFE—HB—BiEmFaEH mEIKRY
e B RBARTRIIFREILERR

RIB-NF+ZHA=+—HMNIEL
TS EEAas ARE45087,000
T(ZE—N\E : AK¥45,087,000
) BERGHEEERRTH
AEBETHEMNEBARRHEFE
LR ERR R iR ° RESTEE
EHZERENBABENRKREERE
EREF =R A SET &I P] RS 2R o
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™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Qo

BB RRIEE

FEHENBERIME

2019 2018
—ZE-hE “ZT-N\E
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AREFT ARET T

Amount comprised: IEEHE ¢
Land use rights TR
Construction costs and BEMAREREHEE
capitalised expenditures
Interest capitalised BEAREFE

1,159,641 786,156
1,691,556 1,201,986

185,855 145,676
3,037,052 2,133,818

Completed properties held for sale are all located in the PRC.

Qo

FERENEER YRR FE -

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE FELENRETYE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\EF
RMB 000 RMB’ 000

ARETFT ARETT

Within normal operating cycle TERZSERAN
included under current assets FWERBNEE
Amount comprised: FIEEHE
Land use rights T
Construction costs and BEMARERCHE
capitalised expenditures
Interest capitalised BAEFIE

22,896,833 12,350,903

6,353,672 2,523,725
1,719,254 805,500

30,969,759 15,680,128

The normal operating cycle of the Group’s property
development generally ranges from one to two years.

FAEEREPYENESZSEFR—
RAF—EMF o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

18 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE (CONTINUED) 18 HEHEMRZEDME (B)

The properties under development for sale are all located in the FEH SRR R EIIMRE -
PRC.

Qo

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\EF
RMB' 000 RMB' 000

ARETT ARETT

Properties under development for sale: $F{EHERIBIRERYE :
Expected to be completed and available — FBEERHEBIA 12@HBIET

for sale after more than 12 months A E 10,521,984 10,655,370
Expected to be completed and available — FEHIHE 121BH RIET
for sale within 12 months TRl E 20,447,775 5,024,758

30,969,759 15,680,128

Pledged as collateral for the BiliR AR ER G
Group’ s borrowings (Note 23) BIIER @ (FE 23) 19,010,759 8,913,463
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 19 EBSREWEHRIE - HahfEKERIE - 37

OTHER PREPAYMENTS ERHEMBTRIE
: 2019 2018
—2—-hE —ZE-)N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Trade receivables, other receivables B REWEIE - HithEWEIa
and deposits: Ftes -
Trade receivables (Note a, b, c and g) BoEWIEA (fEa b ckg) 359,763 263,682
Other receivables (Note b) HihpEWEhia (M b) 1,620,236 2,119,885
Loan receivables (Note d) FEWER (MIsEd) 20,744 212,412
Receivables in relation to the disposal BRNENEARFIEHEERE
of assets and liabilities held for sales K e BRI E NGRS 150,000 150,000
Deposits with local real estate TS B E I ERY
associations (Note e) %<& (fiste) 401,940 555,791
Deposits with labour department R ENERFIRVIE & 19,112 10,275
Deposits with treasury bureau R EEE 89,391 109,759
2,301,423 3,158,122
Less: provision for impairment on L B ENEIE K
other receivables and deposits (Note f) B2 E R (D (65,260) (50,260)
2,236,163 3,107,862
2,595,926 3,371,544
Prepayments: FARUIE !
Prepaid other taxes HAFRHiRE 661,907 127,688
Prepayments for construction costs B ATRI IR 77,658 29,757
Prepayments for land use rights T AR RETR (I RUIA 924,184 850,865
Prepayments for acquisitions UM B AR TR RIA
of subsidiaries 195,020 45,300
Prepayments for investment MEENR —KREE QT
in an associate RTEIRIE — 60,000
1,858,769 1,113,610
Less:Non-current portion B IEmENER D
- prepayments for investment —MEER—REE
in an associate BFEEIE = (60,000)
1,858,769 1,053,610
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note:

(a)

Trade receivables mainly arise from sales of properties. Proceeds
in respect of sales of properties are to be received in accordance
with the terms of the related sales and purchase agreements.
Credit terms are generally granted to certain customers and the
customers are required to settle the receivables according to the
sales and purchase agreements.

As at 31 December 2018, included in trade receivables and other
receivables were amounts due from Customer A (Note 5(b)) of
RMB193,343,000 and RMB338,143,000 respectively.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the balance sheet dates
based on revenue recognition date was as follows:

Qo

19 EBZEWRIR « HthFEUTRIE - 17
&R EMFBAGRIE(E)

M5

(a)

BRRWNRETIEZEELEBHEY
¥ o HEMEMSRIAGREAHA
BB B 15 R RUREL - —RM S °
ETERERERE MARMER
RIRREE R BERGRIE

RoB—N\E+ZA=+—8 5
B 5 7 WO R L U R
PIREIR 5 ARUIE (R 5(b)) 53 51
# N5 193,343,000 t ;e A R ¥
338,143,000 7T °

B HRURIAREE B (Ui
REAE) IRE DN

2019 2018

—E-hE ZE-N\F

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

ARETT ARET T

0 - 30 days 0&E30XK 233,732 197,142
31-60 days 31260k 73,831 —
61 -90 days 61290k 669 2,370
91 - 180 days 912 180Kk 511 6,111
Over 180 days Bid 180K 51,020 58,059
359,763 263,682

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9. The expected losses rate
is minimal, given there is no history of significant defaults
from customers and insignificant impact from forward-looking
estimates. No provision was made against the gross amount of
trade receivables (2018: Nil).

FEBEREBYHREERFO
SEFTEIERRRE A M TRRAE &S
BIEHER RN FRBTLES
R¥EREH > BRI
FEEM > FIEERBERGE -
iR E 5 FE WER R ABRR (L B
(ZB—N\F 1 8|) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note: (Continued)

(d)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group granted an
unsecured loan of HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB87,620,000)
to an independent third party for a term of 12 months at interest
rates of 11% per annum from 25 July 2018 to 31 October 2018 and
14.875% per annum from 1 November 2018 to 31 December 2019.
Included in loan receivables amount is an interest receivable of
RMB11,786,000 (2018: RMB4,792,000) as at 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group granted
loans of RMB100,000,000 and RMB20,000,000 to 2 independent
third parties respectively. The loans are at interest rates of 10%
and 12%, repayable within 12 months from the date of grant and
secured by the pledge of 20% equity interest of an entity held by
these third parties. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
above stated loans were fully repaid.

The deposits with local real estate associations mainly
included deposits made to PRC government bodies for future
land development and site clearing for the listing-for-sale or
in connection with the retention of the quality for properties
construction as required by the relevant regulations in respect of
the Group' s property development projects.

BB RRIEE

19 EBZEWRIR « HthFEUTRIE - 17
&R EMFBAGRIE(E)

MisE @ ()

(d)

HE_Z-N\E+ZA=t+—HILt
FE> AEEE—RBBEIE=H1
HEIE IR E R 100,000,000 7T (18
BN ARE87,620,0007T) * AHA
RER > RIE—N\FtAZ+Hh
HEZZ—\F+HB=+—HIHH
BREFE 1% B RN IZE—N\
F+—B—HEZE—NE+A8
=+—B I EAREEEFIE 14.875%
FR -RIZ-NAEFE+ZA=+—
B’ st ABRE R & 585 EUF
BEARM11,786,000 T(ZF— N\
F 1 AR¥E4,792,0007T) ©

HE_Z— )/ \F&+ZHA=1+—HIL
FE > AEEDHEMBEILE=
FIRHER AR 100,000,000 7T
B A R 20,000,000 BEREE
AR A10% K 12% ~ BAREH
HEREEsT 12BA REE 1A
FE=FREERN20%KREER
HERIR c HE_E—NE+_H
=t+—HIEFE > FHERBEH

fEiE -

REtEERENRTTE0E
A 1 B U # AR L R Sk st B 3 e
BEMERSEFRNEE > HEE
RRGIAERYELERERRE
AHRMENRRERNIZE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 19 EBSREWEE - HMEWRIE -~ #%
OTHER PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) EREMBETRIE ()
Note: (Continued) N ))
(f) ~ Movements on the provision for impairment for other receivables ()  HiEWGEIEREREEESHMT

are as follows:

Qo

2019 2018

—E-hEF —TN\F

RMB 000 RMB 000

ARBTT AREFT

At 1 January W—HB—H 50,260 31,915
Impairment loss on other HpEWERIE R EEE (M5 6)

receivables (Note 6) 15,000 18,345

At 31 December W+=-B=+—H 65,260 50,260

(g) Trade receivables are secured by the properties sold. The carrying () BIERWRIBEBUESEMEFEIRT

amounts of trade receivables approximates their fair values and
are interest-free.

(h)  The carrying amounts of other receivables and deposits (h)
approximate their fair values and are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

(i) The carrying amounts of the Group’ s trade and other receivables (i)
and deposits are denominated in the following currencies:

Qo

B S RERIANIREER A A TE
BE > WARE o

B 5 RIRIAR RS MEREEEH
NEERE > TAERE - 2RER
RIGERMERE o

FEEE 5 R EMBYRIERIEE
BOBREEMN T EHEE

2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-N\F

RMB' 000 RMB’ 000

AR®ETT AEETT

RMB ARHE 2,559,180 3,249,980
HKS BT 36,746 102,564
USs$ £5T — 19,000
2,595,926 3,371,544
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH 20 HERFSZEVRSRETS
: 2019 2018
—E-hE “E)N\F
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AREBTT ANRETFT
Cash at bank and on hand RITAFHERE 11,094,295 3,661,763
Short term bank deposit (Note a) ZRAIRIT AR (fEE @) — 2,017,100
Cash and cash equivalents RWERIREEEY 11,094,295 5,678,863
Restricted cash (Note b) ZREIIRE (M5t b) 3,965,210 2,186,139
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEBYRZRGRE
and restricted cash 15,059,505 7,865,002
The carrying amounts of the Group’ s cash and cash equivalents FERRERREZBYRZRGEIR
and restricted cash are equivalent to their fair values and are THERESREEATERF LT
denominated in the following currencies: HIGHEEHE ¢
2019 2018
—E-h&E “E-N\F
RMPB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETTT ARETIT
RMB AR 13,154,846 7,808,282
USS ETT 1,851,334 34,989
HKS BT 53,099 9,101
AUD BT 226 12,630
15,059,505 7,865,002
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

20 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH
(CONTINUED)

21

Note:

(a)

These bank deposits are denominated in RMB. The deposits
had an average maturity of three months or less, except that
RMB1,517,100,000 of bank deposits as at 31 December 2018
(2019: Nil) had maturity dates over 3 months and contained an
unconditional cancellable term.

Restricted cash comprises (i) guaranteed deposits for the
mortgage loan facilities granted by banks to purchasers of the
Group' s properties, (ii) guaranteed deposits for constructions
of properties from certain property development companies of
the Group that are required to place certain amount of presale
proceeds of properties in designated bank accounts in accordance
with relevant regulations issued by local State-Owned Land and
Resource Bureau, and (iii) other bank deposits of RMB40,255,000
(2018: RMB97,800,000) (Note 23) that are restricted in use as
collateral for banking facilities of the Group.

The cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash denominated
in RMB and certain cash and cash equivalents denominated
in USS, amounting to RMB47,908,000 (2018: RMB34,340,000),
are deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of such
balances out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

20

RERRESFEMRZRERE
(%)

M5

(@) IRITEFRUARIEE - FHHF
HEPHBAA=ZERIUT HR
TE-NE+A=+—HBAE
#1,517,100,000 75 W ER 1T E R B9
IEEBB=E/ (2T —h&E:
M) BEEEKG B RRE
BRIN ©

(b) ERBIERSEE()MBTRTEE
EYEERNIZBERBEMIFDH
BIfREES ; (i RIE# 5 BIA Lt
BIREERE HERER AR
EIRTROFRETREYEMRS
MENAEENETYEREAT
TEHBYE R R REE ; (i) 5
R AR AERRTRER TR
HthiRITFMRA R 40,255,000 7T
(ZZ2—N\%F: AK®97,800,000
7o) (M5 23) o

DARBSHENRERIREFED R
ZIRFEIIRE RUETFHENE TRE
RIREEEFBEYTTRARE 47,908,000
TT(ZE—/\F : AR¥E34,340,000
70) B RERVIRTT o M EIRIMNE
B RIS RRE T PRIBUF BRI
EERIRRRIERE -

SHARE CAPITAL 21 Rg7
: Share Capital
R
Number Par value
of Share per share HKS 000 RMB 000
BEE] SEE]E TEx ARETT
Authorised: EE
As at 31 December 2018 and 2019 RIE-N\ERZE-NE
+-A=1+-H 10,000,000,000 HKS0.0578 78 500,000 418,899
Issued and fully paid: BETREME
As at 31 December 2018 and 2019 RIE-N\ERZZE-NE
+-B=1+-H 3,551,609,322 HKS0.057#8 7% 177,580 139,632
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMIEE
22 RESERVES 22 f#E
: Share  Exchange  Statutory Merger Other  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserves  eamings Total
BiAEE ERHE  ATHE  AHEE  HtEE  REEA st
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR AR®Tn
At1January 2018 RZE-\E-F—-H 1,241,423 (70,189) 319,881 134,402 (10,226) 2,034,625 3,649,916
Comprehensive income 2ElH
Profit for the year EREF - - - - — 990,747 990,747
Other comprehensive loss Ht2EEE
Currency translations differences ERERER - (217,322) - - - - (217,322)
Total comprehensive income 2EURLE - (217322) - - - 990,747 773,425
Transactions with owners YN
Transfer to statutory reserve BREITHE - - 46,814 - - (46,314) -
Change in ownership interests HERRESBERT
in subsidiaries without RWBARMARER
change of control rIEE) - - - - 9,810 - 9,810
Dividends relating to #IT—+ERIER
2017 final (Note 34) MRS (MEE34) — - — — - (106,548) (106,548)
Dividends relating to B2\ EiAEH
2018 interim (Note 34) MRS (MEE34) - - - - - (88,790) (88,790)
Total transactions with owners, RIREAHEDREEA
recognised in equity MR ZHEHE — - 46,814 - 9,810 (242,152) (185,528
At 31 December 2018 RIE-N\E
+-A=1+-H 1,241,423 (287,511) 366,695 134,402 (416) 2,783,220 42373813
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HMTBEIRRMEE
22 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 22 (& (@)
: Share  Exchange  Statutory Merger Other  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves  earnings Total
fRiniEE ER EERE  AHHEE Hitbkts  REEA fct
RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRT AREFT ARETR
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NnE—A—H 1,241,423 (287,511) 366,695 134,402 (416) 2,783,220 4,237,813
Comprehensive income 2EWE
Profit for the year FRHEF = = = = — 1,034,931 1,034,931
Other comprehensive loss HEth2mEsE
Currency translations differences EREQEDR = (88,161) = = = - (88,161)
Total comprehensive income 2ENGER - (88,161) - - - 1,034,931 946,770
Transactions with owners a2 PNE
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTLTERE = = 146,676 = — (146,676 -
Change in ownership interests EESEREHNERT
in subsidiaries without RIEARFERE
change of control Rxme _ _ _ _ (36,215) - (36,215)
Dividends relating to H2—\EXHEH
2018 final (Note 34) BB (FitsE 34) - - = = —  (106,548)  (106,548)
Total transactions with owners, RIRARREER A
recognised in equity % 548 = — 146,676 = (36,215)  (253,224)  (142,763)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-A=+-H 1241423 (375672) 513371 134400 (36,631) 3,564,927 5,041,820
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMFBIRRMEE
23 BORROWINGS 23 fB®
o 2019 2018
“B—hE —E-N\EF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Long-term bank borrowings (Note a) EHRITE (st a) 3,451,066 3,549,978
11% Senior Notes due 2020 (Note b and i) Z“E"ZFF|H11%

BRER (MsEb ki) = 1,362,773

9.875% Senior Notes due 2021 =" —FEHHF9.875%

(Note ¢ and i) B EE (W5 c ki) 1,243,720 —
Non-current borrowings JERNHAMERR 4,694,786 4,912,751
Short-term bank borrowings (Note a) ZHRAIRITE AR (fsE ) 3,152,063 592,540
6.375% Senior Notes due 2019 “E—-NFERH6.375%

(Note d and i) BREE (Wt d &i) = 2,048,688
8% Private Notes due 2019 (Note e) “E2—NFEHI8%

A (W5t e) - 108,534
11% Senior Notes due 2020 (Note band i) ZZE_ZFZFIHA11%
BEEE (b Ki) 2,150,741 —
13.5% Senior Notes due 2020 (Note fand i) —Z"ZFF|8#713.5%
BEERE (M fKi) 1,746,112 —
11.5% Senior Notes due 2020 (Note gand i) ZZZZFF|HF11.5%
B (Wit g ki) 1,733,549 —
8,782,465 2,749,762
Portion of term loan from bank (Note a) EERARITEME D (st a)
- due for repayment within one year —BR—EREE 3,173,759 3,246,900
- due for repayment within one year —ER—FERER(EE
which contain a repayment BEREEEN
on demand clause 131,683 24,500
- due for repayment after one year —BR—FRER(ET
which contain a repayment BREREERN)
on demand clause — 125,768
Current borrowings BIEAfERR 12,087,907 6,146,930
Total borrowings BRARER 16,782,693 11,059,681
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

R MaE

23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group s bank borrowings as at 31
December 2019 of RMB6,161,583,000 (2018: RMB4,703,953,000),
were secured by certain properties under development for sale
(Note 18) with the carrying amount of RMB19,010,759,000 (2018:
RMB8,913,463,000), an investment property (Note 12) of RMB
504,837,000 (2018: RMB480,777,000) and bank deposits (Note
20) of RMB40,255,000 (2018: RMB97,800,000). The Group s bank
borrowings of RMB3,746,988,000 (2018: RMB2,835,733,000) were
guaranteed by the Company and secured by the Group's equity
interests in certain subsidiaries.

Bank borrowings bear interest from 4.02% to 13.50% (2018: 4.99%
to 13.00%) per annum.

On 23 August 2018, the Company issued 11% Senior Notes due in
2020 with an aggregate nominal value of US$200,000,000 at par
value (the “11% Senior Notes due 2020”). The interest is payable
semi-annually in arrears. The 11% Senior Notes due 2020 will
mature on 29 August 2020, unless redeemed earlier. It is listed on
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Company
has further issued the 11% Senior Notes due 2020 with nominal
value of US$110,000,000 during the year ended 31 December 2019.

On 23 April 2019, the Company issued 9.875% Senior Notes due
in 2021 with an aggregate nominal value of US$180,000,000 at
par value (the “9.875% Senior Notes due 2021”). The interest is
payable semi-annually in arrears. The 9.875% Senior Notes due
2021 will mature on 2 May 2021, unless redeemed earlier. It is
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

23

El-rA (ﬁﬁ)

MyEE

(a)

RZE—hE+ZRB=Z+—
B ZAEEMRBITERA A
R#6,161,583,000 (&
— N F: A E #4,703,953,000
) UETREEAARK
19,010,759,000 7 (Z & — )\ &£ :
ANE#8,913,463,000 7T) B9F1EH
ERMERYECTEL) ~ REY
2 (ff 5% 12) A R ¥ 504,837,000 7T
(ZE—NEFE : AR 480,777,000
70) KR AT 7 (M 5E20) AR
#%40,255,0007c(Z & — J\ F:
A B #97,800,0007T ) 1E # #7 o
AEBNRTETRAARE
3,746,988,000c (ZZE—N\F : A
FR#2,835,733,0007T) EHAAF
R THAEERETHEBAR
BIRGREVEIRIR ©

IRITEMRIZ4.02% £ 13.50% (ZF
— A 1 4.99% = 13.00%) B9 FEF
K5t e

RIZ—N\FNBZ+=H" &2
ERAEEEIT ST FRINE
M {& 200,000,000 £ T 11% B HE
BZZ_ZERNHHIINELE
1) o FIBBRESFFHRBI(T -
FRIERAIER > BRI ZEZZFE

LY ELAZERNR - ZZF
NBZ+ N BEIH o ERHiniEE
ERGBRAB LT HEZT
—NE+ZBE=+—HLEFE " K
NEBE—FEHT T TFE
FYE 8 110,000,000 % 75 11% 18 4t

RIZE—AEMNAB_+=H0" &2
SEERT S R
ME1& 180,000,000 375 9.875% 1&4¢
ER(ZE :—ﬂE?él HA9.875% 1B
B - FMEERSFFERES
I o BRIERAIEER] » TR -2 " —
FEHRO.8TSN B A EBFN T
T—HERBZHEIH o ERENE
BERXABMARAT L o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

On 23 February 2018, the Company issued 6.375% senior notes
due in 2019 with an aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000
at par value (the “6.375% Senior Notes due 2019”). The interest
is payable semi-annually in arrears. The 6.375% Senior Notes due
2019 was repaid on 27 February 2019 upon maturity.

On 1 August 2018, the Company issued 8% private notes due in
2019 with an aggregate nominal value of US$15,800,000 at par
value (the “8% Private Notes due 2019”). The interest is payable
semi-annually in arrears. The 8% Private Notes due 2019 was
repaid on 31 August 2019 upon maturity.

On 10 January 2019, the Company issued 13.5% Senior Notes due
in 2020 with an aggregate nominal value of US$250,000,000 at par
value (the “13.5% Senior Notes due 2020”). The interest is payable
semi-annually in arrears. The 13.5% Senior Notes due 2020 will
mature on 21 January 2020, unless redeemed earlier. It is listed on
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

On 3 December 2019, the Company issued 11.5% Senior Notes due
in 2020 with an aggregate nominal value of US$250,000,000 at par
value (the “11.5% Senior Notes due 2020”). The interest is payable
semi-annually in arrears. The 11.5% Senior Notes due 2020 will
mature on 8 December 2020, unless redeemed earlier. It is listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

SHIAFERRM T
23 fEF(E)
BisE ()

(d) %:%—/\E_E_%—:E ZiN/N

BREEZEIT T -NF R
& 300,000,000 %756 375% B85

EHE(IZE— ﬂfﬁ ZIHA6.375% 18
5'&?'3?‘?‘?) o FSANSFEMES
o ZZ—NFHH6.375% B %
SEERZZ-NAF-A-+tH
FHREFEE o

RIZZE-N\FNA—H > FxRFE
EEZEFT T -NFHNEEE
15,800, 000%7‘58%%%?#‘“7
Z-NFEHHNMERE)) °
BRANREGHFFHRE(T - fﬁfﬂ
E HHSNMERBEENR TN
FNA=+—RHEMREE -

R_Z— jLE EJrEI PN/NSIES 7
HEZTZZZZFIHNER
f8250,000,000 & 7T 13.5% 1B ft &
BT BFEHF13.5% EBRE
1) o MEENSHFRESZN -
FRIERAIER > BRI ZEZZFE
A3 SN BAZRBRN_-ZZZF
—HBZ+—HBEH o ERHINEE
HERZBRAB LT o

RIZE-NE+ZA=8"’4&RFH
REEFT S _TFIHNER
18250,000,000 % 7t 11.5% & 5t &
BCTE2T2FRELILS%ELR
#1) - MEEANSFFREA -
FRIFtE Al BEE] 7rE'J_%_%fﬂI
HIL5% BARBRN —2_2F
+ZBN\BEE - HREINHKES
RHFARAB L o

NEMEERERAR 2019 FERE

267



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

R MaE

23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes

(h)

: (Continued)

The Company, at its option, can redeem the 9.875% Senior Notes
due 2021, the 11% Senior Notes due 2020, the 13.5% Senior Notes
due 2020 and the 11.5% Senior Notes due 2020 in whole or in part
prior to their maturity at the redemption price as defined in the
agreements of these notes. The early redemption option of the
9.875% Senior Notes due 2021, 11% Senior Notes due 2020, the
13.5% Senior Notes due 2020 and the 11.5% Senior Notes due
2020 is regarded as embedded derivatives not closely related to
the host contract. The directors consider that the fair value of the
above early redemption options was insignificant on recognition
and at 31 December 2019 (2018: same).

The Group’s senior notes as at 31 December 2019 totaling
RMB6,874,122,000 (2018: RMB3,519,995,000) are guaranteed by the
Company and secured by the Group’ s equity interests in certain
subsidiaries, and subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating
to certain of the Group’s financial indicators. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants.

The amounts based on the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements and the maturities of the Group’s total
borrowings at the respective balance sheet dates (i.e. ignoring
the effect of any repayment on demand clause) are shown
below:

Qo

&R ()
ERC)

(h) ARBTETEERZEZEN
BRI EBRBIUBERTE
MELDEREN _ T - —F3H
9.8T5%EREE s ZE T F 5|
1% EBEEE s ZE 2253
H13.5% BAERR S -SFE|
HH11.5% B ER - REEL -
T —F R8N BT N —
TZTERFEIPIINELEEE Y -
TEFIHRI3SNELEERER_E
TR 11.5% BEERMNER
EWRAE T SREBVIRIANER
ARTTETH - EFBA RIE
—hE+ZH=+—H"’ LHiRe:
EOERE ATFELAER(Z
T—\F  HRE) °

i) HXEBR_ZET—HLE+_A
S+ HNELEEZERGHRHARKE
6,874,122,000c (ZE—N\F . A
F2#£3,519,995,000 ) EFHASAE
R WHAERRETFTWBAR
HIREIEIRIR > MAEERAEL
R ERTRAERE TS
IRERIMNREY - AEBRTHERHE
BFZERONER

AEENE BEE QNERBERNE
B|ERER BRI EERB )
R & i HAPR (B B RS iR ZREIE
HRRBIRE) HIIWT -

2019 2018

—B-hE “E-N\E

RMB’ 000 RMB 000

ARBTT AREBFT

Amounts of borrowings that are repayable: B T7IEAREBNERSEE :

- Within 1 year —1%FR 12,087,907 6,021,162

- Between 1 and 2 years —1E2% 2,558,545 4,553,060

- Between 2 and 5 years —2FESH 2,136,241 485,459

Total borrowings fBFABER 16,782,693 11,059,681
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings REBRITERNIREEREATE

approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is not
significant or the borrowings carrying floating rate of interests.

BE  RRARTERENEELAEXR
HERILBFIREAR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

23 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 23

&7 (48)

The Group's borrowings are denominated in the following RERBERZE T GEEE !

currencies:

Qo

2019 2018
—E-h=E B N\FE

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

ARETT ARETIT

USssS =57 9,300,170 5,960,995
RMB AR 7,346,406 4,948,417
HKS HIT 136,117 150,269
16,782,693 11,059,681

RZZ2—hE+ZA=+—H’ &
EEEBEEEY RTEFRK
BLEENMERELNAARE
18,843,540,00070(Z & — )\ &£ :
A R %9,770,255,0007C ) o X @
— B RFHARMENAARE
2,060,847,0007c (ZZE—N\FE : AR
#1,001,256,000 75) ©

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had aggregate facilities of
approximately RMB18,843,540,000 (2018: RMB9,770,255,000)
for overdrafts, bank loans and senior notes. There were
unused facilities of approximately RMB2,060,847,000 (2018:
RMB1,001,256,000) as at the same date.

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 BHREMERIE

Qo

2019 2018

—Z—hE —ZE-N\EF

RMB’ 000 RMB 000

ARETT AREBFT

Trade payables (Note a) B R EAIE (MEEa) 3,421,830 2,372,836
Accruals and other payables (Note b) FEST & R R H eI =18 (FI5E b) 7,069,553 3,079,036
Other taxes payables HFEIIRIE 1,254,228 709,872
Dividend payables eI R 36,392 52,337
Salary payables EftEE 13,909 7,004
Interest payables FEATFIE 219,623 97,881
Rental deposits received BWRE%EE 4,651 4,566
12,020,186 6,323,532
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HMTBEIRRMEE
24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 24 BEREMESRIE(E)
Note: BEE -
(a)  The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date (a) BIZEMREZREZHHNRED
was as follows: Mrans -

Qo

2019 2018
—E-hE B-N\F
RMB' 000 RMB 000
AREFT AREFTT
0 - 30 days 0&30K 2,979,396 1,984,378
31-60 days 31E60K 61,965 72,850
61 -90 days 61EF 90K 94,626 90,922
Over 90 days BiE 90X 285,843 224,686
3,421,830 2,372,836
(b)  The other payables included an advance of RMB2,313,067,000 by HEMENHEBEBEERLACE
(2018: RMB1,872,137,000) from Customer A (Note 5(b)) for investing 5(b)) #E ot B £ [ ¢ & R [F B &%
a potential property development project to be developed in the BIEYEEREEFENENIE
PRC with the Group. AR#2,313,067,000 5 (ZZ— N\
£ AR®1,872,137,0007T) °©
The advance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no FENRIEBEIEE - Rt R ERE
repayment term. FREAMR ©
(c)  The carrying amounts of the Group’ s trade payables approximate () HRIEHRE > AEBEBEZENR
their fair values due to their short maturities. THREEER AT EEE
(d)  The carrying amounts of the Group’ s trade and other payables are (d) ZTEEEZEEMENTIENRE
denominated in the following currencies: BEUTHIEREEHE !

Qo

2019 2018
—E-hE —EN\F

RMB' 000 RMB’ 000

ARETT AREFT

RMB ARHEE 11,801,120 6,323,532
USs$ e 219,066 -
12,020,186 6,323,532
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25 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
schedule as established in contracts, payments are usually
received in advance of the performance under the contracts
which are mainly from sales of properties. Such proceeds from
customers are recorded as contract liabilities before the relevant
sales are recognised.

(a)

(b)

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at 1 January 2019 is approximately
RMB3,836,116,112 (2018: RMB3,726,643,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Unsatisfied contracts related to the sales of properties

As at 31 December 2019, approximately RMB9,362,202,000
(2018: RMB7,471,196,000) of unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from the property sales are
expected to be recognised within twelve months period,
whereas approximately RMB11,397,080,000 (2018:
RMB5,130,385,000) of unsatisfied performance obligations
resulting from the property sales are expected to be
recognised after twelve months.

25

BB RRIEE

BHRMR

AEERBEOAHENEAZRER
WEE PRI —fRETEERE
VIEIHERNGRIRIREGRR - ZFE
FFrSRIER AR BRI iR S
BHERE-

(a)

MENEEREEIKRE

HE-Z—NEF-A=+—
ALERE S AZE—NE—
A—BaNaEERNERE
W34 7 N\ R 3,836,116,112
TECBE—NE AR
3,726,643,0007T) °©

BRHEMENKREITEL

RZE2E—N&F+ZR=+—
B kEYVEHBENKRTRE
HETLHIARE9,362,202,000
TCZTE—-NF: AR
7,471,196,0005% ) 78 &t #&
+ZEBHREAER > mka
MEBENRTRBOEEN
AR#11,397,080,000 75 (— =
—)\f . AR¥5,130,385,000
7o) FEEHR I+ BB B o
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B HIHBERRMEE
26 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 26 AR RERMEE
(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash generated (a) ERGEFEKESERBFIREF
from operations: BEZERHER -

Qo

2019 2018
—E-hE “E-N\E
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AREBTT AREBFT
Profit before income tax BRPTISIR AR 2,640,985 2,213,472
- Depreciation of property, plant —E -~ BERSEITE
and equipment 18,998 9,930
- Amortisation of intangible assets —EEEERH 3,740 —
- Finance income —REWA (122,486) (95,025)
- Finance costs — B 19,981 71,662
- Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HERB AT W= (113,821) (304,271)
- Gain on disposal of investment —HER—KEE
in an associate NEREN N E (8,407) —
- Gains on bargain purchase arising — U R B A B PR
from acquisition of subsidiaries ELXZEEBENRR (72,912) —
- Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property,  —HEYE « BEK
plant and equipment REEE (W) 5,400 (351)
- Fair value gain on investment —REMEATEWT
properties (63,723) (84,172)
- Fair value gain on investment —EBREEFFEEN
properties upon transfer from e aky E
properties under development KREMELTEW
for sale (62,432) —
- Share of loss/(profit) of investment — (USRI EARZ
accounted for using KERE (aF)) 358
the equity method, net 21,545 (77,468)
- Impairment loss on other — HAEWCRIERY R E RS 18
receivables 15,000 18,345
- Re-measurement gains on interests —EMstEUEEE
in investments accounted ARz B W
for using the equity method (286,634) (14,999)
- Realisation of unrealised gain from —HRE—REERHE
the transaction with R AN RT3
ajoint venture (360) (300)
- Exchange differences —ERERE 31,323 136,710
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BHMFBIRRMEE
26 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 26 AHESR=RMEEGE)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash generated (a) FAGFHAKEFRFRES
from operations: (Continued) HZEMHER . (8)
o 2019 2018
—2—hE ZE-N\EF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Operating profit before working EEETEEAIRNSE R
capital change: 2,026,197 1,873,533
- Completed properties held for sale —FEHENBEB T Y= (903,234) (569,726)
- Properties under development —FELEMRRERYE
for sale (7,347,772) (6,851,732)
- Contract assets —BNEE — (700,000)
- Trade and other receivables and — B REMENRIE
prepayments FFENFIE 1,797,763 892,924
- Contract liabilities =Y Oh=L 8,907,357 7,169,457
- Receipts in advance — FEURERRR — (4,673,042)
- Trade and other payables — B REMEMRIE 134,865 2,004,132
- Restricted cash —ZRHIRE (1,836,616) (769,889)
Net cash generated from/ KERRE, (FrR) R34
(used in) operations 2,778,560 (1,624,343)
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B HMTBEIRRMEE
26 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 26 AHRERERME(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds (b) REHRERERDP HE
from disposals of property, plant and equipment ME- - BEKRZBEREME
comprise: fF

Qo

2019 2018

—Z-hE —E—)N\F

RMB’ 000 RMB 000

ARETT ARET T

Net book amount (Note 11) BRmEFE (MEE11) 10,241 296

Net (loss)/gain on disposals of property, HEYE - MEKRRE

plant and equipment (Note 7) (B518) W $28 (M9aET) (5,400) 351
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYE - BERRE

plant and equipment FriSRIE 4,841 647
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AHMEEERRMIE
26 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 26 AfHRERERMNE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities (c) REMEEENEEHIR
: Liabilities from financing activities
RERMEEBNERE
Amounts to
non- Amount  Amounts to
Dividend controlling due to Joint
payables Borrowings interests anassociate  ventures Total

Eft  BE-X
SRR BERF  ENSE
RS i EmmE wE  GENE st
RMB' 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
ARBTR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETR ARET:

As at 31 December 2017 RIE—tE
+-B=+-H 6,907 7,243,219 116,414 - 140,209 7,506,749
Advances from non-controlling ~ REFEHIEERRR
interests — — 2,007,245 - — 2,007,245
Advances from joint ventures REGELERT - - - - 129,241 129,041
Advance from an associate RE-FEEREIEH - - - 66,000 - 66,000
Proceeds from bank and other RITREMESFETIE
borrowings — 4572845 - - — 4572845
Repayment of bank and other BERTRAMER
borrowings - (3,037,142 - - - (3,037,142)
Issuance of 6.375% Senior ¥I_2-NE
Notes due 2019 HI#6.315% B 2E — 2277435 - - — 2271435
Issuance of 11% Senior Notes T TZRYES
due 2020 1% BLEE - 1310,388 - - - 17310,388
Repayment of 7% Senior Notes ~ EBEZE—/\FZ#
due 2018 % B2 — (1,799,231) - - —(1,799,231)
Dividend paid BHBE (149,908) - - - — (149.908)
Payment for repurchase of 6.375% BREI-Z—AE
Senior Notes due 2019 F#6.375% Bk
Bl D - (6,748) - - - (6,748)
Other non-cash movements EfIEReEE 195,338 130,147 - — (245,694 79,791
Foreign exchange adjustments SMEREE - 368,768 - - — 368,768
As at 31 December 2018 PRI\
+-B=+-A 52,337 11,059,681 2,123,659 66,000 23,756 13,325,433
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

26 NOTETO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

26 BHEZMERME (B

(c) REMEFTINEBHRK

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities

(Continued)

Qo

(#8)

Liabilities from financing activities

REMEEHNER
Amounts to
non- Amount Amounts to
Dividend controlling due to Joint
payables Borrowings interests anassociate  ventures Total
Eft  ER-%
JFEHIE BEAR EEEE
EfRE R BERE 7E hERE fazt
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2018 RIZ-N\%F
+-B=+-H 52,337 11,059,681 2,123,659 66,000 23,756 13,325,433
Advances from non-controlling ~ REFFERIEERRS
interests — — 1484858 - —  1,484858
Advances from joint ventures REGELERT - - - - 21,020 21,020
Advance from an associate RE—FHERTEH - - - 419,280 - 419,280
Proceeds from bank borrowings  $RfTEHFTEUE — 7,663,125 — - — 7,663,125
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTRER - (5,934,044) - - — (5,934,044)
Issuance of 13.5% Senior ¥TEITE
Notes due 2020 HE 135N EBLERE — 1,697,536 — - — 1,697,536
Issuance of 9.875% Senior Notes &7 -F_—4&
due 2021 BIER9.875% BRER — 1,201,353 - - — 1,201,353
Issuance of 11.5% Senior BTTZIZR
Notes due 2020 FE1L 5%1@6%& — 1,746,810 — - — 1,746,810
Additional issuance of 11% LEpIS < e S
Senior Notes due 2020 il ll%@% i - 726,546 - - - 726,546
Repayment of 8% Private Note BE_T-NE
due 2019 FHN EER — (108,675) - - - (108,675)
Repayment of 6.375% Senior EBE_Z-NE
Notes due 2019 FIH6.375% BLER - (2,021,729) — - — (2,021,129
Dividend paid EfiRE (184,035) - - - —(184039)
Other non-cash movements Jﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ@] 168,090 600,000 1,537,584 - — 2,305,674
Foreign exchange adjustments ShEEFREE - 152,090 - - — 152,090
As at 31 December 2019 RIZ-NE
+ZA=+-§ 36,392 16,782,693 5146101 485280 50,776 22,501,242
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 27 KEHBASE
271 EEWE

YR A RTIL R5 f2 H E R E

27.1 Assets acquisitions

(a)  Acquisition of Hebei Aohong Real Estate Development Co., (a)

Ltd

On 1 February 2019, the Group completed the
acquisition of 40% equity interest of Hebei Aohong
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (;AI30R R = ih &
FEABERAR) (“Hebei Aohong’) at a consideration
of approximately RMB82,000,000. Hebei Aohong is
principally engaged in property development in Hebei
province and holds a parcel of land in Shijiazhuang,
Hebei. As the 11% shareholder of Hebei Aohong
has granted its voting rights to the Group, the
Group controls more than half of the voting rights
in Hebei Aohong and appointed 3 out of 5 directors
of the board of Hebei Aohong. As the passing of
all resolutions of the board of directors of Hebei
Aohong only requires a simple majority decision, the
Group is deemed to have control over Hebei Aohong
and classified it s investment in Hebei Aohong as a
subsidiary with its results being consolidated.

AR5

RZZ—NE-R—H"
FEBURBUOARE
82,000,000 7T5E A% W AT
ILRBEHERERRA
8 (58] 36 878 1) 8940%
AR o LIS E EZ A
IEENEYERE  UE
B—IRAIFSAIEE A G
Byt o EFAIEEIBRY
1N%KREREBAERE
HEIG TR > BAERE
HA B RIS R IE —F &
R WEZEHILERE
EFSEhREFZPN=
# o ARIBIBAILRIEE
FEFARZRRZEREY
BEZHORTE * NEEK
RATA IR IR A ]
7 WA E A IR B
RENEAWBRBRE
FERE AR -
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SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.1 Assets acquisitions (Continued)

(b)  Acquisition of Taizhou Jiakai Real Estate Development

(c)

Co., Ltd

On 10 June 2019, the Group completed the
acquisition of 30% equity interest of Taizhou Jiakai
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (=M Z & =i E
B2 B AE) (“Taizhou Jiakai’) at a consideration
of approximately RMB30,000,000. Taizhou Jiakai
is principally engaged in property development
in Jiangsu province and holds a parcel of land in
Jiangyan District, Jiangsu. As the 21% shareholder
of Taizhou Jiakai has granted its voting rights to
the Group, the Group controls more than half of the
voting rights in Taizhou Jiakai and appointed 3 out
of 5 directors of the board of Taizhou Jiakai. As the
passing of all resolutions of the board of directors
of Taizhou Jiakai only requires a simple majority
decision, the Group is deemed to have control over
Taizhou Jiakai and classified it s investment in
Taizhou Jiakai as a subsidiary with its results being
consolidated.

Acquisitions of Hefei Lianggao Real Estate Co., Ltd.

On 2 September 2019, the Group completed the
acquisitions of 51% equity interest of Hefei Lianggao
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (RIEREEXERAF) (“Hefei
Lianggao”) at a consideration of approximately
RMB25,500,000. Hefei Lianggao is principally engaged
in property development in Hefei.

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.1 BEWE (&)

(b)

(c)

KB Z N 5E 1 ZH E R
BIRAAE]

RIZE—NERB+H"
FEBURBUOARE
30,000,000 yo5E Ak W g 2=
MNEIEHERERRA
8l (Mg M & 1) B930%
IRt - ZRMBHEENT
HRENEYERE  UE
BN IRE=EE
By o IR MEHRY
21% KRR B A A< 5 E %
HEIG TR > BAERE
HlZRMNEFBIBIB—F&
R TEZERME
EFEFRREFIPN=
F o ARNIBIBRMNEIE
FEFARZRRZEREY
BEZHORTE * NEEK
RAN TN B ERIES]
o WRERFMNEIN
RENEAWBRBRE
FERE AR -

KB EIEREEEERA
i

RIE-NENAATH
AEBEUABOARSE
25,500,000 STSERL B &
EREEXERAR(E
MBS 1) BI51%R # -
EERSEER GRS

ESEE R
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27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.1 Assets acquisitions (Continued)

Apart from the above, the Group acquired a number of
property development project companies. The directors
of the Company consider that these subsidiaries acquired
during the year were insignificant to the Group and thus
the individual financial information of these subsidiaries on
the acquisition date was disclosed as “Others’ in aggregate
amount.

As the above newly acquired companies did not operate
any business prior to the date of acquisition, the Group
considers the nature of the acquisitions as acquisitions
of assets in substance and the consideration should be
attributable to the individual assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

BB RRIEE

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.1 BEWE (&)

PRUAEPrIEE > REBWES
B EEREE AT - ZAH
EXERR REAWBNZS
MBARHAEEMSBIE
R HIbzEWEBAB R UE
HEIER B ERE TR
WEERTEAM ) o

AR LR A R R R B
HIRIARBREETMES &%
B WBEENMEEDWE
BEEE > MRERRIER
PR EEKRPIEEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 27 WHEMIB AT (8)
27.1 BEEWKEE (B)

TREENWIEEARRES
HEMAE  FIRBEENA

27.1 Assets acquisitions (Continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for the acquisitions, the fair value of assets acquired and

liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. TEERPIEEAR
o Hebei Taizhou Hefei
Aohong Jiakai Lianggao Others Total
AILRE RMEE L Httr st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Consideration paid as at PERBEARE
acquisition date 82,000 30,000 25,500 88,000 225,500
Recognised amounts of EERTG N
identifiable assets acquired AESENE
and liabilities assumed: REE .
Property, plant EN e
and equipment 6 268 242 749 1,265
Deferred income tax assets ELFEHREE 923 164 - 3,536 3,793
Amounts due from TR E R R RIE
non-controlling interest 51,000 233,506 - - 284,506
Prepayments, deposits and BTE e
other receivable REMEW IS 26,986 199,084 314 272,524 498,908
Properties under RS
development 553,322 805,849 781,023 1,917,389 4,057,583
Cash and cash equivalents REfREZEY 4,803 36,317 21,977 239,919 303,016
Borrowings RN - - - (600,000) (600,000)
Other payables EAE 2B (427,.228) (263 (1535%)  (LALLTT0)  (2,592,817)
Amounts due to BRI RTE
non-controlling interest - (1,174,925) - (90,218)  (1,265,143)
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BT ERRMIEE
27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 27 WHEEMEBAT ()
27.1 Assets acquisitions (Continued) 27.1 BEEWEE (48)
: Hebei Taizhou Hefei
Aohong Jiakai Lianggao Others Total
bl bl EMEHE BRES Hith Bt

RMB 000 ~ RMB 000  RMB'000  RMB 000  RMB 000
AREBTR  AR®TR ARETR  ARETT ARETR

Total identifiable net EAEEE
assets acquired BEEHE 208,982 100,000 50,000 332,129 691,111

Less: Non-controlling NGk

interest initially SREOFEERIM

recognised as at 1t

acquisition date (125,389) (70,000) (45000 (244010)  (463,899)
Less: Gains on bargain . EBEENE

purchase (Note 7) R (1,593) - - (119) (1,712)
Net assets acquired kR EESE 82,000 30,000 25,500 88,000 225,500

Analysis of net outflow/(inflow)  EEUEHBATN
of cash and cash equivalents BeRes

in respect of acquisition BYIRE/ (A
of subsidiaries: bt SLOpALIIR
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 82,000 30,000 25,500 88,000 225,500
Less: Cash and cash - TRERE R

equivalents acquired REEEY (4,803) (36,317) (21,977) (239,919) (303,016)
Net cash outflow/(inflow) Ba&R,/ (fA) 38 77,197 (6,317) 3,523 (151,919) (77,516)
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SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.2 Business combinations

(a)  Acquisition of Linquan Huaxin Real Estate Development

Co., Ltd.

On 2 April 2019, the Group completed the acquisition
of 20% equity interest of Linquan Huaxin Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (B8 R 5% ZE £ = ith = 5
AR/ F) (“Linquan Huaxin”) at a consideration
of approximately RMB4,000,000. Linquan Huaxin is
principally engaged in property development in Anhui
province and has a property project developing in
Linquan District, Anhui. As the 31% shareholder of
Linquan Huaxin has granted its voting rights to the
Group, the Group controls more than half of the
voting rights in Linquan Huaxin and appointed 2 out
of 3 directors of the board of Linquan Huaxin. As the
passing of all resolutions of the board of directors
of Linquan Huaxin only requires a simple majority
decision, the Group is deemed to have control over
Linquan Huaxin and classified it's investment in
Linquan Huaxin as a subsidiary with its results being
consolidated.

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.2 #7464

(a)

KB R AR B E R
HERAF

A TE-NAFMATH”
FEBURBUOARE
4,000,000 7T 5 A% U B B
RGREERMEREAR
RAB(ERREZ DN
20%PeHE - ERRIEZTE
REefWatEmERE
WHER—TRUR ZHEER
SRERNMEREIERE - B
REREZNIINRER
ERAEERHAERE
1 AEREIERRE
ENBE—FKRER T
EEERREREEFE=
REFEZPHIME o |
RBRRESEEFTEMA
RBEFREAFLHEZHN
RIE  AEBERRBIER
RESHAEHIE I
HRNBRREENRENSE
B ARREERRS
NER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 27 WHEEMEBAT ()
27.2 #4565 (8)

(b) WHESERGEEEER

27.2 Business combinations (Continued)

(b)  Acquisition of Hefei Zhonghe Project Management Co.,

Ltd and its subsidiary

On 25 July 2019, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest of Hefei Zhonghe Project
Management Co., Ltd. (& ER & EEESEERAQ
B]) (“Hefei Zhonghe”) which holds 20% equity
interest of its subsidiary, Lu an Ruiyuan Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (REZHREEXEEARAT)
(“Lu an Ruiyuan”) at a consideration of approximately
RMB20,000,000. Hefei Zhonghe is an investment
holding company, while Lu an Ruiyuan is principally
engaged in property development in Anhui province
and has a property project developing in Hefei
District. As the 31% shareholder of Lu an Ruiyuan
has granted its voting rights to the Group, the Group
controls more than half of the voting rights in Lu" an
Ruiyuan and appointed 2 out of 3 directors of Lu" an
Ruiyuan. As the passing of all resolutions of the
board of directors of Lu an Ruiyuan only requires a
simple majority decision, the Group is deemed to
have control over LU an Ruiyuan and classified it's
investment in LU an Ruiyuan as a subsidiary with its
results being consolidated.

R E]

A _E-NEFELtBRZ+EH
H' ZREBUREBLHA
B 120,000,000 7T 58 A%
WEEERGEEEIE
BREABDTGERE )
B100% & > aERE
FEHEMBARNZHE
BEEERBRERRE (TRZE
IR ) B20%RBHE &
EREA—REEZERA
3 MAZHBEETERD
HWENEYERE L%
B—IEURGEHmNYE
FHEIEE - BN AZHIR
BH31%REREEAER
BHEKERE > AER
RN LRI —F
REE > TEEEAZH
FR=ZREZ 2RI °
HREE AT REES
FIEREREBIEHEE
LHORTE > AEEWES
RNZHGIRER EEHIRE
W ERAZIHENRE
DEAWBABDREEE
RE AR ©
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SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.2 Business combinations (Continued)

(c)

Acquisition of Anhui Xinde Business Management Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiary

On 21 November 2019, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interest of Anhui Xinde
Business Management Co., Ltd (2 EERESEER
‘A7) (“Anhui Xind€”) which holds 20% equity interest
of its subsidiary, Huaiyuan Yide City Development Co.,
Ltd. (REREMEZERBRAE) (“Huaiyuan Yide”) at a
consideration of approximately RMB89,000,000. Anhui
Xinde Zhonghe is an investment holding company,
while Huaiyuan Yide is principally engaged in property
development in Anhui province and has a property
project developing in Huaiyuan County. As the 31%
shareholder of Huaiyuan Yide has granted its voting
rights to the Group, the Group controls more than half
of the voting rights in Huaiyuan Yide and appointed 2
out of 3 directors of Huaiyuan Yide. As the passing of
all resolutions of the board of directors of Huaiyuan
Yide only requires a simple majority decision, the
Group is deemed to have control over Huaiyuan Yide
and classified it' s investment in Huaiyuan Yide as a
subsidiary with its results being consolidated.

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.2 #5565 (&)

(c)

WEZHEEEEEES
IRA B RANE A F

RZZ—-—hAhE+—A8
—+—B TEEURE
# A R 189,000,000t
TERWEZHETEEE
EBAERAR (T2HER)
BI100% Rt > ZHERE
FAHENB AR RERE
mERARAS(EER
BIE) N20% KR 2
HEETS—XREZRA
B MRERBEENRR
BENEYEFHE Wk
B-RUNIRERVYE
FEIEE - ARNIRERE
B31%KREE M & EH
REHRTEE  AER
EHRERENBE—F
REE LESZEEER
B=REFZPHIMSE °
HRNBBRREREESE
PRERZZERFLEE
ZEORE * AEERRS
RIRBRIEHEREIE
Wi B IRIERIENRE
DER/MBARREERS
ARE AR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.2 Business combinations (Continued)

Apart from the above, the Group acquired a number of
property development project companies. The directors
of the Company consider that these subsidiaries acquired
during the year were insignificant to the Group and thus
the individual financial information of these subsidiaries on
the acquisition date was disclosed as “Others’ in aggregate
amount.

Gains on bargain purchase were resulted mainly due to
the fact that the sellers did not have property developing
experience in the specific province and had the intention
to develop long term strategic business relationship with
experienced property developer who can bring in industry
expertise.

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for the acquisitions, the fair value of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. The non-
controlling interests are measured at proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of identifiable net assets as at
the acquisition date.

BB RRIEE

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.2 #5565 (&)

PRIALEPrILE > REBWEZ
B REREB AT - NAH
EFERTR REARBENZE
MEABHAEEMS BIE
K> RHIEZEWBAB R
HENER P BENEE SRR
B THEM -

ZEBEWNTERHANRES
BERSEE DREYENL
R TARREREELAH
RITENBOYEEREREY
REMBESSEBHRBEFRAR
e

TR R B AR ES
BEMAE  FTRBEENA
TERFAERR - FFERIM
RmIZP YR B A E SRR #
BB EFEZENRLILOITER

5 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 27 WEEMIE AT (48)
27.2 Business combinations (Continued) 27.2 #EBEH B
o Hefei
Zhonghe  Anhui Xinde
Linquan and its and its
Huaxin subsidiay  subsidiary Others Total
BERE RHEE
BREE REMBAT REMBAD Httr st
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETRE AR®TR ARETRT ARETRT AR¥TR
Consideration paid as at RERBEARE
acquisition date 4,000 20,000 5,000 55,200 84,200
Consideration payable as at REEBSRRARE
acquisition date - - 84,000 - 84,000
Net assets acquired B EESE 4,000 20,000 89,000 55,200 168,200
Recognised amounts of EERTG N
identifiable assets acquired AESENE
and liabilities assumed: HREHE .
Property, plant and equipment 1% « BERRHE 52 17,107 180 2,373 19,712
Prepayments, deposits RITE - BE
and other receivable REMFEWRFIE 85,119 876,419 739,438 32,175 1,733,151
Properties under development ~ BIEH¥ERERT Y%
and completed properties 356,039 618,503 871,693 457,850 2,304,085
Amounts due from non- FEMR IR R TR
controlling interests - - 41,000 790 41,790
Income tax (liabilities)/ Fiiem(ar) /
recoverable El(EERE - 43392 136,223 2,563 182,178
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 52,963 60,945 165,208 31,815 310,931
Other payables EENTIE (420,966) (835,141) (1,314,131) (245,356) (2,815,594)
Amounts due to RIS R TE
non-controlling interests - (133,678) - (138,763) (272,441)
Deferred income tax liabilities ~ IEEFTEHAR (1,017) (76,645) (67,561) (17,333) (162,556)
Total identifiable net assets BEALIEIE
acquired BEFEER 72,190 570,902 572,050 126,114 1,341,256
Less: Non-controlling interest & : FRUREE H AR
initially recognised as at DRI S
acquisition date (57,751) (520,722) (453,640 (69,743)  (1,101,856)
Less: Gains on bargain A EBEEYE
purchase (Note 7) (MzET) (10,439) (30,180) (29,410) (1,171) (71,200)
Net assets acquired B EESE 4,000 20,000 89,000 55,200 168,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 27 WHEEMEBAT ()
27.2 Business combinations (Continued) 27.2 #EBEH B
: Hefei
Zhonghe  Anhui Xinde
Linquan and its and its
Huaxin subsidiay  subsidiary Others Total
BRERE RHEE
BREE REWEBAT RENBAR Hith st

RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AREBTR ARRTR ARETR AR®Tn ARETR

Analysis of net inflow of cash BRWERB AR

and cash equivalents ReRREEEY

in respect of acquisition MAZBHD

of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration paid BEIREAE 4,000 20,000 89,000 55,200 168,200

Less: Cash and cash - TERE R

equivalents acquired ReEEY (52,963) (60,945) (165,208) (31,815) (310,931)

Net cash inflow FABE (48,963) (40,945) (76,208) (23385 (142,731)
Linquan Huaxin contributed revenue of RMB309,754,000 BWEHIA—Z—NFHB _HiEE
and net profit after tax of RMB25,251,000 to the Group for —E-NF+ZA=+—HLBHH"
the period from 2 April 2019, the acquisition date, to 31 FREZNAEESR R ARE
December 2019. 309,754,000 T X BRI B AL F A K&

25,251,000 7 °

If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 January 2019, HEEER _Z—hNE—H—
consolidated revenue and net profit after tax of the Group HEZL AIAEE®E_Z
for the year ended 31 December 2019 would have been —NE+ZBE=+—HLEEEH
RMB8,602,321,000 and RMB1,472,367,000 respectively. EHBERBREAETED R A

A #8,602,321,0007t & A R &
1,472,367,000 7z °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.2 Business combinations (Continued)

Hefei Zhonghe and its subsidiary contributed revenue of
RMB423,509,000 and net profit after tax of RMB41,317,610
to the Group for the period from 25 July 2019, the
acquisition date, to 31 December 2019.

If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 January 2019,
consolidated revenue and net profit after tax of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 would have been
RMB8,602,321,000 and RMB1,475,978,000 respectively.

Anhui Xinde and its subsidiary contributed no revenue
and net loss after tax of RMB7,000,000 to the Group for the
period from 21 November 2019, the acquisition date, to 31
December 2019.

If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 January 2019,
consolidated revenue and consolidated net profit after tax
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 would
have been RMB8,602,321,000 and RMB1,482,169,000.

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.2 #5456 (88)

BWEHB_-_Z-hEtA
“+HEBEE_ZE-NF+Z
B=+—HL#HE " 5aB%a
R B B A ) A A & B & KU
@ A R #5423,509,000 7t K B
M@ aA AR 41,317,610

IT ©

HEEEER _E—NF—A
—HEZLE AAEEHET
Z-NEF+ZA=+—HLHF
R & B U et Kz BRAR 18 Al ) FE
rlA AR 8,602,321,000 7T
K AR 1,475,978,000 7T ©

BREBRHE-_Z-NF+—A8
“t+—HEEZZE-AE+Z
B=+—HIHH ZHWEE
R B B A B A 2 5 B & kU
mE T RFRBBEEFEAR
#& 7,000,000 7T °

HEBERER _E—-NF—H
—HE#E RIAEEHEC
T-hNE+"B=+—HL#F
FE B & ff et e & 1 R AR 12 A
FIpE 2 A FR#58,602,321,000 7T
AR 1,482,169,000 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 27 WHEEMEBAT ()
27.3 Step acquisitions 27.3 DRIKEE
(a)  Step acquisition of Top Glory Group (a) D KUHEL = EE
Top Glory Group was a 45% associate of the Group RoRUEER > e EE
before the step acquisition. 7 A & B HE A 45% B9 B
=PNCIY

On 26 June 2019, the Group acquired the remaining
55% equity interest of Top Glory Group at a
consideration of RMB198,000,000.

The following table summarises the consideration
paid for the step acquisition, the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition
date. The non-controlling interests are measured at
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
identifiable net assets as at the acquisition date.

Qo

RZE-AFERBTAR
B> mEEURKEBEARE
198,000,000 7T Ut B 38 =
EEERT 55% HIAR#E o

TR R R
REFERECHE PR
WBE ER AT ERRFAK
EaR - RWFEBHIIF
R MRS R H A B E
FEMERHERRI LB 28

S

Top Glory
Group
HEEE
RMB' 000
AREBTT
Consideration: KRB
Consideration paid and payable U EE H BRI R B
as at acquisition date 198,000
Fair value of the associate shares held REBPFEHERBRMDATE
by the Group 162,000

360,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMEE
27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 27 WHEEMEBAT ()
27.3 Step acquisitions (Continued) 27.3 FRUNEE (48)
(a)  Step acquisition of Top Glory Group (Continued) (a) HDRWEELEEERE (8

Qo

Top Glory
Group
e ER
RMB 000
AR#FT
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets Al AIFFUEE S E R AEEE
acquired and liabilities assumed: NEMIEEE .
Property, plant and equipment Mz~ BEKREE 3,463
Intangible assets B EE 64,764
Investments accounted for using R EARNEE
the equity method 474
Trade and other receivables and deposits B 57 KRHEAMEWRRIER %S 11,271
Cash and cash equivalents REMIREEFEY 67,977
Contract liabilities BHEE (18,911)
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENTIE (35,602)
Total identifiable net assets acquired BIE:GllF e Ve si=Ricks 93,436
Goodwill (Note 13) B2 (2 13) 271,228
Less: Non-controlling interest initially B USRS B BB 4a kST RY
recognised as at acquisition date JEPEH M R (4,664)
Net assets acquired PR BB ERE 360,000
Re-measurement gain on interests REE A AaNEmaENtElE
in associates
Fair value of interests in associates REERADNERAFE 162,000
Less: Interests in associates (Note 15(a)) B RBE AR R (5 15(a)) (38,808)
Re-measurement gain (Note 7) Erst 2 (fEET) 123,192
Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash ERAWEHRBAENIRS MRS
equivalents in respect of FBY) R FEERN DT
acquisition of the subsidiary:
Cash consideration paid BREAE 198,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B PTEIR S RIREEEY
acquired (67,977)

Net cash outflow BE M FEE 130,023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.3 Step acquisitions (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Step acquisition of Top Glory Group (Continued)

Top Glory Group contributed revenue of RMB80,885,000
and net profit after tax of RMB12,542,000 to the Group
for the period from 26 June 2019, the acquisition
date, to 31 December 2019.

If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 January 2019,
consolidated revenue and net profit after tax of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 would
have been RMBS8,669,991,000 and RMB1,555,564,000
respectively.

Step acquisition of Xianyang Baorong

Xianyang Baorong was a 75% associate of the Group
before the step acquisition.

As set out in Note 15(b)(ii), upon the sales of majority
of properties for phase 1 project as at 31 December
2019, which the Group has no interest in, the
Company obtained control over Xianyang Baorong.

BB RRIEE

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)

27.3 FRUTE (8)
(a) DRUFEE SEE (1)

(b)

BRI - —hEX
BZ+HEEZZ—N
FE+_HB=+—B1H
E #weEEarEEE
AWz A 6 80,885,000
TTRBREBAF ARE
12,542,000 7T ©

HWEEERER _E—NF
—RA—HE#%E > RIfxE
BEHgE_ZT-NE+-A
=+ —HIEFENEHHU
m M PRI R A FE D B &
A R 18,669,991,000 75
& AN K #1,555,564,000

T ©
DR IE R R

ORI * B IRER
724 5 B ¥ B 75% B9 B

HAT) o

MU0 M5 15(b) (1) P
RZZ-AF+ZA
= t+—HHEAERILE
RS —HEEX
BoMER * AEERE
R RESBIEERIRE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
27.3 Step acquisitions (Continued)
(b)  Step acquisition of Xianyang Baorong (Continued)

The following table summarises the consideration
paid for the step acquisition, the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition
date. The non-controlling interests are measured at
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
identifiable net assets as at the acquisition date.

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.3 DRULEE (48)
(b) DI FERL G R (48)

TR B D
RUFFEEESHE PR
WBEER AT ERFK
BafE - RWEBHIF
MRS AR B E
FERSNERARI AP ER

FTE o
: Xianyang
Baorong
RFFIRE
RMB 000
AR#TFT
Consideration: HE .
Fair value of the associate shares held KEBMFHEARRABATE
by the Group 334,677
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets  PJaAiA! T WS & 7E Ko PRAHE & (B AT
acquired and liabilities assumed: EES3EEE
Property, plant and equipment Y EN Y 159
Properties under development FASE Y2 777,285
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUS FEIEHI M T TR IE
interests 165,415
Trade and other receivables and deposits B ZFKREMEWRHRIBRIZE 223,059
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEFEY 152,472
Trade and other payables B2 R EMEGTHRIE (27,476)
Contract liabilities BHEE (663,500)
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEW AR BE (181,178)
446,236
Less: Non-controlling interest initially B R UEE B EAR 4a b ST RY
recognised as at acquisition date FFEERIME T (111,559)
Net assets acquired TN E EFE 334,677
Re-measurement gain on interests REEATNEEEHTERE
in associates
Fair value of interests in associates REE AR A TE 334,677
Less: Interests in associates (Note 15(a)) B REE AN ER (MIEE 15(a)) (171,235)
Re-measurement gain (Note 7) Erst =W (s T) 163,442
Analysis of net inflow of cash and BRWENEATINESRES
cash equivalents in respect of EEYIG A SBERN DA
acquisition of the subsidiary:
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FREEIRE RIREEEY) 152,472
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

27.3 Step acquisitions (Continued)

(b)

Step acquisition of Xianyang Baorong (Continued)

If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 January 2019,
consolidated revenue and net profit after tax of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 would
have been RMB8,602,321,000 and RMB1,547,158,000
respectively.

27.4 Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change in control

(a)

Acquisition of remaining equity interests of Nanchang
Litou Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Nanchang
Gaoyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

On 19 April 2019, the Group completed the purchase
of remaining 10% equity interests of Nanchang Litou
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (BE H&EH#E
B2 B BB 2 8) (“Nanchang Litou”) and Nanchang
Gaoyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (FE&®
BREMERMZEABRAG) (“Nanchang Gaoyuan”) from
the non-controlling interest at a consideration of
approximately RMB25,280,000 and RMB11,720,000
respectively. The Group recorded a decrease in non-
controlling interest of approximately RMB785,000
and a decrease in the balance in other reserves of
approximately RMB36,215,000 upon the completion of
the purchase.

BB RRIEE

27 WEEKHIB AT (&)
27.3 DRULEE (48)

(b)

DRI B REE (18)

HWEEERER _E—NF
—RA—HE#%E > RIfxE
BEHgE_ZT-NE+_A
=+ —HIEFENEHHU
m M PRI R A E D B &
A R 18,602,321,000 75
& AN K #1,547,158,000
7T o

274 FERIEEEHHBR TR
it BB X B PR A et i B 2

(a)

BB S TR E %
BIRABRESBEEM
EFZEB R85 TR
#

AZE-AFEAB+A
H’> ~&EBDHUKE
# AN R #25,280,000 7T
& A R #11,720,000 7T
mIFESIE B m T A B
EEHENREHERS
BERAR(MEE R
kEEsERMERE
BER2B(MEESEY)
BYER T 10% 8% 1 o 5T Ak
BERER ~EEK
BIRERI MR R
AR #&785,000 70 & H A
REGHRADOARE
36,215,000 7z °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

28 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Disposal of Jiangxi Nayu Industrial Co., Ltd.

On 3 January 2019, the Group completed the disposal of
51% equity interest in Jiangxi Nayu Industrial Co., Ltd. (7T
FAMMEEARRAE) (“Jiangxi Nayu”) at a consideration
of approximately RMB149,200,000 to the non-controlling
interests. The disposal company is principally engaged in
property development in the PRC. Upon the completion of
the disposal, the Group lost its control over the Disposal
Company and its financial results are not consolidated with
the results of the Group.

Disposal of Nanchang Xinrong Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

On 23 April 2019, the Group completed the disposal of
30% equity interest in Nanchang Xinrong Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (B EMEEMEREBR A F)
(“Nanchang Xinrong’) at a consideration of approximately
RMB19,438,000 to the non-controlling interests. The
disposal company is principally engaged in property
development in the PRC. Upon the completion of the
disposal, the Group lost its control over the Disposal
Company and its financial results are not consolidated with
the results of the Group.

Disposal of Shangrao Yunfeifeiyang Real Estate Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiary

On 18 December 2019, the Group completed the disposal of
100% equity interset in Shangrao Yunfeifeiyang Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (EEMEERIZEEARAT) (“Shangrao Yuncal”)
and its 49% equity subsidiary Suzhou Yunhongyou Industry
Co., Ltd. (BRINEXBHBEEZEBIRAF]) at a consideration of
nil. The disposal Group is principally engaged in property
development in the PRC. Upon the completion of the
disposal, the Group lost its control over the Disposal
Company and its financial results are not consolidated with
the results of the Group.

28 HEMRBAR

(a)

HETIRMAREZARAE

RZZFE-NF—RB=R"’ %%
E LUEA A RS 149,200,000
TCTE R A IFEE R 1t e m & T
AMBBEERRAS (HIFEM
#1)BI51%KH#E - BERTE
ERPEREYERME - 1°H
EFETHE > ~EEREY
HERTRIERIE ° MEMF
ERIBRAERRERS
iR o

HEBEMREHMERER
FRAE

RZIE-NAEFEONA-+=
B’ A&EBENABOARE
19,438,000 7t 5e A% A SR ¥ &l 14
BomHEREMREERE
BRAB(THEERK])BI30%
IR - HEAQAREZINHER
FEMEFE - NHEFETK
B> AEBRXEHHERTHN
TR MEMBERERBR
FEBEBFTAR ©

HELBRTEXRBEEESR
RABREHBATE

RZIZ-—AF+ZA+NE"
FEBEUNABETTHREE
LETEEREEXARAT
(TE8EEF 1) BI100% A% 1 K
HA49% R AW B A B BN EF
BEBERARAT - HEAH
FTERPEEEYEME -
HEFETME  AEERKXE
HHERTRERIE > mMERM
BRETHENAERXGERS
NER ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AHMEEERRMIE
28 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 28 HEMBAE(E)
An analysis on the gains on disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: LENBASMNKRE AT !
: Shangrao
Yuncai
Nanchang and its
Jiangxi Nayu Xinrong  subsidiary Total
LEBEF
P BmamE RENBASR st

RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AREFT ARBTRT AREBTR ARETR

Consideration satisfied by: UTFIIAAZARE
- Cash consideration -RERE 149,200 19,438 — 168,638
Less: Net assets disposed of: B HEEERE !
- Property, plant and —ME - BERERE
equipment (1,044) (253) (35) (1,332)
- Properties under —FEPYE
development (431,768) — (63,590) (495,358)
- Deferred income tax assets —EIEFENEE (10,810) - (710) (11,520)
- Trade and other receivables, — B 5 K EAER
deposits and prepayments B BER
fBTIE (163,990) (88,117) (156,915) (409,022)
- Cash and cash equivalents -REMREEEY (68,008) (1,267) (93) (69,368)
- Amounts due (from)/to — (Bl /&R
group companies NEFIE (149,200 (76,797) 6 (225,991)
- Amounts due from — FEM IR
non-controlling interests ETmTIE (519,803) (233,074) (13,491) (766,368)
- Trade and other payables — B 5 KR HMERTIE 90,372 87,389 32,957 210,718
- Income tax liabilities —FiEHas (42,125) 129,742 - 87,617
- Contract liabilities =Y )=k 1,206,735 — — 1,206,735
59,559 (162,939)  (201,871)  (305,251)
Add: Non-controlling interests m: mEFREHIn R
disposed of 37,514 178,644 202,914 419,072
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

28 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 28 HEMBAE(E)

Qo

Shangrao
Yuncai
Nanchang and its
Jiangxi Nayu Xinrong  subsidiary Total
LEEF
P BamE RENBASR st

RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETET

Gain on disposal of RIRATHE—RKIE AT
a subsidiary, pre-tax W as 97,073 15,705 1,043 113,821
Less: PRC enterprise income B HENBABRER
tax payable upon HEl (R EPTEH
disposal of subsidiaries (22,000) — (261) (22,261)
Gains on disposal of i W E M B AT
subsidiaries, net of tax 75,073 15,705 782 91,560

An analysis on net inflow/(outflow) of HENBABNERE K

cash and cash equivalents in ReSBUWRA/
respect of disposal of subsidiaries () FEAMUWT
is as follows:
Cash consideration BerE 149,200 19,438 — 168,638
Less: Cash and cash o HERERRE

equivalents disposed EEY (68,008) (1,267) (93) (69,368)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BE&RA/ (rt) 248 81,192 18,171 (93) 99,270
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B HIAFERRMEE
29 COMMITMENTS 29 KiE
(a) Capital commitments and property development (a) BEXRKIERVEZRBRKIE
commitments
: 2019 2018
—B—h#E “E-N\E
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFIT
Contracted but not provided for: EETA BB AR
- Land use right — T fERARE 821,185 414,387
- Leasehold improvement —HEEYEEE 1,819 1,628
- Property development expenditures — —#)¥B5 9,517,520 6,045,822
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) MREFREKIE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregate RZZE—NF+ZA=+—
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating B> AEERERABRAENT
lease in respect of office as follows: AHEKEREE T ARRER

RS RABEELT -

Qo

2018
ZE-N\F
RMB' 000
ARET T

No later than one year BB —F 2,274
Later than one year and no later than 5 years  B#—FEBRBEAE 4,611

6,885
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

30 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

Guarantees on mortgage facilities

The Group had the following contingent liabilities in
respect of financial guarantees on mortgage facilities at
the end of each of the following reporting periods:

2

30

MBRARIARR

(a)

RIS E N ER

AEBRR TS REPRAR
BRENMBERMEFENT
EIF =

2019 2018
—E-hEF “E-N\EF
RMB 000 RMB 000
AR®EFT ARETFT
Guarantees in respect of mortgage MEEBYEETERN
facilities for certain purchasers of BRI B IR HERER
the Group’ s properties 9,001,924 5,932,804

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such purchaser for
repayments. Such guarantees will terminate upon the
earlier of (i) the transfer of the real estate ownership
certificate to the purchaser which will generally occur
within an average period of six months to three years from
the completion of the guarantee registration; or (ii) the
satisfaction of mortgage loans by the purchasers of the
properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default
of mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group
is responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage
principal together with accrued interest and penalties
owed by the defaulting purchasers to the banks and the
Group is entitled to retain the legal title and take over
the possession of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee period starts from the date of grant of mortgage.
The directors consider that the carrying values of the
financial guarantees are immaterial.

FEECHEAEBYENET
BERZHRTHME > ITMEX
EREERHIER - ZFE
RN TIREREERL
() B EFTEEZEXTFTER
(— AR ERB LT R T I97]
BRE=FMEIT)E ; sL(ii)
ME BB ERIBENE o

RIFREFRIFER ERSEFE
RIZBENRE > AEBBAEER
MIRITEEESERIZIEE
TEREBNERIE > MA
EEAERFRERBAYWENZE
EERNZEWAER ~EE
BYE (R A B 9% tH 1298 B HHE R
th e BEERA N MBREFRNK
EELREKX °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

There are certain corporate guarantees provided by
the Group’s subsidiaries for each other in respect of
borrowings (Note 23) as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.
The directors consider that the subsidiaries are sufficiently
financially resourced to settle their obligations.

The Company provides a corporate guarantee of
AUD70,000,000 (2018: AUD70,000,000) to a subsidiary of
Power Out International Ltd., a joint venture of the Group,
for a loan facility which was fully utilised by the joint
venture. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the carrying value of the guarantee is immaterial.

Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company had
no other significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).

BB RRIEE

30 MBEARIAGR(E)

(b)

RIEBE-NFR-ZZ-N\EF
+ZRA=+—8’&&EEWE
NBZBFERER (FIEE23)
HERHENETFTRBER &
ER8 WBRRERTEM
BERERAEEE -

KABH—EBEELEEEH
AN ERRE M Power Out
International Ltd.B9—ZRM/E
NEIE H A #070,000,0008 7T
(Z =& — )\ £ :70,000,000;8
70) FIABHER o« KABEER
AERNREET FAEAX o

Br EXXFriEEE SN AEB K
FTABR_BE-NFE+ZA
=t+—HIEAEMERNTA
BREZ-NF T -
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SHMBRRME

31

32

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 is calculated based on the profit attributable to owners of
the Company.

Qo

31 SkREF

BE_Z-NF+A=+—HLEF
E > SRELBNRENABHS
ANEAEEFEE o

2019 2018
—E—-NE —E-)\#F

Profit attributable to owners of KNBHEE NEEF
the Company (RMB 000) (ARIEFT) 1,034,931 990,747

Weighted average number of shares
inissue

Basic earnings per share (RMB cents)

BETRMBIINETIEIH

3,551,609,322  3,551,609,322

29.14 27.90

Diluted earnings per share is equal to basic earnings per share
as there was no dilutive potential share outstanding for the
years ended 31 December 2019 (2018: same).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Except for amounts due from non-controlling interest of
RMB48,512,000 and RMB65,000,000 which bear interest of
8.5% and 24% per annum respectively (2018: RMB32,270,000,
RMB50,000,000 and RMB15,000,000 which bear interest of 8.5%,
18% and 11% per annum respectively) and are secured by their
interests in the Group’ s subsidiaries, the amounts due from non-
controlling interests are interest-free, unsecured and repayable
on demand. The carrying values approximate their fair values
and are denominated in RMB.

Except for amounts due to non-controlling interest of
RMB222,737,100 (2018: RMB368,337,000) which bears interest of
4.75% (2018: 4.75%) per annum and RMB527,480,000 (2018: Nil)
which bears interest of 12% (2018: Nil) per annum, the amounts
due to non-controlling interests are interest-free, unsecured and
repayable on demand. The carrying values approximate their
fair values and are denominated in RMB.

32

REBEE-ZT—NF+-B=1t—H1L
FE > ARTESTEIETEE
Rt HEREEBRNENERESR
BAN(ZZ2—N\F  HR) °

FEWL (FEfT) JEHERI MR TR IR

B0 BAZE K K 8.5% K 24% 5t B
DERAEBNB AR MR EIL
FRAYEW IR G R IE A R
48,512,000t & A R 165,000,000
T(ZE—)N\E . AR32,270,000
7T~ A R #50,000,0007T K& A R
15,000,000 7 & # & F| FE8.5% ~
18% K 11% EHE) 9h » FERIESESIE
BoAEARE ~ BIERRBIRER
B8 - IREEAEAFEREBHEU
ANRHESHE ©

PrA B AR222,737,100 0 (2 F
—\F AKR¥368,337,0007T) &
A F #527,480,0007t(=Z & — N\
FE) VB IFER M RERIA
WEFEKBATSN(ZE—N\F:
475%) R12%B (ZZE—N\F: &)
Sh 0 FEATIRIERI MRS RIETI A R
B BRI AR ERERE - lREE
SBHAFEEERUARESE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is jointly controlled by Wong Yeuk Hung and Huang
Ruoging, who own 39.06% and 26.04% of the Company s shares

respectively.

Major related parties with the Group were as follows:

Qo

Related parties
RS

BB RRIEE

33 BAMSRB

KEFRSEI MEA S ERIES
m=% %25l %’EEK& 39.06% &
26.04% B9 I%15

AEBMNVEEMB ST

Relationship with the Company
¥ /NS0 PR

Ganzhou Baoherun Co., Ltd.
BENENHEEXBRAT

Lianyungang Hengrun Real Estate Co., Ltd
EERBIEHEXRARAT

Fengcheng Xinfei Property Development Co., Ltd
S HMRE M ERZEBRAE

Fengcheng Liding Property Development Co., Ltd
SEH IR EMEREERAS

Fengcheng Hending Property Development Co., Ltd
SRR E M EREERAS

Tibet Yunxi Enterprise Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)
EEERTEEESRTE (BRER)

Funan Anhua Times Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
EHRERNEMEREERAT

Love Care Redco (Shanghai) Senior Care Service Co., Ltd.

ERENE (L) BERFARAT

An associate
—XEBE AT

An associate
—REEAF

An associate
_5"J—(H££M/'\_J

An associate
—XREE AT

An associate
—xKHE R E

An associate

= Kk =
—RBEAQT

An associate
—XEE AT

An associate
— KA
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BHIRERRIEE

33

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Qo

Related parties
RREk S

33 RAMARS (48)

Relationship with the Company
BAATIRIRA %

Huizhou Gaozhao Real Estate Development Co., Ltd
ENTEIEERERRAS

Huizhou Lijia Real Estate Co., Ltd
BEMNEMERRAE

Wuhan Huacheng Quanyou Real Estate Co., Ltd
HEEHEREXEERAE

Nanchang Junyu Meijia Property Service Co., Ltd.
MEEEERYERGERAE

Redco Industry (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.

NEEXE(CIRE) BRAF

Hui Gao Investments Development Ltd. and its subsidiary
EeREERARATKENEAR

Power Out International Holding Ltd. and its subsidiaries
TIREEERERAB RENE AT

Shenzhen Redco Hongye Property Development Co.,.Ltd.
NN EREMERERRAT

Qingyuan Ligao Hongye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

BENBBREMEREARAT

Jiangxi Province Guogao Property Services Limited
IREREEYERBARAR

Nanchang Yingmei Property Co., Ltd.
MEREVERRAT

Shijiazhuang Lanting Property Management Co., Ltd.
EREREYEEERRAT

Wong Yeuk Hung (Mr. Wong)

BEEI(&ERE)
Huang Ruoging (Mr. Huang)

BER (EEFRE)

An associate
—KE AT

An associate
—XHE R E

An associate
—XEE AT

An associate
—KE AT

Ajoint venture
—REEhE

Ajoint venture
—REERE

Ajoint venture
—REERE

Ajoint venture
—REEhE

Ajoint venture
—REERE

Ajoint venture
—REERE

Ajoint venture
—REEhE

Ajoint venture
—REERE

A major shareholder and director of
the Group
FEEN—ZEIERIRES

A major shareholder and director of
the Group
FEEN-—ZTERTRES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HIAFERRMEE
33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 33 RABARS (B)
(a) Balances with related parties (a) EARAEG BV4EER
(i) Amounts due from joint ventures (i)  BNESEEEFE
2019 2018
“E-hE —2—N\EF
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 Nature Interest Currency
ARETT AREFT HE FIE gtk
Qingyuan Ligao Hongye Real Estate Non-trade N/A RMB
Development Co., Ltd. 14,700 —
BENBBEMEREERAT FER ENE)E AR
Hui Gao Investments Development Non-trade N/A HKS
Ltd. and its subsidiary 22,435 —
ESREZRBRADRENEAT FES ESE)E BT
Power Qut International Holding Non-trade N/A HKS
Ltd. and its subsidiaries 22,814 4844
TTRERERERARRERE AT FER EN G BT
59,949 4844
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values IREERERATERE
and are unsecured and repayable on demand. B mimiR I R ERE

o

pi
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ERRMEE
33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 33 RABARS (B)
(a) Balances with related parties (Continued) (a) ELRAHA BVAEER (B)
(i) Amounts due to joint ventures (i) EVESEEEFE

Qo

2019 2018
“E-NE “2-N\F
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 Nature Interest Currency
AEBFT ARETT 8 FE g
Jiangxi Province Guogao Property
Services Limited 881 - Non-trade N/A RMB
IREESNERBEERAS FESZ AER AR
Shenzhen Redco Hongye Property
Development Co., Ltd. 2,737 2,737 Non-trade N/A RMB
MINBEEMERERRAT FES TER AR
Hui Gao Investments Development
Ltd. and its subsidiary - 9,830 Non-trade N/A HKS
BEeREXRBRATKENEAR FES AER AT
Power Out International Holding
Ltd. and its subsidiaries — — Non-trade N/A HKS
TTRERERBRAS REMEAE FEZ AER BT
Redco Industry (Jianxi) Co., Ltd. 47,158 11,189 Non-trade N/A RMB
BEX(IA)BRAR FES TER N
50,776 23,756
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values IREEEERTERE
and are unsecured and repayable on demand. &AL IR B R B KB

o

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AHMFBIRRMIEE
33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 33 FAEEARS (M)
(a) Balances with related parties (Continued) (a) ELRAHA BVAEER (B)
(i) Amounts due from associates (iii) JEWHE L\ EIE
o 2019 2018
“E-NE “2-N\F
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 Nature Interest Currency
AEBFT ARETT 8 FE g
Top Glory Group - 7,818 Non-trade N/A RMB
W FES AER NG
Huizhou Lijia Real Estate Co., Ltd 160,763 — Non-trade N/A RMB
ENNEMEERAE FEZ TER AR
Huizhou Gaozhao Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd 103,950 10,000 Non-trade N/A RMB
ENmE kRt EREERAT FEZ TER N
Lianyungang Hengrun Real Estate
Co,, Ltd 92,089 146,660 Non-trade N/A RMB
EEBEHEXBRAT FEZ TER AR
Funan Anhua Times Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. 69,400 - Non-trade N/A RMB
ERRERAREHEREBRAS FES TER N
Ganzhou Baoherun Co., Ltd 56,643 168,393 Non-trade 10% RMB
ENBIEEEERAT FEZ 10% ARE
Fengcheng Liding Property
Development Co., Ltd — 18,667 Non-trade N/A RMB
ST HREHEREERAT FEZ TER AR
Fengcheng Hengding Property
Development Co., Ltd — 13,333 Non-trade N/A RMB
ERmRREMEREERAG FER ENE)E ARE
482,845 364,871
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values REEREATEES
and are unsecured and repayable on demand. B mimiR AR ERE

o

Bl
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(a) Balances with related parties (Continued)

(iv) Amounts due to associates

Qo

33 RAMARS (48)
(a) EARGHEASBVAERR (BB)

(iv) [EHEREME

2019 2018
“E-NE “2-N\F
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 Nature Interest Currency
AEBFT ARETT 8 FE g
Fengcheng Liding Property
Development Co., Ltd 305,180 - Non-trade N/A RMB
SnhHREHEREERAR FESZ AER AR
Fengcheng Hending Property
Development Co., Ltd 129,367 — Non-trade N/A RMB
SRHRREEMEREERAT FEH TER N
Fengcheng Xinfei Property
Development Co., Ltd 50,233 — Non-trade N/A RMB
ERmREHERERRAS FEZ TER AR
Wuhan Huacheng Quanyou Real
Estate Co., Ltd 500 — Non-trade N/A RMB
HNEENEREEBRAT FEH TER N
Xianyang Baorong Co., Ltd — 66,000 Non-trade N/A RMB
BGRREZERAT FEH TER AR
485,280 66,000

The carrying amounts approximate their fair values
and are unsecured and repayable on demand.

(b) Transactions with related parties

The Group has the following related party transactions:

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
purchased property management service up to
25 June 2019 amounting to RMB15,953,000 (2018:
RMB25,833,000) from Top Glory Group, at prices
mutually agreed by contracted parties.

SREEREAEAFERS
EBEERTLARERE

o

B

(b) EBIRAESEITHNRS

(1)

AEREFK S ETHRZ W0
T

REE_ZE—-NF+_H
=+—HIEFEE > KEHR
BESTHN R EERBENE
KREeEREEEE
E—-NAENBEZ+HH
2 8 A\ R 115,953,000
T(CE—NEF: AR
25,833,000 70) ¥ (&
IBARFE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMFBIRRMEE
33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 33 RABARS (B)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EARAEKFEITHNRS (48)

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group (i) MEBEEZZ—NF+IA
provided project management consultancy service =t+—HLEFE xER
amounting to RMB632,000 (2018: RMB986,000) to its BEIHNAEEBENE
associates, at prices mutually agreed by contracted e HEE QB S
parties. A R #632,0005(Z &

— )\ . AR#986,000
7o) WIEE EIERARIARTS ©

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group (i) RBE_E—hE+_
received finance income amounting to RMB20,674,000 B=+—HLEEE’ K
(2018: RMB25,000,000) from its associates, at interest EEREIATEMEBE
rate mutually agreed by contracted parties. BOH) = 5 HL B E A B EEL

(c)

Key management compensation

7 8 K 120,674,000
T(CE-NEFE: ARKE
25,000,0007¢) B9 BRE X
Ao

(c) FEEEEHM

Key management includes executive directors and top FTEEERAENTESRER
management. The compensation paid or payable to key 2EEE NEERBENMH
management for employee services is shown below: FES FEERENENGI R
T
: 2019 2018
—E—-hF “E-N\EF
RMPB 000 RMB 000
ARBFT AREFTT
Salaries, bonus and other benefits e~ TEA R EMER) 27,133 19,916
Pension costs - defined RAREAA—REHREE
contribution plan 661 476
27,794 20,392
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SHMBRRME

34 DIVIDENDS 34

Qo

g2

2019 2018
—Z—hE —E-N\EF
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARBTT AREFIT
Interim dividend of nil PR EEREBERS

(2018: RMB2.5 cents) per ordinary share (ZE—N\F: ARIK25%) — 88,790

Proposed final dividend of RMB3 cents EEFAPRESKREER AR
(2018: RMB3 cents) per ordinary share 3 (ZE—NF: AR¥3ID) 106,548 106,548
106,548 195,338

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of
RMB3 cents (2018: RMB3 cents)per ordinary share, totally
approximately RMB106,548,000 (2018: RMB106,548,000) has been
recommended by the Board for approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The proposed final
dividend has not been dealt with as dividend payable as at 31
December 2019.

EXgESENABE_ZT—NE+Z
B=+—HLEEERSEXRHARE
SEREBERARBIDCZE-N
F:AREID)  BEOBARE
106,548,000 t(ZE—NF: AR
1 106,548,0007T) > W AFARRAE
REERRBEFASG LEUSHE - 2
BERPARERERIENR _ZF—NE
TZRA=+—HEMKRERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 35 AATINBEESERKREEES
Balance sheet of the Company TATINEERRR

Qo

Note 2019 2018
= —Z—-hE —=2—N\EF
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARETF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset EREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—xKMEBATNEE 389,362 389,362
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments TEfIIE 573 730
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS KB A BIFIE 9,354,503 7,781,900
Cash and cash equivalents RERITEEEY 1,784,430 707
11,139,506 7,783,337
Total assets BEMEE 11,528,868 8,172,699
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EmRkaE
Equity attributable to owners of TATEE NG
the Company
Share capital &N 139,632 139,632
Reserves 5 (a) 1,823,734 1,916,101
Total equity TETR4A%E 1,963,366 2,055,733
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 35 AATINBEESERKREEES

(CONTINUED) (4&)
Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) ERAFNEEERR(E)
: Note 2019 2018
PEE —Z—hE —E-N\F
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETIT
Liabilities &R
Non-current liability JERENER
Borrowings B 2,437,783 2,772,833
Current liabilities ik ) =R
Accrued expense fEst & A 263,900 154,539
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAT— Y B A Bl IE 1,430 1,432
Borrowings B 6,862,389 3,188,162
7,127,719 3,344,133
Total liabilities afRE 9,565,502 6,116,966
Total equity and liabilities EnkaBRetE 11,528,868 8,172,699
The balance sheet of the Company was approved for issue by AN EEABEREHESENZ
the Board of Directors on 31 March 2020 and were signed on its ECEF-_FA=+—H#ETIE
behalf: BUTESARESE .
WONG Yeuk Hung Z &1 HUANG Ruoqing &£ &
Director % Director %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S HMBRRME

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 35 AATINBEESERKREEES

(CONTINUED) (%)
Note (a): Reserve movement of the Company MIEE (a) | A BIEEES)

Qo

(Accumulated
losses)/
Share  Contribution Exchange retained
premium surplus reserve earnings Total
(R3tEER)
AP iEME BREER ERfHE /RBEF st

RMB 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTRT  AREFR  ARETR  ARBTRT  ARETR

At 1 January 2018 RZE—-\F—F—H 1,241,423 390,766 72,952 110,511 1,815,652
Comprehensive income 2ENE
- Profit for the year —FRER — - — 287,210 287,210
Other comprehensive income Hi 2 Eia
- Currency translation differences - EMINEEE - - 8,577 - 8,577
Total comprehensive income PHENGEEE - - 8,577 287,210 295,787
Transactions with owners B AR S
- Dividend relating to 2017 final e
RPEBNBE - - - (106,548) (106,548)
- Dividend relating to 2018 interim —HB-N\F
HEERNRE — - — (88,790) (88,790)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZB=+—H 1,241,423 390,766 81,529 202,383 1,916,101
At 1 January 2019 RZE-N&F—B—H 1,241,423 390,766 81,529 202,383 1,916,101
Comprehensive income 2ENE
- Loss for the year —EREE - - - 27,372 27,372
Other comprehensive income Hi2El
- Currency translation differences - EMINEER - - (13,191) - (13,191)
Total comprehensive income PEMEHEEE - - (13,191) 27,372 14,181
Transactions with owners B AR S
- Dividend relating to 2018 final —HZF—\FRH
BENKE — — — (106,548) (106,548)
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NE+-A=1+—H 1,241,423 390,766 68,338 123,207 1,823,734
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BT ERRMEE
36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES 36 EHEFIEKIEE (EB(ATES)
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (58622F)F 3831 - (2B (KE
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF ERMEER) RGN (55 622G E)
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTOR) REGULATION RE# EHRBFEENKEE)
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES
(a) Directors and chief executive s emoluments (a) EFERERITBRASME
The remuneration of each director and the chief executive ZEERERESTHAENMNE
is set out below: EIIMT -
For the year ended 31 December 2019: BE_Z-NE+A=1+—
HIEFE
: Employer's
contribution
toa
retirement
Salary Discretionary benefit
Name e Fees (Note i) bonuses scheme Total
EEHRIE
]
e  HE(E) FETEA KR st

RMB 000  RMB'000  RMB' 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETx ARETR

Executive Directors nTES
Mr.WONG Yeuk Hung BAIRE - 3,000 - 16 3,016
Mr. HUANG Ruoging BaERE - 3,000 - 16 3,016
Mr. TANG Chengyong BRERY - 3,000 793 62 3,855
Mr. Wang Weifeng (Note iii) THBLE (ki) - 2,902 - 45 2,947
Independent non-executive  BUIERTES

directors
Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David BBS, JP &k 5 BBS KP4+ 220 - - - 220
Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuan BRERLE 220 - - - 220
Mr. YIP Tai Him ERsns 220 — - - 220
Mr. CHOW Kwong Fai, Edward JP B BAFHL

(Note iv) (MizEiv) 240 — — - 240

900 11,902 793 139 13,734
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BT ERRMIEE
36 BENEFITSAND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES 36 EHEFEKED (FECQTMEGN
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (35622 F) 383 1% ~ (2= (3
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF BEENHEER) R (86226
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTOR) REGULATION B)REBELTRAMRENKE)
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES (CONTINUED) (48)
(a) Directors and chief executive s emoluments (Continued) () EEREEITHAEMSE
(#&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018: BE_Z—N\F+A=+—
HIEFE :
o Employer s
contribution
toa
retirement
Salary Discretionary benefit
Name ez Fees (Note ) bonuses scheme Total
EEHERE
v EE]
wE  Fe () HIETEA R st

RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR AREBTR ARETR

Executive Directors BITES

Mr.WONG Yeuk Hung HRIITE — 2,500 — 16 2,516

Mr. HUANG Ruoqing BARBRE — 2,500 . 16 2,516

Mr. TANG Chengyong EABLE - 2,500 1,493 64 4,057

Independent non-executive  BUIERTES

directors

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David BBS, JP #RkEBBS AT 4L 215 - - - 215

Mr. CHAU On Ta Yuan BRERLE 215 - - - 215

M. YIP Tai Him B 215 - - - 215

Mr. CHOW Kwong Fai, Edward JP BABAT&L 258 - - - 258
903 7,500 1,493 96 9,992

Note i: MIsEi

Salary received by the executive directors included all emoluments HITESRUNFHESEEESNE

paid or receivable in respect of directors services in connection BAABRERBASNRBEME

with the management of the Company and its subsidiary AU — 5B ©

undertakings.

Note ii: PEE -

Save as disclosed above, the directors did not receive or will not PR ENFIEESN EFRERI

receive any other retirement benefits or termination benefits WA G W EE R B AR ARAE R

during the year (2018: Nil). FERUIFR(CE—NFE | o
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SHMBRRME

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTOR) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors and chief executive s emoluments (Continued)

Note iii:

Mr. WANG Weifeng was appointed as an executive director with
effect from 15 April 2019.

Note iv:

Mr. CHOW Kwong Fai, Edward JP resigned as independent non-
executive director with effect from 26 November 2019.

(b) Directors retirement and termination benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiaries undertaking during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

No payment was made to the directors as compensation
for early termination of the appointment during the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors services

No payment was made to any former employers of the
directors for making available the services of them as
a director of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

36 EFFmKiED (FE(QEFRGD
(55622%)%E 383 1% (AT (I
BEFEMmER) RO (56226
B) REE LHRAFARENKE)
(48)

(a) EFERREITHAEME
(#)

MEsE iii

TEBREEREZERNITES B
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTOR) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES (CONTINUED)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of the
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

() Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group s business to which the Group
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

37 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(a) COVID-19 outbreak

In early 2020, after the COVID-19 outbreak, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the PRC. In light
of the negative impact brought upon by the COVID-19
outbreak, it may cause a short-term impact on all sectors
and the sales of the real estate industry has also been
affected by the short-term psychological impact of the
epidemic on the public. The Group will pay close attention
to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate
its impact on the financial position and operating results of
the Group.

BB RRIEE
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(48)

(d) ARAUESE RZAFEEE
HEEZA QB REMERR
AR@mANER - BUEM
REMZZHER

BE_Z-NF+RA=1+—
HIEFE > BEER - BUE
RREMZZUES - RZF
EFERPEARTRERE
EREAZREACE-NE:
) o

() EFENXRH  BHHEHNZ
B

RABBEES] I AR E M T
ERMARRESENETHEA
BEARRm (RmERAERE)
BRERINRBE_ZT—NE
+TZRA=+—HLEFEREM
REFENERRS « RH K
BHCE-NE  E) -

37 HIREIR
(a) HEHHR RS

EMEMREIERER > BE
AT F{MRE2EE
BB —R5IRBLAIESIE
it o 885 17 B S 1B AR Y
BEFTE FTAITEEAAE
ZEERIERITE B ETT
FOHENEAEBRHARY
REOEEEMRZR - 7EH
ik B2 1) R R B S B B 3
R WA EHAERMBR
MANEEXENRE -

NEMEERERAR 2019 FERE

315



™

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHMBRRME

(b)

Acquisition of 35% interest in Makati City Subway, Inc.
(“MCSI”)

On 18 February 2020, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement (the “Share Purchase Agreement’)
with Philippine Infradev Holdings, Inc. (“Infradev’) and
MCSI, independent third parties, to acquire 35% interest
in MCSI at a consideration of US$102,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB712,698,000), which owns parcels of
land in Makati City, the Philippines for the development of
construction, normal operation and maintenance of Makati
Subway System as well as the corresponding topside
development (the “Project”).

On the same date of the entering of the Share Purchase
Agreement, the Group, MCSI and Aggregate Business
Group (ABG) Holdings Inc. (“ABG”), the immediate
holding company of Infradev entered into a development
agreement (the “Development Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Group and ABG agreed, among other things,
through Makati Redco Transit Development Corporation
(“MRTD”), a company to be incorporated in the Philippines,
to be jointly responsible for the development and
construction of topside development corresponding to the
Makati Subway System. Upon incorporation, the Group
and ABG will directly hold 51% and 49% of the equity
interests in MRTD respectively. The initial paid up capital
of MTRD for the Group will be US$10,200,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB71,269,800).

(b)

Yz B Makati City Subway,
Inc. (TMCSI1) 35% A&

N ZEZEFEZR+NHB
& n 7 & E EPhilippine
Infradev Holdings, Inc.
(Mnfradev)) R BILE=7H
MCSI5T 1L #& B2 1% =% (TH8 B& 173
#& 1) L AL 18102,000,000
EFTMEERLO AR
712,698,0007T) W HEMCSI
35% fR#E > MCSIfESERE B+
HhMHALIELIM > ARE R
BB RMNER - EBES
Mg URAEEN LEER
(M'ZI1EE)) °

A UBRHBENE—X
I~ % [~ MCSI K Aggregate
Business Group (ABG)
Holdings Inc. (FTABGJ
InfradeviN B #Z =R A B]) 51
UERmE(ZERRE) &
It > NEBE RABGR AR (H A+
B BEREIFEE MR
B9/~ B Makati Redco Transit
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(TMRTDN HBEBEERERE
B REM T HER RAEEN
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MIBEE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities and non- AEBRBERABYBFENESE BE
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as RaBEURIEEREAREE (HaKE
extracted from the audited financial statements is set out below: ZHHIRER) |

Qo

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“—RF T—XE IT—tF& B2\ IBhHE
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREBETT ARBTT ARETT AREBETT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(#&E5)) (& &E5))

Revenue W 3,378,217 5,270,090 6,734,067 6,735,931 8,602,321
Gross profit EF 1,088,246 1,085,339 1,676,440 2,387,720 2,954,114
Operating profit &R 813,665 945,198 1,541,213 2,112,641 2,560,025
Profit before income tax BRFFIEIRAIEF 832,421 960,748 1,597,867 2,213,472 2,640,985
Profit for the year FEPaF 404,799 554,765 990,132 1,296,428 1,551,660
Attributable to: DUR AN TFELS -
Owners of the Company ZEAB#EEA 412,180 450,756 862,237 990,747 1,034,931
Non-controlling SRR E R
interests (7,381) 104,009 127,895 305,681 516,729
404,799 554,765 990,132 1,296,428 1,551,660
Non-Current Assets JEREEE 340,961 674,523 2,219,846 2,245,326 3,105,894
Current Assets TRENEE 12,886,234 14,180,183 17,652,161 32,900,980 59,503,446
Current Liabilities VEI=NE 7,367,955 7,987,529 11,015,003 23,282,086 47,645,100
Non-current Liabilities  JEREIEE 2,933,970 3,462,142 4,247,704 5,198,802 5,329,692
Total Equity T ABEE 2,925,270 3,405,035 4,609,300 6,665,418 9,634,548
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PROPERTY PROFILE

MERIT

Qo

%of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
FEERYE BN /R
ER i H@Eat BIAS st HEER
Spain Standard Nanchang 100% Q42014 Jinsha 2nd Road, Xianghu Xin Cheng, Nanchang Residential and commercial
County, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC
NEERSE EE 3-NE TEIREEETRaRSMME) —B EEREE
FES
Riverside International ~ Nanchang 100% Q42014 Intersection of Binjian Road and Yujin Road, Chaoyang  Residential and commercial
Xin Cheng, Xihu District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province,
PRC
ELER EE g HEIREEETANEAR A [ RATRACEE  ATRkEE
FUES
Bluelake County Nanchang 100% Q32016 South of Lian" an Road, East of Cheng an Road, Residential and commercial
Xianghu Xin Cheng, Nanchang County, Nanchang,
Jiangxi Province, PRC
MR B “ERE HEIREEETHERS M ELRE « MZRE EERER
F=%F
Riverlake International ~ Nanchang 51% Q22017 West of Chuangxin First Road, North and east of Residential and commercial
Planned Road, South of Provincial Academy of Scienes,
Gaoxin District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC
BHER B Z—tF TEIRERETRNRAIN—ROR  REBRLRN  HEREE
g% & ARERUE
Imperial Metropolis Nanchang 51% Q42017 Lianhua Road, Nanchang County, Nan Chang, Jiangxi ~ Residential and commercial
Province, PRC
BHHg B 3tE PETRE R E R SRELHR AEREE
EUES
Imperial Mansion Nanchang 8% Q42016 Lianhua Road, Nanchang County, Nan Chang, Jiangxi  Residential and commercial
Province, PRC
EHER EE “EE PEIRERETRERETE EERE=
FUES
Bluelake International ~ Nanchang 51% Q42017 No.20 Qingshan North Road, Donghu District, Residential and commercial
Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC
R B Z—tF HEIREEETRABSLLIE0R TEREE
FMF
Luxurious Royal Nanchang 51% Q32019 South of Dongyue Avenue, East of Fusheng East Road,  Residential and commercial
West of Taohua West Road, Changnan New City,
Nanchang County, Jiangxi Province, PRC
iR HE “B-hE HEIREEERE M HRRAELE  BERRENR Y AERBE
=% HRERRR LA
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PROPERTY PROFILE
MEGT
o %of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
FEERYE BN /R
ER i H@Eat BIAS st HEER
Royal Family Nanchang 30% Q42018 West of National Road 320, National Stadium, Residential and commercial
Xiangtang Development Zone, Nanchang County,
Jiangxi Province, PRC
BEtR B “T-)\E TEIREEERRERERGAHA VA NEENR [FEREE
EUES
The Garden of Spring~ Nanchang 42% Q22018 Zuokuyuan Village, Ruihong, Yugan County, Shangrao, ~ Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Province, PRC
TEER EE “E-0\E& REDIFA LRI AT RER EERE=
£_%
Scenery Bay Nanchang 40% Q32020 Longquan Road, Fengcheng City,Jiangxi Province, PRC  Residential and commercial
ey HE ZZI%F HEIRESEmRERR TEREE
F=%F
Delight Scenery Nanchang 51% Q42019 399 Changgang Street, High-tech Zone, Nanchang, Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Province, PRC
REE EE “2-nE HEIRE e S NRE AT 3995 EEREE
FES
YONG Lake Scenic Center Nanchang 51% Q12021 Aixihu North Road, East Coast of Aixi Lake, Nanchang, ~ Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Province, PRC
=B B %T-f PRI AR S RIRE SRR EERER
%
Life Sunshine Town Nanchang 100% Q42020 Xinjian District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Provice, PRC Residential and commercial
Eaoizy et B S HEIREEENER AEREE
EUES
The Phoenix Nanchang 46% Q42020 366 Fenghe North Avenue, Nanchang, Jiangxi Provice, ~ Commercial
PRC
BEHX EE 2% HEIFEEREEBMIAE 3665 £
FUES
Golden Mansion Nanchang 40% Q42020 Fengquan Road, Longquan Road, Fengcheng City, Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Provice, PRC
TEH B ZZI%fF PRI S SRR AR TEREE
FMF
Royal City Nanchang 16% Q42021 Junction of Dongyue Avenue and Dongxin 2nd Road, Residential and commercial
Nanchang, Jiangxi Provice, PRC
BEY B “EC-f TEIREEEREAERRN R ER EREE
EUES
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PROPERTY PROFILE
MERBFT
o %of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
FEERYE BN /R
ER i H@Eat BIAS it HEER
Fifth Avenue Ganzhou 30% Q42020 No. 3 Qinjiang Road, Zhangjiang New District, Residential and commercial
Ganzhou, Jiangxi Province, PRC
ENERAE N 5 TEIREENTRINES RIS HEREE
FES
Sunshine Coast Tianjin 100% Q42028 South of Haibin Avenue, Binhai Tourism District, Residential and commercial
Tianjin, PRC
miER K2 ZZTN\E HEXETEERERBEAER HTEREE
EJES
Land Lot Nos.ALand A2 Tianjin 100% Q22018 Land Lot Nos. Al and A2, Binhai Tourism District, Residential and commercial
Tianjin, PRC
AL R A2 IR PN “B-0\E HERETEBIRERALRA2SHR TEREE
%
Perfection Ocean Tianjing 18% Q32020 Hangu East Expansion Zone, Binhai New Area, Tianjin,  Residential and commercial
PRC
B K2 5 HEXEEENREERER HEREE
F=F
Luminescence Ocean Tianjing 23% Q32020 Hangu East Expansion Zone, Binhai New Area, Tianjin,  Residential and commercial
PRC
/s K2 234 HEXEEENEELRER HTEREE
F=%F
Cloud Metropolis Ningbo 41% Q22022 Fengyang Street, Yuyao City, Ningbo,Ningbo, Zhejiang  Residential and commercial
Province, China
R B S SENR=EN G Rl TEREE
%
Splendid the Legend Jinan 100% Q22013 No.99 Sankonggiao Street, Tiangiao District, Jinan, Residential and commercial
Shandong Province, PRC
ety B 3k FELREEETRBE=ABEH 9% HEREE
£°%
Bluelake County Jinan 80% Q42018 North of Sushan Road, West of Dongyu Avenue, Residential and commercial
Tiangiao District Jinan, Shandong Province
MR B -0\ HEILREERETRBERFAMMUA BB HTEREE
EJES
Royal Family Jinan 51% Q42018 No. 52 Zhangzhuang Road, Huaiyin District, Jinan, Residential and commercial
Shangdong Province, PRC
BEER B “B-0\E e R AR RRRRER 2% TEREE
FNE
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PROPERTY PROFILE
MRS
o %of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
TEEEE  BR/BE
B i EREat BIAH bib THEER
Imperial Mansion Jinan 90% Q42018 South of Jinging Road, West of Shihe Street, Jinan, Residential and commercial
Shandong Province, PRC
EHER Em “E-N\E R REEFETESRUE  ATHMUA FEREE
FJLES
Redco Visionary Jinan 85% Q42018 Southwest of Junction of Jing er Road and Weisan Residential and commercial
Road, Jiyang County, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC
NERT Em ZZ-N\F HE L EEERERRE — R e = B ERARE FEREE
FNE
Redco Visionary Il Jinan 85% Q42021 Southwest of Junction of Jing er Road and Weisan Residential and commercial
Road,Jiyang County, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC
NIRRT 8 ] “2T-F HE R EEE AR RE R - B R R FEREE
FME
Spring Villa Jinan 60% Q22022 Juntion of the 308 National Highway and the Liuliu Residential and commercial
River, Qihe County, Dezhou,Jinan, Shandong Province,
PRC
BRI & _ECCE HELRA AR ENE R 08 EE R AR ER FEREE
%
Sunshine Coast - Yantai 100% Q22016 East of Nongda Road, Gaoxin District, Yantai, Residential and commercial
Phase | Shandong Province, PRC
BrsE—H a5 ZE-REF HELREEATEMERERRE  HElKE FEREE
g%
Sunhine Coast - Phase Il Yantai 100% Q42018 East of Nongda Road, Gaoxin District, Yantai,Shandong ~ Residential and commercial
Province, PRC
FrtER-5_14 Ea ZZ-N\E HELREEATEHEEARUE FEREE
FNE
Sunhine Coast - Phase Il Yantai 100% Q22019 East of Nongda Road, Gaoxin District, Yantai,Shandong  Residential and commercial
Province, PRC
Brisr-5=1 28 “E-NEF HELREEETEMRERRNR FEREE
%
Sunshine Coast - Yantai 100% Q42020 East of Nongda Road, Gaoxin District, Yantai, Residential and commercial
Phase IV Shandong Province, PRC
BtEE— S8 a5 “ET%E HELREEATEHERRARR FEREE
EJLES
Mix Kingdom Redco Hefei 80% Q22017 Mengcheng North Road, Shuangfeng Industrial Zone,  Residential and commercial
Changfeng County, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC
ERE ] A —Z—tf HEZHE AT REHEATERENIHR FEREE
g%
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MY
o %of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
TEEEE  BR/BE
B i EREat BIAH bib THEER
Prince Royal Family Hefei 100% Q22017 East of Fengshan Road, south of Tianshui Road, Residential and commercial
Xinzhan District, Hefei City, Anhui Province, the PRC
EMtER = “2tE HREZHE AETHIEEBLRENE « RKBUE FEREE
FE
Royal International Hefei 80% Q22019 Southwest corner of the Junction of Baogong Avenue  Residential and commercial
and Linquan East Road, DI an Town, Feidong County,
Anhui Province, PRC
EHER =S IS HEZHERREEREO A ERERRRRARTA FEREE
g%
Blelake City Hefei 70% Q22020 300 meters Junction North of Yangtze River Road and ~ Residential and commercial
Zhenxi Road, Feidong County, Hefei, Anhui Province,
PRC
B =S “RT%E HEZHEARETERRR R EERRE RO 300K FEREE
7%
Royal View City Hefei 60% Q22020 West side of Magiao Road, Feidong County, Hefei, Residential and commercial
Anhui Province, PRC
eS80 A - HEZHEAEmERR SRR FEREE
g%
Funan Huaan City Fu Yang 20% Q22020 East side of Fushun Park, Linquan County, Fuyang City, ~ Residential and commercial
Anhui Province, PRC
BEERY, BB “ET%F TEZHERGTRREEIBARR FEREE
FE
Linquan Huaan City Fu Yang 20% Q22020 South side of Linquan County Government,Linquan Residential and commercial
County, Fuyang City, Anhui Province, PRC
BRREL B “RT%E HEZHE R mER R ER AT R FEREE
7%
Redco Courtyard Wuhan 70% Q32020 Fengxiang Island Resort, Zhiyinhu Avenue, Caidian Residential and commercial
District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC
ENE i - REIA R ER GRS A EEHEERN FEREE
F=F
Youthfulness Wuhan 40% Q22020 Intersection of Guanggu 4th Road and Shendun 3rd Commercial
Road, Donghu New Technology Development Zone,
Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC
G B2 “2°%%F HEALARERIENELREE A ANRL =R B2
% R
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PROPERTY PROFILE
MEGT
o %of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
rEERE  BR/BH
ER i E@EA BIAS it HEER
Royal City - Phase | Xianyang 70% Q32017 Zhonghua West Road, Gaoxin District, Xiangyang, Residential and commercial
Shaanxi Province, PRC
g8 B 3tE HERFELEET R TRTERR EEREE
F=F
Majestic Mansion Xianyang 75% Q42020 Southeast corner of the Junction of Tiangong First Residential and commercial
Road and Zhouwen Road, Zhouling Town, Xihan New
District, Xianyang, Shaanxi Province, PRC
PNEE R 2% TERALEETARNER EMMARRR T —RERX  FEREE
FUES BRERREA
Royal Family Xianyang 30% Q42020 West of Qinhuang Road, North of Wenlin West Road, Residential and commercial
Xianyang City, Shaanxi Province, PRC
BHER R e PERP SRR R M « MFERL TEREE
FMF
Royal International Shenzhen 51% Q22016 Lot No. G11337-0095, Pingshan New District, Shenzhen,  Residential and commercial
Guangdong Province, PRC
EHER | “TF FEER A RYITITLATR S G11337-0095 it EREE
£_%
Xilong Shenzhen 20% Q12020 Intersection of Longping Road and Longgang Avenue,  Residential and commercial
Longgang, Shenzhen, Guangdong Provice, PRC
ERELL I Z2T%E HEERS MR RREEAERA EERE=
%
Jinhai Mansion Nantong 49% Q22020 Gangzha District, Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, PRC  Residential and commercial
BEN B ZZI%F HEIEEEEDERE TEREE
%
Royal Family Zhongshan 70% Q22019 No. 46, Fuhua Road, West District, Zhongshan, Residential and commercial
Guangdong Province, PRC
BEER il “3NE HEEREPTAREEE 65— EEREE
£°%
Bluelake Landmark Zhangshan 70% Q32019 Donghuan Road, Huangpu Town, Zhongshan, Residential and commercial
Guangdong Province, PRC
BHES Ll “E-nE HEEREPUTERERRLRSE EERER
F=%F
Bayview Quan Zhou 33% Q42019 Junction of Kailin Road and Lianxiang Road, Taiwanese ~ Residential and commercial
Investment Zone, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
Bing FM “Z-NE HEERE RIND o BRERTME AR ER TEREE
FNE
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MERBFT
o %of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
rEERE  BR/BH
ER i E@EA BIAS it ERER
Cloud Base Suzhou 49% Q42021 Suzhou Industrial Park, Gusu District, Suzhou City, Residential and commercial
Jiangsu Province, PRC
Ea M “2T-f HEIHEHENTREREN T EEER HEREE
FES
Yuchau Mansion Lianyuengang 40% Q22020 Junction of Julong Road and Hailian Road, Haizhou Residential and commercial
District, Lianyungang City, Jiangsu Province, PRC
Rl B 234 HEIHEEZET O EERRREERRA HTEREE
%
Ninjiang New City Meizhou 20% Q12020 39 Xingnan Avenue, Xingning City, Meizhou City, Residential and commercial
Guangdong Province
k] b ZZI%F EREENTEEDEFAEIR TEREE
%
Prime Sydney, 26% Q12010 101 Waterloo Road, Macquarie Park, Sydney, Australia ~ Residential and commercial
Australia
Prime BHER “2-2f 101 Waterloo Road, Macquarie Park, Sydney, Australia ~ FEREE
%
Leisure's Mansion Jinan 100% Q42021 Southwest of Jigi Road, North of 26th Middle, Jinan Residential and commercial
City, Shandong Province, China
BIRAT B 100% ZZZ—4F HEILREERETEERAERA - Z 7RI HTEREE
EJES
Jiyang Il Jinan 100% Q42023 South of Weier Road and East of Xiaojingwu Road, Residential and commercial
Jiyang District, Jinan City, Shandong Province, China
EEAZE B 100% ZEZ=F HELFEEETAEREEZRE  MIARE TEREE
EES
Royal Mansion Qingyuan 100% Q22022 District 49, Xincheng West, Qingyuan City, Guangdong ~ Residential and commercial
Province, China
BEM BR 100% ZZZZfF HEERGEETHRAELIFE HEREE
£°%
Enjoy Peak Quan Zhou 100% Q32021 Tangxi Community, Wan'an Street, Luojiang District, Residential and commercial
Quanzhou City, Fujian Province, China
s FM 100% ZZZ—4F HEERERNTRIEEZHERRIER HTEREE
F=%F
Center Mansion Foshan 100% Q42021 North of Yile Road, West of Fenghuang Road, Xijiang Residential and commercial
New City, Gaoming District, Foshan City, Guangdong
Province, China
BEER il 1000 —B_-& TEEREBUTRARAINMMRERIL  BERUA FERER
EJES

324

REDCO PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2019



»

PROPERTY PROFILE
MRS
o %of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
TEERE  ER/EH
B i) EREAL BTRH ik TR R
Royal Universe Hefei 85% Q22022 Intersection of Wolonghu Road and Xiangwang Road, Residential and commercial
Xinzhan District, Hefei City, Anhui Province, China
EEXT = 85% BT "F FEZHEA TR RABTRRO FEREE
>
Grand Mansion Jinan 70% Q32021 East of the Railway Protection Green Line and North of  Residential and commercial
the Second Machine Tool Road, Huaiyin District, Jinan
City, Shandong Province, China
ERERN Em 0% —E--F R REEFTRERERMESELE  BRCARN  EhEE
FZE I
Leisure's Mansion Quan Zhou 64% Q12021 North District, Chidian Town, Jinjiang City, Quanzhou Residential and commercial
City, Fujian Province, China
iR M 64% —E--E FEEELFMME IMAEENI A E FEREE
g%
Dragon Bay Quan Zhou 55% Q42026 Qunxian Village, Zhangban Town, Taiwan Business Residential and commercial
Investment Zone, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, China
She S 55% ZEIAE HEBRA RN AERERRIRENEN FEREE
FME
Leisure's Mansion Ganzhou 55% Q42021 West of Jinying Road, North of Jinping East Road, Residential and commercial
Economic Development Zone, Ganzhou City, Jiangxi
Province, China
BN El 55% ZEB°-F HEIRLBENMARESREAR S TREILH FEREE
FJLES
Royal Central Quan Zhou 55% Q32021 Hongzhai'an Community and Luotang Street's Quetang ~ Residential and commercial
Communit, Qingyang Street, Jinjiang City, Quanzhou
City, Fujian Province, China
EZ2mp FM 5% “E°-F TEERARNTEIMERGELTRHE  BUGER GThEE
FZE BHE
Cloud Terrace Hefei 51% Q42021 West of Fuyang North Road, south of Meideng Road, Residential and commercial
Shuangfeng Development Zone, Changfeng County,
Hefei City, Anhui Province, China
ZHen =S 51% ZEC-E HEZHEARETREFEERNEREFIIRUA  BER  HEhEE
L WE
Eastern Aesthetics Shijiazhuang 51% Q42023 Shangzhuang Town, Luquan District, Shijiazhuang City, ~ Residential and commercial
Hebei Province, China
IRERRE AR 5% ZEZ=E HE S ERETERE LA FEREE
FME
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PROPERTY PROFILE
MERBFT
o %of Actual/
interest  Expected
attributable  completion
Project City  totheGroup date Address Project type
rEERE  BR/BH
ER i E@EA BIAS it HEER
The Phoenix - Phase Il Nanchang 51% Q42020 No. 366 Fenghe North Avenue, Honggutan District, Residential and commercial
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province, China
BEHAZH EE 51% ZEIEF TEIAEEEMASEEEMIKE 30665 EEREE
FES
Scenery Mansion Chongging 51% Q42021 No. 6, Changhin Road, Fengshan Street, Wulong Residential and commercial
District, Chongging, China
LIkEER BE 51% ZEZ—f tEERTREEBLEEREROH EERER
EJES
Sky Terrace Huizhou 49% Q32022 Dongxing Area, Dongjiang Industrial Park, Zhongkai Residential and commercial
High-tech Zone, Huizhou, Guangdong, China
el E 49% ZEZZE TEERESMNMESHER I EXERERE TEREE
£=%
YONG Lake Scenic Center Nanchang 41% Q22022 No. 936 Aixihu North Road, Gaoxin District, Nanchang ~ Residential and commercial
City, Jiangxi Province, China
EHEM EE 4% ZFIZF HEIEEEETaNEZMI% 9365 EEREE
5%
Changsha Phoenix Changsha 41% Q22022 No. 74 Chiling Road, Tianxin District, Changsha City, Residential and commercial
Hunan Province, China
RIVBEAMK = 4% ZZTZH hEHEE R TRORRER 145 EERER
%
One Riverside Glory Nanchang 40% Q42022 Dongxin Township, Nanchang County, Nanchang City, ~ Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Province, China
BEBI_H HE 40% ZBZZE TEIRERETEERENAS TEREE
EES
Two Riverside Glory Nanchang 40% Q42021 Dongxin Township, Nanchang County, Nanchang City, ~ Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Province, China
BEBI-H EE 40% ZFZ—4F HEIREEEDRaERRNE EEREE
FES
Golden Mansion Fengcheng 40% Q32021 No. 988 Fuyou East Road, Hezhou Street, Fengcheng Residential and commercial
City, Jiangxi Province, China
g1 24 4% ZBT-E£ hEDIFE BB AR 980 EERER
F=%F
Eastern Grand Fengcheng 40% Q32021 No. 8, Longguang Avenue, Jiannan Street, Fengcheng ~ Residential and commercial
City, Jiangxi Province, China
FAEE £y 40% ZEZ-F HEIRESEmEIREAER R AE SR TEREE
£=%
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rEEEE  BR/ED
R i EEEntt BIRS it ERER
Sky Palace Huizhou 33% Q32022 Baimitian Section, Longgang Village Committee, Residential and commercial
Longxi Street, Boluo County, Huizhou City, Guangdong
Province, China
EHER M 3% ZEZF TEEREENTERRRFHERENZEORENE  AEREE
=%
Royal Redco Xian 30% Q42021 North of Tiangong First Road, Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, ~ Residential and commercial
China, east of Yingbin Avenue, west of Zhouwen Road
NEEl AZ 0% —E--F TEREEAEETRI—RL DEAEMNE BB AZREE
FJliEs 7
Royal Family Xianyang 30% Q42020 West of Qinhuang Road, North of Wenlin West Road, Residential and commercial
Qindu District, Xianyang City, Shaanxi Province, China
B2 Bif5 0% T HERFEERE T RSERERUFE « MFERLE TEREE
FJIES
Riviera One Taizhou 30% Q42023 East side of Qinhu Avenue, south side of Machang Residential and commercial
Road, Jiangyan District, Taizhou City, Jiangsu
Province, China
REE M 0% ZBZ=fF HRETHE NN EERRAXERA « SH%mEf FERER
FJIES
Cathay Palace Yantai 2% Q42021 Laishan Economic Development Zone, Yantai City, Residential and commercial
Shandong Province, China, south of Majiadu Road and
west of Majiadu Middle Road
Sl eI 2% ZB--fF FELREEETRILAERER  BRBRUE B8 ATkEE
FME HEELLF
Eastern Imperial Garden  Fengcheng 20% Q42021 66 Fuzhou South Road, Sundu Street, Fengcheng City,  Residential and commercial
Jiangxi Province, China
FHEE £y 0% & HEIEE M REEESNER 6% HEREE
FJliEs
Bauhinia Residence Hefei 20% Q22021 South of Yudu Avenue, Jingshan Town, Huaiyuan Residential and commercial
County, Bengbu City, Anhui Province, China
EXil B 2% ZZT--F HEZHE e EERA RSB AER FEREE
5%
Eastern Crystal Fengcheng 20% Q42021 Intersection of Cambridge Avenue and Cambridge East  Residential and commercial
Il Road, New City, Fengcheng City, Jiangxi Province,
China
BHEE =31 0% ZTZ-F HETI S S MR RIBAE AR ER 2 B E FERER
FJIES

NEMEERERAR 2019 FERE
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FEEEYE  BR/RE
BB W EZEAL BIAH Lk EEER
Eastern Harmony Fengcheng 20% Q32021 Intersection of Jianxia East Road and Longze Avenue,  Residential and commercial
Fengcheng, Jiangxi Province, China
FHNE 81 0% ZF-F TEIRE ST AEREEERAERE EEREE
£=%
Eastern Exquisite Fengcheng 20% Q22021 Intersection of Longguang Avenue and Jiannan Road,  Residential and commercial
Xincheng District, Fengcheng City, Jiangxi Province,
China
RALEE g1 0% ZB_-F PEIAA SEh MR AE AR R E EERE=
%
Sunshine Capital Nanchang 20% Q42022 Shichun Road, Wuyuan City, Jiangxi Province, China Residential and commercial
Pt ER HE 20% ZEZZF PEIRRERTSER EERBE
politE
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